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VISION

THE FUTURE IS OURS

MISSION

We shape the future of gaming and
entertainment in Asia
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Financial Highlights

NET REVENUES

US$5.09 billion

BASIC NET INCOME PER SHARE

US$0.386

NET INCOME

US$637.5

ADJUSTED EBITDA

US$1,287.8 million

BITDA

pared




Market Overview and Key Highlights

Macau Market

Markel-wide gross gaming revenues for 2013 intreased
18.6% from 2012 to a record USS45.0 billion, with the
rolling chip segment growing 13.1% and the mass market
labla gamas segment expanding 34.7%. The mass market
loble games segment continues o drive markel-wide
growth rates higher, supported by improved regional and
local infrastructure, increased hotel rooms supply and
expanded non-gaming amenities and attractions. The
mass market Loble games segment in 2013 accounted for
29.9% of markel-wide gross gaming revenues, compared
1o 26.3% for 2012, Meleo Crown Enteriainment’s already
meaningful exposure to the mass market table games
segmant is sol 1o increase further with the opening of
Studio City in mid-2015 and with the fifllh holel lowar at
City of Dreams expected to be completed in early 2017,

In 2013, visitation 1o Macau increased 4.4% compared
1o 2042, with year-over-year growlh rates accelerating
during the Intter half of 2043, Vigiters from China continue
1o oulpace visitors from olher areas, incraasing 10.2%
on @ yiar-over-year basis and accounted for 63.5% of all
visitors to Macau in 2013, compared to 60.2% in 2012,
Wisitors from Hong Kong and Taiwan accountad for 23.1%
and 3.4% of total visitation in 2013, respectivaly.

Macau confinues 1o benefit from the PRC central and
Macau governmants' developmaent plang for the fagion,
including improved infrastruciure, immigration policies
and development of Hanggin Island. This wide-reaching
development plan is expacted to strengthan the appaal of
Macau as a multi-facelad leisure and tourism destination,
offering an incraasingly expanded array of entartainmant
altractions and amenilias 1o drive long-tarm growlh and a
maore divarsified tourism expariance.

Mateo Crown Erferisinment Limtod  Ansual Repon 2013
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Studio City

The development of Stedio City remaing on track and is
expected o open in mid-2015 Wilh the foundation and
pliing work now complate, the construction |s prograssing
a3 planned, Studio City, our Company’s next integrated
razorl in Cotai, Macau, will further expand our Company’s
alrgady  substantial exposure 1o the mass markel
segments with its uniquae, cinemalicaliy-themed design
and numerous interactive attractions which will further
diversify Macau's leisure and lourism offerings.

The Company had succassfully raised US$825.0 milion
under the Studio Cily Motes offering and signed the
facilities agreement wilth the lead arranging banks in
reltion 1o the USS14 bilion Stedio City senior secured
credit faciities, both of which wera achieved without a
Corporate guarantes from the Company,

Maden Crown Erteriainement Limfod  Anewual Repord 2013

City of Dreams

In April 2013, the all new TABOO show cama back 1o City
of Dreams bringing a new cabarel expafience lo Club
Cuble. This Franco Dragone insplred show demonsirates
owl commilment to further diversdy the leisure and
enfartainmant oplions thal Macau has Lo offer and provides
City of Dreoms with ancther tood to support ils pramium
business.

The Company is alse moving forward with the development
of thefifth holed bewar at City of Drearns, which is anticipated
to open n garly 2017, This iconic hotel lower raprasents
another powarful addition 10 our wide array of amanilies
and attractions that City of Dreams already offars to its
cuslomars, helping extend ils leading position in the
increasingly important high-end and pramium segmeanis.

City of Dreams is alse developing a ldeslyle foed and
bevarage and enterlainment precincl which is designed to
furiher broaden the appeal of the property to a wider range
of wisitors lo Macau.



City of Dreams Manila

The development of City of Dreams Manila comtinues to
pragrass well, with the integrated resort expected Lo open
later this year. Cily of Dreams Manila Is expected to ba
ong of the Philippines’ leading integraled tourism rosorts
and will diversify the Company's exposure to the rapidly
doveloping Asian gaming and enlertainmont industry,
enabling Melco Crown Entertainment to further participate
in thi grawth in thi Asian middle ¢lass and the ingrasing
consumarism of this important target market.

The total budgat for the City of Dreams Manila project up
1o the lime of opening is estimated lo be approxinalely
US§680.0 millien, consisting of funds primarity for eapital
oxpendilures, working capilal for initial opening and olher
pra-opening expenses. Howewver, this eslimate may be
revised depending on o ronge of variables, including the
final design and development plans, funding costs, the
availability of financing on lerms acceptable 1o us, and the
pravailing markel conditions.

MCP has raised approximately USS338.5 milion of nat
proceads from a top-up placemant in April 2013, which
included the offer and sale of common shates of MCPR,
tegether with an over-allolmant oplion. MCP has also
raised approximately US%340.0 millon equivalent in an
offaring of Philippine Peso denominaled, 5.00% Senior
noles due 2019, which was completed in January 2014,
The integrated resorl is due 10 open later Lhis year,

Naieo Crown Entartainment Lesiod  Anrenl Repor 2013
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Co-Chairman & Chief Executive Officer’s Statement

Melco Crown Entertainment has enjoyed yet
another successful year in 2013 with record
operaling and financial results, and the continued
progress of our exciling development pipeline.

Wae raported record Adjusted EBITDA of USS1.287.8
million in 2013, primarily attributable to tha strengih in our
mass table games operation and rolling chip revenues, in
addition to our highly commitled cost-control focus. The
year-ovar-year incraase in nel ravenue was driven by
substantially improved mass lable games volumes and
blended hold pareantages, as well as increased volumes
in the rolling chip and gaming machines segments. We are
proud that our solid financial rack recerd and managaerial
prowess have earned us a place on the asteamed
Forbes Asia's “Fabulous 507 lisl amaong Asio’s most elite
companies, which is an acknowledgmant of our success in
achieving recerd-breaking rosults deiven by cur operational
excellence and bold innovalion.

Cur flagship praperty in Macau, City of Dreams, continues
1o be the primary driver of our group-wide Success given
the property’s imprassive parformance in the mass market
segmant, where the propery’s mass lable yields continue
1o lead the market. The succass of City of Dreams is
supporied by the propery’s premium-focused sirategy,
wilh World-class and uniqua gaming, entartainment and
olher non-gaming amenities, such as the multiple award-
winning The Houge of Dancing Waler, Azia's anly and
mest anticipated cabaret experionce TABOO, the ground-
breaking water extravaganza Viva Fiasla featuring the
China National Diving Team, National Syachrenized
Swimming Team and acclaimed singers, and the
internatienal Hlusion master Franz Harary's inavgural
parformanca in Macau. To further cater lowards Macau's
increasingly discerning customers. we are very pleased
that the fiflh hotel tewar at Cily of Dreams has commenced
development in 2013, largeting 1o open in garly 2017, The
new tower will represant a truly iconic canterpiece, which
will complament the properly’s already markel-laading
offerings and atiractions, enabling us 1o further exiend our
leading pasition at the premsum ond of the markal.

Maden Crown Erteriainment Lmfod  Anvual Repord 2013

In addition 16 angoing enhancements 1o our existing
praperties in Macau, we continue to make significant
progréss on our next major inlegrated resort in Colai,
Studio City, This cinemalically-themad integrated resort
is ieally located diractly adjacent to the Lotus Bridge in
Cotal, the only entry point from the rapidly developing
Hangain 15/and to Macau. The project remaing on track
and is expecled lo opan in mid-2015. Bayend Macaw, our
devaleprmaent in the Philippings has been pregrassing well.
Wea are pleased thal in recognition of our commilment
to bringing 1he best in entendinmant and gaming to the
Philippines, cur new integrated resort in Manila will carry
tha namasake of our successful “City of Dieams™ branded
flagzhip resert in Macau, expanding the regional reach of
the brand. City of Dreams Manito, with its broad colleclion
of first-class brands, including |daslyle and amtariainmient
atiractions, will meaningfully expand the Philippines appeal
to a broadar range of cuslomers both within the Philippines
and throughout the region. We have already announced
twa of the threa hotal brands for the proparty — the ulira-
luxuripus Crown Towers hotel, serving VIP patrons,
and the internalionally acclaimed and celebrily-inspirad
Mobu Hotel, with its unique food and beverage concepls
and boutique luxury holel sierings. We will continue to
announce more ground-breaking signature anlarainment
atiractions af Cily of Dreams Manila as we move coser to
opening the projact.

‘While we remain focused on our curren operations and
fulure projects in both Macau and the Philippines, we
continue to pursee our aim of becoming one of the leading
gaming and entarlainment companies in the region,
positioning curselves 1o participate in new and exciting
gaming markels in Asia, mast nolably Japan.



Mataw is in a highly privileged position given the unraalized
potential in its core feedar market of maintand China, as
is avidenced in the imprassive growlh in gaming revenues
over lhe pas! several years, making it the larges! casino
garming dastination in the warld. Macau's ideal positioning,
transformational local and reglonal development plans, and
meaninglful new supply of integrated rosons in Cotai will
supporl Macau's long-larm success as the leading lelsura
and anlertainmant destinglion in Agi,

Lastly. wi would like Lo axprass our gralitude o our Board
of DQireclors, shareholders, employees and businass
assaciatas for thair continuous effon and support, which
have helped us achieve the success we have enjoyed. This
sudtass, logether with a disciplingd approach 1o managing
our capital strecture, has enabled us lo recommend a
specinl dividend and & naw quarterly dvidend palicy, with
a view lo distibuling surplus capital while at the same lime
maintaining suitable faxitality to Suppent our current and
future growth plans, with the ultimate geal of driving long-
tarm sharaholder valug

Lawrence Yau Lung Ho
Co-Chalrman and Chiel Exaculive Officar
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Wa ara a developar, ownér and oparalor of casing
gaming and entertainment resorl faciifies in Asia

We currently have lwo major casine based operations,
namaly, City of Dreams and Altira Magau, and non-
casing based operations a1 our Mocha Clubs, The
Company is also developing the planned Studio
Cily project, a cinematically-themed integralad
entarlainment, retail and gaming resorl. and the
iconie fifth hotel lower al Cily of Dreams in Cotal,
Mactau, which are expecled 1o opan in mid-2015
and early 2017, respecively, Qur current and fulure
Macau oparalions are designed to cater to a broad
spectrum of gaming patrons, frgm high-stakes rolling
chip gaming palfons 1o gaming palfons seeking &
broader enterlainment experience. We currantly own
and operate two Forbes Five-Star holals in Macau
Altira Macau and The Crown Towers holel. We seek
1o allract palrens throughoul Asia and, in particular,
from Greatar China.

Qur currenl oparating faciblies are focused on the
Macau gaming markat, which wa balieve will continue
1o be one of the largest gaming destinations in the
world. In 2013, Macau generated approximately
US845.0 bilign of gaming revenues, according io
the DICJ, raprésanting an 18.6% increass from the
comparable peried of 2012, In addiien, Macau is
curranlly tha only markeal in Graatar China, and one of
only several in Asia, to offer legalized casino gaming

In the Philippines, MCE Lesure Philippings, a
subsidiary of MCF, has bean cooparating with Balle
Corporation to dowilop and oporale City of Droams
Manita, a casino, hotel. retail and entartainment
integrated resort in the Entertainment City complex in
Manila, which is anticipated to open later this year.

Qur Company’s ADSs were listed on the NASDAG
Global Market in Cecember 2006 and wire upgraded
1o ba traded on the NASDAQ Global Selact Market
in January 2009, Our Company also successfully
complated a dual primary listing om the Stock
Exchange in Decembar 2011

City of Dreams
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Altira Macau

Allira Macau is designed 1o provide a casing and holel
experiance that caters to Asian relling chip customers and
players sourced primarily through gaming promoters.

As of Decambar 31, 2013, Altira Macau fealumed a casing
area of approximalely 173,000 square feet with a lotal of
approximately 140 gaming lables. Allira Macau's multi-
floor layout comprises primarily designated gaming areas
and privale gaming reoms for rolling chip players, together
with a general gaming area for the mass market that offers
wvarious table imils to caler 10 a wide rangs of mass market
patrons, Qur multi-floer layout allows us the flexibllity 1o
reconfigure Altira Macaus gaming areas o moot The
changing demands of ouwr patrons and targel specific
customer segments,

Wa consider Altira Holed, located within the 38-slaray
Allira Macav, to be one of the leading holels in Macau
as evidenced by ils long-slanding Forbes Five-Star
recognition, The top floor of the holel serves as the hotel
labby and reception area, providing guests with views of
the surrounding area, The hotel comprises approximately
230 guest rooms, including suites and villas. A numbdr
of rastauranis and dining facilities are available at Altira
Macaw, including a leading lalan restouran Aurord,
several Chinese and Inlernational restauranis, dining
areas focused around the gaming areas and several bars.
Allira Holal also offers non-gaming entertainmant venuas,
including & $pa, gymnasium, ouldoor garden podium and
sky terrace lounge.

Allira Macau conlinues to offer the most luxurious hotel
GApEIARCE 10 WVETY W wilh its | iandlly
acclaimed accommedalion and guesl services. It has
been awarded the “Forbes Five Star™ rating in both
Lodging and Spa categories by the Forbes Travel Guide
(formarly Known as Mobil Travel Guide) for the fourth year
running in 2013,

Maleo Crown Entortanmont Lesiiod  Asrual Repor 2013
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Maocha Clubs

Mocha Clubs comprise the kargast non-caging based
operations of gaming machines in Macau. As of Decambar
31, 2013, Mocho Clubs had oight clubs with a lotal of 1,369
gaming machines in oparation, which represented 10.4%
of the total machine installation in the market, according
16 the DICJ). Mocha Clubs fotus on genaral mass
market players, including day-lrip cuslomers, oulside
the comventional casing selling. Except for Mocha Altira
located al Allira Macau, we operate Mocha Clubs at leased
of sub-leased pramises of undar righl-1o-use agrearmants,

In addition to slot machines, each Mocha Club sile offars
electrenic table games withoul dealars. The gaming facililies
at our Mocha Clubs intlude what we believe is the Latast
lechnglogy forgaming machines and offer both single-player
mathines with a vanisly of games, intieding progressive
jackpols, and mulli-player games whede playars on finked
machings play against the house in electronic roulelte,
baccarat and sicbo, a iradilional Chinese dice game.

The Macau governmenl enacled an  administralive
regulation which came info effact on Mevember 27, 2012,
pursuant 1o which gaming maching lounges, such as our
Mocha Clubs, may only be installed: (i) in hotals classified
wilh at least five stars; (i) in proportios entirely allecated o
non-residential purposes and located within lass than 500
moters of an autherized hotel-casing: or (i) in commercial
and laisure complaxes, of ralevant louristic infares!, not

Matcn Crown Erfieriinment Limfod  Annwal Repor! 2013

ingared in a densoly populated ared. Under this reguiation,
all gaming machine lounges wera required to comply willh
the opplicable requiremaents by Movember 27, 2013. Wae
closad threa Mocha Clubs which did not mael the relavant
lecalion requiraments bafore Newvembar 27, 2013, In May
and Movember 2013, we obtained approval from the
Macau governmenl to open two new Mocha Clubs, one
of which openad in Decembar 2013 and the other one is
axpectod to open later this yodr,

Studio City

Wa are currenlly developing Studio City. a large-scale
cinemalically-thermed  integrated  enterlainmant,  redad
and gaméng resort which |2 expected to open in mid-
2015, Studio City upon complation will include significant
gaming capacily, five-star hotel offerings and varicus
onlertainmant, rofail and food and boverage outlols
to altract a diverse range of customers. Studio City is
designed to coplure the increasingly importont mass
markel segment, with its deslination theming, unique and
inngvalive interactive alleactions, and strong Asian logus

The Studio City's $ile is on a plot of land of 130,789 squarne
meters (approximately 1.4 million square feet) in Cotai,
Macau and is located directly adjacent to the Lotus Bridge
immigratien checkpoint and ona of the proposed light
rail stations. W beliove that the location of Studic City,
in addition fo its vast array of antertainmant and laksure
offerings, is & kay compalitive advantage.



Studio City has an approved gross construction area of
TOT.078 square matars (approximately 7.6 million squara
feel). We currenlly estimale on a preliminary basis that the
dasign and construction cost for the first phase of Studio
Cily will be approximately US$2.04 billion. Our plans for
the expansionary phase at Studio City are under review,

We successfully raised USS825.0 million through our
Studio Cily Nolas offering in November 2012, Wa signed
the facilities agreement in January 2013 with the lead
arcanging banks for a USSL4 billien Studio Cily senior
secured credil facilities, These financings were achieved
wilhout a corporale guarantee from the Company.

City of Dreams Manila

Chty of Dreams Manila is located on an approximataly
G.2:-heclare site a1 the gatleway of Entertainment Cily,
Manita, close to Matro Manila's inlernational alepor
and cenlral business disticl. City of Dreams Manila is
expected 1o be one of the Philppines’ leading integrated
lourism resorls and is anficipated 1o open later this year.

Upon complelion and subject to any interior design
medifications, City of Dreams Maniia s expected to have
approximately 14,0268 square maeters (approximalely
150,727 square feet) of aggregate gaming space and
1818l gross fleor area of approximately 300100 square
meters (approximately 3.2 million square feel). Under
the regulatory framework of PAGCOR, Cily of Drearms

Manda will be parmilled Lo operale up 1o approximately
1,680 slot machines, 1,680 elecironic table games and
365 gaming tables upen comphition, Netwithstanding the
maximum permitted by PAGCOR. the actual number of
slof machings, aleclronic table gamés and gaming lables
upen comgletion. may be fewer. Cily of Dreams Manita is
eapectod lo have threge hotels, including the wilra-luxurious
and exciling brands such as Crown Towers hotel and
Nobu Hotel, with appreximalely 950 reoms in aggregate.
inciuding WIP and five-star uxury rooms and high-and
boulique holel rooms, and five specially restaurants along
with a number of bars and a multi-level ear park. City of
Dreams Manii is also expected 1o fedlure thiee separale
anfartainmant venues: a family enterlainment center, a Ive
partormance central lounge within the casinoe and a night
club ancapsulated within the Fortune Egg, an attractive
domelike structure accanted with creative extarnal lighting.
which is expecled to bacoms a cenfarpiace atiraction of
the project, City of Dreams Manila will also feature a retail
boulivard.

City of Dreams Manila reprasents an importan milestone
for us, marking our first entry into an emartainment and
gaming market outside of Macau, which will enalda our
Company 1o deliver an incramental source of eamings and
cashflow. City of Dreams Manila maaningfully expands
our regional offerings designed to cater to the needs and
evar-growing demands of the incraasingly important Asian
middle-classwhich continues to seek a more sophisticated
and broader kxisure and enterlainment expearianca,

Matco Crown Endorizinmend Lisitiod  Anmal Report 2013
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Corporate Citizenship and Responsible Gaming

With deep roots in Macau, Melco Crown Entertainment's foundation philosophy on corporate social
responsibility ("CSR") is about giving back to the community it serves. The Company has devoled ils
greatest efforts in contributing o the society through a proaclive and innovative approach.

ME\OL UNFEER TEAM
SiETn IR S 25 T 5

vErtecinrrent beleves in making adlennce in Dw commond pirvabich operde:

- Maden Crown Erderiainement Lmfod  Anewual Repor 2013



The Company has developed unique and one-of-ils-
kind CSR programs across its six CSR piltars — youth,
educalion, women, cultura/heritage, environment and
responsible gaming. These programs aim le address
and facililate selutions on social issues in Macau, and lo
support logal charitable organizations guided by the vision
of making a diffarenca in people’s lives.

“Dare 1o Dream” is the Company's signature series 1o
encourage innovation and inculcate an appreciation for the
arts, by providing the youlhs of Macau with an exposure
1o world-renowned and prestigious artists and maesires.
The purpose is 1o inspire to aspire, and 19 reach for thair
maximum potential. Undar this signaturé sefies and in
parinership with the Macau gowernment, the Company
has already provided scholarship and internship abroad
opporunities with bwo world-renowned maestros in their
regpoctive figlds — Mr, Franco Dragone. the crealive
diractor of the award-winning *The House of Dancing
Waler®, with the support of Macao Polytechnicinstitute; and
Mr. Yundi Li, the iMernational piane maesiro, supparted
by Cultural Affairs Bureau of Macau. In partnership with
the Terliary Education Services Office of Macau, the nexl
wave of "Dare to Dream™ is the opportunily to be exposed
1o Dame Zaha Hadid, the internationally cenowned
architect and the architect and designer of City of Dreams”
new hotel lowsr,

Melco Crown Entertainmant believes thal encouraging
leaming and higher education is a must. To enable ils
colleagues o pursud their high school aducabon while shill
warking, Melco Crown Enterlainment has launched the
gaeneral education program “Back to Schaol™ in partnership
wilh the Education and Youth Affairs Bureau of Macau.
This unique pragram brings the high school diploma in-
house through the Company's Learning Acadery, which
eazes lransporiation and lime issues for our colleagues.

Meleo Crown Enterlainment also provides warious
scholarships to complete a full 4-year degree programmea
in any universities in Macau. in order lo encourage
the concept of lfe-long learning. These scholarships
are provided for our employees, and their families, as
the Company belipves the importance of famiy, Qne
category of the scholarship is the *Hope Scholarship®,
which is offered for those who are facing exiraordinary
circumstances which would otherwisa prevant them from
meating the relevant academic eriteria,

Qulside Macau, Melco Crown Enterlainment has also
baen active in various eullural, educational and communily
evenls in Japan in recent years. A CSR project called

SAURMN (Alernatve Urbanism Reorganized by Arts) will
be inauguraled in April 2014, "AURA is the collaboration
project between Tokyo University of the Arts and the
Comgpany fgr the perpetuplion and evolution of Japanese
tragitional cullures. The project consists of research on
a new urban devalopmaent model, as well as a series of
activities 1o perpetuate Japanese (raditional culture.
aiming al craating new arls and cullures for the fulure
genarations,

As  an  enwirenmentally  responsitle company,
anvirenmanial initiatives and concerns have ahvays been
a part of the fabric of Melco Crown Entertainment. The
Company has invested over MOP100 million in ‘green”
technalogy 1o ensure beller energy management and
address environmental concerns. In padticular, City of
Dreams, with the second largest Cenbralized Cooling
System in the Soulh China hospitality indusiry, was the
first and only hospitality facility in Macau te allain 150
14001 Environmental Management Certification, along
with the Indeer Envirenmantal Qualily Cerlificate. It has
also been honored for its high enargy efficiency with the
*Energy Saving Concept Award™,

Responsible Gaming (“RG") is also one of the main focuses
of Malco Crown Entonainmen’s social responsibilitios.
Motable RG aclivities and infrastructure include full RG
training as parl of the oriantation process for all new staff
mambars (including non-gaming employeses). a video
promoting RG through the Company’s internal TV channel
*MCE TV and employee intranet and suppart of RG
Awareness Week organized by the Macau government.
The Company also distributes posters and brochures on
RG al all of its proparties and provides support including
counseling to customers who have a gambling problem.

The other aspects of Melce Crown Enleriainment’s
CSR encempass both volunleerism and philanthropy
throughoul the entire organization, The Company s
proud of voluntaers who devote their parsonal lime 1o the
causes benefiting youth, education, women, envirgnment
responsible gaming, culluré/herage, resulling in ever
38 volunfear aclivities invelving hundreds of employeas.
One exarmple of the Company’s unique ovams is whire
its employees denated mare than 4,000 of their own
maoancakes o the commaunily, tegether wilh a warm louch
by tha MCE Velumlaer Team which deliverad tham door-
to-door.

Malea Crown Entertainment will conlinue its endeavors to
conliibute to a betler sotiely, and persevers in a unique
approach lo corporale soclal responsibility in integrating
the business and community issues as a winfwin approach.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Summary of Financial Resulls

For tha year énded Decernber 31, 2013, our total net
revanues wera USS5.00 bilion, an increase of 24.7%
from USS4.08 billion of net revenues for the yaar anded
Decambar 31, 2012. Net incoma allributable 1o Mealco
Crown Entertaineant for the year ended December 31,
2013 was USSE37.5 million, as comparad to nal incoma
of USS417.2 milien for the year ended December 31,
2012. Our improvement in profitability was attributable to
substantiolly improved group-wide mass table games and
rolling chip revenues.

Y Endiod Decombar 31,
;M3 i) 21
[in Ehpusands ol USS)

el s 5 SOATATE  § 40783 5 3800847
Totd cporting codts
and explnses (8247, 354) (3.570.821) {3.388,137)
Operating income Ll Or ez #5110
Ml oo
adributabie fo Maico

Crown Endianmond & GIPAEZ § 4NT303 5 FMESS

Qur results of operations for the years presented are net

fully comparable for tha fallowing reasons:

+ On Movermnbar 28, 2012, Studio Cily Finance issued the
Studic City Notes

+ On December 19, 2012, we completed the acquisition
of & majorily inerest in the issued share capital of MCP

+ On February 7, 2013, MCE Finanee issuad the 2013
Senior Notes

= On Mareh 11, 2013, wo completod the aarly redemplion
of the RMB Bonds in full

= On Mareh 13, 2013, the cooperalion greemaent and
the lease agreement batween us and the Philippine
Parties becama effectivi

« OnMarch 28, 2013, wa completed the early rademption
of our 2010 Senior Notes

= In Agril, 2013, MCP completed a 1op-up placemant on
the Philippine Stock Exchange raising net proceeds of
approximately USE338.5 million, incleding the over-
allotment option
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Factors Affecting Our Current and
Future Results

Our results of oporations are and will be affected most
significantly by:

+ The growth of the gaming and leisure marke! in Macau,
which is facililaled by o number of key drivers and
initiatives including, among olhars, favarable population
demographics and economic growlh in major Asian
tourism markets, substantial private capital invesimeant
in Macau, particularly in  developing  diversified
destination resorl properties, and the commitment and
suppert of the PRG contral and Macau governmants
Lo improve and devalop infrastreclure bolh within, and
connecling 1o, Macau;

+ The currenl economic and operating environment,
including the impact of global and lecal econgmic
condilions, changas in capital markel conditions; and
ihe impact of visa and other regulatory policies of the
PRC cenlral and Macau governments;

+  The compelitive landscape in Macau, which is expacted
o avohe as more gaming and non-gaming facililios are
devabapad in Matau, including the expected new supply
of integrated resorls in the Colai region of Macau, as
wall as the impact of retenl of fulure expansion of
gaming markels throughoul Agla;

+ The different mix of table and maching games at our
casings, such as the mix between rolling chip and mass
market table game segments, and cuslomer playing
habits: as well as changes in the mix of roling chip
business sourced through gaming promoters of via our
direct VIP relationships;

Qur relationships with gaming promglers, which
contribute a significant partion of our casing revenuas,
expose us to credit risk (given the majority of these
gaming premolers are provided with credd as parl of
the ordinary course of business) and te any change
in e gaming promolar commission emviranmant in
Macau. For the years ended Deceamber 31, 2013, 2012
and 2011, approximately 49.8%, 53.4% and 61.0% of
our casino revenues ware derived from cuslomers
sourced through our rolling chip gaming promolars,
respectively. For the year ended December 31, 2013,
our lop five custamars and the [P asl CUSIONMET Wil
gaming promoters and accounled for approximately
20,7% and 6.3% of our casing revenues, respectively.
We believe we have good relalionghips with our gaming
promaters, Commissions pald 1o our roling chip
gaming promalers (nel of amounts indirectly rebated lo
customars) amounted to USS391.9 milion, USS308.6
million and USSI216 milion for the years ended
December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively;
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Our exposule to inlerast rate risk is associaled with
our substantial indebedness bearing interes! based on
floating rates. We altampl te manage inlarest rala risk
by managing the mix of long-term fixed rale bosrawings
and variable rale borrowings and we may supplemant
by hiedging activities in a manner wo deem prudent, As
of Docembar 31. 2013 and 2012, approimately 72%
and 67%, respectively, of our tolal indebledness was
based on fixed rates, The increase was primarily due
10 e issuancs of 2013 Senior Moles, the repaymaent
of the drawn revolving credit facility and scheduled
repayment of he term loan beth under 2011 Credit
Facilities, partially offset the redamplion of the 2010
Senlor Noles and RMB Bonds and repayment of the
Deposi-Linked Loan, Based on December 31, 2013
and 2042 indebadnass levals, an assumad 100 basis
point change in HIBOR and London Interbank Offered
Rate would cause our annual interes! cest lo change
by approximately US$71 millien and US$10.5 million,
raspeciively: and

Our exposure to foreign exchange rate risk is
associated with the currancy of our oparalions and our
indebtedness and as a result of the prasentation of our
financial staterments in LS. dollars. The majority of
our revenues are denominaled in H.K. dollars, given
he H.K, dollar is the predominant currency used
in gaming transactions in Macau and is often used
interchangeably wilth the Pataca in Macau, while our
axpensos am denominated predominantly in Patacas,
In addition, a significant portion of our indebledness, o
a rosult of the 2013 Senior Notes and Studis City Noles,
and cortain expenses, have been and are densminated
in WS, dollars, and the costs associated with servicing
and repaying such dabl will be denominated in U5,
dollars. We also have a certain portion of our assets and
liabilities, including the issuance of Philippine Nofes in
January 2014, denominatad in Philippine Pasos.

Any significant fluclualions in the exchange rales
betwaen H.K. dollars, Palacas or Philippine Pesos lo
LS. dollars may have a malerial adverse affact on our
revenues and financial condition.

We accept foreign currencies from our customars and
as of December 31, 2013, in addition to MK, doliars
and Palacas, we also hold other foreign currencias.
Hewsaver, anyloraign exchangs risk exposure dsseciated
wilth those curmencis is minimal. We have nol engaged

Madeo Crown Erterlainment Lmtod  Annual Repor 2013

in hadging Iransactions wilth respact to foreign axchangs
axposura of our revenues and expenses in our day-to-
day operations during the years ended Decamber 31,
2013 and 2012. Inslead, wa mainlain a catain amount
of our oparaling funds in the samée curencies in which
we have obligations, thereby redusing our exposure to
cumreney fleclualions. However, wi cceasionally onter
inlo foreign exchange transactions as part of financing
Iransactions and capiltal expenditure programs.

See nole 12 to the consolidated financial statements
included elsewhere in this annual report for further
details related to ourindetedness and forelgn currency
exposure as of December 31, 2013,

Major currencies in which our cash and bank balances
{including Bank deposits with original maturity cver
thraa manihs and rastficled cash) held a8 of Decamber
3, 2013 were LS. dollars, H.K. dollars, New Tahwan
dollars, Philipping Pasos and Palacas. Based on the
cash and bank balances (excleding restricted cash
balances from the RMB2.3 billion in proceeds fiom
the RMEB Bonds, for which currency fluclualions will
b offsal by the assotiated currancy fluctuations of the
RMB Bonds for 2012) as of December 31, 2013 and
2012, an assumad 1% change in the exchange rates
belwesn currencies othar than LS. dollars against
the WS, dollars would couse a maximum foreign
Iransaction gain or loss of approximolely USS21.6
milion ond USS18.3 milkon for the years onded
December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

Based onthe balances of indetlednass denominated in
currencies olher than U.S. doltars as of December 31,
2013, an assumed 1% change in the exchange rales
betwean H K, doltar against the U.S, dollar would cause
a foralgn transaclion gain or loss of approximately
USSE.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2013,
Based on the balances of indebMadnass denominaled
in currencies other than U.S. dollars and resiriclad
cash from the RMB2.3 billion in proceeds from the
RMB8 Bonds a5 of Decermnber 31, 2012, an assumead 1%
change in the axchange rates between H K. dollar and
Ranminbi against the U.S. dollar would cause a foreign
Iransaclion gain or less of approximately US$13T
million for the year anded Decambar 31, 2012,



Our historical financial results may nol ba characteristic of
our potential future results as we continue 1o expand and
refine our service offerings a1 our properlies and develop
and open new properties,

Key Performance Indicators (KPls)

We use the following KPIs to evaluate our casino
operations. including table games and gaming machings:

= Roting chip volume: the amount of nen-negoliable
chips wagared and lost by the roling chip market
SEGMant.

+ Rolling chip win rote: rolling chip table games win
(ealculated before discounts and commissions) as a
percentage of rolling chip volume.

*  Mags markel [able games drop: the amount of table
Qamds drap in the mass markel Wble gamas sogmant

« Mass marks! lable games hold percenlage: mass
markel Lable gOmes win 05 4 percentage of mass
markat table games drop.

= Table gamos win: the amount of wagers won net
of wagers lost on gaming lables that is retained and
recorded as COSING reVenUes,

+  Gaming maching handis: the lolal amoum wagared in
gaming machinas.

L) Gmﬁng maching win role gaming maching win
axpressed as a percentage of gaming machine handle.

In tha rolling chip markel segment, cuslemers purchase
identifiable chips known as non-negotiatle chips, or relling
chips, Irom the casing cage, and thare is no depasil into &
gaming table's drop box of rolling chips purchased from the
cage. Rolling chip voluma and mass markel labla gamas
drop are not equivalent. Relling chip volume s a measune
of amoeunts wigared and lost, Mass markel table games
drop measures buy in. Rolling chip velume is generally
substantially highas than mass market 1able gamas diop.
As these volumes are the denominalor used in calculating
win rale of hold parcentage, with the same use of gaming
win as the numaratar, the win rate is generally lower in the
rolling chip markel segmaent than the hold percenidge in
the mass market lable gamas segmani.

Cwur combined expected rolling chip win rate (calculaled
bifore discounts and commissions) Across our propaitios
Igin the range of 2.7% to 3.0%.

We use the fallowing KPIs to evaluate our holel operations:

+ Average deily rote: calculated by dividing letal reom
revanues (less sarvice charges, il any) by total rooms
accupied, ., average price of occupied rooms per day.

* Qecupsncy rafe: the avarage percenlage of available
hotel rogms occupied during a period.

*  Revenog per svaiable reom, of REVPAR: calculaled
by dividing total room revenues (less service charges,
if any) by lolal rooms available, Ihareby rapresenting
a combinatien of hotel average dally reom rales and
SEEUBANELY.

Complimentary rooms, forwhich rates are set al a discount
from standard walk-in rales, are included in the caleulation
of the above room-ralated KPIs. As nol all availabla reoms
are ooccupied, average dailly room rales are nosmally
higher than revenue per available reom.
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Year Ended December 31, 2013 Compared
to Year Ended December 31, 2012

REVENUES

Qur total net revenues for the year anded Decembar 31,
201 3ware USS5.00 billlon, an increaseof USS1.04 billian, or
24.7%, from US$4.08 billion for the yeor ended Decomber
31, 2002, The increase in tolal nat revenues was driven
by substantially improved mass table gamas velumes and
blendad hold percentages, as wall as increased volumes
in the rolling chip and gaming machines segmants.

Qur tolal net revenues for the year ended December 31,
2013 comprised of US$4.04 billion of casino revenuas,
repregenting 871% of our lolo! met rovenuos. ond
US%145.7 milion of net non-casing revenues (total
non-casing rovenwes ofter deduction of promational
allowances). Cur total net revenues for the year ended
December 31, 2012 comprised US$3.93 bilion of casing
revenues, rapresenting 96.5% of our lotal nel revanues,
and US$143.3 million of net non-casine revenues,
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Casino, Cosing rovenues for e year ended December
3, 2013 were USS4.94 billion, reprasenting a US51.01
billion, or 25.6%, increase from casing rovenues of
US$2.93 bilion for the year ended December 31, 2012,
primarily due to an increase in casino revenues at City of
Draams and Allira Macaw of US§935.2 million, or 33.5%.
and LIS$65.5 million, or 6.9%, respeclively. This increase
was primarily a result of incraased relling chip volume and
mass markel table gamas drop al both City of Dreams
and Altira Macau, as well as an improved blendad mass
rarket table games hold percentage and rolling chip win
rale. Our mass markel table games revenues confinue to
improve reflecting the success of a range of gaming floor
aefficiancy iniliatives, improved casino visitation and casine
marketing indialives. logelher with a strong overall market
growth envirenment in the segmant.

Altira Macau. Altira Macau's rolling chip volume for the
year ended December 31, 2013 was USE4.9 bilion,
reprasenting an increase of US$0.9 bilion, or 2.2%, from
USS44.0 bilkon for the year ended December 31, 2012,
The rolling chip win rale (calculated before discounis and
commissions) was 2.96% for the year ended Decembaer
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31, 2013, within our expected laval of 2.7% 1o 3.0%,
and increased slightly from 2.89% for the year ended
Decamber 31, 2012, In the mass markel table games
segment. mass market lable games drop was USS724.0
million far the year ended Dacambar 31, 2013, reprasenting
an increase of 2004% from US$601.4 million for the year
ended Decomber 31, 2012, The mass market [able gamas
hold percentage was 15.4% for the year ended Decambar
31, 2013, roprasenting a decreass from 16, 7% for the year
ended December 31, 2012,

City of Droams. Cily of Dreams’ rolling chip volume for
the year endad Decamber 31, 2013 of USSST.0 billion
represented an ingrease of USE15.7 bilion, or 19.3%, from
USES1.3 billion for the year ended Decamber 31, 2012,
The ralling chip win rate (calculated before discounts and
COMMISSIoNs)was 2.95% for Ihe year anded Decomber 31,
2013, in line with our expecied range of 2.7% 10 3.0%, and
reflocted o Shght increase from 2.92% for the year ended
Decemnber 31, 2012. In the mass markel table games
segment, Mass markel Wble gomes drop was USE4.66
billion for the year ended December 31, 2013 which
reprosented on incradse of US$1.0T billion, o1 30.0%. from
LUS§3.59 billion for the year ended Decamber 31, 2012,
The mass markel 1able games hold percentage was 34.6%
in the year ended December 31, 2013, demonsiraling a
large increase from 29.1% for the year anded Decomber
31, 2042, Average net win per gaming machine par day
was US$361 for the year ended December 31, 2013, an
increase of USS48, or 15.2%, from US$313 for the year
ended Decomber 31, 2042,

Mocha Clubs. Mocha Clubs' average net win per gaming
machine per day for the year ended December 31, 2013
was USE212, an increase of approimalely USS26, or
13.9%, from LIS5186 for the year ended December 31.
2002,

Rooms. Room revenues for the year anded Decembar 31,
2013 were USHI27.7 million, representing a LIS59.6 million,
or 8.1%, increase from room revenues of USS118.1 million
for the year ended Decembaer 31, 2012, The increase was
peimarily dus to improved occupanty and the positive
impagl from the increase in average daily rate, Aliira
Macau's average daily rals, occupancy rate and REVPAR
were LISE230, 99% and US$22T, respeciively, for the year
ended Dacamber 31, 2013, as compared 16 USE221, 98%
and US$216, respeclivaly, for the year ended Decembaer
31, 2012, City of Dreams’ average daily rale, eccupancy
rale and REVPAR were USS180, 97% and USSIB3,
roapeclivaly, for the year ended Decombar 31, 2013, as
compared to US$185, 93% and USS1T1, respectively, for
the year ended December 31, 2002,

Food, boverage and othors. Other non-casing revences
for the year ended December 31, 2013 included foed and
bevarage ravenuas of USSTE.9 millkan and entarlainment,
refail and olher revenues of USHI03.7 milign. Other
non-casing fevenues fof the year ended Dacember 31,
2012 included food and beverage revenues of USSF2T
million, and enartainment, retail and other revanues
of U5590.8 million. The increase of US519.1 million in
food, bevarage and other revanuas from the year anded
December 31, 2012 to the year ended December 31, 2013
was primarily due 1o higher businass volumes associaled
with an increase in visitation during the year, as well as the
impreved yield of rental income ot City of Dreams.
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OPERATING COSTS AND EXPENSES

Total operaling costs and expenses were US$4.23 billion
for the year anded Decembar 31, 2013, reprasenling an
increase of LUISEGTE.4 million, or 18.8%, from US$3.57
billian for the year andad Dacamber 31, 2012, The increase
in operating costs was primarily due to an increase in
opefaling cosls at Cily of Dreams and Altira Macau
which were in-ling wilh lhe increased gaming wolume and
associaled increase in revenuas, as wall as the increase
in associaled cosls in connection with MCP after our
acquisition of a majonty intarest in MCP, including foes
and costs assecialad with the corporale recrganization of
MCP.

Casino. Casino expenses increasad by US$618.0 million,
or 21.8%, to USE3.45 billien for the year ended Decamber
31, 2013 from US52.83 billion for the year ended Decamber
31, 2012 primarily due lo additional gaming tax and clher
lovies and commission axpenses of USES31.0 million,
as well as other operating costs, such as payroll and
promational oxpensos of USEST.0 millisn, which increased
as a result of increased gaming volume and associated
iNCraasd in revenues,

Reoms. Room expenses, which reprasent the costs in
operating the hotel facilities al Altira Macau and City of
Dreams, decreased by 14.9% to US$12.5 million for the
year ended December 31, 2043 from US5$14.7 millian for the
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year endad December 31, 2012, primarily due o a higher
leval of complimaniary holel rooms offered lo gaming
customers for which the associated costs are included
as casing expenses, parlially offset by an increase in the
operating costs as a result of increased accupancy.

Food, beverage and others. Food, beverage and olhers
expenseswera US$93.3 million and USS90.3 million for the
years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012, respactively.

Goneral and administrative. Genaral and administrative
expenses increased by USS28.8 milion, or 12.7%, to
US5255.8 million for the year ended Docember 31, 2013
from USS$227.0 million for the year ended Decembar 31,
2012, primadily dug 1o an incredse in payrell cXpenses,
share-based compensation. marketing and adverlising
oxpensoes, 08 wall as professional feos o support
conlinuing and expanding operalions.

Pra-oponing costs. Pre-opening costs weare USS1T0
millian for he yeor onded Decembaer 31, 2013 as
compared to USS5.8 million for the year ended Decembaer
31, 2012, Sueh costs relate primoarily 1o parsonnel training,
rental, markating, adverlising and administrative costs in
conneclion with now of slart-up oparalions. Pra-up-ctning
costs for the year ended December 31, 2013 primarily
redated o thie payroll expensas, rental and adminisiratve
costs in connection with Cily of Dreams Manila and



Stedio City. The pre-opening costs for the year ended
Decamber 31, 2012 related 1o the administrative costs in
conneclion with Stedio CHy, the opening of The Tasting
Room, Signature Club Lounge and Jade Dragon at Cily
of Dreams, and the introduction of TABOO al Club Culdc,

Dovelopmant costs. Dovalopmant costs ware US$26.3
million fer the year ended December 31, 2013, which
pradominantly retiled to fees and costs associated with
the corporate reorganization of MCP as wall as corporata
business development, Development costs for the year
ended December 31, 212 primarily included US$5.7
million excess payment between purchase consideration
and direct fransaction cosls and share of nel assels
acquired upon complelion of the acquisition of MCP in
December 2012 and atolal of USE5.4 millionof prefessional
and consullancy fee for City of Dreams Manila. as well as
corporate business development,

Amerfization of gaming subconcession. Amartizalion
of pur gaming subcongession continued 19 be recognized
on a siraight-line basis at an annual rate of USSET.2 million
for gach of the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012,

Amaortization of land wse rights. The incféase in
amorlizalien of land use righls expenses lo USSE43
million for the year ended December 31, 2013 fram
US859.9 milion for the wear ended December 31, 2012
was primarily dug 1o the additional amertization of land

use rights expenses associated with amended Studio City
land concession contract in July 2012,

Dopraciation and amortization. Depreciation and
amortizalion oxpenses ware LUSSZ61.3 mikon and
US$261.4 million for tha years andad Decamber 31, 2013
and 2012, respectively. The slight decrease was prinarily
dua to fully dapreciated asseis al City of Dreams and Allira
Macau duting the year ended December 31, 2013, offset
in part by depreciation of assels pregressivaly added to
City of Dreams,

Property charges and others, Propary chargas and
others generally include cosis related to the remodeling
and rebranding of o properly which might include the
relirement, disposal or write-off of assels. Property
eharges and othars for the year ended Decembaer 31, 2013
were USEE.9 million, which primarily included a write-
off of US$3.0 million for the final paymen in relalion 1o
a senvica contract al Cily of Dreams and assels wrile-
off of US51.6 milllon as a resultl of the remodel of non-
gaming attractions al City of Oreams. Property charges
and others for the year ended Decembar 31, 2012 ware
USE8.7T milian, which mainly rolated o the wiile-off of
US54 4 millign for excess paymants in relation 1o a service
contract at City of Dreams and US$2.4 millien of costs
incurred for implamanting our streamlined management
slruclure in Fabruary 2012
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NON-OPERATING EXPENSES, NET

Net non-oparaling expenses consist of interes! income,
interest expenses, net of capitalized interest, amortization
of defarrad financing cos1s, lean commilmant fees, foreign
exchange (loss) gain, nel, change in fair value of interest
aly SWap agredemants, [o8s on axtinguishment of debl and
cosls associated with debt madification, as well as other
non-aperating income, net.

Inerest income was USSTT million for the year anded
December 31, 2013, as compared lo US$11.0 milion for
the year ended Decembar 31, 2012, The decraase was
primarily driven by lower inlares! income from RMB Bonds
procesds deposil upon the early redemplion of RMB
Bonds in March 2013.

Intgrest expenses were US$152.7 million, netof capilalized
interast of US$31.0 million for the year ended Decamber
31, 2013, compared lo US$109.6 million, nel of capilalized
interast of USS10.4 million for the year anded Decamber
31, 2012, The increase in nel inlerest expenses (nel of
intarast eapitalzation) of US$43.1 million was primarity
due to; (i) US$ES5.3 million higher interest expenses upon
our issuance of Studio Gily Notes in Novembaer 2012 (i)
US$34.0 million interast on capilal lease cbligation relating
15 MCP's bultding 1ease pOyMants incuried during Ihe year
ended December 31, 2013; pariially offzet by (i) lower
interest eharges of US$10.5 méllion upon our redemption of
our 2010 Senior Motes by our issuance of the lower inferest
rate 2013 Senior Notes in March 2013 and US$19.5 milion
upon our repaymeanl and redemplion on the Deposil-
Linked Loan and RME Bonds, (iv) & lowar inlarest charge
of LSS50 milien as a resull of the scheduled repayments
of the term lodn slarted from Seplémber 2013 and
rapayment of the drawn revolving credit facility both under
2011 Cregit Facilities, and () higher interest capaalization
of US$20.6 milion primarily associated with the Studio
City construction and developmaen! projects.

Other finance costs for the yaar anded Datembar 31, 2013
of L3343 8 millign, included US$18 2 million of amortization
of deferred financing cosls and loan commitment fees of
US%25.6 million. Other finance costs for the year ended
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Decamber 31, 2012 of USS14.6 millisn, incleded USS$13.3
million of amorlization of deferred financing cosls and
loan commilment fees of USS1.3 million. The intrease in
amartization of deferred financing costs compared to the
year anded Decambar 31, 2012 was primarily due o the
recognition of amorlized defarred financing costs incurred
for the Studie Cily Notas issued in Novembar 2012 and the
2013 Senior Notes issued in Fabruary 2013, which ware
offsel in part by (e cossation of amartization of deferred
financing costs relating to the RMEB Bonds and 2010
Senior Notes upon our redemplion. The incréase in loan
commitment fees compared 1o the year ended December
31, 2012 was primarily associmted with the Studio City
Project Facility, which became effactive frem January 28,
2013,

Loss on oxtinguishment of dobl for the year ended
December 31, 2013 was USS508 milion, which
mainly represented a portion of the 2010 Sonior Notes
redemption fees and unamartized deferred financing costs
that arg ot abgible for coplabization. Thore was no loss
on extinguishment of debl for the year ended December
3, 2012, See note 12 o Ihe consolidated financial
statements included elsewhere in this annual reporl for
mare information.

Costs associated with debl modification for tha yaar
ended December 31, 2013 were US%10.5 million, which
mainly représented a porlion of underwriting fes, lagal
and professional fees incured for refinancing 2010
Saniof Notes with 2013 Senior Nolés thal are not aligible
for capilalization. Cosl associated with debl medificalion
for the year ended December 31, 2012 were US$3.3
million, which wara primarily altribulable 1o a consent
solictation foe in rolation to the 2010 Senier Notes in
Cclober 2012. Sea nole 12 to the consolidated financial
slalements included olsewhers in this annual roporl for
mare infarmatien.




INCOME TAX (EXPENSE) CREDIT

Incomi tox expanse for the year ended Decomber 31, 2013
was primarily atiributable to a lump sum tax payable in leu
of Macau Complementary Tax otherwise due by Melco
Crown Macau's sharaholders for dividends distributable lo
them by Melge Crown Macau, The effective 1ax rate for the
yaar andad Decermnber 31, 2013 was 0.4%. as compared 1o
a negative rate of 0.7% for the year ended December 31,
2012. Such rates for the years andad Dacamber 31, 2013
and 2012 differ from the stalulory Macau Complementary
Tax rate of 12% primarily due 1o the effect of change in
valuation allgwance and expenses for which no income
lax banefil is racaivable for the years ended Decamber 31,
2013 and 2012 and the effect of a tax holiday of USS125.7
mallion and UISSE8.5 million on the nstincoms of dur Macau
gaming operations during the years ended Decamber 31,
2013 and 2012, respactively, which is et 1o wipire in 2016,
Our management does nof expec! lo realize a significant
incorme Lax benefil related to deforrad LoxX 455015 genarated
by our Macau eparations; howewver, fo the extent that the
financial results of our Macau operations improve and i
bacomes more likely than nol that the deferred lax assels
arg realizable, we will be able to reduce the valualion
allowance through earnings.

NET LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO NONCONTROLLING
INTERESTS

Our net less allributable o nonconlroling intaresis of
USE59.5 mitlion for the year ended Docembar 31, 2013,
which comgpared to that of US$18.5 millien for the year
ended December 31, 2012, was primarily due 1o the
share of the Studic Cily expenses of US548.0 million
and MCP expenses of USS11L.5 milion, respeciivaly, by
the respetiive minority sharehelders for the year ended
December 31, 2013. The yearnoveryear increase was
primarily attributable to the noncontrelling inlerests’
share of Studio Cily’s financing costs and Cily of Dreams
Manila's pre-operaling expenses during the year anded
December 31, 2013,

NET INCOME ATTRIBUTABLE TU M
ENTERTAINMENT i

Asaresulielihe foregoing. we had nal
rmillian for the year ended Decambar 31.\2013 compared-
te US5417.2 million for the year ended I.'.,\awm-ara‘r 2012,

Year Ended December 31, 2012 Compared
to Year Ended December 31, 2011

REVENUES
Our total net revenues for tha year.

U8
frirna

31, 2011. The increase in :mlnniaiq}dma

31, 2012 comprised USS3.93 billion ¢
represaniing 96.5% of ouwr fotal

USS143.3 milion of nol non-casing!| revanues {u:-uu:
non-casing ravenues after dedl.ll:l.lnn |l promolional
allowances). Our tolal nel revenues 'I'or fthe year ended
Cecombor 31, 2011 comprisad US$3.68 |bikion of casing
revenues, representing 96.0% of our telal net revenues,
and US$151.4 milion of net non: caging ravanuas.

M

1
Casine. Casing revenues for the mr:amfed Dacamber
31, 2012 were US53.93 blllon,| represenling a US50.25
billion, or 69%, increase from casing revenues of
US$3.68 bilion for the year anded Dér.ambel 3, 2014,
primarily duo 1o an inerease in casing revenues at City of
Dreams of US$439.3 million, or 18.6%. which was parlb&u‘;.r
offset by a d in casing 3 'al Altira Macau of
USS207.3 million, or 17.9%. This increase was primarily
altriputable te substantial growlh in the mass markel table
games segment, particularly at Cily of Dreams, driven by
imprevements in both the mass market {atile games hokd
parcentage together with incraased | —ueeLabie— =
games drop. Qur mass market lable-games revenues
continue 1o improve reflecling ho SUCCESS Of a rangs
of gaming floor efficiency Inifiatives, Improved casing
visitalion and casing markeling indliatives, logether wilh a
sirong ovarall market growth environment in the segmant.
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Altira Macau. Allita Macau's rolling chip velume for tha
year ended December 31, 2012 was US544.0 billion,
representing a decrease of USST.2 billion, or 14.1%,
frem US%$51.2 billion for the year ended December 31,
2011, Altira Macau's rolling chip volumes wera impacted
by a slow-down in the market-wida rolling chip segmant
and various greup-wide table efficiency initiatives which,
among olher things, resulted in a reduction in the Aumbear
of roling chip gaming tables in operation at Altira Macau
for the year anded December 31, 2012 when compared 1o
2011. The rolling chip win rate (calculated befgre discounts
and commissionsiwas 2.89% for the year ended Decomber
31, 2012, within our expected level of 2.7% 1o 3.0%, and
decreased from 3.03% for the year ended Decomber
31, 2011, In the mass markel table games segment,
mass markel 1able games drop was USSE01.4 million
for the yaar anded Decambar 31, 2012, reprasenting an
increase of 3.4% from LUSS581.8 milllon for the year ended
Decernber 31, 2091, The mass market lable games hold
parceniage was 16.7% for the year ended December 31,
2012 and reprosented a sight inerease from 16.6% for the
year ended Decembar 31, 2011,

Cily of Dreams. City of Dreams” rolling chip volume for
the year ended December 31, 2042 of USHSLY billion
rapresented an increase of USS2.5 billien, or 3.2%. from
USE78.8 billion for the year ended Decembar 31, 2011,
The rolling chip win rate (calculaled before discounts and
commigsions) was 2.02% for the year ended Decembear
31, 2012, which i within our expacted range of 2.7% lo
3.0%. and slightly improved from 2.89% for the year ended
Decermnbar 31, 2011,

In the mass markel lable games segment. mass markel
lable games drop was US$3.59 billion for the year ended
December 31, 2012 which representad an increase of
USS0.65 billion, or 22.0%, from US$2.94 bilion for tha
year ended Docember 31, 2011, The increase in mass
market lable games drop was posilively impacted by an
increase in cosino visitalion and imprevemnaents in casing
markeling inilistives. tegether with the overall markel
grawth in the mass market lable gamas segment. The
mass markel lable games hold percentage was 29.1%
in the year ended December 31, 2012 and demonstrated
a significant increase from 24.4% for the year ended
December 31, 2011, Average nel win per gaming machine
por day was US$313 for Ihe year ended December 31,
2012, an increase of US$45, or 16.8%, from US$26E for
the year endad Decamber 31, 2011,
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Mocha Glubs. Motha Clubs' average nel win per gaming
machine per dayforihe year ended December 31, 2012 was
US$186, o decrease of approximalely US$31, or 14.3%.
from US$217 for the year ended December 31, 2011. The
average net win per gaming machine was impacied by the
addition of evar 500 gaming machines as a result of the
apening of two now Macha Clubs venues in late 2011 and
sarly 2012. The number of gaming machings in oparation
al Mocha Clubs averaged approximately 2,100 for the year
ended Decembar 31, 2012, compared 1o approximately
1,700 for the year ended December 31, 2011,

Reoms, Room revenues for the year ended Decembar
31, 2012 were USS118.1 millign, representing a US$15.1
million, or 14.6%. increase from room revenues of
USS103.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2011,
peimarily due to imgroved cccupancy and the positive
impaet from the increase in average dally rate, Allira
Macaw's average daily rate, sccupancy rate and REVPAR
ware LIS$221, 98% and USS216, respectivaly, for tha year
ended Decamber 31, 2012, as compared 1o US51986, 93%
and US$191, respectively, for the year ended Decamber
31, 2011. Cily of Dreams’ average daily rale, occupancy
rale and REVPAR wera US3185, 93% and USSTH,
respectivaly, for the year ended Decomber 31, 2012, as
compared lo USS1T2, 91% and US$1586, respectively, for
the year endod Decembar 31, 2011,



Food, bavarage and othars. Olher non-casing revenues
for the year ended Dacember 31, 2012 included food and
baverage revenues of US$T2.7 million, and entertainment,
retail and other revenues of US$30.8 millign, Other non-
casing ravenues for the yoar ended December 31, 2011
included food and bavarage revenues of USS61.8 million,
and entertainment, ratail and othar revenues of USS86.2
million. The incraase of US$15.5 million in food, beverage
and other revanues Trom the year ended December 31,
2011 10 the year anded December 31, 2012 was primarily
dug to higher business volumes associaled with an
incraase in visitolien during the year and an improved yvield
of rental income at Cily of Dreams.

OPERATING COSTS AND EXPENSES

Total oporaling costs and axpenses ware US$3.5T billion
for the year ended December 31, 2012, representing an
increase of USHIE5.2 million, or 5.5%, from US$339
billion for the year ended Decomber 31, 2011, The incraase
was primarily due 1o an increase in cparating costs at City
of Drears, which was in line with the increased gaming
volume and associated increase in revenues. as well as
the increase in associated cosls in connection with Sludio
City after our acquisition of a 0% interest in SCI, including
amartization of land use rights and pre-opening cosls.

Casino. Cosing expenses increased by US3135.8 milion,
or 5.0%, to USE2.83 billion for the year ended Decambear
31, 2042 from USS2 70 billion for the year ended Decomber
31, 2011, primarily due to additional gaming lax and clher
levies and commission expenses of USETEE million;
as well as olher operating cosis, such as payroll and
promational expenses of USEE7.2 million, which increased
as a resull of incraased gaming volume and associated
increase in revenues,

Reoms, Room expenses, which represent the cosls in
operating the holel facilities at Altira Macau and Cily of
Dreams, decreased by 19.5% to US$14.7 million for the
year anded December 31, 2012 from US518.2 million
for the year ended December 31, 2041, primarily due
1o a higher level of complimentary hotel rooms offered
1o gaming customers for which the associated cosls
are included as casing expenses. partially offsel by an
increase in the operaling cosls as a result of increased
onoupancy.

\N\%S\I

Food, bevarage and othars. Food, beverage and olhers
expenseswere USHI0. 3 million and LS592.6 million for the
years anded December 31, 2012 and 2011, respeclivaly.

Gonaeral and administrative. General and administrative
expenses incleased by USSESE milion, o 3%, 10
USE227.0 mallion for the year ended Decombar 31, 2012
from USS220.2 million for tha year anded December 31,
2011, primanly due o an increase in payroll expensos,
ulilities cosls and repair and maintenance cosls lo support
conlinuing and expanding eperatiens,

Pro-oponing costs. Pra-opening cosls were USS5.8
millian for the year ended Decembear 31, 2012 as compared
to those of USS2.T milion for the year ended December
3, 2011, Such cosls relate primarily o parsonnal training,
markating, pdvertising and other adminisiralive ¢osls in
connaction with new or slart-up oparations. Pre-opening
costs for the year ended December 31, 2012 related 1o
the adminisiralive costs in connétlion with Studio City
after MCE's acquisition of a 60% interest in SCI on July
27, 2011, the opening of The Tasting Room, Signatuse
Club Lounge and Jade Dragon at City of Dreams, and the
introduction of TABOO at Club Cubic during 2012, while
the pre-opaning cesls for the year ended December 31,
2011 relpled primarily 1o the epaning of Club Cubic at City
of Dreams in April 2011,

Dovelopment costs, Development costs for the year
ended Dgcember 31, 20412 primarily included USS5T
million excess payment betwaen purchase consideration
and direct transaclion coslts and share of net assels
acquired upon complation of the acquistion of MCP in
Decamber 2012 and atotal of LIS3S.4 million of professional
and consultancy fee for City of Dreams Manila; as well as
corporale business development. Development cosls for
the year ended December 31, 2011 were associated wilh
the acquisition of a B0% aquily interest in Studie Cily.

Amaortization of gaming subconcession. Amorlization
of our gaming subconcession continued 1o be recognized
on a straight-ling basks al an annual rate of US$S7.2 million
for each of the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011,
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Amorlization of land usa rights. Amartization of land use
righls expenses increased by USS25.5 million, or 74.2%,
1o USS59.9 milion for the year ended December 31, 2042
from US534.4 millien for the year ended December 31,
2011, primarily due to the additional amarlization of land
use rights expensas associated with amended Studio Cily
land concession cantract in July 2012,

Dopreciation and ameorlization. Doprociation and
amorlization expenses increased by US$2.2 million, or
0.9%, lo US$261.4 million for the year ended Decomber 31,
2042 from US$259.2 million for the year ended December
31, 2001, mainly due 1o deprocialion of 5561s progressivoly
added to City of Drearns sincéa the thind quartar of 2011; a5
well as depreciation of a newly acquired aircraft since July
2012, offsel in part by fully deprecialed assels al Cily of
Dreams during the year ended December 31, 2012,

Proporty chargoes and othors, Property charges and
olhars genarally include costs ralalad 1o the remodeling
and rabranding of a properly which might include the
retiremant, disposal or write-off of assels. Properly
charges and others for the year ended December 31, 2012
werg USS8.7 million, which primarily included a write-off
of US$4.4 millien for the axcess paymenis in relation to a
sarvice contract al Gity of Droams and US$2.4 million costs
incurred for implemanting our slreamiined managemsant
struciure in Fabrary 2012,

NON-OPERATING EXPENSES, NET

Mot non-oparaling expenses consist of inferest incoma,
interest expenses, nel of capitalized interest, amartization
of deferred financing cosls, loan commilment feas,
forelgn exchange gain (loss), nel, costs assoclated
wilh debt modificalion, loss on extinguishment of debt,
reclassification of accumulaled losses of inferest rale
swap agreemanls from accumulated other comprehensive
losses, change in fair value of intarest swap agreemants,
ligting expenses and olher non-cpearating income, net,

Interest income was USS11.0 million for the year ended
December 31, 2012, as compared to USS4.1 méllion for the
year gnded December 31, 2011, The significanl increase
was primarily driven by effactive cash managemant and
improvemants in our aperaling cash fiows as a result of
Ihe improvemants in operating performance during 2012,
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Interast expansas ware USS109.5 milion, nel of capitalized
interest of US$10.4 milion for the year ended December
31, 2012, compared to USS113.8 million, net of capitalized
interest of US$3.2 million for the year ended December 31,
2011, The decrease in nel interest axpenses (nel of intarast
capitalizatior) of US$4.2 million resulted from higher
intarest capitakization of USST.2 million associated with the
Studio Gity construstion and developmant prajecls which
resumed after our acquisition of a 60% interest in SC1on
July 27, 2011, logather with @ decrease in interest charges
of LI3$9.7 millign and US$5.2 million, asseciated with the
axpiration of interest rate swaps agreements throughout
the year, as well as a lower ineres! rale margin and
lewrar oulstanding balance on our 2011 Credil Facilities
as a rasull of a repayment made during the year ended
Dacember 31, 2011, respactively, which werne offsel in part
by a higher inleresl expenses of USSE.E million due to &
full year of intarest charges incurred on the RMB Bonds
and the Deposit-Linked Loan issued in May 2011 and
USS$5.8 million interest expenses for the Studie City Notes
isswed in November 2012,

Oiher finance co515 for the year ended Decermber 31, 2012
ol US$14.6 millign, included US$13. 3 million of amortization
of deferred financing costs and lean commimant fees of
US$1.3 million. Other finance cosis for the year ended
December 31, 2011 of US$15.6 million included US$14.2
million of amorlization of deferred financing costs and
lgan commitmant faes of US$1.4 milign. The decraase in
amartization of defarred financing costs was primarily due
to lower deferred cosls incurred with the amendment of
our City of Drearms Project Facility on June 30, 2011 as
the 2011 Credit Facilities, which were offsel in parl by the
recegnition of a full year of amerlization of additional costs
capilalized as deferrad financing costs relating to the RMB
Bonds issusd in May 2011,

The amendment of the City of Dreams Project Facility
completed on June 30, 2011 was primarily accounied
for as an exlinguishment of debt resulling in a loss on
extinguishment of US$25.2 million for the year ended
Decamber 31, 2011, There was no loss on extinguishment
of dabl for the year ended December 31, 2012,



The reclassification of USS4.3 milion related 16 the
accumulated losses of interest rate swap agreements from
accumulated other comprahensive lossas 10 consalidated
statemen! of operations for the year ended Decamber 31,
2011 was required as such swap agreements no longer
qualified fer hedge accounting immediately after the
amendmant of the City of Dreams Project Facilly on June
30, 2011. There was no such reclassification for the year
ended Decamber 31, 2012,

Cosls associated with debt modification of USS3.3 million
for tha year ended December 31, 2012 were primarity
allributable to a consent soliciiation fee relaled to the
2010 Senior Neoles in Oclobar 2012, Therd ware no cosls
associated with debl modification for the year ended
Decamber 31, 2011,

Listing expansas of USS9.0 milien for the year ended
Decembear 31, 2011 related to the lsting of our shares on
the Steck Exchange in Decomber 2011, There was no
listing expenses incurred for the year ended December
31,2012

INCOME TAX CREDIT (EXPENSE)

The effective tax rate for the year ended Dacamber 31,
2012 was a negative rate of 0.7%. as compared to a
nagative rate of 0.6% for the year ended Decamber 31,
2011, Such ratos for the years ended Decomber 31, 2012

and 2011 différ from the statutory Macau Complamaniary
Tax rate of 12% primarily due to the affect of change in
walualion allowance on the nel defarred Lax assals for the
years anded December 31, 2012 and 2011, with the effact
of o tax heliday of US$88.5 million and USSE.T million
on the nel inceme of our Macau gaming cperalions during
the yeor anded Decombor 31. 2012 and 2011, respectively.
due to our income tax exemplion in Macau, which is set
te expire in 2016, Our managemant goas nol anticipate
recording an incomd tox bonafit relolod 1o deferred tax
assals generated by our Macau ocperalions; however,
to the edent thal the financial resulls of our Macau
operalions improve and it becomes more likely than not
that the deforred tax assels are realizable, wae will be able
to reduce the valuation allowance through earnings.

NET LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO NONCONTROLLING
INTERESTS

Cur net loss altribulable 1o noncontrolling interasts of
US$18.5 milign for the year ended December 31, 2012,
compared to USSS5.8 million for the year ended December
31, 2011, was primarily due o the share of New Colai
Holdings, which owns a 403 inlerest in SC, in expenses
of the Studic Cily project, upon the complation of our
acquisition of & 60% equily inerest in SC1 on July 27, 2011,
The year-gver-yaar increase was primarily attributable te
interesl expensos relating to the Studic City Noles incurred
during the feurth quarter of 2012,
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NET INCOME ATTRIEUTABLE TO MELCO CROWN
ENTERTAINMENT

As aresultof the foregeing, we had ned ineome of ISS417.2
million for the year anded December 31, 2012, compared
1o that of US3294.7 million for the year ended Decambear
31, 2011,

Adjusted Property EBITDA and Adjusted
EBITDA

Qur earnings before inleres!, laxes, depreciation,

amorlization, pre-opening cosls, development cosls,
property charges and others, share-based compensation,
Corporate and Othars expenses and othar non-oparating
income and expenses, of Adjusted progery EBITOA were
LIS%4,379.1 million, US$995.3 million and US$880.9 million
for the years ended Decombar 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011,
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respeclivaly. Adjusiad proparly EBITDA of Allira Macau,
City of Dreams and Mocha Clubs were US$147.3 million,
US$1.193.2 million and USS40.2 million, respectivaly, for
the year ended December 31, 2013, USE154.7 million,
USSBOS5.7 million and USS3E1 million, respectively, for
the year endad December 31, 2012 and US$246.3 million,
USES94.4 million and USS40.5 millian, rospectivaly, for
the year ended December 31, 2011.

Qur eamings before interest, tames, depreciation,
amartizalion, pra-opening cosls, devalopment costs,
properly charges and olhers, share-based compensalion
and olher non-oparating incoma and expanses, of Adjustad
EBITDA, were USS1,287.8 milion, US5920.2 million and
USE809.4 million for the yaars ended Decermbar 31, 2013,
2012 and 2011, respectively.

Qur manageman! uses Adjusted property EBITDA to
measure the operating performance of our Allira Macau,
City of Dreams and Mocha Clubs businesses, and to
compare the operating performance of our properiies wilh
those of our compatitors, Adjusted EBITDA and Adjusted
property EBITDA ara also presentad as supplamanial
disclesures becouse managemant believes thoy are widely
used lo measure performance and as a basis for valualion
of gaming comganies. Qur management also uses
Adjusted proparly EBITDA and Adjustad EBITDA bacause
they are used by some inveslers as a way lo measure a
company’s ability Lo ineur and service debl, make capital
expendilures and meel working capital requirements.
Gaming companies have hislorically reported similar
measures as a supplement to financial measures in
aceordance with genarally atcepled accounting printiplas,
in particular, LS. GAAR or IFRS.

However, Adjusted property EBITOA or Adjusted EBITDA
should not be considered in isolation, construed as
an alternalive to profit or operaling profil, Ireated as an
indicator of our LS. GAAP operating performance, other
operaling eperations or cash flow data, or interpreted as an
alamative lo cash low as a maasure of liquidity. Adjustaed
property EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA presented in this
annualréport may not becomparable toother similarly tithed
measures of olher companies’ operaling in the gaming or
othar busingss sectors. While our managamant bolidves
these figures may provide useful additional information te
invastors when considerad in conjunclion with our u.s.
GAAP financial staternents and ether information in this



annual rsporl, 1885 raliance should ba placed on Adjusted
properly EBITDA or Adjusied EBITDA as a measure in
assessing our ovarall financial parfarmance.

Reconciliation of Adjusted EBITDA and
Adjusted Property EBITDA to Net Income
Aftributable to Melco Crown Entertainment
Wi Enddesdl Docamiber 31
013 2 am

Adpssted property ERITOA § 1310011 5 whis 8 =0ms
Corpatatadnd Ot

NG Crs

Derviiopenand cosls

e et

[52806) (38,5 (50868
{14587 [BA7Y (G624
Property chingss and
others [6584) [B654)
i Orast and ol nos
COMHENG SXpEbEE, el (259,370 (198,353 (157,800
2043
C HaET2 Pl
Mt laas: plnbotabio i3
nionconkiol Ll 18,531 S8
Mt ooy sfirbulable
i Megdies Gromn
Ertertanmant §  E4EF 5 4D 5 BMES

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Wi have reliod and intend to rely on our cash generated
from our operations and our debt and equily financings o
maot our financing needs and repay our indebledness, as
the case may be.

As of Deceamber 31, 2013, we held unrestricled cash and
cash equivalenis. bank deposils wilh original malurity
over thrae months and restricted cash of approximalely
USS1,381.8 milion, USS626.9 million and USS10437
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million, respactively, and HK$3.12 billion (approximataly
US$401.1 million) of the 2011 Credit Facilitles remained
availabla for future drawdown.

In addition. under our Studio City Project Facilily, we
have HK$10,855.880,000 (equivalent to approximalely
LUS§1.4 billion) comprising a five year HK$10,080,460.000
{equivalent lo approximately US$1.3 billion) delayed draw
term loan facilty and a HKS7T5.420,000 (equivalent 1o
approximately US$100 milion) revelving credit facity,
The enfire Studie Cily Project Facility remains available
for future drawdown, subjeet 1o satisfaction of certain
conditions precedent.

On Decamber 19, 2013, MCE Leisure Philippines priced
its PHP15 billion (equivalent to approximately US§340.0
million at date of pricingd aggregate principal amount of
Phiipping Notes. at par. wilh an interost role of 5.00%
per annum and 3 malunty date of January 24, 2019,
The issuance of the Philippine Noles was compleled on
January 24, 2014, Wo intond 1o use thi nél proceeds from
the issuance of Philippinge Motes for the development of
City of Dreams Maniky,

Since January 2013, one of our Taiwan branch office’s
deposil accounts has been presented as restricled cash
bacause the funds in the account have been frozen
pursuant to an invastigation of certain of our Taiwan branch
employees by the Talwanese authorifies. We are taking
action to request the Talkwanese authorities o unfreaze the
account.

MCP's reslricled cash represenied cash in escrow
account as raquirad in the Provisional Licanss issued by
PAGCOR for the development of City of Dreams Manila,
Under the Provisional License granted by PAGCOR, the
Licensaes are required to sal-up an @scrow account with
an amount of USS100.0 million with a universal bank
mulually agreed by PAGCOR and the Licensess. All
funds for the development of the casing project shall pass
through the escrow account and all drawdowns of funds
fromihe escrow account must be applied lo City of Dreams
Manita, The escrow account should have a maintaining
balance of US$50.0 millon equivalent until City of Draams
Manila’s completion. On March 21, 2013, MCE Lelsure
Philippines, as one of the Licensees, eslablshed a new
escrow accoun! replacing the existing escrow account and
deposited USS50.0 million equivalent to the new escrow
account. The escrow account will be closed at complation
of City of Dreams Manila.
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The Sledio Cly cash and cash equivalents is comprised of
ned proceeds from offering of the Studio City Notes and the
unspent cash from the capital injestion for the Studio City
project fram our Company and SCI minorily shareholder
in accordance with our shareholder agreamant, both of
which were restricted only for payment of construction and
devalopment costs and olher projoct costs of the Studie
City project in accordance with Studio Cily Noles and
Studio City Project Facility lerms,

We have been able to meet our working capital needs,
and we balieve thal our operaling cash flow, exisling cash
balancas, funds available undear the 2011 Credit Facilities
and Studio Cily Project Facilly and addilional equily or
debt financings will be adequate to salisly cur current
and anticipatad oparating, debt and capital commitments,
intluding our davelopment project plans, as describad
in *— Othar Finanting and Ligquidily Matters™ below. For
any additional financing raquirameants, wa cannot provide
assurance that future boffowings will be available. We
have significant indeblednass and will continue to evaluale
our capital structure and opportunities o enhance it in the
nafmal course of aur aclivities.

Cash Flows

The fellowing table sets farth a summary of eur cash flows
for tha years indicated:
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OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Operating cash flows are genarally affected by changes in
operating income and accounts réceivable with VIP lable
garmes play and holel operalions conducled on a cash and
credil basis and the remainder of the business including
mass markel lable games play, gaming machine play, food
and baverage, and entertainmaent ard conducted primarity
on 3 cash basis

Net cash provided by operaling activities was US$1,151.9
million for the year ended December 31, 2013, comparedlo
US§950.2 millien for the year ended Decomber 31, 2012,
The increase in nel cash provided by operaling aclivities
was mainly altribulable lo sirong growlh in underlying
operating performance as described in the foregoing
seclion. Nel cash provided by operating activities was
US3950.2 millon for the year ended December 31,
2012, compared to USST44T milion for the year anded
Decembear 31, 2011, The increase in net cash provided in
operating aclivities was mainly allributable to increased
gaming volume and associated increase in revenues.

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Mot cosh used in invosting actwvitios was US$1,200.3
mllion for the year ended December 31, 2013, compared o
nel cash used in investing activities of US$1,335.7 million
for the year ended December 31, 2012, primarily due 1o an
increase in bank deposits with original maturity over three
mgnths of USS626.9 million, capital expenditure payment
of USS575.2 milion, advance paymens for construction
costs of US$161.6 million, the land use rights payment of
US§64.3 milion, paymenl for conlract acquisition costs
and security deposit of USS32.0 million and deposits for
acquisition of property and equipment of USS17.2 milllon,
which were offsel in parl by the decrease in restricted cash
of WS5268.4 million.

The nel decrease of US$268.4 million in the amount of
raslricled cash for the year ended December 31, 2013
wias primarily dug to () the ralease of deposi of proceads
from the issuance of the RMB Bonds of USS368.2

million pledged for the Deposit-Linked Loan upon our
aarly redemplion in March 2013; () & decrease in Studie
City restricted cosh of USSS31 million primarily due 1o
withdrowal and poyment of Studic City project costs of
USSE82.0 million and paymant of Studio City Motasinterast
of USE71.1 million, partially offset by the capital injection
for the Studie City project from our Company and cur SCI
minarity sharaholder of USST00.0 milliomn; (i) the US$50.0
millian daposited o an escrow accoun! as required by
PAGCOR in March 2013; and (iv) the restricled Tabhwan
branch effice’s deposil account of USS102.9 milion.

Cur tolal capital expendilere paymenls for the year
ended Decamber 31, 2013 were USS575.2 million. Such
expanditures ware mainly agsocialed with enhancamants
te our integrated resort offerings and for the developrent
of Stedio City and GCily of Dreams Manila. We also paid
USE4d. 7 million and USS171 million far the sehodulad
installment of Studie Cily's and City of Dreams' land
premium payments, respectively, and USS2.5 million for
the land use right paymant for Allira Macau, dufing the
yiar ended December 31, 2013,

As of December 31, 2013, we have placed bank deposits
of USS626.9 million with their original maturity over three
manths for a better yield,

Met cash used in invesling activilies was USS1,335T
millian for the year ended Docamber 31, 2012, comparad
to US5565.4 milion for the year ended December 31,
2011, primarily due 1o ana increase in restricled cash
of US51.047.0 million, capilal expendilure paymant of
US$220.5 million and the land use righls paymants of
US$53.8 million,

For the year ended Decomber 31, 2012, there was a net
increase of US$1,047.0 million in the amount of restricled
cash, primarily due lo the deposil of nel proceeds from
the issuance of Studio Cily Moles of USS812.0 million
and unspent cash from the capital injection for the Studio
City project from our Company and our SCI minarity
shareholder, of U5%235.0 milion, both of which are
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reslricted for Sludie City's conslruclion cost paymant
only in accordance with Studio Cily Notes and Sludio City
Projact Facility lerms. We also paid US$2.8 million for
the acquisiliocn of & majorily intares! in the issued share
capilal of MCP {nat of cash and cash equivalents acquired
of US$27.9 million) and US$2.5 million for the transaclion
costs for acquisition of Stidio City in July 2011 during the
year ended December 31, 2012,

Qur total capital expendilure paymenis for the year
ended December 31. 2012 were US$220.5 milion, Such
expenditures ware mainly assoclialed with enhancemants
to our integrated resort offerings and for the devalopment
of Studio City as well as an aircraft acquired for primarily by
rolling chip players lo enhance our compatitive posilioning
inthe higher-end ralling chip market. We also paid US$35.4
rrillion and US$16.0 million for the scheduled instaliment of
Studio Cilys and City of Dreams’ land premium payrmant.
respeclivaly, during the yaar ended Decembaer 31, 2012,

Wa oxpect o incur significant capital axpenditures for
Stugio City. Gity of Draoms Manila and tha fiflh hatal tlower
at City of Dreams in the fulure, Soe = Other Financing
and Liquidity Matlers™ below for more infermation,

The following lable sats forth our capital expandilures
incurred by segmeam on an accrual basks for the years
ended Dacamber 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011,

Yoar Endod December 31
Py 22 i
[ houkinds oI LSS

Whaciy

M Gt 5 EHE 8 a8 8 2158

AR Mazau Se5d [Al1] E662

Gty of Devsarms arssd 416 FIM
Ay - 4 L o
Subr-lotad S50.450 Frif-1) TEINT
Tha Philgpines:

City of Droaims Manda Euh BI7 -
Corporate and (ihins 204 S6004 rk

Tolsl capdal expenddungs 5 912355 § Mg 5 TASEM

Cur capital expanditures for the year ended Decamber 31,
2013 increased significantly from that of the year anded
Decamber 31, 2012 primarily due to the developrment
of Studio City and City of Dreams Manila. Our capilal
expenditures for the year ended December 31, 2012



dacraased sharp&yfrum that of the yaar ended Decarmbiar
31, 2011 primarily due lo the acquisiion of Studio Cily
completed during the year ended December 31, 2011,
pattially offsel with the acquisiion of the airerafl and
development of Cily of Dreams and Studio Cily during the
yoar ended Doecember 31, 2012,

Advance payments for consirection costs of USS161.6
milllon were incurred primarily for the developmant of
Studio City for the year ended Decembaer 31, 2013, There
was no such payment made for the year ended Decamber
3, 2012,

Qur payment for confract acquisition costs and securily
doposil for the year endad Decembar 31, 2013 wera
USS27.7 million and US54.3 milion. respeciively, both of
which wiare paid 1o Balle Corporation, one of the Philippine
Parties, in relation 1o the clesing arrangemant agreemant
o3 well as the lease agreemant of Cily of Dreams Manila,
There was nd such payment made for the year ended
Docember 31, 2012,

Financing Activilies

Wetcashused infinancing activities amounted o US$265.0
million for the year ended Decembar 31, 2013, primarity
due o (i} the early redemplion of 2010 Senior Noles of
US§600.0 milien and the associated rademption costs of
US5102.5 miltion; (i} the early redemption of RMB Bonds
and Deposit-Linked Loan of USS721.5 milllon; (i) the
repaymant of the drawn revolving credit facility under 2011
Cradit Facimies of USS$212.5 milion: (iv) the scheduled
repaymants of Lhe laim lean under 2011 Credit Facilties
of USS128.4 million; (v) prepaid debl issuance cosls
of USS56.5 milion associaled wilh Studie City Prajeet
Facilily, {vi) (he payment of ¢obl $5uance cos1s associated
wilh 2013 Senier Neles and Studio Gily Motes of US$19.6
mllion and USST.0 million, re: ey (Wil the

of the scheduled Studio City acquisition cost installment of
UE825.0 million; and (viii) the purchase of MCE Shares of
USE8.8 millon under trust afrangamant far further vesting
of restricted shares, These were offsel in part by (i) the
procoeds of the issuance of 2013 Senior Noles of USS1.0
Billion; (i) nel proceeds from the issuance of sharas of MCP
of US$338.5 milion; and (iil) capital injection of US$280.0
million frem SCI minority shareholder, in accordance with
our shareholder agreement.

Met cash provided by financing activities amounted 1o
USS834.7 million for the year ended Decamber 31, 2012,
primarily from the proceeds of the issuance of Studio
Gity Notes tetaling USSB25.0 million in November 2012,
the proceeds from the drawdown of Aircrall Term Loan
tetaling US$43.0 milion in June 2012, capilal injection
of USS140.0 million fram sur SCI minority sharehalder in
accordance with our shareholder agreement and proceeds
from the exercise of share options lolaling LISS3.6 milien,
These wers oifselin par by the paymaent of dobt issuance
costs of USE30.3 million, primarily associated with Studio
Cily Neoles and consent solicitation fee for the 2010
Senlor Notes, the settlemant of the scheduled Studio City
acquisdion cost installment of US$25.0 million and prepaid
debt issuance cosls of US518.8 millon associated with
Swdio City Project Faciiily as wall az repayment of the
Alrcraft Tarm Lean of US$2.8 million.

Met cash provided by financing activilies amounted lo
USSES57.9 million for the year endad December 31, 2011,
prirmarily from the proceeds of the issuarce of the RMB
Bonds and drawdown of the Daposil-Linked Loan totaling
USSTOB.E milien in May 2011 and proceeds from the
axercise of share options totaling USS4.8 millien, offset in
part by the repayment of the Gity of Dreams Project Facility
of USS117.1 milllian and paymant of debl issusnce cosls
primarily associated with the RME Bonds, the Deposit-
Linked Loan and the 2011 Credit Faciities of USS36.1
rillien.

Indebtedness

The following table presents a summary of our
indebtedness as of December 31, 2013

A of Docesbar 34, 2013

(imihowsands of LSS

2013 Senice bodes H 1,000,000
Sty Cly Noles £25.000
2010 Crodd Fasiiss ET3883
Acraft Term Loan WS
H 2533860

Majer changes in our indebtednoss during the yoar ended
and subsequent to Docamber 31, 2013 are summarnzed
barbow,
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In January 2013, we commanced a cash tender offar of
the 2010 Senior Motes and repurchased approdimalaly
US$599.1 million aggregate principal amount of the 2010
Saniof Noles. On Mareh 28, 2013, we redeemed all of the
remaining 2010 Senior Notes, following which, the 2010
Senior Noles were cancalled in lale March 2013, Mo 2010
Sanior Moles are currently sutstanding. A partion of the
procieds from the 2013 Senior Notes offering was used for
the cash lender offer and redemglion of the 2010 Senier
Notes. Prior lo such cash tander offer and full rodemplion,
we had complated a consent solicitation process in
conneclion with the 2010 Senior Noles in Oclober 2012
and paid approximataly US%15.0 milion to the holders who
had validly dalivared the relevanl congent,

On January 28, 2013, we entared inlo an agreement for
the Stedia Cily Prajett Facility, a senior secured project
facilily for a tofal sum of HK$10,855,880.000 (equivalen
1o approximately USS14 bilion) comprising a five
year HKE10.080,460,000 (equivalent to approxinmalaly
US$1.3 billion) delayed draw lerm loan facility and a
HKE775,420,000 (equivalent lo approximalaly US$100
million) revohing credit faciily. Bofrowings under the
Stedio Cily Project Faciby bear interest al HIBOR
plus a margin of 4.50% per annum unlil tha last day of
the second full iscal quartar after the opening date of
the Studio City project. After that, interest will accrue at
HIBOR plus a margin ranging from 3.75% to 4.50% per
annum, depending on the total leverage ratio of Studio City
Investments Limited, Studio City Company Limited and its
subsidiaries,

On February 7, 2013, we kssuad US81.0 billion aggregate
principal ameunt of 2013 Senier Motes with an intarest rale
of 5.00% per annum and the malurity dale of February 15,
2021, 2013 Senior Nolas ware priced at par and listed on
the Official Lisl of the SGX-5T. The net procacds wera
parlly used to rapurchase tha 2010 Senior Matas in full.

In March 2013, wo repaid in full the Deposil-Linked Loan
with acerued intarest and redoemed, in full, the RMEB
Bonds following which, the RMB Bonds ware cancelled,
No RMB Bonds are currantly oulstanding, The redemplion
was parlly funded by the proceeds from hoe offering of
2013 Senlor Noles.

In lata March 2013, we repaid the drawn revolving credil
facilily under the 2011 Credil Faciilies of HKSLT billion
{equivalent to approximately USS212.5 millien) in full.
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On December 19, 2013, MCE Leisure Philippinas priced
its PHP15 bilion (equivalent to approximately US$340.0
millian al date of pricing) aggregate principal amount of
Philipping WNoles, al par, with an inlerest rate of 5.00%
per annum and a malurily date of January 24, 2019,
The issuance of the Philippine Neles was completed on
Joanuary 24, 2014, We intend 1o use (he nel procesds from
the Bsuance of Philipping Notes for the develkipment of
City of Droams Manila,

Credit facility agreements relating to cerlain of qur
indebledness contain change of conlrel provisions.
including in respect of our obligations relating fo our
contral andfor aewnership of cartain of our subsidiaries
and their assels. Under the terms of such credil facility
agraamants, the cccurrence of certain change of contral
evanls, including a decling below carlain thrasholds in
the aggregate direct or indirect sharsholdings of Meleo
Crown Macau, MCE Finance, Studio Cily Invastmants
Limited, MCE Colai Invasiments Limited or carlain of its
subsidiaries hald by us andior Meleo and CGrown or certain
of our subsidiaries {as the case may be) (and, in the case
of the decling of the sharaholding of Malco Crown Macau
ureder the 2011 Credil Facililies, which is accompanied by
a ralings decling) may rasulf in an evant of defaull and/
of A raquirgmant 1o prepay 1he crodit faciitios in relation
to such indebledness in full, Olher applicable change
of contral events wnder the credit faciity agreemenis
include the Company ceasing to be publicy listed on
certain designated stock exchanges or sleps being laken
In connection with the liquidation or dissolution of MCE
Finance, The terms of the Studio City Notes, 2013 Senior
Motes and Philippine Notes also conlain change of contrgl
provisions whereby the occurrence of a relevant change
of control evant will require us 1o offer o repurchase the
Studio Gity Noles, 2013 Senlor Notes or Philipping Motes
{as the case may be) at a price equal to 101% of thair
principal amount, plus accrued and unpaid interest and, if
any, additienal amounis and other amouni specified under
such indeblednass to the date of repurchase.

For further dedafls of the above indeblednass, please
refer to note 12 to the consolidated financial statemants
included alsewhare in (his annual report, which ingludes
information regarding the type of debt facilities used, the
maturily prefile of debl, the cumency and interest rate
structure. the charge on our assels and the nature and
extent of any restrictions on our ability. and the ability of
our subsidiaries, 1o transfer funds as cash dividends, lgans
of advances,



Other Financing and Liquidity Matters

Wa may obtain financing in the form of, among other things,
equity or debl, incleding pdditional bank pans of high
yield, meézzaning or other debl, or rély on our oparating
cash flow te fund the developmant of our projects. We are
a growing company with significant financial needs, YWe
expect lo have significant capital expenditures in the future
as we conlinue to develop our Macau and Philippines
proparties, in particular, Studio City, City of Dreams Manila
and the fifth holel tower at City of Dreams.

We have relisd and intand in the fulure o raly on our
operating cash flow and differant forms of financing lo
mizat our funding needs and repay our indebledness, as
the case may be.

Thix timing of any fulure dabl and aquity financing activitios
will ba depandent on our funding needs, our developmam
and consireclion schedule, the availability of funds on
acceptable terms o us, and prevailing markat conditions.
We may carry oul activities from lime 1o timea to strangthen
our financial position and abfity to betler fund our business
expansion, Such aclivities may include refinancing existing
dabl, monetizing assels, sale-and-leaseback transactions
or other similar activities.

W currenlly ostimate the construction cosl for Sludio
City will be approximately US$2.0 bilion. However, this
o8l estimale may be revised depending on a numbaer of
variables, including receipt of all necessary governmental
approvals, the findl design and development plan, funding

costs, the availability of financing on lerms acceptable to
us, and prevailing markel conditions. As of December 31,
2013, wa had incurrad capital expenditure of approximataly
US$580.1 million for the development of Studie City since
our acquisition of a 60% equily interast in SCI.

Faor the purpose of financing the Studie Gity project, we
succassfully offered the US$E25.0 milion Sludie Gity
Notes and obtained the HKS10.9 billion Studio City Project
Facility. in Movembar 2012 and Jonuary 2013, respectively,
As of thix date of this annual report, MCE and SCI minarity
shareholder have contributed US$1.050.0 milion to the
Sludio Cily project in agcordance with (he sharehelder
agreement, including a completion guaraniee support
cash of USS225.0 million as required under the Studio City
Project Facility.

The tolal budget for the City of Dreams Manila project up
to the time of opening is eslimated lo be approximately
US$680.0 million, consisting of funds primarily for capital
expanditures, working capital for inflial opaning and other
pré-opening axpanses, Howevar, this aslimale may be
revisad depending on a range of variables, including the
final design and devalopmant plans, funding costs, the
availability of financing on lerms accaplable to us, and
prevailing markel conditions.

MCP complsted a lop-up placement on the Philipping
Stock Exchange raising approximately USS338.5 million
in netl proceads, including the over-aligiment oplion, in
April 2013 and the issuance of the Philppine Nolas in
January 2014,
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The Company is 2156 moving forward with the developmant
of the fifth holel tower al City of Dreams and the
developrent was commencad in 2013, targeling to open
in earky 2017,

The development of Cily of Dreams Manila, the fifth
hotal tewer al Gty of Dreams and naxt phase of Sludio
CHy may be subject lo further financing and a number of
olhar factors, many of which ara b-awmd gur control, Cur
invesiment plans are preliminary and subject lo change
based upon the execulion of our business plan, the
progress of gur capital projections, market conditiens and
outloak on futuré businass.

As of Decembaer 31, 2013, we had capital commilments
contracted for, but not provided. tolaling US$1,231.7 million
mainly for the construction and acquisilion of property
and equipmem for City of Dreams, Studio Caty and City of
Draams Manila. In addition, we have conlingant liabilities
arising in the ordinary course of business, For furlher
datails for our commitments and contingencies, please
refer to mote 22 to the consolidaled financial statemants
included elsewhere in this annual repart.

As of Decambaer 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012, our
geaning ratios (toldl indeblednoss divided by total assets)
were 28.7% and 40.2%, respectively. Our gearing ratio
decreased as of Decomber 31, 2013, primarly as a resull
of the improvemeant of our business and the dacreased
indobtedness from the redemption of the 2010 Senior
Notes and RMB Bonds and rapaymem of the Deposit-
Linked Loan, repayment of the drawn revoling crodi
facility and scheduled repayment of the term loan both
under 2011 Credd Facillies, offsel by ssuance of 2013
Seanior Moles.

In January 2013, the Talwanese authorities commenced
investigating cortain alleged violations of Takwan banking
laws by carlain employeas of our Taiwan branch offica
and froze one of the office’s deposit accounts in Taivan,
The account had a kalance of approximataly New Taiwan
doltar 298 billien (equivalent o approximately USS102.2
million) at the time the accounl was frozen and was
Ireated as restricted cash, Wae are laking action o request
the Taiwanese aulhorities 1o unfresze the account. As of
Decembar 31, 2013, the investigations had no material
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impact on our financial position and resulls of operalions.
Imvestigation is en-going and no definilive informalion is
available. Managemen! is currently unable 1o datermine
the probabilty of the culcome of (his malter, the extent
of maletialily, of Ihe range of reasonably possible losses.

Melco Crown Macau has a raling of “BE™ by Slandard &
Pgor's and MCE Finance has a raling of "Ba3” by Moody's
Investors Service. For fulure borrowings, any decrease
in our corporale rating cowld result in an ingrease in
borfowing costs.

The Gaming Subconcession

Our subsidiary Melco Crown Macau is one of the
six companies licensed, through concessions of
subconcessions, to operate casines in Macau, Malco
Crown Macau executed a subtoncession conlrach with
Wynn Macau on Septembar 8, 2006, Wynn Macau will
continue 1o develop and run holel oparations and casing
projects independem of ours. Melco Crown Macau pakd a
consideration of S$200 million 1o Wynn Macau, In return,
on September &, 2006, Melco Crown Macau was granted
the right to operata games of fortune and chance o other
games in casinos in Macau, fer a period of 16 years until
the expiration of the subconcession on June 26, 2022
Mo further paymenis nead 1o be made to Wynn Macau
in fulute operalions. The oparation of gaming-relaled
activities is alse parmilled, subject fo the prior approval
from the Macau government, Details of the deemed cost
and amartization of the gaming subconcessien ara sef out
in note G 1o the consolidated financial statemants included
in this annual report.

Human Resources

We had 11,958 and 11,769 employees as of December
31, 2013 and 2012, respeciivaly. The follbwing table sets
forth the number of employees calegorized by the areas
of opetations and as a percentage of our workiores as of
Decamberdi, 2013and 2012, Stafl remuneration packages
are datermined 1aXing into account markel conditions and
the performance of the individuals concerned. and are
SUbjEC 1o raviaw fram lime 1o lime.
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We have implemented a number of human resource
initiatives over recenl years for the bensfit of our
employzes and their families. These initiatves inclede a
unique in-housa learning academy, an on-site high school
diploma program, scholarship awards, as well as fastirack
pramation training iniliatives jointly coordinated with the
School of Continuing Study of Macau University of Sclence
& Technolegy and Macao Technology Commillea.

We provide defined contribulien plans for our employses
and execulive officers in Macau, Hong Kong, the
Philippines and cartaln other jurisdictions.

MACAU

Cur Macau employeos parlicipate in  governmant-
managed Sccial Secwrity Fund Scheme (the *S5F
Schamao™) operated by the Macau governmaent. We are
required lo pay a menthly fized conlribution lo the S5F
Schame to fund the benefits, Our obligation with respect
1o the S5F Schame oparated by the Macau govarmment is
only to make the required contributions under the schema.

During the year ended Decembar 31, 2013, we provided
option for cur qualifying employeas in Macau to enrall in
a voluntary defined conlribulien scheme (lhe *Macay VC
Scheme”) aperated by us. Wilh effect from July 1, 2013,
the monthly woluntary contributions of the employer and
the onrolled employeos to the Macou VG Scheme lo
fund the benefils are set at ditterant range of parcentage
of the relevant monthly income solecled by the enrolled
employees. Owr voluniary confributions fo the Macau VC

Schama are graded vesling to the anrollsd employess
aceording to a vesling scale with full vesting in 10 years
fram date of employment. The Matau VG Schems was
established under trust with the assels of the funds held
sapatately from ours by an independant trustes in Matau.

HONG KONG

Our Heng Kong employees parlicipale in Mandatory
Provident Fund Schame (the *MPF Schame”) aperated by
us, With effect from June 1, 2012, the maximum monihly
contribution (the “Mandalory Conlributions™) by both
employee and employer wag increased from HK$1,000
16 HKS1,250. Wilh this increass, the employer's and the
employeas’ Mandatory Contributions lo the MPF Scheme
are gach 3ot ol 5% of the employees’ relivant incoms
up to a maximum of HK$1.250 per employee per menth.
Cur Mandatary Conlribulions 1o the MPF Schome ane
fully and immedialely vested 1o the employees once they
arg poid. For axecutive officars, thair contribulions 1o the
MPF Schame in Hong Kong are set al 5% of the executive
officers’ relevant income up to o maximum of HK$1,250
per executive officer per month. Qur contribution lo the
MPF Schome is 561 at 10% of the executive officers” base
salarias. The axcess of contribulions over the employer’s
mandatory portion, which is 5% of the execulive officers”
relovant income up o a maximum of HKS$1.250 per
executive officar per month, are treated as the employer's
volunary comribution and are vestad to executive officers
al 10% per year with full vesling in 10 years. The MPF
Schame for execulive officers was established undar trust
with the assets of the funds held separalely from ours by
an independant trusies in Hong Kong.

During the yoar andod Docambor 31, 2013, wo provided
oplion for its qualifying employees in Heng Kong o enroll
in a volentary defined contiibution scheme (Ihe “Hong
Kong VG Scheme®) oparated by us. With effect from
July 1, 2013, the monthly volumary contributions of the
employer and the enrolled employees to the Hong Kong
VG Schema o fund the benefits ane set at gifferent range of
percentage of the moenthly earned base salaries salecled
by the enfoled employaes, alter dedecting the monthly
Mandatery Centribulions made by the employar and the
employeas respectively, Our volunlary contributions 1o the
Hong Keng VG Scheme are graded vesting to the anralled
employeas according to a vesting scale wilh full vesting in
10 years from date of employmant.
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Our MPF Schemé and the Hong Kong VG Scheme was
eslablished under trusl wilh the assels of the funds held
separalety from ours by an indapendent trustes in Hong
Kong,

THE PHILIFPFINES

Qur Philippines employees parlicipate in government-
managed Social Security System Scheme (the “S5S
Scheme”) operated by the Philippines government, We are
required to pay al 8 ceflain percantage of the employaes’
relevant income and mel the minimum mandatory
requiremants to fund the benefils. Our obligation with
respect lo the 355 Scheme operaled by the Philippines
government is only 1o make the required conlributions
undar the schama.

OTHER JURISDICTIONS

Our subsidiaries in cerlain other jurisdiclion operala a
number of defined conlributien sthemes. Conlributions
1o the dafined contribution schemes applicable lo each
year are made al a cerlain parcentage of the employees’
payroll and mel the minimum mandatory requiremeants.

Total contribuliens made info the defined confribution
plans for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and
2011 were USE8.5 million, USS5.3 million and USS5.4
million, respecively.

Properties and Development Projects

We operate our gaming business in accordance with the
lerms and condidions of our gaming subconcession. In
additian, our City of Dreams, Allira Macau and Siudio Cily
properlies and development projects are subject to the
lerms and conditions of land concassion coniracts.

CITY OF DREAMS

The Ciy of Decams site is locoted on lwo adjacent land
parcels in Cotai, Macau with a combined area of 113,325
square melers (equivolent to opproximately 1.2 milion
square feal). In August 2008, the Macau government
grantod the land on which Cily of Dreams is located 1o
Meleo Crown (COD) Developments and Malco Crown
Macau for a period of 25 years, renewable for furlher
consecutive pariods of up Lo len years aach. The initial
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land premium of approximately MOP8421 rmillian
(equivalent to approximately US$105.1 milion) was paid
up in full in February 2013, The land grant was amandad
on September 15, 2010 to increase the tetal developable
grass floor aréa at the site to BEB.5T4 square malers
{equivalent to approximately 7.2 milien square feel) and
amand the purpose of such ored, which required an
additional premium in the amount of MOP25T4 million
(equivalent to approximately US$32.1 million), which wag
fully paid in March 2010.

Pursuanl to an amendment request made by Melco Crown
(COD) Devalopmants on Decamber 9, 2011, in March 2013,
Melce Crown (COD) Developments and Melco Crown
Macau accepled the inilial berms for the revision of the land
concession conlracl which conlemplated an extension of
the dovelopmaent poriod Lo the date faling 4 yaars afler
the publicalien of the amendment to the land concession
contract in the Macau official gozello and he developrment
of addilienal five-star holel areas in replacemeni of
the four-star aparimant holal areas: which required an
additional land premium of approximately MOP18T1
rillion (equivalent to approdimdlely USS233 million) of
which MOP T70.0 million ({equivalent o approximately
USSE. T milllon) were payable 1o the Macau government
upen acceplance of the final amandment proposal
issued by the Macau government, and the remaining
amount of approximately MOP 1171 million {equivalent
o approximately US$14.6 mition) were to be paid in four
bi-annual installmants, acerued with interast at the annual
rate of 5%, the first of which due six months after the date
of publication of the amended land concassion contract
in the Macau official gazette and revised the government
land use feas to approximataly MOP2.9 million (equivalent
to approximately US$1.2 million) per annum. On Octobar
9, 2013, the Macau gevernment communicated to Malco
Crown (CODY Developments and Melco Crown Macau
the final amendmeant proposal for the revision of the City
of Dreams land concession confracl. On Oclober 16,
2013, Maleo Crown (COD) Developments paid MOP 70.0
millian {equivalent o approximataly USSE,7 million) of the
additional land premium set forth in the final amandment
proposal, and on QOctober 17, 2013, Melee Crown (COD)
Developments and Meleo Crown Mocau accepled the
terms of such proposal. The land granl amendment
process was compleled in January 29, 2014 with the
publication in the Macau official gazetta.



During the comsliuclion period, we paid the Macau
government land use fees at an annual rate of MOP30.0
{equivalent 1o approximately USS$3.74) per square mater
of land, or an aggregate annual amount of approximaltaly
MOP3.4 million (squivalant lo approximataly US$424,000).
According to the terms of the revised land concassion,
the annudl governmant fand use fees poyable after
completion of development will be approximately MOP3.9
million (aquivalent 1o approsimately US$L.2 million), The
government land use fee amounts may be adjusted every
five years.

See nole 22 16 1he consolidalad financial stalemenls
included elsewnhere in this annual report for information
about sur fulure commilments a3 Lo govarnmant land use
fees for the Cily of Dreams sile.

The equipment ulilized by City of Dreams in the casing
and hotal is owned by us and held for use on the Cily of
Dreams site, and includes the main gaming equipment
and software 1o supporl ils table games and gaming
machine operations, cage equipmenl, security and
surveillance equipment, casing and holel furiture, fittings
and equipmant,

ALTIRA MACAL

The Altira Macau site is located on a plot of tand in Taipa,
Macau of approximately 5,230 square melers (equivalent
1o approximately 56,295 square feet) under a 25-year land
leaze agreement with the Magau goveramaml which is
renewable for successive periods of up to ten years each,
In March 2004, the Macau government granted the land
on which Allira Macau is located to Allira Devalopmeants.
The land premivm of approximately MOP149.7 million
{equivalent to opproximately USS18.7 milion) was fully
paid in July 200§, a guaraniee deposit of approximalaly
MOP157.000 (squivalont to approximately US520.000)
was paid upen acceplance of the land lease terms in 2006
oand govarmmant land use fees of apgroximately MOP1.4
million {equivalant to approximately USS171,000) per
DRRUM are payabky, The amMounts may b adjusted overy

fivis yoars as agreed batween the Macau government and
us using applicable markel rates in effect al the time of the
adjustment.

Pursuant to an amendmen! request made by Altira
Developments In 2012, In  January 2013, Allira
Devalopments accapted the initial tarms fer the ravision of
the land lease agreemem which contemplated the increase
of the tolal gross floor area from approximately 95,000
square meters (equivalent to approximately 1.022.600
squate fest) to approximately 103.000 squaré melers
(equivalent to approximately 1,108,700 square feel), lo
reflect the construction plans approved by the Macau
governmeni and lo enable final regisiration of the land
concossion. Such amandmant required an additional land
premium of approximately MOP19.6 million {equivalent
1o appreximatoly USS24 million) payable to the Macau
govarnmen! upon acceplance of the final amendment
proposal issued by the Macau gevernmant, and rovised the
govarnment land use fees to approximately MOP1.5 million
(equivalent 1o appraximately USS186.000) per annum, On
June 28, 2013, the Macau government communicated to
Adira Dovalepmants the findl amendmant pragosal for the
rewision of the Altira land concession confracl. On July
15, 2013, Altira Developmants pald the additional land
premium et forth in the final amendment proposal, and
on July 16, 2013, it accepted the terms of such praposal.
The land grant amendmani process was compleled on
Decombaer 18, 2013 with the publication in the Macau
official gazelta of such revision.

See nole 22 lo the consclidated financial statemenls
includad alsewhere in this annual raporl for information
about our fulure commitmeants as lo govemmeant land use
faos for the Allird Macau site.

The equipment ulilized by Allita Macau in the casine and
holel is owned by us and held for use on the Altira Macau
siter and includas the main gaming equipment and softwarne
te supportits lable games and gaming machine operations,
cage equipmant, securily and surveillancs equipment and
casing, hotel furniture, fillings, and equipment.
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MOCHA CLUBS

Mocha Clubs oparale sl premises with a 1olal floar area
of approximately 83800 square feel al the following
locations in Macau:

{in scuace foel}
Goidn Dragon Jaruaty 2002 GF, UF, BF and LF of ol 050
Geiden Dragon
Matay Towsd  Seplombes 2011 LGF and GF o Macaa Towie  11.500
Mocha Aties  Daconbie 7008 Loval 1.of Aliss Mati 2850
Mocha Squarn Oclobar 2007 1F, F and 3F of Mochs 3400
Square
Snira Mavember 2005 GF and 1F of Hoted Sinkra 5000
Tagd Squate  Jatuady 2005 GF, UF and 2F ofHod Taga 9,200
Squane
Ryl Sepsornbad 2003 GF and 1F of Hotel Ryl B4
T Hashoe  Dacamber 3003 No 256-312 Seasce New 12800
Bt
Total 83,500

For localions operating at leased or subleased premisas,
the lgase and sublease lerms are pursuant to lease
agreements that expire at various dates through Juna
2022, which are renawable upon our giving nolice prior 1o
expiration and subjee! 1o incremental increases in monthiy
rentals.

In addilicn 1o leasshald improvements to Moecha Club
pramises, the onsite equipment ulilized at the Mocha
Clubs i3 owned and hald for use 1o support the garming
machines operations.

STUDIO CITY

Stuedio City's site is on a plot of land of 130,789 square
meters {equivalent to approximataly 1.4 milion square
feet) in Gotai. Macau and has a gross construclion area
of approximately 7.6 milion square feel (equivalent
16 approximately TOT.0T8 square meters). The gross
conslruction area for the first phase is approxdimately 5.0
mallion square feel (equivalent to appraximately 463,000
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square meters), Undar the Stedio Gily land concassion
conlracl, the land premium ks approximalely MOP1425.3
millian (Equivalent 1o approximataly US$177.9 million),
of which approximately MOP853.5 milion (equivalent to
approximataly USS106.5 million) was paid as of Decembar
31, 2013, and the remaining MOPS571.8 millicn {(equivalent
o approximately USET1.4 million) will be paid in thres bi-
annual installmenis, bearing interest at 5% per annum.
Under the Stedis Ciy land concassion contract, Studie
City Devalopments has provided guaraniees in the tolal
amount of MOPT4 million (equivalent 1o approximately
US$0.9 million). Currantly, the development period under
the land corcession contract is for 72 monihs from July
25, 2012,

The Studie City land concession conlrac!, as amended by
Dispateh of the Secratary for Transponation and Public
works no. 32012, of July 18, 2012, permils Studio City
Devolopments to bulld o complex comprising a five-slar
holal, a facilily for cinematographic indusiry. including
supgorting factlities for antertalinmant and Wurism, parking
and free area.

See note 22 to the consclidated financial statemants
includad elsewhere in this annual raport for information
about our fulure commitments as o govemment land use
feas for the Studio Gity sita.

CITY OF DREAMS MANILA

The Ciy of Dreams Manila site is located on a reclaimed
land (*Project Reclaimed Land”). The Project Reclaimad
Land was oniginally acquired by an entily known as R 1
Consortium from the Philippine Public Estates Authority
("PEA). This acquisition ogcurred in 1995 as par of the R 1
Consortium's compensation for the construction of PEA's
Manila-Cavile Coaslal Read project. R 1 Consorlium
convayed all its inlerest 1o the Project Reclaimed Land
in faver of twe enlities in 1995, These two enlities laler
maerged with Belle Bay Cily Corporation (*Belle Bay™),
which is 34.8% owned by Belle Corporalion, being one
of this Philippine Parties, with Belle Bay bacoming the
surviving entily and ewner of the Project Reclaimed Land.
Balle Bay was dissolvad in 2005 and is still undargoing
liquidation. The Project Reclaimed Land was allocaled to
Belle Corparalion os part of Belle Bay's plan of dissalulion.






Balle Cofporalion has axercised possession and olher
rights over ihe Projecl Reclaimed Land since this
allaeation. In 2005, Balla Cofporalion transfared a porlion
of the Project Reclaimed Land lo the Phiippine Social
Securily Syslem. Then in 2010, Balle Carporation and the
Soclal Security Syslam entered into a leaase agreement for
hat portion,

MCE Leisure Philippines does nol own the land or the
buildings comprising the site for Cily of Dreams Manila,
Rather, MCE Leisuté Philippines leases the Praject
Reclaimed Land and buildings from Belle Corporation
undar the laase agraemant dated October 25, 2012, which
became effeclive on March 13, 2013 ("Lease Agreement”),
Part of the land coverad vnder the Laase Agraement is
leased by Belle Corporation from the Social Security
Systam under the lease agreemant belween Belle
Corporation and the Social Security System in 2010.

OTHER PREMISES

Taipa Square Casino premises, including the fit-out and
gaming related equipmenl, are located on the ground
fleor and leval one within Hotel Taipa Square in Macau
and having a floor area of approximalely 1,760 square
moters (equivalent te approximately 18,950 square faet).
We operate Talpa Square Casino under a righi-io-use
afreement signed an June 12, 2008 with the swner, Hatel
Talpa Square {Macao) Comgany Limited. The term of the
afreement is one year fram the date of execution and is
automatically renewable, subject to certain contractual
provigions, fof SUCCOSSVE pOTiods of and yoor under the
same lerms and conditions, until June 26, 2022,

Apart from ihe aforesald properly sites, we maintain
various offices and storage locations in Macau, Heng
Kong and the Philippines. We lease all of our office and
slorage premises. We used 1o own five unis located al
Golden Dragen Cenire (formerly known as Zhu Kuan
Building) in Macau. These five units have alolal area of 839
gquare meters (equivalent lo approximately 9,029 square
feet). The five unils were purchased by MPEL Properties
{Macau) Limited, our subsidiary, for approximately HKS79,7
million (equivalent lo approximalely US$10.2 million) in
August 2008. On November 20, 2013, we enterad inlo

a promissory agraament with a third parly purchaser for
our dispesal of lhese five units for a tolal consideralion
of HKS240.0 million (equivalent 16 approximately USS30.8
millign), The sale and purchase of the five units completed
on Fabruary 18, 2014 and upon complation of the sals,
we continue to occupy and use lthe relevant unils as our
reCruilment contor under & Shorltarm [enancy Jgraement
with the new owner for a term of bwo years.

Achievements and Awards

During the year ended Decembor 31, 2013, not only
has Melco Crown Enterlainment achieved outsianding
business performance and profit growth, but it has alse
escaloled its efforts lo creale a baller and more susiainable
communily where il serves. As a resull. a number of
prestigious awards ware presenied lo the Company for its
commendable achigwements.

CONTINUQUS PURSUIT OF EXCELLENCE

In 2013, Melco Crown Enteriainment was included on the
Forbes Asia's “Fabubsus 507 list for the first time, ranking
the best big companies in the ragion. It was also namad
as tho “Most Roliable Leisure and Enterlainmant Group®
by Modiszone FPublishing. In recognition of its continuous
excellence, Corporate Governance Asiamagazing honored
the Company as an *Outslanding Company in Corporate
Governance” and "Best Environmentally ResponsibiEty™,
and namdéd its Chief Financial Officer Mr. Geoffray Davis
as “Asia’s Best CFOT, The Company's 2012 Annual Report
recaived numerous awards including the *Gold Winnear®
in olh the *Phaotography: Entertainment™ and “Traditional
Annual Report: Entertainment™ categories atl the 2013
Intarnational ARC Awards, The reporl also gamnered the
“Bronze Award within the Consumér Sarvices Category
— Hotels/Restauwrants/Leisure”, and was ranked among
the *Top 50 Chinese Annual Raports of 20127 al the 2012
Vision Awards Annual Report Compelition,

Matco Crown Entertainments Co-Chairman and Chief
Execulive Officer, Mr. Lawrance Yau Lung Ho, has been
solectod by Corpovale Governance Asfo magazing as
“Asia’s Best CEQ" for the sacond time in threa yaars
and garngred an "Asian Corporate Director Recognition
Awand” for the second conseculive year.
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INCREASING RECOGNITION OF WORLD-CLASS
LODGING AND ENTERTAINMENT OFFERINGS

Combining the fascinating interier déger with oulstanding
service 1o match, Allira Macau provides an unforgettably
luxuricus lodging experience 1o each guest which earned
for il the “Five-Star Award for Lodging™ and “Five-Star
Award for Spa” by Forbes Travel Guide, both for the fourth
congecutive year in 2013, In asdition, City of Dreams was
honorad with the “Integrated Resort of the Year™ award at
the Imernationsl Gaming Awards 2013, in recognition of
its diverse range of world-class leisure and enlartainmant
offerings, including Crown Towers hotel, which was
awarded a Forbes Five-5tar raling in Ledging and was the
first Colai haote! brand to have ever been ackndwledged by
the Forbas institution fer Fiva- Star service excellance; and
the Michelin One-Star-raled restaurant The Tasting Room.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

Melco Crown Enterfainment is commilled to creating a
sustainable environmant, through boeth helping to build a
graenar community and exerling its influance to bring about
positive outeomas rom efforts to improve social issues that
impact the community in which it operates. For the second
consecutivi yaar, the Company was accradited wilh baing
the anly gaming operater in Macau that achieved the *ISO
14001 Erwirgnmental Management Certification” for its
effeclive Environmantal Managemen! System, which was
adopled to maasure and improve the environmental impact
of the Company’s operations. In addition, the Company
wias given the “Bes! Environmentally Responsibiity” award
prasamad by Corpovate Governance Asis magazine and
the “Caridade Social Award 2013 presentad by the Macau
Association of Chinese Young Enfrapreneurs and the
Youlh Committee of the Macao Chamber of Commerca.
Cily of Dreams also garnered the *Engrgy Saving Concaopt
Award” organized by the Office for the Development
of the Energy Socler (GOSE) and co-organized by the
Companhia de Electricidade de Macau (CEM).
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For its overall achievermeants in creating a posilive impac in
the community, the Company wen the *CSR Grand Prize”
al the Matau Business Awards 2013.

The Company is greatly encouraged by these awards
which complemented its tireless efforts 1o reach new
heights in corporate management, entertainment and
services, Meleo Crown Enfertainmenl resolves to
conlinue to grow its business while fulfilling its corporate
social responsibilities lo people in need and enhancing
shareholdars valug while banefiting the stakeholders and
sociely at large.



Directors and Senior Management

Directors

Mr. Lawrence Yau Lung Ho (aged 37)
Exocutive Dircetor
{Co-Chairman and Chiof Executive Officer)

Mr. Lawrence Yau Lung Ho was appointed as our
oxeculive Director on December 20, 2004 and has served
as our Co-Chairman and Chief Executive Officer since
Cecembar 2004, Since Movember 2001, Mr, Ho has
also served as the managing diractor and, since March
2006, the chairman and chief execulive offiver of Melco,
Mr. Ho has also been appoinfed as the chaiman and non-
oxecutive director of Summil Ascent Heoldings Limied, a
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange,
since July 10, 2013,

As a Membor of the National Commiltes of the Chingse
Paople’s Political Consultative Conference, Mr. Ho also
SOTVES O NUMITOUS boards and commiéttees of privalely
held companies in Hong Kong, Macau and mainland
China, He is a Membar of the Board of Directers, Member
of the Executive Commillea, and a Vice Patron of Tha
Community Chest of Hong Kong: Membaer of Science
and Technology Council of the Macau SAR Govemment;
Member of All China Youlh Federation; Member of Macay
Basi¢ Law Promolional Association; Chairman of Macau
International Vielunteers Association; Board of Governers
of The Ganadian Chamber of Commerce in Hong Kong;
Hongrary Lifetime Director of The Chingse General
Chamber of Commarce, Hong Kong: Honorary Palron of
The Canadian Chamber of Commerce in Macao: Honorary
Prasident of Associalion of Proparly Agents and Real
Eslate Developers of Macau and Direclor Execulive of the
Macdo Chamber of Commancs,

In racognition of Mr. Ho's excallent direclorship and
enlrepreneurial spiril, Insiitulional Investor honored him
as the “Besl CEO" in 2005. He was also granted the *5th
China Enterprise fAward for Crealive Businessmen™ by
Ihe China Markeling Associalion and China Enlerprise
News, “Leader of Tomomow™ by Hong Kong Tatler and the
*Direclors of the Year Award” by tha Hong Kong Instilula
of Direclors in 2005, As a socially responsible young
entreprancur in Hong Kong, Mr. Ho was lecled as ong
of the *“Ten Quistanding Young Persons Selection 2008,
organized by the Junisr Chambor Internatianal Hang Kong.
In 2007, he was elecled as a finalist in the “Best Chairman®
category in the “Slevie International Business Awards™

and ané of the “100 Most (nfluantial Paaple across Asia
Pacific” by Asiamonay magazine, in 2008, he was granled
the *China Charity Award™ by the Ministry of Civil Affairs
of the People’s Republic of China, And in 2004, Mr, He
was selecled as one of the “China Top Ten Financial and
Intelligent Persons™ judged by a panel led by the Beijing
Cultural Developmant Stedy Instiute and Forune Times,
and was named “Young Enirepreneur of the Year® at
Heng Kong's first Asia Pacific Entrepransurship Awards.
Mr. Ho was selecled by FinanceAsia as one of the “Best
CEQs in Heng Kong™ for four congacutive years, from
2009 to 2012, He was also awarded “Asia's Best CEQ" at
the Asian Excillence Awards by Corperate Governancs
Asie magazing for the second tima in 2013, and was
honored as ond of the recipients of the Asian Corporate
Director Recegnition Awards in 2012 and 2013, Mr. He
graduated wilth a bachalor of arts degrae in commerce from
tha University of Torenle, Canada in June 1899 and was
awarded the Honorary Doctor of Business Adminisiration
degree by Edinburgh Mapier University, Scottand in July
2008 for his contribution lo business, education and the
community in Hong Kong, Macau and China.

Mr. James Douglas Packer (aged 46)
Mon-oxecutive Director (Co-Chairman)

Mr. James Douglas Packer was appoiniad as our non-
execulive Direclor on March 8, 2005 and has served as our
Co-Chairman since March 2005, Mr. Packer i the chairman
of Crown, an operator of casings and integrated resons,
having been appointed on its formation in 2007, and a
mermber of the Crown Invesiment Committee since Fabruary
2008. Mr. Packer is also the chairman of Consolidated
Press Holdings Limited (the largest sharehoider of Crown),
having besn appointed in January 2006. Mr. Packer is
a direclor of Crown Melbourne Limiled, a casino and
integrated rason oporater, having been appointed in July
1999, and Burswood Limited, a casino and integrated resort
opiralor, having boen appoined in Soptomber 2004, His
previous directorships include Challenger Limited {formerly
called Challongar Financial Servicos Group Limited) from
Movermnber 2003 lo September 2008, SEEK Limited from
Octobar 2003 o August 2009, Sunland Group Limitad from
July 2006 to August 2008, Ten Network Holdings Limited
from December 2010 to March 2011, Ellersion Capital
Lirnited frem August 2004 1o August 2011 and Consolidated
Media Holdings Limited from December 2007 o November
2012,
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Mr. John Peter Ben Wang (aged 53)
Non-axacutive Diractor

Mr. John Peter Ban Wang was appointed as our ngn-
exaculive Direclor on Novermber 21, 2008. Mr. Wang is
currently the deputy chairman and executive diractor of
Summit Ascent Holdings Limited (“Summit Ascent”), a
company listed on the Stock Exchanga, and befora that,
ha was the chairman of Summéd Ascent from Mareh 2011
1o July 2013. Ha is also a non-execulive director of Anxin-
China Holdings Limiled. a company listed on the Slock
Exchange. He previously held non-execulive direclorships
in Melcolol Limited, Oriental Ginza Holdings Limited
and China Precious Metal Resources Holdings Co., Ltd.,
companias lisled on the Steck Exchange, Mr. Wang was
the chief financal officer of Malco from 2004 to Septambear
2009. Prigr o joining Melco in 2004, he had over 18
years of professional experience in the securities and
investment banking indusiry, He was the managing direclor
of JS Cresvale Securities Inlarnational Limited (HK) from
1998 to 2004 and prigr to 1998, he worked for Deulsche
Morgan Granfedl (HK), CLSA (HK), Barclays (Singapora),
SG Warburg (London), Salomgn Brothers (London), the
London Stock Exchange and Daloille Hasking & Sells
{London), Mr. Wang qualified as a charlered accounlant
wilh the Instivie of Chanared Accountants in England and
Wales in 1885. He gradualed from the University of Kenl at
Canterbury in the United Kingdom with a bachalor dogres
in accounting in July 1882.

Mr. Clarence Yuk Man Chung (aged 51)
Non-executive Diractor

Mr, Clarence Yuk Man Chung was appoinled as our non-
exaculive Diraclor on Newvembar 21, 2006. Mr. Chung has
also been an executive director of Melco since May 2006.
He joined Meles in Docamber 2003, Mr. Chung has served
as a director of Melco Leisure since 2008. Bafore joining
Makea, he has mone than 25 yoars of experience in the
financial induslry in various capacilies as a chief financial
officer, an investrment Banker and a manger and asquisition
specialist. He was named one of the “Asian Gaming 50°
for multiple years (including year 2013) by Inside Asian
Gaming magazine.
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Mr. Chung has baen tha chairman and chief execulive
officer of Entertainmenl Gaming Asia Inc., a company
listed on the NASDAQ Capital Markel, since August
2008 and Cctober 2008, respectively. Mr. Chung has
bean the chairman and prasident of MCP, a company
listed on the Philippine Stock Exchange, since Decamber
2012, Mr. Chung has alse been appointed as a dirselsr
of a number of our subsidiaries incorperated in various
diffarent jurisdictions. Mr. Chung sblained o masters
degree in business adminisiration from the Kellogg School
of Management ol Northwestern Universily and The
Hong Kong Univarsity of Sclence and Technology and is
a member of the Hong Kong Instilule of Centified Public
Accountants and the nstitute of Chartered Accountants in
England and Wales.

Mr. William Todd Nisbet (aged 46)
Hon-oxecutive Director

Mr. William Todd Nisbel was appointed 25 0ur non=
execulive Director on October 14, 2009, He is also a
Director of Studio Cily International Holdings Limited
and has been appointed as a direclor of MCP, a
company listed on the Philipping Stock Exchange, since
December 2012, In addition, Mr. Nisbet has also bean
appointed as a direclor of a number of our subsidiaries
incarparated in various different jurisdiclions. Mr. Nisbet
Jeined Crown, an operalor of casinos and integrated
resons, in 2007, In his role as Execulive Vice Prasident
— Strategy and Development al Crown, Mr. Nisbet
is responsible for all project development and new
business opportunities for Crown, From August 2000
through July 2007, Mr. Nisbet held the position of
execulive vice president — project director for Wynn
Dasign and Dovelopment. & development subsidiary of
Wynn Resorls Limiled (*Wynn"), an opearafor of casinos
and integrated rosorts. Sarving this role with Wynn,
Mr. Misbet was responsitle for all project devalopment
and construtlion operations undanaken by Wynn. Prier
to joining Wynn, Mr. Nisbel was the vice president
of aparations for Marnall Corrag Associates. During
Mr. Misbet's 14 years al Marnell Corrao from 1286 lo
2000, he was responsibly for Mandging vanous aspects
of the construclion of some of Las Vegas' most elaborate
and industry-defining properties. Mr. Nisbet obtained a
bachebor of sciance degrae in Finance from the University
of Nevada, Las Vegas in 1993,



Mr. Rowen Bruce Craigie (aged 58)
Non-axacutive Diractar

Mr. Rowan Bruce Craigie was appointed as our non-
exaculive Director on Mareh 8, 2005, Mr. Craigie has also
been appoinied as a director of our subsidiaries in various
diffarent jurisdictions. Mr. Craigie is the chief executive
officer and managing direclor of Crown, an operator of
caginos and integrated resorts, having been appointed
on its formation in 2007, Mr. Craigie is also a director of
Crown Malbourne Limited, a casing and integrated rosont
operatlor, having bean appointed in January 2001, and
Burswood Limited, 8 casing and integrated resont oparator,
having been appointed in Seplembar 2004. Mr. Craigie
praviously served as the chiel executive officer of PBL
Gaming from 2006 to 2007 and as the chisl exacutive
officer of Crown Melbourne Limited from 2002 to 2007,
Mr. Craigie was a director of Consolidated Media Holdings
Limited from January 2002 to April 2009,

Mr, Craigie joingd Crown Melbourne Lirted in 1983, was
appointed as the executive genaral manager of s Gaming
Machines dopartment in 1996, and was promaoted lo chiel
operaling officer in 2000. Prier 1o joining Crewn Melbourma
Limitad, Mr. Craigie was the group general manager for
gaming at the TAB in Vicloria from 1990 to 1993, and
hald senipr economic policy positions in Treasury and the
Dapartment of Industry in Vicloria from 1984 to 1520, He
oblained a bachelor of economics (hanors) degree from
M h Ling ity, Ma . Ausiralia in 1976,

Mr. James Andrew Charles MacKenzie (agad 60}
Independent Non-oxecutive Director

Mr. Jamas Andrew Charles MacKenzie was appointed
as an independent non-exacutive Direclor on April 24,
2008 and an independent non-execulive direclor of MCP,
a company listed on the Philippine Stock Exchange,
since December 19, 2012. He is the chairman of our
audil commillee. He has exlensive exparience as a
company direclor also serving as co-vice chairman
of Yancoal Australia Limited from June 28, 2012 and
having held a number of directorships including non-
exgculive direclor and chairman of Mirvac Group from
Novembar 2005 1o January 2014 ond Novembor 2005 1o
Novemnber 2013 respeclively and non-execulive director
and chairman of Pacific Brands Limited from May 2008
1o May 2013 and May 2008 to May 2012 respectively.

He lad the ansformalion of the Victorian Govarnment's
Parsonal Injury Schemes from 2000 te 2007 and prior
te 2005 he held sanior axéculive posilions with ANZ
Banking Greup. Standard Chartered Bank and Morwich
Union ple. A charlered accounlant by profession since
1977, Mr. MacKenzie was, prior to 2005, a partnar
in Both the Melbourne and Hong Kong offices of an
international accounting firm now parl of Deloilta. In 2001,
Mr. MacKenzic was dwarded the Australian Centenary
Medal for services to public administratien. He oblained
a bachelor of busingss (accounting and quantitative
metheds) degree from the Swinburne University of
Technology i 1974, Mr. MacKenzie has boen o Fellow of
both the Institule of Charterad Accountanis in Australia and
the Australian Institute of Company Directors sinos 1974
and 1994, respectively,

Mr. Thomas Jefferson Wu (aged 41)
Indepandent Non-oxeculive Director

Mr. Thomas Jefferson Wu was appeinted as an
independent non-execulive Director on December 18,
2006. He is also the chairman of our compansation
committes, and a member of our audit committee and
nominaling and corporate governanca commiltea. Mr. W
has been the managing diractor of Hopawell Holdings
Limited, a business conglomarate listed on the Stock
Exchange, since Oclober 2009, He has served in various
roles with the Hopewell Holdings group since 1999,
including group controller from March 2000 1o June 2001,
exacutive dirsclor since June 2001, chief operaling officer
frem January 2002 to August 2002, depuly managing
director from August 2003 to June 2007 and co-managing
director from July 2007 1o September 2009, He has
served as the managing director of Hopewsll Highway
Infrastructura Limited sinca July 2003.

Mr. Wu graduated with high honors from Princelon
University in 1984 with a bachaler of science dagrae in
Mechanical and Asrospace Engineering. He then worked
inJapan as an engineer for Mitsubishi Elaciric Corparation
for three years before returning lo full-time studies at
Stanford University, where he oblained a master of
business administration degree in 1989,
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Mr. W is aclive in public servits in both Hong Kong and
Mainland China. He serves in a number of advisory roles
al differant levals of governmand. In Mainland Chinag, he is
a member of the Heilongjiang Provincial Commiliee of the
10th Chineseé People’s Poldical Consullative Conferanca, a
standing commillee member and a member of the Huadu
Digteiet Commiltes of The Chinese People's Palitical
Consultative Conference, among other public service
COPHCnS.

In Hong Kong, Mi. Wu's major public service appointments
include being a member of the Hong Kong Government's
Standing Commitlee on Disciplined Services Salaries
and Conditions ¢f Service and a member of its Steering
Commibas on the Promotion of Eleclric Vehiclas, as wall
as a member of the Board of Direclors of the Community
Chest of Hang Kong. the Hong Kang Sports Instilvle and
the Asian Youlh Qrchestra Limited. He is also a member
of the Council of the Hong Kong Baplist University and
a member of the Business Scheol Advisory Council of
The Hong Kong University of Science and Technology.
Praviously, he was a council méember of The Hong Kong
Palytechnic Universdty and a maember of e Court of The
Hong Kong University of Sclance and Technobogy.

In addition lo his professional and public service
engagaments, Mr. Wu is mostly Known for his passion
for ice hockey, as well as the sperl’s development in
Hong Kong and the region. He is (he viea president (Asial
Cceania) of Inlernational Ice Hockey Federation, the
cofounder and chairman of the Hong Kong Amateur lca
Heckey Club and the Hong Kong Academy of log Hockey.
Hé is also the hanorary president of tha Hong Kang lca
Hockay Association — tha natienal sports association
of ice hockey in Hong Kong, the vica-prasident of the
Chineza lce Heckey Association, honorary president of
the Macau lee Spons Federalion and hanorary chairman
of the lee Hockey Assoclation of Taipai Municipal Athletics
Fadaration,

In 2008, the Warld Economic Forum salectad Mr. Wu
as a “Young Global Leader.” He was alse awarded lhe
“Directors of the Year Award™ by the Hong Kong Insbiula
of Direclors in 2010, the *Asian Corporate Direclor
Reocognilion Award™ by Corporale Govarnonce Asia
magazine in 2011, 2012 and 2013, and named the “Asia’s
Best CEO (Invostor Relations)™ in 2012 and 2013,
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Mr. Alec Yiu Wa Tsui (aged 64)
Indap Mon o D

Mr. Alec Yiu Wa Tsul was appointed as an indapendent
non-axecutive Director on December 18, 2006, He is the
chairman of our nominating and cerporate governance
committee, & member of our audit committee and a
mambear of our compansation committea. Mr. Tsui has
extensive exporience in finance and administration,
corporate and strategic planning, informatien tlechnokogy
and human resources managemaent, having served at
warious international companies. He held key positions at
the Secunlios and Fulures Commission of Hong Kong from
1989 to 1993, jeined the Stock Exchange in 1984 as an
execulivie dinector of the finance and oparalions Services
division and was ils chief executive from February 1997
to July 2000, He was also the chigl operating officer of
Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limiled from March
te August 2000, He was the chairman of the Heng Kong
Securities Institule from 2001 to 2004. He was a consultant
of the Shenzhen Steck Exchange from July 2001 to June
2002, Mr. Tsui was an indapandant non-axacutive direclor
of each of Gregnigwn China Holdings Limited from June
2006 16 Juas 2010, China Huiyuan Juite Group Limited
from Seplember 2006 to July 2010, China BlueChemical
Lirvited from Apnil 2006 1o June 2012 and China Changlong
Development Group Limited from March 2003 to
Mevambar 2013 all of which are companies listed on the
Stock Exchange. Mr. Tsui has been the chaiman of WAG
Worldsee Corparate Finones Limited since 2006 and a
director of Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia)
Limited sinae Asgust 2000, Mr. Toul i also on indepandent
non-execulive director of a number of companies listed
on the Stock Exchange, NASDAC, the Shanghai Steck
Exchange and the Philippine Stock Exchange, including
COSCO Inernational Holdings Limited since 2004, China
Power International Development Limited since 2004,
Pacific Onling Limited since 2007, ATA Inc, since 2008,
China Qiffiald Services Limied since 2009, Summit Ascent
Holdings Limited since March 2011 and MCP since
Dacember 2012, Mr. Tsui graduated from the Univarsity
of Tennessee with a bachelor's degree in industrial
angineering in 1975 and a masler of anginearing degrae
in 1976, He complated a program for senlor managers in
governmant al the John F, Kennedy School of Governmaent
al Harvard University in 1993.



Mr. Robert Wason Mactier (aged 49)
Indepandant Non-executive Director

Mr, Robert Wason Mactier was appointed as an
independent non-execulive Director on Decembar 18,
2006. He is a member of cur compansation committes
and nominaling and corporate governance commitlee,
Mr. Mactier jeined the board of directors of STW
Communications Group Limited, a publicly listed Australian
communications and adverlising company, in Decambar
2006 and became its independent non-execulive chairman
in July 2008. He was a non-execulive direclor of Aurgra
Community Television Limited from 2005 to 2012, Since
1990, Mr. Mactier has held a variely of execulive roles
acress the Australian investment Banking and securities
markels. He has been a consuliant to UBS AG in Australia
since June 2007, From March 1997 to January 2008,
Mr. Macliar worked with Citigroup Ply Limitad and its
predecessor firms in Australia, and prior to this he worked
with E.L. & C. Baillieu Limited from Novamber 1984 lo
February 1997 and Ord Minnelt Securilies Limited from
May 1980 to Octobar 1994, During this tima, hée has
gained broad advisory and capital markels transaclion
exparience and specific industry experlise within the
lelecommunicalions, media, gaming, enterainment and
lechnology SOCIHS and Acrass tha prvate equily sectors,
Prior 1o joining the invesiment banking industry, Mr. Maclier
qualfied as a chanered accountant in 1287, working wilth
KPMG from Janwary 1886 to April 1980 across their audit,
management eonsulting and corparale finance practices.
He obtained a bachelor's degree in economics from the
Univarsity of Sydney, Australia in 1986 and has been a
Member of the Australian Institute of Cempany Direclors
sineg 2007,

Senior Management

Mr. Geoffrey Stuart Davis (aged 45)
Execulive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

Mr. Geoffrey Siuai Davis is our execulive vice prasident
and chief financial officer and he was appointed to his
currant role in April 2011. Prior to that, he sarved as
our deputy chief financial officer from August 2010 1o
March 2011 and our senior vice president, corporate
finance from 2007, when he joined our Company. Prior 1o
jeining us, Mr. Davis was a research anatyst for Ciligroup
Inwastment Research, where he covered the U.S. gaming

induslry from 2001 o 2007, From 1996 o 2000, he was
the vice president of corporale communications for Park
Place Entertainmant, the largast gaming company in the
world al the time, Park Flace was spun off from Hilton
Hotals Corporation and subsequantly renamed Caesars
Enteriainment. Mr. Davis has been a CFA charter holder
gineo 2000 and obtained a bachaler of ans from Brown
University in 1881

Ms. Stephanie Cheung (aged 51)
Exocutive Vice Prosidont and Chiof Logal OHicer

Ms. Stephanie Cheung is our executive vice president
and chiaf legal officer and she was appointed 1o her
current rele in December 2008, Prior to that, she hald the
tithe of genaral counsal fram Movembar 2006, whan she
Joined our Company. She has acled as the secretary to
our Board since she joined sur Company, Prior 1o joining
us, Ms. Cheung was an of counsel at Troutman Sanders
fram 2004 1o 2006 and prior to Ihatl she practiced law with
warious internatienal law firms in Heng Kong, Singapore
and Torento. Ms. Cheung graduated with a bachalor of
laws degree from Osgocde Hall Law School in 1986 and
a masters degred in business administration from York
University in 1884. Ms. Cheung is admitted as a soliciter in
Ontarip, Canada, England and Wales, and Hong Kong.

Ms. Akiko Takahashi (aged 60)
Executive Vice Prosident and Chief Human Rosourcos!
Carporate Social Responsibility Officer

Ms. Akiko Takahashi is our executive viea president and
chief human resourcesicorporate social responsibility
officer and she was appointed to her current role in
Docembar 2008, Prior 1o that. she held the title group
human resources diractor from December 2008, when she
joined our Company. Prigr 1o joining us, Ms. Takahashi
worked as a consultant in her own consullancy company
fram 2003 to 2006, where she conducted "C-level”
executiva searches for cients and assisted with brand!
service culture alignment for a luxury holel in New Yerk
City, and where her last engagemant prior 1o joining our
Company was to lead the human resources inlegration for
the largest international hospitality joint venture in Japan
betwaen InterContinental Holels Group and ANA Holels.
She was the global group diréctor of RUMAN fESOUCES
for Shangri-la Holels and Resorls, an inlernational luwoury
holel group headquanersd in Hong Kong. fram 1995 to
2003, Between 1993 and 1905, she was the senior vice
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president of human resources and servics qualily fer
Bank of America, Hawail, FSB. She served as regional
human rasources manager for Sheralon Hotels Hawaill
Japan from 1985 te 1993, She slarled her hospitality
career as a lraining managar for Halakulani Holel. She
began her career in the fashion luxury retail industry in
merehandising, operalisns, raining and human reseuress,
Ms. Takahashi atlended the University of Hawail.

Mr. Ying Tat Chan (aged 42)
Chiof Operating Officor

Mr, Ying Tal Chan ks our chiel oparaling officer and he was
appointed 1o his current role in Fabruary 2012, Mr. Chan
oversees all business unils of our Group. Previcusly. since
Saptember 2010, he was our co-chief operating officer,
gaming and before that he served as president of Altira
Macau from November 2008. Prior 10 his appointment
as president of Altira Macaw, batween 1988 and 2008,
Mr, Chan held senior execulive roles with Firs! Shanghai
Fimancial Holding Limited. Melco, Mocha Clubs and
Amax Entertainment Holdings Limited, He gradunted
wilh a bachelor's degree in business adminisiration from
the Chinese University of Hong Kong in 1995 and with a
master’s degree in financial management under a lang
distance learning course from the University of London, the
Uniled Kingdom in 1293,

Mr. Kelvin Hai Ching Tan (aged 47)
Exoculive Vice President, Interaational Markeling

Mr. Kelvin Hai Ching Tan Is our executive vice president,
international markeling. Mr. Tan jeined our Company
in Janwary 2009 and responsible for our Company's
international markeling business, which includes
ovarseeing the VIP Services operations, managing an
international markeling network, and managing junkets
oparating at both City of Dreams and Altira Macau,
Mr. Tan spent the earlier years of his gaming caraer
in the Philippinas and worked for companies including
Genling International Resorls Inc. and Watarfront
Propedies (ne. Before arriving in Macaw, he foundad and
ran a congullancy offering strategic planning, feasibilily
sludies, valuations and junkel developmant programs
for casinos across Asia. Prior to joining our Company,
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Mr. Tan was tha viea prasident of Businass Devalepmant
for Venetian Macau Lid. Mr. Tan holds a bachelor's degree
in scienca and business administration and a master of
business administration degree frem Indiana University of
Pennsylvania in the Uniled States. He is 3150 a graduale
of the execulive devalopment program of the Unhrersity of
Nevada, Rene,

Ms. Ching Hui Hsu (aged 40)
Goneral Manager of Altira Macau

Ms. Ching Hui Hsu is our geénaral manager of Allira
Macau. and she was appeinted to her current role in
Dacembar 2013, Ms. Hsu has worked for Mocha Clubs
since September 2003, She was Mocha Club's former
financial contraller from September 2003 10 Seplember
2008, its chief operaling officer from Decambar 2006 to
Novembar 2008 and s president from Decembar 2008 to
December 2013, overseeing financa, treasury, audit, legal
compliance, procuremint and administralion and human
resourcas funcliens. Ms. Hsu cblained her Bachalor of Asls
degree in busingss administration with major in accouning
in 1997 from Seatlle University and a master's degree in
busingss administration (with concentration on financial
sarvicas) from The Hong Keng University of Science and
Technology in 2002 and a doclorate degree in economics
from Beijing Normal Universily in 2013, Ms. Hsu was
qualified as a Certified Public Accountant in the stale
of Washingten, Uniled Statas in 1988, a mamber of the
American Institute of Cerified Public Accountants in 1989,
and an asseciate membar of the Hong Kong Institule of
Certified Public Accountants in 2001,

Mr. Jaya Jesudason (aged 72)
Exocutive Vice Prosident, Construction and Design

Mr. Jaya Jesudason is our execulive vice president,
conslruclion and dasign. Me joined our Company in 2007
as Project Director for the completion of the City of Dreams
Project. Prior to thal. he worked at Kowlson-Canton
Raltway Corporation as a general manager of the west
rail project and olher rail projects. He was also a divisional
manager for the Heng Keng airpert project of the Hong
Kong Airport Authority.



Report of the Directors

The Diractors are pleased 16 present their report with the
audited consolidated financial statemants of our Company
and ouf Group fof the year ended December 31, 2013,

Principal Activilies

Qur Company and our Group are a developer, owner
and aparalor of casing gaming and enterainment reson
faciities in Agia, Qur Company is a holding company and
through our principal subsidiaies twns and oparates Gity
of Dreams, Altira Macau and Mocha Clubs and iz in the
pracess of devalaping Studic City, a cinemalically-thamad
integrated entertainmant, relall and gaming resort in Cotal,
Macau. In the Philippines, our subsidiary, MCP has ils
comman shares listed on the Phllippines Siock Exchange
under the stock code of “MCP™, through s subsidianes,
has bean cooperaling with cerlain Philippine Parlies lo
develop and operate City of Dreams Manila, & easing,
hotel, retail and entertainment inlegrated resort in the
Entertainmant City complax in Manila.

The principal activities of our subsidiaries are sel oul in
nate 31 to the consolidaled financial stalements included in
this annual reporl.

Financial Results

The resulis of our Group for the year ended Decomber
31, 2013 are sel out in tha consolidaled slatemants of
oparalions on pages 105 and 106 of this annual report.

Dividends

On February 25, 2014, we anncunced a proposal
of declaration and paymant of a special dividend
of USSD.1147 per share based on the aumber of
1,666.633,448 of gur shares in issue on that date (*Special
Dividend™) and adoption of a now dividend policy (*Mow
Dividend Policy™). The declaration and payment of the
Special Dividend is conddional upon satisfaction of corain
conditions, incleding our shareholders” approval, which
has been oblained al the extracedinary general maeating
held on March 26, 2014 ("EGM") and our Board being
satisfied thal wi will be able to pay s dobls as they fall
due in the ordinary course of business immediately after
paymant of the Special Dividend. Following the cblaining
of the sharsholdars” approval al the EGM. the resulls of
which is the subject of a separate annguncement issued
by us on March 26, 2014, it is expected that the Special
Dividend will be paid in cash on or about April 16, 2014 to
those shareholders whose Names Appaar on our registar of
members al close of business on April 4, 2014, being the
racond date for detarmination of anlillemants to the Special
Dividend,

Under the New Dividend Palicy, subject to our capacity to
pay from accumulated and fulure eamings and the cash
balance and fulure commitments at the time of declaration
of dividend, we inlend lo provide our shareholders wilh
quarterly dividends in an aggregatle amount per year
of approximataly 30% of our annual consolidated net
ingeme atiribulable to Melce Crown Entertainment, The
Mew Dividend Policy came inlo immediate affacl upon
its approval by our Board on February 25, 2014 and will
sommence 1o apply as from the first quarer of 2014,

The Board does nol recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the year ended December 31, 2013 (2012:
hily.
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Properties and Development Projects

Delails of our properties and development projects are
set oul in the “Management Discussion and Analysis —
Properties and Development Projects™ section and notes
5. 9, 22 and 25 lo the consolidated financial

inclisded in this annual repo.

Share Capital and Share Options

Detaits of mevemants in the share capital of our Company
during the year are el out in the consolidated slatements
of shareholders” equity on page 1038 of this annual report,
Details of movemants in share oplions of our Company
during the year are sal out in note 18 lo the consclidated
financial staternents included in this annual regort,

Summary Financial Information

A summary of the published results and assels, liabiities
and noncoentrelling interests of our Group for the last five
finaneial yoars, 45 extracted from (he audited conselidated
financial staternents and reclassified as appropriate, is
501 oul on poage 108 of this annual ropon, This summany
does nol form part of the audited consolidated financial
slatements.,

Reserves

Seclion 34{2) of the Companies Law (as amended) of the
Cayman Islands provides (hal, subject 1o the provisions
of our Amended and Restaled Articles of Associalion, the
share pramium acesunt of our Company may be applied
to pay dislibutions or dividends to Shareholders provided
that immadiately fellowing the date the distribution or
dividand is proposed to be paid, our Company is abde lo
pay our debis as they fall due in \he ordinary course of
business. The share pramium included in the additional
pald-in capital of our Company as of December 31, 2013
and 2012 amounted to approximately US$2.8 billion, Qur
Company recorded accumulated losses as of December
31,2013 and 2012,
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For the discussion on the ability of our subsidiaries
te Weansfer funds 1o our Company in the form of cash
dividends, loans of advances and the impact of such
restriclions on our ability to meel our cash cbligations, see
note 20 1o the consolidated financial statements inthrded in
this annual repon.

Donations

The donation made by our Group during the year
amounted to USS0.5 millipn (2012; UIS50.4 millign),

Indebtedness

Parliculars of bank loans and other borrowings of our
Group as ot December 31, 2013 are set out in note 12
to tha consolidated financial statements included in this
annual repo.

Major Customers and Suppliers

Gaming promaotars are responsible for a substantial portien
of our casing revenues. For the year ended December
31, 2013, our lop five customars and the largest customer
warg gaming promoters and accounted for opproximataly
20.7% and 6.3% of our casino ravenuas, raspactivaly.
‘W baliove thal we have sirong relationshigs with some
of the lop gaming promoters in Macau and have a solid
nelwork of gaming promolers who help us market our
properfias and source and assist in managing rolling
chip patrons al our properlies. We lypically enter into
gaming promoler agreaments for a ane-year term that
are automatically renewed for pariods of up to one year
unless olherwise larminaled. Our gaming promolars are
compensated through commission arrangements which
are either calculated wilh referance o revanua share or
manthly rolling ehip valume, We alse extend interest-free
credil o a significant porlion of our gaming promoters
which are subject lo manthly review and regular settiamant
prociduras,



Wi depend on our suppliers to provide us with products
and services such as relail geods, gaming equipment and
aceessonies, ransponalions, fend and beverage products,
construction and other administrative servicas, During the
year anded Dacembar 31, 2013, our fiva largest suppliars
accountad for approximately 45.1% of our lotal products
and SeNICes purchises: whilh our single largast Supplur,
a consiruction confractor, accounted for approximately
31.1% of our total products and Senvices purchases.

None of our Ditectors, their associates of (he Shareholders
{which e the knowledge of the Direclors own mere than
5% of the issusd share capital of our Company) had any
interest in any of our top five suppliers or customers,

Directors

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this
TR0l wikra:

CO-CHAIRMAN, CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER AND
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Lawrants Yau Lung He

CO-CHAIRMAN AND NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
Mr. James Douglas Packer

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. John Pater Ban Wang

Mr, Clarence Yuk Man Chung
M. William Todd Nisbet

Mr, Rewen Bruce Craigle

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Jamas Androw Charles MacKenzie

Mr. Thomas Jeffarson Wu

Mr. Alec Yiu Wa Tsul

Mr. Rebar Wason Maclier

Pursuant to Article 104 of our Company's Amended and
Restaled Articlas of Association, any Difeclor appointed
during the yaar shall hold office enly until the naxt follcwing
annual genaral maeling of our Company and shall then be
eligibhe for re-alection al that meeting. In additicn, pursuant
o code provision A4.2 of the Corporate Governance

Code and Corporale Governance Repor as sal oul in
Appendix 14 to the Lisling Rules, all direclors appointed
te fill & caswal vacancy should be subject lo eleclion
by shareholders at the first general meeling after their
appointmant.

Al gach annual genaral meeling, one-third of the Directors
for the lime belng shall retire from office by rolation
provided that avery Direclor shall be subject 1o relirement
al least once every three years, Mr, Clarence Yuk Man
Chung, Mr. William Todd Nisbel, Mr. James Andraw
Charles MacKenzie and Mr, Themas Jeferson Wu will
retire and they are eligible o offer themsalves for re-
election al the ferihceming annual general meeting,

Biographical Details of Directors and
Senior Management

Biographical details of Directors and senior management
are set gut on pages 57 to 62 of this annual report.

Directors’ Service Contracts

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has
enlared into a director service contract with cur Company
on December 18, 2008, except for Mr. James Andraw
Charles MacKenzle. who has entered into a director
sarvice confract with our Company on April 24, 2008,
These direclor service conlracts will continue fram the
date of the contracts unlil the date on which the relevant
independent non-executive Dirgctor ceases to be a
mamber of the Board for any reason. Under the direclor
service contracts, each independent non-execulive
Dirgctor will recaive a fixed quantedy income,

Save as disclosed above, none of the Direclors
has entered into a director service contract with gur
Group (excluding contracts expiring or determinable
by the employer within gne year withoul paymeant of
compensation other than statutery compensation).
Mr. Lawrenca Yau Lung Ho entered into an employment
contract with the Company for his role as our Chief
Exacutive Officer.
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Directors’ Interests in Shares, Underlying
Shares and Debentures

As al Decombaer 31, 2013, the interests and shod positions
of each Direclor and chief executive of gur Company in tha
Shares. underying Shares, debentures and convertible
loan noles of our Company or any of its associated
corporatiens (within the meaning of Par XV of the SFO)

whith (a) wefa required 16 ba notified 16 our Company
and the Siock Exchange pursuan! to Divisions 7 and & of
Pant X\ of tha SFO (including inlerasts and shod positions
which the Direclor |s taken or deemed lo have under such
provisions of the SFO): or (b) ware réquired, pursuant
to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register
rraintaingd by sur Company relarmed 1o thering o (&) wie
required, pursuant to the Model Coede to be notified to aur
Campany and the Slock Exchange wene as follows:

1. DIRECTORS' LONG POSITION IN THE SHARES OF OUR COMPANY
(a) Directors' long position in the Shares of our Company

Appooaimato
Tokad reambnd |percanriag of
ofSharosasat  sharhoiding as ot
Mama of Disncior Mama of corponation Naturo of infanest Ducaeribas 31, 213 Decoembar 31, 20037
Lirmronos Yau Lung Ho™ Moo Intotest of contreliod conporation 1.115,458.085 6. H09%
Maioo Leisurg™
- Pisonal nband b ] D%
Jarmas Douglas Packer” Crown Interes! of condrodied conporation 1,115,458 085 BT 1%
Gromwn Ensorainimont
Gooup Holdngs ™
Gromn A Imistmants™
Jobn Pelar Bon Wang = Porsonal infenss .50 il )
Gl Yuk Man Chung - Porsanal s 15,133 0007 %
Willcem Toddd Mesbad™ - Frounder of a dscrationary Insd 25,000 D003%
Fenarisn [t Graige - Pogsonal ndenst 15,600 00H%
Jemas Andeow Chares MacEonze = Porsonal infengs ] il }
Tharmas Jaforsen Wy - Potsanal manest 85,760 0.005%
Aoz i Wi T = Porsonal infenss! BE.TEn DO0s%
R Wiasan Mator - Potsanal stanest 36,392 0.007%
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ot Decowmzer 30, 013, Wi, Lineroncs Yau Lusg Ha Pl
IB 1E2.612 shorgd of Melo, nefiatonling appron=ately 1.1
Meaoa's thades, In

eoemparey cond
of which include Mr. Lawrence Yau Lung Ho and his imsedinie
mwwmwmmmum
appronmataly 1944% of Meiia's shares, HmLﬂr&nIM
o] utaadany of Madoo and accordngly, b Lawrence
wamuwmﬂuummamnrmm

Larnrgra
YaulLung Ho is aleo wbeceabed in 10000 203 Shaves. of whach 6,571 814
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o Dosamnbor 31, 2013
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Titob pabrcantagses e Cacuatiod On th bacses of 1,006 830 448 Shares in
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(b} Directors' long position in the underlying Shares of our Company

Tokal rumbed of
Shaves subinct o the
shase options graniid Appestmaty
v rosiricted Shares precontagn of
graning a0 shasuhoicie a8 o
Mama e Dieocia Hiama of corponation Dacaenba 31, 2013 Dasopesbar 31, 2013
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Rowean Bnoce Craige Company 14,505 0001 %
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Thomas. Jafanson Wy Company kard o DE%
Aot Y Wil T Compusy 48435 0003%
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Bharros ared Bhara
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2. INTERESTS IN OTHER MEMBERS OF OUR GROUP
(a) Directors' long position in the shares of associated corporation of our Company

Nunbed of shices s 8 Prorcontagg of infesesl s a1

Kame of subsidary Nama of Stansholdor December 31, 2013 Dpcorbar 11, 2013
Medog Coown Macay Lanaigndn Vi Lung Ho 1,000,000 1%
Netar:

in Try 1,000,000 clanes A shanes carry §0% of the bolal vedng righls n Madoo Crown Wascms

{b) Directors' lang position in the underlying shares of associated corporation of our Company

Total enenbic of
MEP Shaces subjact

1aiEhé MCP £haeh options Appremats

gracted and restriciod precsrtagn of

MICP Snares grantd by sharahokding of

MR o o MICH a%

Mo of Difosior Haena ef corperation Desombar 31, 2015 Destemtor 31, 20057

Liratonon YaaLung Ho ugp A0 053%

James Douiglas Pacter MCR HA004 0525%

o Yuk Man Chung ugP 15,607,216 DI5%

Vi Toad Nesbat MCR 14,706,457 D264%

s Y W T ugP 2036 364 DOGE%

Jumas Anciow Charies Macknnzie MCP 240285 364 0066%
L

[} Thrba di reatsctiad WMCP Shanes and MOP dhace opficorn grantod wickd tha MO Share incentig Pan

(8 The percenteges ane calculatied o0 the bass of 4,806 300300 shares of MCP in saus a8 ot Decembar 31, 3053,
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2006 Share Incentive Plan and 2011 Share ~ dstails of tha 2006 Shara Incentive Plan and the 2011

Incentive Plan

Share Incaniive Plan,

Please refer to Appendix | and note 18 lo the consolidated A summary of the outstanding awards granted under the
financial statements included in this annuwal report for 2006 Share Inceaniive Plan and the 2011 Share Incentive
Pian as at December 31, 2013 is presented below:

Exencisa prics/ Mumber of
grantdae e shast option
Taie walkon pie ADS [USH) rosiricied Shares Woesfling paricd
Shieg Optiars™
2010 Long Term fncantive Pan 308 150000 §yeans
2001 Long Tetm Bkt Paa 18 1465, ey
2042 Leng Teem Fcanthve Pan 1408 1, 200861 Iyean
2013 Long Toem bvaniivn Fraa Frr 1,345,445 3 yars
4,162 507
Firictid Shargs”
2040 Long Term fncantive Plan 3 75000 & ysans
2011 Long Teem Incantivg Plan HED HTEN ]
2042 Long Term fncantive Plan 1328 T30 Iyeans
2043 Long Teem Inciotivg Pian Fokr] To5.B04 34 s
2434680
Piate:

(1] Awards granted before B year of S50 F are wnder e 3008 Share incentie Flan and aswerds granded durng or ater T year of 21 F are and wil be under the

2011 Shave Inenivg Pan,
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Datails of the mavamant in share oplions granted under the 2006 Share Incenlive Plan and the 2011 Shane Incentive Plan
during the year ended December 31, 2013 are as foliows:
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Details of the movamant in restictad Shares grantad under the 2006 Share Incenlive Plan and the 2011 Share Incentive
Plan during the year ended December 31, 2013 are as follows:
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MCP Share Incentive Plan

Apart from (he 2008 Share Incenlive Plan and the 2011
Share | Pian, our subsidiary, MCP, also oparatas a
share incantive plan o premole the success and enhance
the value of MCP, by linking the personal interasts of
members of the board of diteclors, employees and
consultants of MCP, its subsidiaries, holding companies

and affiliatad companies by providing sueh individuals
wilh an inteniive for oulstanding perfermance to generate
suparior returns te MCP's stockholders ("MCP Share
Incentive Plan®),

Please refer o Appendix Il of this annual report for detalls
of the MGP Share Incenlive Plan.

Asummany of the cutstanding awards granted under the MCP Share Incentive Plan s of December 31, 2013 i presented

balow:
Exrcin pok Hurnbid of
graci dale weversiod MCP
i vkt Pt ShatD EpESARNAAIENY
MEP Sharg (PHF) WP Shares Veting pivicd
MCE Shavn Dplons:
283 Long Toem Incantive Pian 83 116,144,153 Within 3 yeans
Ritrichod MOP Shires
2013 Long Toem kacanti Fan 83 S8.072.006 Wyihin 3 years
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Details of the movamant in MCP share oplions granted undar the MCP Share Incentive Plan during the year anded
December 31, 2013 are as follows:

Mot WP e s
Enne
gl T prie
WPes  ddbd
ghs  gald Oibtardeg
BHIP WP Oty f Cancelled ui
N ot ey [T S gk dleanl,  Ceriedderg brey dery  Lgwideng  Dwowbecd,
dpatpets e R e B ped Pepred Bapend Beped o
Dvacirs
Leopor Vmleghe  bee B 3003 Wty P pereg of 8 4] - preid - - - L
iy alrears iy
e 13000
ARG ANl B D “ 3] CE - = = sNeEH
SRR RN R 1D n ] - S - - - SHE
Sl = B = = 1N
boaloginfade el i) Xotey s e geming o u [H] = pF-ted =- = = e
ity ol Brvars. Wiy b
o, 30
S, 20} el 8 i Je 10, 00 un LH] - S5 - - - A
S, 203 ol 8, ki Je 10, 00 n LH] = SIS - - - A
St T - = P
CrmcrfdMnidny  Jre B30 NimdaPegengd 1 1 - NERE - - - uRM
iyl Crears Wiy
Jea X280
AR A e 5 XD 1 1 - - - - uRM
IR0 ANl B XD 3] 3] - e - - - uam
St - W -~ - T
M Y T SEENT Nl derigegd 3 3 - ke - - -
[T
Jea B, 28
el e B el N0 o i - R - - -
e kA Enie D B u i = () = = =
bt = L = = T
BEalerr Qi e BT K dabegeegd “ 4] - F e = - -
Itsine ity oo it
eI
e B0 el B, b Je 1. 80 13 LE] - [k = = = [ )
i kB s u i - [ - - -
T = L = - —
Fler T MR RN NietdeTiagengd " 3 - uam - - - M
Dty ol Chua Watdala
k]
SRR R B AR A @ 1} - LEm - - - b
SN RN kM D ED @ B O - = =
T EE ) - - EET T
] = DN - - BT

Madeo Crown Ertertainment Lstod  Annual Repor 2013



Yt 2 gy
oty

Ebidd
Optery”

T
Totd

Mt

et gt
P gtirs

Lk

L]
el

Sre N0

Hre N0
Jre B30

[ T

e s Pe g o
Gty ol s Wi
eall, 20

Rl 8, b b 0, 200

8, ke b 0, 200

Wi e g d
Oty of O b
Sead0, 00

Kok 5,150 J 0, 413

el 3, Eie Je 1, 683

] %fgg EEE

= =

-

Sanpn
b
Fed
WO sy
e

L]

1}
L}

[}

[}
[ ]

Msar WP e ol

ity

(ntitandieg 5 ol =25 ] Bl
Ay, Gl sy areg Ay Ugadosry  Duwtadl,
an Tt Tagrod Bejeicd Bepeicd !

= N = sEne = TR

- s = R - M

- MINT ] = RO

= Gy = e = R

- LS0T - - - LN

= 1580 - - LN

= o = = — LN

T T - - - G

= M = ek = i

(] Tha st padiod of the MCP share optors i o the date of /et uitl th commonsmant of vt nabls peried.

in The category "Gitens* reprersents. T non-employess of our Gooup.

(3 Shone prico on B doy befors of th: grissd of shave option i PHIvg 20,

Moo Crown Entoriinment Limited  Annual Report 2013

1]



Datails of the movemeant in restricled MCP Shares granted under the MCP Share Incentive Plan duding the year énded
December 31, 2013 are as follows:
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Directors’ Interests in Competing Business

Mr. Lawrence Yau Lung Ho has certain insignificant
effactive benaficial intarasts in Shun Tak Heldings Limited
{*STHL"), Sociedade de Turismo @ Diversdes de Macau,
S.A. ("STOM) and SJM Holdings Limited (*SJM7). These
effective beneficial interests are held through o number of
intermediary companies in which Mr. Ho holds a minority
interest. STHL, STOM and SJM are involved in helel and
casing business, which competes with the business of our
Company, Mr. Ho is not a director of STHL, STOM and
SJM and has no involvemant with, and does nol exercisa
any contred or influence on, management and eperation of
STHL, STOM and 5JM.

Each of Mr. Jamas Douglas Packar, Mr. Willlam Todd
Hisbet and Mr. Rowen Bruce Craigie is a direclor or a
senior executive of Crown which operales casinos in
Australia and 1he United Kingdom, which may indinectly
comgete with the business of our Company.

Save as disclosed abova, as al December 31, 2013, no
Direclers had been interested in any business, which
compalas of may compele, sither direclly of indiractly with
the businesses of our Company which is required 1o be
discloged pursuant 1o the Lisling Rubas.

Substantial Interests in the Share Capital of
our Company

As al December 31, 2013, the following persons/
corporations had interests in fve por cenl or more of the
Issued share capital of our Company as recorded in the
register required 1o be kepl under Seclion 336 of the SFO.,
Datails of the interasts in the Sharas or underlying Shares
of our Company as nelified 1o our Company are sel oul
bt

Apprommate
Nurmisés of Shares ot of
Al sharphoiding as al
Mame Capactyinaturs of interest Duacember 31, 2013 Dacember 31, 2003
Lirwronon YauLung H™ Bonodial owndr, inbeoest o controbid 1,128,518, 368 B7.T1%
corporaion
Shaeon S Yan Lo Inrest of $ponsky 1,128,518 36 &%
Moo Lasurg™ Bonefeal owner and deamed inferes] 1,118,458 086 [ZALY
g™ It of Sunteolid Lonpotaion 1,118 458,086 ETATR
Jarmeas Douglas Packer™ Irdarest of conteoled conporabon and 1,118,458 08 ALY
chrted il
Erica Low'se Packar™ Intoest of spousa 1,118,458 086 (TR0
Crom Adan Imvagemnants” Bonnhal ownr and SHamid nlirs 1118458066 BT11%
Crown Endartairmant Geoup Holdings™ Inforastof conteoled conporaion 1,118,658 085 AR
Cromm™ st of sontelid sorporabin 1118455088 Bi1%
T Capital Goowp Companios, ine. ™" Inforestof conteoled congoraion 00,224,253 B
Captal Reseanch ahd Wanagemont Compafy ~  Investmant Managee 03845253 S63%
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Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares or
Debentures

Sawve as disclosed in note 18 to the censolidated financial
statements included in this annual report, at no time
during the year was our Coempany, or any of its holding
companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries, a party
te any arrangaments lo enable the Directors o acquire
benalits by means of the acquisition of Shares in, or
debenturas of, our Company or any other body comporate.
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Directors’ Interests in Confracts of
Significance

Save as disclosed in nete 23 to the consolidated financial
stataments included in this annual report, no contract of
significance in relation to cur Group’s business o which our
Camgany, of any of its holding companies, subsidiaries, or
fellgw subsidiaries. was a pafy and in which a Direclor had
a maledal interast, whether directly of indirecily, subsisted
at the end of the vear or at any time during the year.

Continuing Connected Transactions

During the year, our Group had the following centinuing
connected ransactions which are required to be disclosed
in the annual repon of our Company under Chapler 144 of
the Listing Rules:

(A) FERRY TICKET SALES AGREEMENT

Our Company enterad into an agreement for sale of famy
lickets (*Ferry Tickel Sales Agreoment™) in April 2007
with Shun Tak-China Travel Ship Managemen! Limited
(*$TCTS"). o subsidiary of Shun Tak Holdings Limited
{*Shun Tak"), which is & connacled persen as defined
under the Listing Rules, by virlue of being a company
in which the associates of our executive Director hold
direct and indirect beneficial interests. Pursuant to the
Ferry Tickel Sales Agreement, our Company purchased
round-trip farry lickets tloMrom Macau (*Ferry Ticket
Transactions™) for our customans. As a bulk purchaser of
ferry tickels, our Company was granted a 5% discount
(“Discount™) on the net selling price of each ferry ticket we
purchased, The Discount was delermined on an arms’
lengih negotiation and by reference 1o provailing market
prica and was given in accordance with markal practica
of granting discounts on bulk purchases of fery tickets lo
promole STCTS's femry services. The above transactions

Maden Crown Erteriainment Lmfod  Aneual Repord 2013

are entarad inle and the Discount is given wilhin the
ordinary and wsual course of gur business and are on
normal commarcial tarms. Our Company enlerad inlo a
Farry Ticket Sales Agreement with STCTS on November
24, 2011 in ralation to tha Ferry Ticke! Transaclions for
an initial term commeancing from December ¥, 2011 to
Decombar 31, 2013, Unlgss early terminated by each of
the parfies by giving 30 days prier written notice, the Ferry
Tieked Sales Agreermant enterad ing in 2011 is renawable
for periods of three years subject to annual price review.

The aggregate value of Fery Ticket Transaclions which
look place during Ihe year ended Dacember 31, 2013 is
within the annual cap for 2013 (which was disclosed in
tha lisling documant of our Company dated November 30,
2011), delails of which are shown balow:

Apqeoeain
ety il Anrual cip
frha o (ha fnancial
o endod o endod
Dotoenber 31, Docommber 31,
a0 13
Categury Uss (13
Forry Teckits Sabos Agremint 062,000 £552.000

The parlies intended to renew the Farry Ticket Sales
Agreement an substantially the same lerms and conditions:
for 2014. Il is expectod that all of the applicable percantage
raligs of the proposed new annual cap in respect of the
transaclions contemplated undar the randwed agresment
arg below the prescribed thresheld of the Listing Rules, and
such transactions for the year ending Decambar 31, 2014
are exempt frem reporling, annual review, announcement
and independent sharahalders' approval roquiremants
under Chapter 144 of the Listing Rules.



(B) ANNUAL REVIEW OF THE CONTINUING CON-
MNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Pursuant to Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rulas, our Company
has engaged the auditor of our Company, Messrs,
Deleitte Touche Tohmatsu, to conduct a review of the
above continuing conngcled transactions for the year
ended Decambear 31, 2013 in accardance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical
Financial Information” and with reference to Praclice
Note 740 “Auditor's Lettar on Continuing Connecled
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules® issued
by the Hong Kong Institule of Certified Public Accountanis.
The auditer has issued a leller Lo the Board in respect of
the Farry Ticket Transaclions and confirmed that for the
year ended December 31, 2013:

() nothing Bas come Lo thoir Stention thal Sauses them
to believe that the continuing connecled ransaclions
nave ot besn approved by the Company's Board of
Directors;

(i)  nothing has come Lo their attention that causes them
to balieve that the continuing connectad transactions
were nol entered inlo, in all material respects, in
accordance with the ralevant agraemenls goveming
such lransactions: and

(i} with respect to the aggregate amount of the
conlinuing connecled transactions sel oul in this
rapart, nothing has come Lo their allentian that
causes them to believe thal the continuing connecled
ransaclions have excsedad the maximum aggregala
annual value disclosed in the 2012 annual report
made by lhe Company in respact of the continuing
connecled lransaclions.

The independent non-execulive Directors have reviewed
Ihe above continuing cennected lransaclions for the
year ended Decamber 31. 2013 and the letter issued by
the auditor and confirmad that the cenlinuing connacted
transactions have been entered inlg:

(1) in the ofdinary and usual course of business of our
Group;

{2} wither on normal commercial larme of on lerms no
less favorable to cur Group (han tarms available to or
fiom independent third parties: and

{3) in accordance with the relevanl agresment govarming
the transactions on terms that are fair and reasonable
and in the inlerests of the Shareholders as a whola.

The above connected transactions which alse constilute
felated party transactions are set out in note 23 to the
consolidated financial siatements incleded in this annual
feport. Our Company has complied wilh the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapler 144 of he Lisling
Rulas.

Connected Transaction

During the year, gur Group had the following connecled
transaclion which is required to ba disclosed in the annual
report of our Company under Chapler 14A of the Listing
Rulas:

EXERCISE OF THE NEW COTAI EQUITY OPTION

New Colai, LLC exercised the New Colai equily option
to acquire from MCE Cotai the financial interest in the
addilignal 3% 350 million of equily capilal in an amount up
to 40% therest by virue of & notice daled Apdil 19, 2013,
Upon complatien of such exercise and as of December 31,
2013, the interes! of MCE Colai and that of New Cotai, LLG
in 31 remain the same in a preportion of §0:40,

MNow Coloi. LLC is a substontial shareholder of SCI,
which is a non-wholly owned subsidiary of our Company,
tharefore it is a connected parson of our Company within
the meaning of the Listing Rulas. Hence, the exercise
of he New Colai equity oplion conslilules a connecied
transaction for the Company.
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Management Contracls

No contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whola or any substantial pan of the
business of our Company weare enlered inlo or existed for
the year anded December 31, 2013

Related Party Transactions

Details of the significant related parly lransactions
undenaken in the usual course of business are sel oul in
note 23 to the consolidated financial stalements included in
this annual repan,

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of our
Company's Listed Securities

During the year ended December 31, 2013, neither the
Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold
orr any of the G ¥'s listed secuilios except
thal the trustee of our 2011 Share Incenfive Plan has,
pursuant lo the terms of the rules and the trust deed of
the 2011 Share Incentive Plan, purchased on NASDAQ a
Iotal of 373,946 ADSs (equivalent to 1,121,838 shares) of
the Company. The telal cost for acquiring these ADSS of
approximately US%8.8 milllon was fully pald during the year
ended Dacamber 31, 2013,

Public Float

Based on the informalion that is publicly available to our
Comgany and within the knowledge of ils Direclors, as al
the date of his repant, our Company has maintained the
prescribed public ficat under the Listing Rules.

Legal and Administrative Proceedings

We are a parly lo cerlain olher legal and administralive
preceedings which relate 1o matters arising out of the
ordinary course of our business. Based on the current
slalus of such proceedings and the information currently
available, Wi do nel believe that Suth procesdings wolld,
individually or in the aggregate, have a material adverse
offect on our busingss, financial condition of rasulls of
operalions.

Maden Crown Erteriainment Lmfod  Aneual Repor 2013

Crown Melbourng Limiled, the ownar of a numbar of
“‘Crown” irademarks licensed o us, is from lime lo
time invelved in lagal proceedings regarding *Grown”
trademarks used in Macau. We undersiand thal Crown
Malbourne Limilad will eontines 16 Lake vigorous measures
to prolect its trademarks. We believe we have a valid
gt under sur trademark Heense BEracment with Crown
Melbourne Limited to use the Crown trademarks in Macau
in aur hedal cosing busingss,

In January 2013, the Taiwaness authornlias commanced
investigating cenain alleged violalions of Taiwan banking
laws by eanlain amployees of our subsidiary’s branch office
in Tabwan, which may pose repulational and olher risks lo
us. To facilitabe the investigation, the Tamwanese authoritios
have frozen one of our depeosit accounts in Talwan,
which had & balanco of approximately TWD2.98 billion
{equivalent to approximately US$102 millien) at the time
tha acesunt was frazen. We are laking acions 1o requost
the Talwanese autherities to unfreeze the accound.

Corporate Governance

Our Company is committed 1o maintaining a high corporate
govemnance slandard so as lo ensure beller ransparency
and protection of Shareholdars” inlerasts. Our Company
has complied with the code provisiens of the Corporate
Govarnance Gode and the formar Gode on Corporate
Governance Fractices as set oul in Appendix 14 to
the Listing Rulas for the period from the listing date lo
Decamber 31, 3013 except for the code provisions A2.1
in respect of the saparation of the roles of the Chaiman
and Chiel Executive Officer and A4.1 in respect of the
ApPOINtMent of non-execulivie Diectons Mof SPeciiic lemms.

Furfther information on our Company’s corporate
governance practices Is set out in the corporate
GOVEINANCE Meport on pages 90 16 99 of this annual freport.



Emolument Policy

The employees of our Group are selected, remunerated
and promatad on the basis of their men, qualfications and
compelence. The amoluments of the Direclors are decided
by our Company’s comgensation commities, having regard
lo our Company’s operating results, individual pefomancs
and comparable market standards. Qur Company has
adopted the 2006 Share Incentive Plan and 2011 Share
Incantiva Plan tegether with the MCP Share Incentive
Plan adepted by MCP, as an incantive 1o Direclors and
employaes, datails of the plans ara set oul in note 18 to
the consolidated financial statements and Appendix | and
Appendix Il of this annual report.

Pre-emptive Rights

Thaere are no provisions for pre-emplive rights under the
laws of the Cayman Islands or under the Amended and
Rastated Aricles of Association thal requirg our Company
1o offer new Shares on a pro-rata basis to our axisling
Shareholders,

Audit Committee

Our Company has established an audil eommittee for
the purpose of assisting the Board in overseeing and
monitaring, among others, the integrity of the financial
statements of our Company, the parformance of our
independent auditors, and the integrity of our systams of
internal accounting and financial contrels. Qur Company’s
audit comméttes consists of ihree membars, Mr. Thomas
Jafferson Wu, Mr. Alec Yiu Wa Tsui and Mr. James
Andrew Charlas MacKenzia. Mr. James Andrew Charles
MacKenzie is the chairman of our audit committee.

Auditor

The consolidated financial statements of cur Company for
the year ended December 31, 2013 have been audited by
Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmalsu, who will relire and,
being eligitle, offer themsetves for re-appointment at the
fortheoming annudl general meating.

On behalf of the Board
Lawrence Yau Lung He

Co-Chii and Chial Executive Oficer

Macau, March 26, 2014
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Corporate Governance Report

The Direclors are pleased to prasent this corporate
governance repert for the year ended December 31, 2013,

Corporate Governance Practices

Our Company is commillad to conduel our businass
consistenl wilh the highesl standards of corperale
gowvernance praclices and procedures and has adopled
its own corporate governance principles and guidelines
(the *Company’s Gode™) lo deliver thase commilments.
The Company’s Code was amended lo fully address the
principles and code provisions as sel oul in the Corporala
Governance Code as stated in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rulas. The guidalings contained in the Company's Code
were also devaloped by the Board taking Into conslderation
of the applicable corparats governance standards of
WASDAQ. In additien, the Company has also adopled
o numbar of other policies and guidelings, devaloped
internally, to enhance cur corporate governance practices
and procaduras,

Our Company has complied with all code provisions in the
Corporate Governance Code as stated in Appendix 14 1o
the Listing Rules for the year ended Dacembar 31, 2013,
excepl for the following deviations:

Pursuant to the code provision A.2.1 of the Corporate
Governance Code, the roles of chairman and chiaf
oxeculive officor of a listed company should be separate
and should not be performed by the same individual.
Howaover, in view of the present compaosition of the Board,
the in-deplh knewledge of Mr. Lawrence Yau Lung Ho
on the operations of our Group and on the gaming and
enterainmant seclor in Macau in general, his axtensive
busingss netwgrk and connections in (hat sector and the
scope of operalions of sur Group. the Board balisves it is
in the besl interests of our Company for Mr. Lawrence Yau
Lung Ho 1o assuma the roles of Go-Chairman and Chisf
Executive Officer at this lime and thal such amangement be
subject to raview by Iha Board from tima to lima.

Pursuant to the eode provision A.4.1 of the Corporate
Governancd Code, non-oxeculive Directors should be
appointed for a specific tarm, subject to re-aleclion. Our
Company has deviated from this provision in that all
non-execulive Direclors are nol appointed for a specific

Maden Crown Erteriainment Lemfod  Aneual Repor 2013

tarm. They ara, howaever, subject to relirement and re-
gleclion every lhree years, The reasen for the devialion
i that sur Company does nol balieve that arbitrary term
limits on Directors” services are appropriate given that
Dirgctors ought to be commilted 1o reprasenting the long-
term interests of our Shareholders and the retirement
and re-sloction requirgmants of non-gxotulive Direclars
have given the Shareholders the right to approve the
continudtion of non-axacutivie Directors’ offices,

The Board approved the Policy on Board Diversily on
December 4, 2013 which was submilled to it by the
MNominating and Corporale Governancs Commitles. The
Company is suppertive of the gradual altainment of wider
diversity in its Board compadition and il recognizes the
benefits that such diversity may offer lo the Company.
Appoinimants 1o the Board will take inte accsunt objeclively
both the merits of the candidates and the polantial benefils
that 8 diverss maemboership of the Board may have on the
Company's growlh and ils compelilivenass. The Company
will apply (he consiterations deseribad in the palicy in the
candidale assessmant and appointment process of director
following the agpearants of (e AEXE vacancy in the Board.
The compasition of the Board will be subject lo ongoing
raview 1o ansure any nead o maintain or widen diversity is
addressed promplly.

Strategic Plan

Malco Crown Entartainmant is focused on developing and
operaling world class gaming and entertainment resons.
with a parlicular focus on major gaming jurisdictions
throughoul Asia,

The Company currenlly eperates in Macau, the world's
largest casing gaming markel, and aims 1o maximize
profitabiity en its current diversified portiolio of assels by
levaraging its various gaming and non-gaming products
and amenities, maintaining a strong fotus on service
quality and developing and levaraging its cuslomar base
and lgyalty programs.

The Company alse aims to idonlify proactively fulure
appropriate grawth opporfunities in both currant and new
Jurisdictions, delvering a more diversified eamings siream
and incremantal cashitow diivers.



The Cempany's core aparational slralagy includes
delivering a differentialed and unique enlertainment
expariance fof B pradominantly Asian cuslomers, whethar
through excallencs in service, its world-class entertainment
allrattions of thraugh its high qualily hotal, retail, fosd &
bavarage and gaming product offerings. This sirategy is
cxpeeled 19 buld an intermalisnally recegnizable suite of
quality brands which cater 1o a wide specirum of customers
soaking o diverse laksure and entenainmaent exporience.

The Company akko aims 16 maintain a slireng balanca shael
and flexible capilal structure, enabling the Company lo
pursue fulure growth opportunities which maximize retum
on invesiment and drive leng term shareholder value,

The Board of Directors —
Functions and Coempeosition

ROLE OF THE BOARD

The Directors’ main duly is lo exercise their businass
judgmant to act in what (hey reasonably believe 1o be in
the best intarests of the Company and its Sharaholders.
The Board advises and counsels the Company's senior
management and monitors the perfarmanca of such
management and the affairs of the Company.,

In addition to its general oversight of management and
the affairs of the Company, the Board also parforms a
numbaer of spedific functions, either directly or through its
committees, incleding:

{a) selecling, evalvating and compensaling the
Company's Chiel Executive Officer and oversaeing
suecession planning of the Chief Execulive Cificer;

(b} providing counsel and eversighl on the seleclion,
avaluation, development and compensation of senior
management;

() reviewing, approving and moniloring fundamental
financial and business strategies and majer corporate
actions:

{d) assessing major risks the Company facing and
raviewing options and selecting the oplion(s) to
mitigate the risks: and

(8} ensuring processes are in place 16 maintain the
integrity of these aspects of the Company: the
financial statements, the compliance with law
and athics, the relationships with cuslomers
and suppliers, and the relationships with other
slakeholders.

BOARD COMPOSITION

The Board comprises tan Ditectors, of whom one is an
execylive Direcler, five are non-executive Direclors and the
remaining four afe indepandent non-axetulive Directors.
Three of our Directors were nominated by Melco and three
were nominaled by Crown. The following table provides
Information abaul our Direclors,

s Peation

Lawrence Yau Lung Ho Co-Chairman, Chiad Exncutive Officer
anvd emotutive Direcior

Jamars Douglas Packod Co-Chaiman and non-axacsive Dinecior

John Potet Ban'Wang Nonrgaocutig Dirosor

Clanencs Yok Man Chung Nom-exncutyv Dirocior

Wilkam Todd Msbet o gnocutivg Dirotdor

Rowan Bruce Craige Non-exmcutve Dirocior

Jamiss Arvirew Charks Macienzy  indapondent nanraxseuiig (irecior

Thomas Joflenson Wiy Indapongdant non-enetuling Dingciod

it ey Wa Tsu Invapindant hon-autiv Dol

Robert Wirkon Macar Inghapingsand non-snbouting Dinpcion

None of the Board membars is ralated to one anclhar.

The non-axeculive Directors and the independant non-
executive Directors, all of whom are independent of
the management of our Group's businessaes, are highly
experienced professionals with substantial experience
in areas such as legal, aceounting and financial
ranagemant, Their mix of skills and business exparience
is a major contribution 1o the fulure development of our
Company. They provide a strong independent element on
the Board, exercise independent judgment and ensure that
matters are fully debated and thal no individual or group
of individuals dominates the Board's decision making
progesses. In addition, they facililate the Company lo
maintain & high standard of indncial and othar Mandatony
reporting and provide adequale checks and balances to
saleguard the interests of Sharaholders and the Company
as a whale.
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DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

All indapendant pron-execulive Dirgclors have mat all of
the guidelines for assessing independence sel out in Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. Our Company has received
fram gach of them an annual written confirmation en
his independence and considers each of them 1o be
indapendent.

CHANGES IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS
Pursuant to Ruls 13.51(B)(1) of the Listing Rulss, the
changes in information of our Direclors are set oul balow:

Mamo Changes ininformation
Chaonon Yk han Chung Rlr. Chung was appontod &5 disedon of
our subradiarios s fafiws in Seplombac
.k
MGE Transgortalion Two Limaod
o Sufo Ciy Holdngs Five Limbed
SCIP Heidngs Limbed
v MGE (87 Holdngs Limiied
e, W] 18gnied ik A M- R0BoU
direcior of MelcoLol Limbad, 8 company
Teitadd o thi Stock Exchanh [Sock Cod
S04} with ofiect from Decombar 2113
W Cringi is appanied a8 Sroct of
our sk i bliows in Septomtar
ma
+ MGCE Trantgportafion Two Limiod
MCE () Haidegs Lentos
M, Tl resigned a5 the independant non-
B GOS0 of AR Chengiony
Dervelogmant Group Limbed, i comgany
stiaed o s Stk Exchangs (S Cose:
20T} i Nttt 2013,
Rir_ Macienzin wis the non-emoutin
direchnr and chairman of Miva: Group
from Novermbar 2005t Januasy 2014
and Rowesbar 2005 o Noveebor 213
DDl

Jote P B Wikt

Fenarisn [irose Grages

Koo Yiu'a Toud

Jumas Andeow Chanes
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DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING

Directors’ training is an on-going process. Throughout
the year ended December 31, 2013, our Diractors
received regular updates and presentations on changes
and developments to cur Group's business and to the
legislative and regulatory réquirements in which our
Group shall comply. A training session was organized for
Dirgctors in December 2013 1o update the Dingclors on the
U.5. Foraign Corrup! Practices Act and the compliance
program developed by the Company in accordance wilh
the shareholdars and requirementis applicable undar
such registration, Moreover, all Direclors have allended
ofher relevant salf-study in relation to their continuous
professional development. The Direclors have also
provided the Company with informalion regarding the
trainings received and sludies completed for record.

A surmmary of Iraining received by the Directors during the
year is as follows:

i

Exgeidive Dinsctor
LLawrence Yiau Lung Mo

. HI

Non-xecutive Directons
Jarss Dougian Packir
John Potor Ban'Wang
Charenc Yok Man Chung
Wilkam Todd Mbit
Reowan Bruco Craips

e

Jarmdes Aririgw Charkss Maciantin
Thormas Joterson Wu

e i W Tl

IRodbart Warson Machar

P e S gag

s NN




BOARD MEETINGS AND DIRECTORS ATTENDANCE
RECORDS

The Board meets regularly over our Company's affairs and
operations. The Board held a tolal of ¢ight meetings during
the year ended December 31, 2013, The chief financial
officer, the chief legal officer and the company Secrelary
allended all Board meelings to advise on statutory
complance, legal, accounting and financial matters. All
businasses transactad at the mestings were documantad
and the records ware maintained.

Sel out below is the atlendance record of each mambar
of the Beard al the Board meelings during the year ended
Decembear 31, 2013 which illustrales the attenlion ghven by
the Board In overseelng our Company's affalrs:

o, of meatings
Aenid! Atlandancs

hedd i 2013 raby
Executive Director
Lirronon Yo Lung Ho (Co-Chaiman] ] 100%
Hon-pxecutive Directens
Jismas Douglas Pacier (Co-Chaiman) ] 5%
et Pt Bi Wi ] 5%
Clwonon Yk Man Chung wa 0%
Wil ToeSd Nebsall &3 100
Riowon Brooe Craige a3 1%
Independont non-emecutive Direclors
i AnGoW Chafds Makonza @ 5%
Thamiss Jaflorson Wy ] 5%
A Y WY T a8 100
Pkt Wi Mattir 3 100%

GENERAL MEETING AND DIRECTORS ATTENDAMCE
RECORDS:

Our Company held two general meetings during the
year ended December 31, 2013, which were the
annual general mealing held on May 22, 2013 and the
extroordinary general meeting held on June 21, 2013,
al which resolutions ware duly passed in raspect of,
among others (i) the adoption of the financial statements

and the directors’ and auditors’ reports for the year
ended December 31, 2012; (ii) the re-appoiniment of
the indapendent awuditor: (i) the granting of the genaral
mandate and repurchase mandate; (iv) the re-election of
Directars: and (v) the adoption of the MCP Shane Incentve
Plan. Set oul below is the attendance record of each
mamber of the Board a1l (he goneral maecting during the
year ended December 31, 2013:

No. of mostings
atlondad’ Alandanci

i i A0E3 [ L]
Executive Director
Lawednte Yim Lung B [Co-Chairman) F:74 1%
Non-dnetutive Directon
Jarmeck Dowgias Packor {Co-Chaman] 3 S
o Pt Bsn Wang S W00%
Clanence Yok Man Chung v ol
Wilkam Todd Msbal o 0%
Reowan Bruco Cralge i3 i
Independent non-axecuthoe Dineclors
Sk Arviriw Charis Masiing) e o
Thoras Joflerson Wy i ik
Aoz YarWa Tsu Fr 0%
Robesdt Wikon Mactigt Fi 0%
SECURITIES DEALINGS BY DIRECTORS AND
RELEVANT EMPLOYEES

The Directors and relevant employaes are subject to the
rules el forth in our Company’s Policy for the Prevention
of Insidar Trading, the terms therain are no less exacling
than these contained in the Model Code. The Listing Rules
require an axpréss Model Code compliante confirmation
from the dirgctors and that the confirmalion be given
following & spacific anquiry. All Directors have confirmed
that they have complied with the required standard of
dealings and code of condud regarding securities dealings
by direclors as set oul in the Modal Code for the year
ended Decambar 31, 20103,
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DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

The Board reserves for its decision all major matlers
goncemning the Company. The day-te-day managemsent,
administration and operation of the Company is delegated
1o the Chiel Executive Officer and senior management
of the Company. Tha Beard has formalized the
functions reserved lo the Board and these delegafed lo
management. The funclions and responsibilities delegated
ard subject to periodic review,

The Company has established the follewing Board
COMMItLees 10 SUpPort the Company in maintaining a high
comporate governance standard;

- audit cormmittaa;
. compensation commitltee; and
. nominating and corpofala govamancs commillaé.

The Board has delegaled carlain functions to these Board
commillees, Eoch commiltae has its dofined scope of
dulies and terms of reference within its own charter, which
empewers the commilles membaers to make decisions on
comain malbars.

Each Board committea, upon reasonable request is able
1o seak independent professional advice in appropriate
circumslances, at the Company’s expense.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Board has eslablished an audit commillae in 2008,
with its primary duty 1o assist the Board in overseaing
and monioding, among olhars, the audils of the financial
stalemants of our Company, any relevant legal and
regulatory issues relevani o the financial sizlements, the
performance of the indepandent auditors, the account
and financial reporting processes of the Company and the
integrity of gur systems of inlemal accounting and financial
controls, our Company's risk manageman! process, the
effectiveness of our Company's internal audit function and
any significant related party andfor connecled transactions.

In line with Rula 321 of the Listing Rules, our Company’s
Audit Committes comprises independent non-executive
Direclors, namely Mr. Thomas Jefarson Wu, Mr. Alac Yiu
Wa Tsui and Mr. James Andrew Charles Mackenzie, Mr.
Jamirs Andriw Chatbes Mackenzie is the chairman of the
Audit Commitbes.
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Sel oul bolow is the attendance record of each member
of the audil commillee meetings during the year ended
Decermber 31, 2013:

MNo. o moetings.

EEOHY A

sl i 2003 (0]

Jarmes Arviriw Charkss Macienrin S0 o
{Charman)

Thormars Jothrson Wu 0] o

Moc ar'Wa Tau 100 10t

In discharging its duties, the principal work performed by
the audit commillee during the year and up to date of this
reporn included the fellowing:

I relation o financial information:

{a} review of the annual consolidated financial
stalements of our Group for the year anded
December 31, 2013 with recommendation to the
Board for the intlusion within our Company’s annual
repois;

(b} review of the interim resull annguncement and
unaudited condensed consolidated financial
stalements of our Group for the six months ended
June 30, 2013 with recommendalion to the Board for
inclugion within our Company’s interim report;

{e) review of the quarterly unaudited consolidaled
financlal slatemants and key parformance indicators
of our Group for the quarters ended March 31,
2013, June 30, 2013, Septamber 30, 2013 and
December 31, 2013 and provide recommendations
o our disclosure committea for inclusion within our
Company's quartady gamings announcemant

{d} review the disclosure, in accordance with the
Company's ralevant policles, of any matarial
information regarding the quality or integrity of the
Company’s financial which ks brought to
ils altention by our distlosure commities,




In redalion 16 redationship with independén audiorn:

{a) raview and approve of the engagemant letters of
Massrs. Deloille Touche Tohmatsu for audit and
non-audit services, the nalure and scope these
services, their reperting abligations, work plan and
independence; and

{b) review of the auditor's qualifications, indepandanca
and perfarmance, and recommendation to the Board
for re-appointment of the auditor.

In refation te financial reporting system and inlermal confrol;

(2) roview of the effectiveness of the internal controls
and risk management systems of our Group,
afler digcussion wilh management, intennal audit
depariment and independent auditors and review
of the reports agsocioled with our program for
compliance with section 404 of the Sarbanes-Owley
Act of 2002 ("S0X 404 Compliance Program”) and
imarnal audit plan;

(b} review of internal awdit reporiz, including tha major
findings and recommandations from intemal audi:

(€} review and approval of internal audid work plan for the
year 2014;

(d} review and approval of certain related parly
transactions and connected Iransactions carried aut
during the yoear and conduched the annudl review of
the conlinuing connected transactions, together with
the independent non-execulive Director whe is not
a mamber of the audil commitlas, as included within
this annual reper; and

{2} roview of the staffing and resources of our Groups
intarnal audit and finance depariments.

Ciiher detalls of the autharity, dulies and responsibliities of
the audil commitiea are available in the audit committes
charar, which can be found on our Company's websita and
the Slock Exchange's wabsite.

COMPENSATION COMMITTEE

Our Company has established a compensalion
commitiea in 2006, with iis primary duly to discharge the
responsibilities of the Board relating to compensation of
our executives, including by designing (in consulltation wilh
management and our Board) and evaludling the executivi
and Directer compensation plans, policies and programs of
our Company, recommending 10 our Board for approval,

Tha compensation commiltes comprises indepandent non-
exaculive Direclors, namely Mr. Thomas Jefferson Wu,
Mr. Ala¢ Yiu Wa Tsui and Mr. Robert Wason Macliar. Mr.
Thomas Jefferson Wy is the chairman of the compensation
cormmilles,

Sel oul balow is the attendance racord of aach mamber
of Ihe compensalion commillee meelings during the year
ended Decamber 31, 2043

No. of moetings
awodd Amodani

i i 2003 iy

Thomas Jofirson Wiy (Ciman) el 7%
o YerWa Taai ¥ 0%
Rabat Wason Macher i 10

In discharging its duties, principal work poerformad by the
compansation committes includas:

{a} recommendatiens to the Beard for approval in
relation Lo the grant of share oplions 1o participants
under the 2011 Share Incenlive Plan;

(b} recommendaliens te the Board for approval of the
compansation of the Diretlors, and approval of the
compensalion of senior management;

{c) determination, with delegated responsibility, of the
remuneration packages of Individual executive
Direclors and senior management; and

{d}y assessmenl of performance of the executive
Director.
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Othar details of the autharly, duliés and responsibilties
ol the compensation commitlee are available in the
compensation commitlea charers, which ¢an be found on
our Company’s wabsite and the Slock Exchange's wabsite,

NOMINATING AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COM-
MITTEE

CQur Company has eslablished a nominating and corporale
governanta commiltes in 2008, wilh ils primary duties
lo assisl eur Board in discharging its responsibilities
regarding (i) the idantification of qualified candidatas to
become members and chairs of lhe Board commillees and
1o fill any such vacancias: (i) ovarsighl of our compliance
wilh legal and regulatory requiremants. in particular the
lagal and regulatery requiramants of Macau (including
the ratevant laws ralated to the gaming industry), Hong
Kong, the Cayman 1stands, the SEC and NASDAQ; (i}
the development and recommendation to our Board of a
S0l of corparaty govarnancs prnciphes applicable to our
Company; and (iv) the disclosure, in accordance with
our relevant palicies, of any material informalion (oher
than thal regarding the quality or integrity of our financial
statements), which is brought o 13 atlention by the
dischosure commitlae.

The nominaling and corporale governance commillee
comprises indopondem non-axoculive Directors, marnaky
Mr. Thomas Jefferson Wu, Mr. Alec Yie Wa Tsui and
Mr. Roban Wason Mactier. Mr. Alec Yiu Wa Tsui is the
chairman of the nominating and corporale governance
COMmition,

Sel out below is the attendance record of each membar
of the nominating and corperale govemnance committee
migalings during the year endad Decomber 31, 2013:

o of meotings
! Aiandancy

i i 2013 ]

Aot Y Wi Tl {Cvinmman) F.r} 100%
Thomas Jafloreon W F.rd 100%
Rt Wason Wactio i 100%
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In discharging ils duties, (he principal work perforrmed
by the nominaling and corporate governance commitles
during the year included the following:

{a} considered and approved amendment of axisting
corporale gevemance policies lo incorporale relevant
Listing Rules requirements;

(b} econsidered and recommended for the Board's
approval the proposed changes to Board commallees”
charters;

{¢) reviewad the structure. size and compoesition of the
Board and the Board commitless;

(d} assessed the independance of the independent non-
axeculive Dirgclors; ond

(e} mnominated candidates lo the Board for il to
recommend them to stand for election by
Shareholders at the annual general meeling.

Oiher details of the aulhorily, dulies and responsibilities
of the nominating and corporale govermance commélies
are available in (he nominaling and corporale governance
commellee charter, which can be found on the Company's
wabsite and the Stock Exchange's wabsita,

DIRECTORS® AND AUDITORS' RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Direclors” responsibilities for preparing the financial
statemants are sef oul on page 97 of this annual report and
the reporting responsibilitios of the exlemal auditors are sat
oul on pages 100 to 102 of this annual repan.

FINANCIAL REPORTING
The Board is accountable o the Sharaholders and is

commilled to presenting comprehensive and limely
information to the Sharaholders on assessmant of our

Company's perermance, financial pesition and prospects,

Qur Comgany veluntarly publishes quarterly unaudited
financial results for the three months ended March 31
and Seplomber 30 and Koy pedomance indicators of our
Group for aach fiscal quarter generally within 45 days after



the @nd of the relevant quarter o anable its Shareholders,
investers and the public to beller appraise the posilien
and business parformance of our Group. Such financial
information s prepared in accordance with U5, GAAP
using the actounting policies applied 1o ouwr Company’s
interim and annual financial statements and thera s no
reconciliation of such infermation to IFRS,

DIRECTORS" RESFOMSIBILITIES ON THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge thair rasponsibililty for the
presentation of financial statemenls which give a true and
fair viaw of the slate of affairs of our Company and our
Group and the resulls and cash flow for each financial
pariad. In prapadng the indncial stalamaents, the Diredors
have to ensure thal appropriale accounting policies are
adopled. The financial stalemants are prapared on o going
concern basis.

The Beard's responsibility lo present a balanced, clear and
understandable assessmant axlends to annual and inlarim
reports, other inside infermation announcemeants and other
financial disclosuras required under the Listing Rules, and
reports e regulaters as well as o information required to be
disciosed pursuant to SIalULerY roquiramants,

For the year ended December 31, 2013 and as the date
of thiz annual report there were no malarial uncarainties
ralating to evenls or condilions that may cast significant
doubt on gur Company’s ability 1o conlinue as a going
CONnCar.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has the overall responsibility for ensuring our
Company mainains sound and effaclive internal condrols
lo safeguard the Shargholders’ investment and the
Company's assets at all times. To fulfill this responsibility,
Ihe Dirsctors have conducted a review of the effectivensss
of the system of intarnal control of our Company and
our subsidiaries for the year ended December 31, 2013,
which covered the matarial controls, including financial,
oporalional and complianes conlrols and figk Managemnt
functions and the adequacy of resources, qualifications
and experience of stafl of our Company’s aczounting and
financial reporting function, and their training programs

and budget. This review was conductad by conaidaring
the repeoris and recommendation received from the audit
commitlas, given ils role in providing oversight of the
internal conirol and risk managemant system.

The audit commiltee delivered those repoerts and
final recommandaltion based on discussions held
with management, the internal audit department and
indapendent audilors and the review of work parformad
and repors Bsued by these parlies in relation to the SOX
404 Compliance Program and our Group's inlernal audit
plan. Refer lo awdil commilles seclion wilhin this report
for more information on the work parformed by the awdit
commiliee and the LS Corporate Governance Practices
section for further delails on the SOX 404 Compliance
Program.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Our company sacrelary, Ms. Stephanies Cheung, is a
full time employee of the Company and has day-lo-
day knowledge of the Company's affairs. The Company
Secrelary is responsible for advising the Board on
governance malters. For the year ended Dacember 31,
2013, the Company Secrelary has allended relevant
professional lrainings o update her skils and Knowlooge.
She has complied and will continue to comply with the
rolovant Listing Rules requiremants i lake no 1655 than 15
hours of relevant professional irainings in each financial
yoar.

AUDITOR'S REMUNERATION

For the year ended December 31, 2013, our Company
paid approximately HKS$11.6 milicn for servites provided
to us by our auditor, Messrs. Deloifte Touche Tohmalsu,
comprising. HKS7.8 million for audit services and HKS3.8
million for non-audit sarvices. Non-audil services primarily
included an intarim roview of our Group's consolidated
financial statemenis, review of cerlain documents
associated wih the issuance of the 2013 Sonior Notes,
an assurance engagemeani of our continuing connecled
transactions, agread upen procedures ralated o our
preliminary annual resulls announcement and carfain tax
SIS,
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SHAREHULDERS' RIGHTS

Convening of extraordinary general meeting by
Shareholders

Pursuant te Article 71 of the Amended and Restated
Arlicles of Association, the Board may, whanaver they
think fit, convena an exiraordinary general mesting, and
exiracrdinary general meetings shall also be convaned on
the wiflten requisition of any one or more Shareholdors,
provided that such ragquisitions held as at the date of
doposit of Ihe requisition nol less than 10% of the paid up
capital of our Company which carries the right of voling
ot genoeral meetings of our Company. Such maembar shall
dapasit at the principal place of business of our Company
in Hong Kong, or in the event our Company ceases to have
such a principal office, the head office or the registared
office of eur Company specilying the objects of the maeting
and signed by 1he requisilions.

If the Diraclors do not within 21 days from the date of
deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene the
meeling to be held within a further 21 days. the requisitions
themselves of any of them representing moere than ong
half of the total woting rights of all of them, may convena
the general meeting in the same manner, a5 nearly as
possible, as that in which meatings may be convened
by the Directors provided thal any meeting so convened
shall nol be hald after the expiration of threa months from
the date of deposit of the requisition, and all expenses
reasonably incurred by the requisilions as a resull of the
failure of the Board shall be reimbursed lo them by the
Coampany.

Proposing a person for election as a Director of the
Company

Subject to applicable legislation and regulation and
pursuant to the Amended and Reslaled Articles of
Association, if a Shareholder of the Company wishas lo
propose a person other than himseliersell or a retiring
director for eleclion as a Director al a genaeral meating of
the Company, the Shareholder should deposil a signed
writlen nominalion togelther wilh a notice signed by tha
parsen le be nominaled of hisfher wilingness Lo be elected
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which shall be givan to the Company al the Gompany's
place of business in Hong Kong (36th Figor, The Centrium,
60 Wyndham Streat, Cantral, Hong Kong) wilhin the 7-day
peried commencing the day after the dispatch of the notice
of the meating appointed for such alection and nd no later
than ¥ days prior to the date of such meeting.

Putting forward proposals at shargholders” meetings

Shareholders are walcomad 16 suggest proposals ralating
to the operations, sirategy andfor managemenl of the
Company to be discussed at shareholders” maeling.
Shareholders who wish lo put forward a proposal
should convens an extraordinary general maeting by
the procedures sel out in the above *Convening of
axtrpordingry general masting by Shargholders™.

US CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

As a NASDAQ-listed company, we are alse subject lo
othar ongoing reporting obligations and requirements
imposed by lhe SEC and NASDAQ, such as compliance
with the Sarbanas-Oxley Act of 2002 ("S0X Act™). Under
section 404 of the S0OX Act, we are requited to include a
management raport on the effactivenass of our intemal
controls over financial reporing in our U.S. annual reports
on Farm 20-F,

Management's Annual Report on Internal Control Qver
Financial Reporting

Our Company's managemaenl is responsible for
eslablishing and maintaining adequale internal control
ovar finantial reporting, as defined in Rules 133-15(1) and
154-15{1) of the U.5. Securitles Exchange Act of 1934,

Qur Company’s inlernal conirel over financial reporting
is dasigned lo provide reasonable assurance regarding
the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for extamal purposes in accordance
with generally accepled accounting principles. Qur
Company’s inlémal contral over financial reporting includes
those policies and procedures thal:



(1) pertain to the maintenance of racords that, in
reasonable detail, accuralely and fairly reflact the
Iransactions and disposilions of our Company's
assets:

{2) provide reasonable assurance that iransactions
are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
linancial stalements in accerdance wilh generally
accepled accounting principles and that Lhe
Company's receipls and expendilures are being
made only in accordance with autherizations of ils
management and directors; and

(3 provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention
or timely detection of unauthotized acquisition, use or
disposition of the Company's assets that could have
a material effect on the financial slalemants,

Because of ils inherent limilations, internal contrel
over linancial reporting may notl prevent or detect

i ents, Also. projections of any evaluation of
effactiveness 16 fulure pedods ame subject to the risk thal
conirols may become inadequate because of changes
in condifions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may delariorate.

Qur Company's management assessed the affectivenass
of our Company's inlernal control over financial reporting
as of December 31, 2013, In making this assessment, the
Company's management used Lthe framawsark sel forth
by the Commillee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission in lafernal Conlrol — lategrated
Framework (1992] (1952 Framework?,

Baged on this assessmenl, manageman! conciuded that,
as of December 31, 2013, the Company's inlamal contral
gver linancial reperting is effective based on this 1992
Frarmework.

The effactiveness of our Company’s internal control
over financial reporting as of December 31, 2013, has
baen audited by Meassrs. Deloitte Teuche Tohmalsu, an
indepandont registered public acceunting firm, a5 staled in
their report which appears herain.

Investor Relations
COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
Our Company has established a shareholders’
communication policy with an aim 10 ensure Shareholders
ara provided with readily, equal and timely access lo
information aboul the Company. Infermation will be
communicated to Shareholders mainly through our
Company's financial reports (quartery, inlerim and annual
reports), annual general maelings and other genaral
meetings thal may be convened, Qur Company will
make available all the disclosures submitted to the Slock
Exchange and its corperale communications and elher
corporate publications on its website. A dedicated “Investar
jons™ seclion is aval on the ¥'s wabsite.
Information on our wabsils is updated on a regular basis.

Cwur Company regards the annual general meeting an
important évenl and Shareholders are ancouraged Lo
pariizipate in annual general meeting or to appeint proxies
to altend and vobe al the mareting for and on their behalf
if thay are unable to attand the meetings. Shareholders
may direct questions aboul their sharehaldings to (i) the
Company’s Hong Keng registrar, Computershare Hong
Kong Investor Services Limited, if Shares are registerad at
tha Company's Hong Kong registrar; or (ii) the Company’s
Cayman Islands regisirar, Interirust Corporate Services
{Cayman) Limiled, if Shares are registerad al the
Company's Cayman lslands registrar,

SHAREHOLDERS' ENQUIRIES AND PROPOSALS
Sharaholders’ anquirias for the Board or the Company, or

thair proposals for shareholdars’ meatings may be direcled
to ws.

By post: 361h Floor, The Centrium, €0 Wyndham Streal,
Canlral, Hong Kong

By fax: +852 2537 3618

By email: infoglmiHeo-Loown com

Far and on bahalf of the Board

Lawrence Yau Lung He

Co-Chairman and Chicf Exacutive Ofcer

Macau, March 26. 2014
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Report of Independent Registered Public
Accounting Firm

Deloitte.
=g

To the Shareholders and the Board of Directors of Meleo Crown Entertainment Limited:

Wae have audited the accompanying consclidated balance sheels of Melce Crown Entertainment Limited and
subsidiaries (the *Company”) as of December 31, 2013 and 2012, and the relaled consolidated statements of operations,
comprehansive incoma, shareheldars’ oquity. and cash flows for each of the three years in the peried ended Decombar
31, 2013 Our audils also included tha financial slal 1 schedubs included in Schadula 1. Thesa consolidaled financial
statements and financial statemaent schedule are the responsibilily of the Company's managemant. Qur responsibilily is to
express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements and financial slatemeant schadula bazed on our audits.

We conducted our audils in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Owversight Board (United
States). Those stondards require that we plan and parform the audil 1o obtain reasonable assurance aboul whather the

fidated financial stat s ara frae of material misstaterment. An audit includes examining, on a last basis, evidence
supparting the amounts ond disclosures in the financial stolements, An audil also includes assessing the accounting
principlas used and significant eslimalas made by management, as well as evalualing the overall financial statement
prasentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinien,

In our opinion, such consolidated financial slatements present faity, in all matarial respects, the consolidaled financial
position of the Company as of Decarnbar 31, 2013 and 2012, and tho consaldated resulls of thair oparations and thedr cash
flowws for each of the three years in the period ended Decomber 31, 2013, in conformily with accounting principles gonerally
accepted in the United States of America. Also, in our opinion, such financial statement schadule, when considerad
in relation o the basic Hdated financial stab 15 laken as a whole, prosents fairly in all material respects, the
infermation sel forth therain.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
Slates), the Company™s inlernal control aver financial repering as of December 31, 2013, based on the ¢riteria established
in Internal Contiod — Infagrated Framewsrk {1992) issued by the Committes of Sponsaring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission and our report dated March 28, 2014 expressed an unqualified opinion on the Company’s intemal control Gver
financial repasting.

sl Deloitte Touche Tohmalsu
Centified Public Acoountants
Hong Kong

March 26, 2014
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Report of Independent Registered Public
Accounting Firm

Deloitte.
=g

To the Shareholders and the Board of Directors of Meleo Crown Entertainment Limited:

We hove audiled the internal conlrel over financial reporing of Melco Crewn Entertainmant Limited and subsidiaries (the
*Company”) as of December 31, 2013, basad on the criteria established in Infernal Control — Intagrated Framework (1992)
issued by the Commitioe of Sponscring Organizations of the Treadway Commission, The Company's managemant is
responsible for maintaining effeciive internal control over financial reporling and for its assessment of the effectiveness of
internal contred ever financial repodting, incleded in the accompanying Manogement's Annual Report on Internal Conlrel
over Financing Reporing. Our respongibility is 1o express an opinion on the Company's internal conlrol ovar financial
repariing based on our audit,

W conducted our audil in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (Uniled
States). Those standards raquire that we plan and parferm the audit 1o oblain reasonable assurance aboul whether
effoctive internal control over financial reporing was maintained in all material respects, Qur audit included oblaining an
undarstanding of internal contral over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material waakness axisls, lasting and
evalualing the design and operaling effectiivensss of internal conlrol based on the assessed risk, and paroming such clher
procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe thal our audit provides a reasonable basis for
Gur opinien.

A company’s internal control ever financial reporting i a process designed by, or undaer the supervision of, the company's
principal executive and principal finaneial officars, or persons performing similar funclions, and effected by the company’s
board of direclors, managemant. and othar persennel to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporling and the preparatien of consolidated financial statements for external purposes in accordance wilh
generally accopled accounling principles. A company’s internal control over financial reponing includes those policies
and proceduras that (1) pertain to the maintenance of racords thal, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflact
the transactions and disposilions of the assels of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance thal ransactions are
recorded as necessary to parmit praparation of conselidated financial statements in accordance with generally accepled
accounting principles. and that receipls and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance wilh
authorizations of management and direclors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurancs regarding preveantion
or limely defection of unauthorized acquisition, wse, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect
on the consolidaled financial stalements.

Bacause of the inherent limitations of internal control over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or
improper management oviride of controls, material misstalements due o emor of fraud may nol be prevented o detecled
on a limely basis. Also, projections of any evaluation of the effecivenass of the internal confrol over financial reporting to
fulure periods are subject to the sk that the confrols may become inadequate because of changos in condilions, or that
the degrae of compliance with the palicles or procadures may deteriorale.

aleo Crown Entortanment Lesiiod  Anrual Repor 2013
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In our epinion, the Company maintained, in all malarial respetts, effeclive intemal conlrel over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2013, based on the criterla established in internal Conlrel — Integrated Framework (1992) tssued by the
Committes of Sponsaning Organizalions of the Treadway Commission.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Owersight Board (United
States), the consolidatled financial statements and financial statement schedule as of and for the year ended Decamber
31, 2013 of the Company and our report dated March 26, 2014 expressed an unqualied opinion on those consolidated
financial staterments and financial slalement schedule,

sl Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Caontified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

March 26, 2014
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Consolidated Balance Sheets

{in ihousands of ULS, dollars, sucepl ahado and per shado dala)

Dovembed 31,

2013 2012
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cath equivalents $  13BITST § 1709209
Bank deposts with original maturity over theee manths G26.540 -
FRostriched cash (Mote 12) 704 672981
Accounts recefvable, net (Wole 3) AT 880 32092
Amnounts dub from aekabed companios (Note Z3(al) 23 1322
Income tax receivabie 13 i
Irvenbonos. 18189 16,576
Prepaid expenses and other curent assets 54,898 27143
Azl hod for sai (Note 4) 8463 -—
Tetal current assets F048.447 2740025
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, NET {Mole 5) 3,308,845 2684004
GAMING SUBCONCESSION, NET (Nota &) 485,031 542058
INTANGIELE ASSETS, NET (Nole ) 420 470
GOODWILL (Mote T) 81015 81,015
LOMG-TERM PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER ASSETS (Nola &) 5687 &
RESTRICTED CASH (Mote 12) 3T33T T41683
DEFERRED TAX ASSETS (Maote 17) 93 105
DEFERRED FINANCING COSTS 114431 £5.930
LAND UEE RIGHTS, NET (MNole 9) 451618 B9 884
TOTAL ASSETS 5 831363 §  TH4T4G6
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Actounts payable (Wote 10) 5 9825 % 13,745
Acerued gxpenses and olher cumment Eabiiies (Note 11) 428,751 850841
Intams tax payabie 6,554 1,181
Caplal bease oblgations, due within one year (Nolz 15 ] e
Curren poition of ng-beim debl (Note 12) 252566 854940
Amounis due lo afiialed companies (Note Z3b) 25 b2t
Arncdant due 168 shasehosder (Noba Z3(e]) i —
Tokal currond Kxbalties 1237970 1,721 656
LONG-TERM DEBT (Mote 12) 2270534 23800
OTHER LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (MNote 14) 28452 TA12
DEFERRED TAX LIABLITIES (Node 17) B804 5,350
CAPITAL LEASE CBLIGATIONS, DUE AFTER ONE YEAR (Mote 13) 253029 _
LAND USE RIGHTS PAYABLE (MNote 22(c)) 35485 T35

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (Nota 22

Maleo Crown Entortanment Lesilied  Anrual Repor 2013
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Consolidated Balance Sheets

{in ihusands of ULS, dollars, sucepl aharo and per shade dala)

Dosembed 31,
2013 2012
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Cedinary shaces al USE0.01 par value per share
(Authrized — 7,300,000000 shanes a5 of Decamber 31, 2013 and 2012 and Boued
— 1,666,533,448 and 1,658,050,205 shares as of December 31, 2013 and 2012, respecively (Nole 16))  § 16667 3 16,581
Treasury shaees, 3t ¢oid
(16,222,246 and 11,267,038 shares as of December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively (Mote 167) (5980 (113
Additonal paidein capdtal 3479599 3EFHIS
Accumulated other comprateenshis kosses {15.592) {1,067}
Robannd eamings TT21% 134 653
Tetal Meico Crown Entertainment Limited shareholders’ equity 446670 338593
bonconiroding interests 678312 8T
Total eaquity 4924 932 3,740,755
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY $ BBUIEN 3 TH4TME
MNET CURRENT ASSETS $ 1910477 § 1007380
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES $  TATHGED § 6aE5A

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the censolidated financial statements,
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Consolidated Statements of Operations

{in ihusands of ULS, dollars, sucepl ahade and per shado dala)

Year Endad Decombed 31,

2013 012 2011
OPERATING REVENUES
Casino §  AM1AET § JAMTE 5 3570423
Rosis 127,881 18059 103,009
Food and beverage 78,820 7271 &1,840
Entortainmont, ntad and ohors 103758 90,763 £6,167
Geoss revenues 5251767 4216327 303043
Less: promotional alwances (164,55) (138,314} {99,552}
Not SOET.ITE 4018013 3BWEAT
OPERATING COSTS AND EXPENSES
Casing (3452736)  (2AMTEY (2696981
Roems (12.,511) {14,647} {18,247}
Food and biversgh (29,114) {27531} {34,184
Entortainment, retadl and othars (84212 E2418) {55,404}
Ganoral and adsisisteative (255,780) (226.980) (220,224}
Fre-opening costs {17.014) (5,785) (2650}
Davikepmen oosts (26.297) (11,099) {1,110}
Amortization of gaming subconcession (57.237) 51237 (57,237
Asnertization of lnd use fghts (B4,211) 59911} {24401}
Depreciation and amodization (261.258) (251.443) (250.224)
Prepoty ehirgas and oy (6834 (8654} (1.025)
Tokal operating costs and exp (A247.350)  (35T0021) (3388737}
OFERATING INCOME 839,824 507 082 445,110
NON-OPERATING INCOME (EXPENSES)
Interest income 7650 10,855 413

Inteost sxponses, ned of capdalized intaost
Reclassification of accmulated losses of inferes! rate swap agreements from

(152,650) (19611} {113806)

olh Comp Bases (Nobe 12) - - (4,390}
Change in fair valee of inberest rale swap agreements - &3 3o47
Anortization of dafermod Enancing aosts (18,159) {13.272) (14,203)
Loan commitmen fees (25,543) (1.324) {1411}
Feeoign axchangs (as) gain, not (10,756) 4685 (1,771}
Cther income, net 1661 115 364
Listing axpenses = B sty
Loss on extinguishment of debd (Note 12) (50,935) = (25,183)
Costs associated with dobt modibeation (Note 12) (10.538) (3277} =
Tetal non-operating expenses. rel _ [EERaT) (111.383) (1578502
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX 530,454 a5 TH TET M
INGOME TAX (EXPENSE) CREDIT (Mote 17) [2441) 2543 163
MET INCOME ST8013 AT e
MET LOGS ATTRIBUTABLE TO MONCONTROLLING INTERESTS 58,450 18,531 5412

NET INCOME ATTRIBUTABLE TO MELCO CROVWN ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED

§  GBITAEI S TN § XMES
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Consolidated Statements of Operations

{in ihusands of ULS, dollars. eucepl ahado and per shado dala)

Year Ended Docombed 31,
2013 2012 2011

HET INCOME ATTRIBUTABLE TO MELCO CROWN ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED
PER SHARE:

Basic

0.366 3 024 3 0184

Duligfend

4 | 4

0.353 § 0752 § 0.182

WEIGHTED AVERAGE SHARES USED IN NET INCOME ATTRIBUTABLE TO
MELCO CROVWN ENTERTAMMENT LIMITED PER SHARE CALCULATION:
Basic

1495678643 164546502 1604213334

Dultted

1664,158.091 1658262956 1616854 632

The accompanying noles are an integral parl of the consolidated financial statements,
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Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income

(i iheumands of LS, dollard)

Yeor Ended Docombed 31
2013 2012 2011
Mt incodme §  GT8013 % desET2 3 HAsM
Cther comgrehensive (kss) income:
Fateign cumency ranslation adjustmant {23,358) 15 (149}
Change In fair value of inferest rate swap agreements. = = 6111
Changt in et vk of forward icchang rabe coolracs - ] k]
Reclassification to earmings upon discontin of hedge accounting (Mole 13 = — 4310
Rk sibeation 1o SMnings upen Sotthement of fonward axchangi rald coalracts _ {133} -
Cther hensive (1253) incoma (23.3%) [F5] 101
Total compeahensive incoma S5 ko] 2,155
Com Rats altributable 1o nonconlioling leretls 68,314 18,540 5812
Comprehansine incomp anbutable o Makco Crown Enlerlainenont Limded § B2 s amae i 4 96T

The accompanying nales are an integral part of the consolidated financial statamants.
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Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity

{Inibssnnds of ULS, dollars, excopd shaso and por shade data)
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

I ihumands of LS, dolard)

Year Endod Decoenbar 31,
X013 iz 2011
“CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Hed income: § 51013 § 398672 § 288544
Adustiments fo rocontin net inooms 1o nét cash provided by openating acthibes:
Degrecialion and amortization 352,806 e 350852
Amaelization of defermed financing costs 18159 132372 14503
Amartization of defermed intorest exponsa 756 1% 1,142
Amortization of discount on senior noles payabla il & Fisd
Exotss payminl on doquisition of assols and kabitios - 5747 -
Inberest aocnetion on caplal kase obbjabions 16,063 - -
Les on desposal of proporty nd equipmant 248 BaT 4%
Aliowance lor doubtiul debls-and direct write off 44 750 A 37803
Writhen olf confiracd acquisition cosls 1582 = o
Less on endinguishment of detd 50.535 = 25,1583
Wiitten off defered finansing costs on madiication of debl 10.538 - -
Shaee-based compansation 14.587 BATY 8B4
Reclassification of sccumulated losses of inferest rale swap agreements
feom e Ol Comg WSS - - 4310
Reciassification of accumulated income of forward émchange rate conlracts
Fom jkated othvie compeatining losses - 1348 -
Changa in 3 valod of intenest rale swap aoemonts = {3563} {3547}
Changes in opetating assels and Rabiites:
Accourts rceivatis (15.261) (42,37) (6% 741}
Amnpunis dus from affifaled companies 129 524 (318}
At due Tnom & Shanehoudsr —_ & -
Encome Lax recetvable - - 5
Erventonias (1.593) {1318 (258)
Propid expeasis 3nd olher currond asesls {25.574) (3.716) 93550
Long-term prepayments, deposits and other assets (1.147) (2EM) o
Difurred tax sssets 12 (81} 1
Azoounts payatds 3.920) L2 3143
Mgtrubd expatsas and olhes curmind Rabdties 71527 16455 182
Income Lax payabls 5,640 [313) na
Aenpunts dup to difiaed compansss AL (564} 412
Amounts due f0 sharehoiders kil = friin)
Qthos long-erm Eabiities 2010 0 il
Dedermed lax Babiitins (3.544) (3575) (2,967}
Hid ca5h peoradod by opetating aclhibes. 115154 950243 744680
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTVITIES
Changein bank Seposits with oniginad maturily ovd e months (626.540) = =
Payment for caplaiized construction costs (456.815) 78.211) (18,784}
Advance payments for constnuction costs. (161,633 - -
Payment for acquisition of propery and equipment (18250} (141 264) (71,504}
Payminil fof land s rights {64.297) (58.830) (15271}
Payment for conlrad acquisition costs {27.122) - -
Depasits for acquisiion of peopenty and equipmant (17.198) {7708 (3563
Paymntnil fod securty dopast (4,293) - -
Payment for entertainment production costs (2.084) {1,784} [
Nl paymont for pogquistion of assats and Kbt - (5315 [280.:058)
Froceeds from sale of property and equipment M3 L) 3
Procoods from deposits on saks of assets hold for sale 185 - -
Changes in restricted cash 268,414 (1,047,049) (185,553}
Hed cash wsed in imesting adtiities § 12002000 §  (1,335.718) § (555,50
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

i ihumands of LS, dollars)

Year Endod Deceenbar 31,
X013 iz 2011

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTMITIES
Principal payments on long-em debl §  (1667.965) % (e AL ]
Payment of defarned financing costs (129.133) (30.57) (36,135)
Prepayment of defermed financing costs 156.535) (18512 =
Defarmed payment for acquisiion of assots and Rabidies (25.000) (25.000) -
Purchase of shares under tust amangement for future vesting of restricled shares. {8,170} — -
Principal payments on capital kase obligabons 36 = —
Peocoeds from exenciss of share eplions 4017 3540 4,565
Capital conlribation from noncontroling inbeests 260,000 140,000 -
Ml procoads from issuancs of shanes of 3 subsidiany 338451 - -
Froceeds from kong-lem debd 1,000,000 B53.000 TOE.555
el cash used ) petvided by fnancing ocivts eASET  GaTs  s61910
EFFECT OF FORENGH EXCHANGE OM CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS. 15,148 1,535 {1,081}
NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS [327.452) 551,185 TIG101
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 1,709.50% 1,158,004 481,903
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR §  13BLTST 5§ 00200 5 L15G0M
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF CASH FLOWS
Cash paid for inderest (et of capilalized interest) $ (1ZT80n) (W01 § (111655
Cash paid fof L (ned of rifunds) § (359 § (1129 % &2
NON-CASH INVESTING AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Costs of propedy and aquipmont funded theough capital lase cbiigalinng §  BBSS % - % -
Cosls of property and equipment funded theough acorved expenses and offver curend Eabilties

ared othior keng-beem Rabdbios -5 15744 § 05T § GE41
Costs of property and aquipment funded theowgh amounts due o afillaled companies H 215 % 425 % 52
Construetion costs funded IMough Secruad expenses and olhet current kablites.

aned ellhar ke beem lssblibies -3 87511 § 40508 § 7989
Land usz rights oosts funded theough accrued eapenses and other current Babiites.

and bind w50 nighls payable 3 14608 % 0§ -
Delened financing costs hunded theough accred expenses and olher curmert Fabiiies ] 452 % 1080 § 8
Enfiprtainenont peoduction costs fundad thveugh sccnued exponsos and othar curenl kabdities  § 448 § 15 % -
Acrpisiion of assets and Esbities fundad through atcrusd expensas. and other cument sblites

el clhiae bang-beem kabdbis 3 -5 -4 4473
Setement of sharehokders' boans threaigh b of ghores (3 = — 3 115,442

The accompanying noles are an integral part of the consolidatled financial statemants.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

{in ihusands of ULS, dollars. sucepl ahade and per shade dala)

COMPANY INFORMATION

Maleo Crown Entertainment Limited (the “Company™) was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on December 17,
2004 and complated an initial public offering of its ordinary shares in the United States of America in Dacember
2006. The Company's American depository shares ("ADS") are traded on the NASDAG Global Select Market under
the symbal “MPEL". On Decamber 7. 2011, the Company complated & dual primary Bsting in the Hong Kong Special
Adrinistrative Region of the Peophe’s Republic of China ("Hong Kong®) and lsted its erdinary shares on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Keng Limited {ihe *Heng Kong Siock Exchanga”™) by way of intreduction, under
the slock code of “6883°. The address of the Company's registened office is 190 Ekin Avenue, George Town, Grand
Cayman KY1-8005, Cayman Islands. The Company’s place of business in Hong Kong is 36/F, The Centrium, 60
Wyndham Streel, Central, Hong Kong.

The Company logether with its subsidiades (collectivaly raferred to as the “Group™) is a developer and cwner of
casing gaming and entertainmant reson facilities in Asla, The Group currently operatles Allira Macau, a casing
helel located at Taipa, the Matau Spedial Adminisiralive Region of the People’s Republic of China (*Macau™), Cily
of Draams, an inMegrated urban casino resor locatad at Colai, Macau and Taipa Square Casino, a casino lecated
ol Taipa, Macau. The Group business also includes the Mocha Clubs, which comprise the non-casine based
operalions of eleclronic gaming machines in Macau. The Group is also daveleping Siudio City, a cinematically-
themed integrated antertainmant, retail and gaming resot in Cotal, Macau. In the Philippines, Melco Crown
{Philippines) Resers Corporation {("MCP"), an indirect majority owned subsidiary of the Company whose comman
shares ane lsted on the Philippines Stock Exchange under tho stock code of “MCP™ logether with MCPs subsidiaries
{collectively referrad to as tha *"MCP Group™), has baen cooperating with cartain Philippine Parties as defined in Mote
21(a) to devolop and operale the Philippines Projecd which was subsequently branded as City of Dreams Manila, &
casino, hotel, ratail and emtarfainment integrated rasor in the Entenall it City plex in Manila.

As of December 31, 2013 and 2012, the major shareholders of the Company are Mealco International Devalopment
Limatad {“Melod™), a company lsted in Hong Kong, and Crown Resons Limited (formarty known a5 Crown Limited, or
*Crown”), an Australian-listed corporation.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

{a) Basis of Presentation and Principles of Consolidation
The consolidated financial stalemants have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles genarally
accepled in the Uniled States of America (*U.S. GAAPT) and includes applicable disclosures required by the
Rules Gavaming the Listing of Securities on Hong Kong Stock Exchanga (the *Listing Rules”) and by the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements include the accounis of the Company and its subsidiaries. All
intarcompany accounts and lransactions have been eliminated on consolidation.

(b)  Use of Estimates
The praparation of consolidaled financial statements in conformily with U.S. GAAP requires management
to make ¢slimates and assumplions that allect cerlain reported amounts of ossels and Hobilities, revenues
and expenses and related disclosures of conlingent assels and labilties. These eslimatas and judgements
are boased on histerical informatien, information that is currently available lo the Group and on various other
assumplions. that the Group believes 1o be reasonable under the circumslances. Accordingly, aclual resulls
could differ from those estimales.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

{in ihusands of ULS, dollars, sucepl ahare and per shade dala)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(c)

(d)

(e}

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Fair value is defined as the price thal would be received to sell the asset or paid to transfer a liability {i.e.
the “exit price™) in an ordedy transaction between market parficipants al the measurement date. The Group
astimated the fair values using appropriate valuation methadologies and market information available as of the
balaned shadl date,

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand, demand deposits and highly liquid investments which are
unrestricled as lo withdrawal and use, and which have maturities of three months or less when purchased,

Cash and cash equivalents are placed with financial institulions with high-credit ratings and quality.

Restricted Cash

The current portion of ¢ cashr hose cash ed inte bank accounts which are restricled
as to withdrawal and use and the Group expectad those fund will be releasad or utilized in accordance with the
terms of the respoctive agreemants within the next twelve months, while Ihe non-current portion of restricled
cash reprasents those fund that will nad be raleased or utilized within the next twalve months. Resiricted cash

as of December 31, 20143 of i) bank a thal are re for withdrawal and for payment
of Stedio City project cosls in accordance with the larms of the $825.000 8.5% senior notes, dus 2020 {the
*Studio City MNotes”) and other i agr iiy & subsidiary’s Taiwan branch office’s deposit account

in Tawan which was frozen by the Talwanese aulharities in Januvary 2013 for investigation of certain alleged
viglations of Tawan banking laws by cerlain employees of the Tamwan branch office; and i} cash in escrow
aceount, which was selup in March 2013, that is restricted for payment of Gity of Dreams Manila project costs
in accordance with the terms of the provisional license (the “Provisional License”) as disclosed in Nete 21{a)
issued by the Philippine Amusement and Gaming Corporation (‘PAGCORT). The resticted cash for procesds
on the Renminbl ("RMB") 2.300.000.000 3.75% bonds due 2013 (lhe “RMB Bonds®) deposited inte a bank
account for securing a Hong Kong dellar deposit-inked loan facility (the *Deposit-Linked Loan™) was released
upon prepayment infull of the Deposit-Linked Loan by the Group on March 4, 2013 as disclosed in Mote 12,

Accounts Receivable and Credit Risk

Financial instrements that potentially subjecl the Group lo concentrations of credit risk consis! principally of
caging receivables, The Group issues credit in the form of markers 1o approved casino cusiomers following
investigations of craditwarthiness including 1o ils gaming promoters in Macau, which racaivable can b ofset
against commissions payable and any other value iterms held by the Group to the respective cuslomer and
for which the Group inténds o sel-off when required. As of December 31, 2013 and 2012, a subslantial
portion of the Group's markers were due from customers residing in foreign countries, Business or economic
conditions, the legal enforceability of gaming debis, of other significant events in foreign countries could affect
the collectabiity of receivables frem cuslomers and gaming prometers residing in these countries,
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
{f)  Accounts Receivable and Credit Risk (continued)

Accounts receivable, including casine. hotel and siher receivables, are typically non-intersst bearing and
ang inflially recorded at cost. Accounts are wiitten off when management deams it is probable the recaivable
is uncolleclible. Recovaries of accounts previously written off are recerded when received. An astimated
allowance for doubiful debls is maintained 1o reduce the Group's receivables to their canrying amounts, which
approximates fair value. The allowanea is estimated based en spacific review of customer accounis as well
a5 management's axgerience with collection Wends in the casing indusiry and curren dconomic and busingss
conditions. Managemant believes that as of Decamber 31, 2013 and 2012, no significant concanirations of
cradit risk existed for which an allewance had ned alrgady been recorded.

(g) Inventories
Inventaries consist of retail merchandise, food and beverage items and certain operating supplies, which are
stated al the lower of cost or markel value. Cost is calcutoled using the fiestdn, fisstoul, average and specific
idantification methods. Write downs of palentially cbsolate or slow-moving inventory are recorded based on
mandgenenl’s spocdic analysis of invantary,

(h) Property and Equipment
Property and equipmant are sialed al cost less accumwiated depreciation. Impairment losses and gains of
losses on dispositions of mpeﬂ,p and equipment are incleded in operaling incoma. Major additions, renewals
and batterments are capital while mak e and rapairs are expensed as incurned,

During the construction and development stage of lhe Group's casing ing and entertal It resort
facibies, dirgcl and incrémantal cosls ralaled Lo the design and constiuclion, including costs undar the
consineclion conlracts, dulies and larifls, equipment installation, shipping costs, payroll and payrell-benafit
ralated cosls, depraciation of plant and equipment used, applicable portions of interest and amodtization of
deferred financing cosls, are capialized in property and equipmenl. The capitalization of such costs begins
when the construclion and development of a project starts and ceases once the consiruction i$ substantially
completed or developmant activity is suspended for mare than a brief period,

Deprecialion and amortization expense related lo capitalized consirection cosls and olher propory and
equipment is recagnized from the time each assel is placed in service. This may occur at diffarent slages as
caging gaming and entertalnment resert facilities are completed and opened,

Progety and equipmnt and ofher long-lived asse1s with a findle uselul fe are depracioled and amortized on a
siraight-line basis over the assel's estimated useful life. Estimated useful lives are as follows:

Classficalion Estimated Useful Life

Buidings T 10 25 YEars o St U B Of KD LN USO Fight SReemant of ks Sgreamenl,
whichever s shorler

Aerafl 10 years:

Laagahold impeovamants Fto 10 years of dwir the bt term, whichavar it shader

Fumitue, Exdures and equipment o 10 years

Wobor vehicks Syears

Ptant ged gaming machinery Fo 5 years
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

{in ihusands of ULS, dollars, ool aharo and per shado dala)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(i) Capitalization of Interest and Amortization of Deferred Financing Costs

Intgrest and amartization of deferred financing cos!s incurred on funds used to construct the Group’s casing
gaming and entertainment resor facilities dering the aclive construction period are capitalized. Interest
subject to capitalization primarily includes interast paid or payable on loans from shareholdars, the Group's
seniof secured credit facility a5 entered into on Seplember 5, 2007 (the “City of Dreams Project Facility™),
interest rale swap agresmanis, S600,000 10.25% senior notes, due 2018 {the “2010 Senior Moles™), the
RMEB Bonds, the Deposit-Linked Loan, the City of Dreams Project Fagility amanded on June 30, 2011 (the
*2011 Cradit Facilities™), $1,000,000 5% senior notes, due 2021 (the *2013 Saenior Notes”), the Studio City
Noles, the land premium payatles for the land use rights where City of Oreams and Studio City are localed
and the capital lease obligations. The capitalization of interest and amorfization of defemed financing costs
coas0s once a project is substantially comploted or development aclivily is suspended for more than a
brief pariad. The amount to be capilalized is determined by applying the weighted average inlerest rafe of
the Group's oulstanding borrowings Lo the average amount of accumulated copilal expendiures for assels
undar construction during the year and is added 1o the cost of the underdying assels and amofized over Ihir
respeclive useful lives. Tolal inleres! expenses incurred amounted to $183.847, $120,021 and $116,963, of
which 530,987, $10.410 and $3,157 ware capitalized for the years ended Dacember 31, 2013, 2002 and 2011,
respectively. Mo amorlization of deferred financing cosls were capilalized during the years ended Decamber
31, 2013, 2012 and 2011,

(i) Gaming Subconcession, Nel
The gaming subconcassion is copilalized based on the fair volue of the goming subconcession agreement as
of the date of acquisition of Malco Crown (Macau) Limitad {*Melco Crown Macau®), an indirect subsidiary of the
Comgany, in 2006, and amarized using Ihe siraight-line meathod over the term of agreement which is due to
@xpira in June 2022,

(k) Goodwill and Intangible Assets, Net
Goodwill reprasents the axcess of acquisition cost over the fair value of tangitde and identifiable intangible net
assels of any business acquired. Goodwill is not amartized, but is testad for impaiment a1 the reporting unit
lewel on an annual basis, and betwean annual lesis when circumstances indicate that the carmying value of
goodwill may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized in an amount equal to the excess of the
carrying amount over the implied fair value.

Intangible assets olher than goodwill are amortized over their useful Ives unless their Bves are determingd
to be indefinite in which case they are nol amarized. Intangible assels are caried al cost, less accumulated
amadization. The Group's finile-ived intangible assel consists of the gaming subcencession, Finilgdived
intangible assets ara amorlized over the shorar of their contraciual terms or astimated wseful lves. The
Group's intangible assels with indefinite lives represent Mocha Clubs trademarks, which are tested for
impairmant on an annual basis or when circumstances indicate that the carrying value of the intangible assals
may nol be recoverabie,
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

U]

(m)

n)

(o)

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets (Other Than Goodwill)

The Group evaluales the recoverability of long-lved assels with finite lives based on ds classification as a)
held for sale or b) 1o be held and used. Several criteria must be mel bafore an assel is classified as held
for sale, including that managameant with the appropriate authesily commils te a plan to sell the asset at a
redsonable price in relation 1o its fair value and is aclively seeking o buyer, For assets hald for sake, the Group
racognizes the assets al the lower of carrying value or fair market value less costs to sell, as estimatad based
on comparable asset sates, offers received, or a discounted cash flow modol. For assels to be held and
used, the Group evaluates their recoverabilily whenavar evants or changes in circumstances indicate thal the
carrying amaunt of an ass#l may rot be recoveratle, Recoverabiily of assets 1o bo held and used is maasured
by a comparisan of the carrying amount of an asset to the estimated undiscounted fulure cash flows expected
1o be generated by the assel. i the carying amount of an assel exceeds its estimated future ¢ash flows, an
impairment charge is recognized in the amount by which the carrying amount of the assel exceeds its fair value.

Deferred Financing Costs

Direct andd incremantal eosts intumed in eblaining lans of in connection with the issuance of long-lerm debl am
capitalized and amortized over the terms of the relaled deb! agreements using the affective inferest methed.
Approximataly $18.159, $13.272 and $14.203 wore amortized during the years ended December 31, 2013,
2012 and 2011, respeciivaly.

Land Use Rights, Net
Land use rights are recorded al ¢ost less accumulaled amerization. Amortization is provided over the
oztimated lease tarm of the tand en a straight-line basis.

Revenue Recognition and Promolional Allowances

The Group recognizes revenue al the time persuasive evidence of an arrangemeant exists, the service is
provided or the retall goods are scid, prices are fixed or determinable and collection is reasenably assured,

Casine revenues are measured by the aggregate net difference betweaen gaming wing and lpsses less accruals
for the anticipated payouts of progressive slol jackpols, with Rabilities recognized for funds deposited by
cuslomars before gaming pisy occurs and for chips in the customars” possassion.

The Group follows the accounting standards for reporting revenue gross a% a principal versus nel as an agent,
when accounting for operations of Taipa Square Casino and Grand Hyatl Macau hotel. For the operations of
Taipa Square Casine, given the Group operates the cosino under & right to use agreemant with the owner
of the casing premisas and has full responsibility for the casino operafions in accordance with its gaming
subconcassion, it is the principal and casine revenue is therefore recognized on a gross basis, For the
operations of Grand Hyatt Macau hotel, the Group is the owner of the holel property, and the hotel manager
oparales the holel under 2 managoment agreemant providing management services o the Group, and the
Group recatves all rewards and lakes subslantial risks associated with the hotal business, it is the principal and
the ransactions of the hotel are tharefore recognized on a gross bosis.

Rooms, food and boeverage, entemainment, retail and other revenues are recognized whon services are
panf d. Advance depesits on rooms and advance tlicket sales are recordad as cuslomer deposits until
SeMvices are provided o the customer, Minimum operating and right to use fee, adjusted for conlraciual base
fee and operaling fee escalations, are included in entertainment, retall and other revenues and are racognized
on 3 straighl-line basis over the lerms of the related agroemaent,
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

{in ihusands of ULS, dollars, eucepl ahade aned per shado dala)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(o}

1]

()

(s)

Revenue Recognition and Promotional Allowances (continued)

Revenues are recognized net of cenain sales incentives which are required to be recorded as a reduclion
of revanue; consequently, the Group's casino revenues are reduced by discounts, commissions and points
aarned in custormer loyalty programs, such as the playar's club loyalty program.

The retall value of rooms, food and beverage, enterlainment, retall and other services furnished lo guests
without charge is included in gross revenues and then deducted as promolional allowances. The astimated
ot of providing such promotional allowances for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 is
reclassified from rooms costs, food and baverage costs, enlenainment, retail and other services costs and is
included in casing axpenses as folows!

Year Ended Decamber 31,
2013 2012 2011
Riooms $ 19828 § 16812 § 12,656
Food 00 beverage 4345 3901 s
Endertainment, ratal and others 8,301 128 5,510

5 71,967 § 63,071 47,859

Point-loyalty Programs.

The Group operates different loyally pregrams in carain of its properties to ancourage repaat business from
loyal $lot maching cuslomars and table gamos patrons. Mambars aarn points based on gaming activily and
such points can be radeamad for free play and other free goods and senvices. The Group actrues for loyally
program points expected lo be redeemed for cash and free play as a reduclion to gaming revenue and acoues
for loyalty program poinis expected lo be redeemed for free goods and services as casino expanse. The
accuals are based on management's estimates and assumplions regarding the redemption value, age and
histery with expiration of unused points resulting in a reduction of the aceruals.

Gaming Taxes

The Group is subject (o laxes based on gross gaming revenue in Macaw, These gaming 1xes are determined
from an assessment of the Group's gaming revenue and are recorded as an expense within the “Casino™ line
item in the consolidated statements of operations, These taxes tolaled $2.479,958, $2,024,697 and $1,948 652
for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, respettively.

Pre-opening Costs

Pre-opening costs, consisl primanly of marketing expenses and olher expenses related o new of starns
up oparations and are expensed as incurrad. The Group incurred pre-opening costs in connection wilh
Cily of Dreams Manila and Studio City sinte its acquisilion by the Group in December 2012 and July 2011,
respectively. as disclosed in Mote 25, and conlinues to incur such costs related to City of Dreams Manila, Studie
Cily and olher ong-off activities retated to the marketing of now facillies and operations.

Development Costs

Development costs include cosls associated with the Group's evalualion and pursuit of new business
oppoMunilios, which are expensed as incurned,
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

]

(u}

{w)

Adverlising Expenses

The Group expenses all advertising costs as incurred. Adventising costs incurred duting developmant pericds
ary included in pre-opening costs. Once a project is complated, advertising costs are mainly intuded in genaral
and administrative expenses. Total advertising costs were S37 481, $37,096 and 531 556 for tha years anded
Decomber 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectivaty.

Foreign Currency Transactions and Translations

All transactions in currencies other than funclisnal currencies of Ihe Company during the year are remeasured
at the exchange ratas prevailing on the respective transaclion dales. Monalary assets and labilities axisting
at the balance sheet date denominated in currencies other than functional currencies are remeasured at the
exchange rales existing on thal date. Exchange differances are recorded in the consolidated statements of
operalions.

The funclignal currencies of the Coempany and its major subsidiares are the United States dollar (*5° or “LUISS").
the Hong Kong dallar ("HK$"), the Macau Pataca ("MOP™) of the Philippine Peso ("PHP), respectivaly. All
assels and liabilties are translaled al the rales of exchange prevailing al the balance sheet date and all income
and expensa lems ane translated al the average rales of exchange over the yaar. All exchange differences

arising from the (ranstation of subsidiaries financial st ate recorded as a companent of comprehensive
incorme (oss).
Share-based Compensation Expenses

The Group issued resiricled shares and share oplions under its share incenlive plans during the years ended
Dacembaer 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, During the yaar anded Daecember 31, 2013, the Company’s subsidiany,
MCP, adopted a share incantive plan (the “MCP Share Incentive Plan™) and issued restricled shares and share
options of MCP.

The Group measuras the cost of employes services recehned in exchange for an award of equity instrumants
based on the grant dote fair value of the award and recognizes thot cosl over the senvics pericd, Compensatien
is atlributed fo the periods of associaled service and such expense is being recognized on a siraight-line basis
ovar the vesling peried of the awards, Forfoitures are estimated ol the time of grant, wilth such estimate updated
pariadically and with actual forfaitures recognized currantly to the extant thay differ from the astimala.

Further information on the Group's share-based compensation arrangemants is included in MNote 18.

Income Tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in Hong Kong, Macau, the Uniled States of America, the Philippines and
other jurisdictions where it oparales,

Daterred incomo laxes are recognized for all significant lemporary differences botwaen the tax basis of assols
and liabilities and their reported amounts in the consclidaled financial statemants. Deferred tax assets are
reducad by a valuation allowance when, in the opinion of management. it s mora likely than not that some
portion or all of the deferrad lax assats will nol be realized. The componants of the defarred Lax assels and
liabiities are individually classified as curreni and non-current based on the characteristics of the underlying
assels and liabillies. Curant income taxas are provided for in accordance wilh the [aws of the relevant laxing
authorities,
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

{in ihusands of ULS, dollars, sucepl aharo and per shade dala)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(w) Income Tax (continued)

x)

The Group's income lax relurns are subject 1o examination by tax authorilies in the jurisdictions whera it
operales. The Group assesses potentially unfavorable oulcomes of such examinations based on accouniing
slandards for unceriain incoma taxas. These accounting standards ulilize a two-slap approach to racognizing
and measuring uncertain tax pesitions. The fiest step is 1o evaluale the tax position for recognilion by
delermining if the weight of available evidence Indicates it is more likely than not that the position will be
sustaingd on auddl, including resolulion of related k5 o litgation procssoes. if any. The second slep is
to measure the tax benefit as the largest amount which is more than 50% likely, basad solely on the technical
maerits. of being sustained on examinations.

Net Income Attributable to Meleo Crown Entertainment Limited Per Share

Basic net income attributable to Malco Crown Entertainment Limited per sharg is calculated by dividing the net
income allributable to Mabkeo Crown Enledainmeant Lirmaled by he weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the year.

Diluted nel incomsa allribulable to Melco Crown Entertainment Limited per share is calculated by dividing the
nal intome atliibutable to Melco Crown Enterainment Limited by the weighled average aumber of ordinary
shares oulstanding during tha year adjusted to include the potentially dilutive effect of outstanding share-based
awards.

The weighted average number of ordinary and ordinary equivalent shares wsed in the calculation of basic and
dilvted net incoma altribulable to Moleo Crown Entortainmant Limited per share consisted of the fellowing:

Year Endad December 31,
a3 2012 W

Waighted average number of ordinary shares putstanding used in

the calculabion of basic ned income altfbutabis to

Meico Ceown Enertainment Limdted per shace 149678643 164546007 1604213324
Incremantal weighted average nunsbor of crdinacy shares from

asslmed vesting of restricled shates and exercise of share options

wting the treasury stock method 14519448 12916084 126841358
Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding used

inthe caboulation of diubed nel incoms atfribatabia fo Melco Crown

Entptainment Limited per share 1664158091 1658262005 1616854682

During the years ended Decamber 31, 2013, 2012 and 2041, nb. 1,901,136 and 5,547,036 outstanding share
oplions a5 al Dacembar 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, respecively, wane axcluded from the compulation of diduled
nel income atiribulable o Malco Crown Entertainment Limited par share as their effect would have been anli-
dilutivia,
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

]

(z)

Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities

The Group uses dervative financial instruments such as floating-for-fixed interest rate swap agreements and
forward exchange rale conlracls lo manage s risks associaled with inlerast rate flucluations in accordance
wilh landers’ requirements under the City of Dreams Project Facility and exchange rate fluciuations for the
intarast payments of the RMB Bonds, The Group accounts for derivalive financial instrumants in accordancse
wilh applicable accounting standards. Al darivative instrumanis are racognized in the consolidated financial
slaternents a1 fair value ab the balance sheet date, Any changes in fair value are recorded in the consolidated
slatements of operations or accumulated other comprehensive incomea, depending on whather the derivatiee
is designated and qualifies for hedge accounting, the type of hedge ransaction and the efectiveness of the
hadge. The estimaled fair valuas of interest rate swap agreaments and forward exchange rate contracls are
based on a standard valuation model that projects fulure cash flows and discounts these Tulure cash flows o a
prasent value using markatl-based observable inputs such as interest rate yields and marke! forward exchange
rakis,

Adl oulstanding interest rate swap agreemants and forward axchange rate contracts axpired during the year
andaed Dacamber 31, 2012, Further infermation on the Group's interest rafe swap agreamants and forward
axchangs rale conlracls are included in Nole 12,

Comprehensive Income and Accumulated Other Comprehensive Losses

Comprehansive income includes nat income, foreign currency transiation adjusiments, change in the fair value
of intarest rate swap ag 15, change in fair value of forward exchange rale contracts and reclassification
o earnings upon settlement of fanvard exchange rate contracts and ks reported in the consalidatad statemants
of comprahensive income, On June 30, 2011, the Group amended the Gy of Dreams Project Facility and the
accumulated losses of int 1 rale swap ag s weare reclassified to eamings as the interest rate swap
agreements no longer qualified for hedge accounting immediately after the amendment of the City of Dreams:
Project Facility. Further information on the amandment of the City of Dreams Projec! Facility is included in Note
12

As of December 31, 2013 and 212, the Group's accumulated other comprehensive losses reprasented foreign
currancy translation adjusimants,

Mateo Crown Entertainmont Leitod  Annual Report 2013

]



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

{in ihusands of ULS, dollars. sucepl ahade and per shade dala)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {CONTINUED)
(aa) Recent Changes in Accounting Standards
Nowly Adopled Accounting Pronouncemants:

In July 2012, the Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASET) issued amonded accounling guidance to
simplify lesling indafinite-lived intangible assals, olher than goodwil, for impairmant. The amended guidance
allows companies lo perform a qualitalive assessment lo determine whether further impairment testing
of indafinile-lived inlangible assels is netassary. An anlily is nol required to caleulats the fair value of an
indefinite-lvad intangible asset and perform the quantitative impairment test unless the entily determines that it
is “more-likety-than-nof” thal 1he assel is impaired. The adoplion of this amendad slandard was effecltiva for the
Group as of Janwary 1, 2013 and did not have a material impact on the Group's consolidated financial resulls
or dischsunes.

In February 2013, the FASE issued authoritative guidance on the reporting of reclassifications out of
accumulated olher comprohansive incame, The guidance requires an entity 1o prasent, aither on the face of the
slatement where nel income is presented or in the notes, significant amounts reclassified oul of accumulated
ather comprehgnsive incoms by the respective ling ilems of nit income i the amount is reclassified to net
income in its entirely in the same reporting period. The adoption of this guidance was affective for the Group
as of Janvary 1, 2013 and did net have a material effect on the Group's conselidaled financial resulls or
disclosures.

Racant Accounting Pronouncaments Not Ye! Adopted:

In Fetruary 2013, the FASE issuced an aulhoritalive pronouncement related to obligations resulling from joint
and several liability arrangemants for which the tolal amount of the obligation is fixed al the reporing date. The
pronguncemenl provides guidanca for the recognition, measuremant, and disclosure of obligations resulling
from joint and sévaral lability arfangements for which the tolal amaunt of the obligation within the scopé of this
prenguncement is fixed al the reporling dale, excepl for obligaticns addressed within exisling guidance in L5,
GAAP. The guidance fequires an enlily 1o measura those obligalions as tha sum of the amount the repoding
enlity agreed to pay on the basis of ils arrangement among its co-obligors and any additional amount the
rapoing enlity expecs to pay on bahalf of its co-obligors. The guidance in this pronouncamant aleo fequires an
enlity 1o disciose the nature and amount of the obligation as well as other infermation aboul these obligations.
The amandments are effective for intérim and fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2013, with early
adoplion pormifted. The amandmants in this Accounting Standards Updates should bo appliod relrospoctively
to all prior paricds presanted for those obligations resulting from joint and several abilly arrangemants within
ihe scope thal exisi at the beginning of an entity’s fiscal year of adoption. An antity may elec! to use hindsight
for the comparative periads (if it changed ils accounting as a resull of adopling the amendments in this
pranguncement) and should disclose that facd. The adoption of this amended guidance ks not expecied to have
a matedial imgact on the Group's consolidated financial results of disclosures,
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(aa) Recent Changes in Accounting Standards (continued)
Recon! Accounting Pronouncements Not Ye! Adopted: (continuad)

In Marech 2013, the FASE issued an authoritalive pronouncemant related to parant's accounting for the
cumulative transialion adjusiment upon deracegnition of cartain subsidiaries or groups of assels within
a fereign entily or of an investment in a foreign enlity. When a reporling entily (parent) ceases lo have a
eontrolling financial interest in a subsidiary of group of assels that is a nonprofil activity of a business (olhar
than a sple of in substance real estote or conveyance of ofl and gas mineral righls) within a fereign entily, the
parend is required to release any related cumulative fransialion adjustment into nel income. Accordingly, the
curmalative transiation adjusiment should be reloased inlo not income ondy if the sale or iransfer resulls in the
complete or substantially complate liquidation of the forakgn antity in which the subsidiary or group of assels had
resided. The amendments are effective for interim and fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2013, with
early adoplion permitied. The amendmenis should be applied prospectively lo derecagnition events occurring
after the effective date, Prior periods should not be adjusied, The adoplion of this amanded guidance s ot
expacied to have a malanal impact on the Group's consolidated financial resulls o disclosuras.

In July 2013, the FASB kssued a pronouncement which provides guidance on financial staterment presentation
of an unrecognized tox benefil when a net eperaling loss carnforward, o similar tax loss, or a tox crodit
carryforward exists. The amandmenls require an anlity to present an unrecognized tax benefit, or a pordion
of an unrecognized tax benefit, in (he financial stplements 0s a reduction to a doferred Lax assel for a net
oparating loss carryforward, a similar tax loss, or a lax eredil carmforward, axcept as fellows. To the extent a net
oparating loss carryforward, 2 simélar tax loss, or 2 lax credit carmylorward is not available at he reporting dale
under the tax law of the applicable jurisdiction to settla any additional income laxas that would resull from the
disallowance of a tax posilion or the lax law of the applicable jurisdiction does nol require the entily 1o use, and
this anlity dons not intend to use, the defemed 1aX as5et for such purpose, thi unracognized tax banafit should
be presented in the financial stalements as a liabllity and should not be combined wilh deferred tax assels, The
amandmants are affettive for intarm and fiscal yaars baginning after Dacembar 15, 2013, with aarly adoplion
permitted, The amendments should be applied prospectively lo all unrecegnized lax benefits thal exist at the
affective date, Ratrospective applicalion is panmitted. The adopton of this amended guidance is not expected
to have a material impact on the Group’s consolidated financial results or disclosures.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

{in ihusands of ULS, dollars. sucepl ahado and per shade dala)

3. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, NET

Components of accounts recaivable, nel are as follows:

Decombss 31,

2013 2012
Casino § 42 3 4nTE
Hotal 1,353 2,390
Othvir 5858 5007
Sib-tedal 3 431214 § 434,103
Likss: aliowants for doublfil debls. (143,334) (113,284)

§  nnEE 3 frahre]

During (hi yaars anded Decombar 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, the Group has provided allowancs for doubtful dabls
of 843,750, $28,566 and $36,871 and has directly written off accounts receivable of $549, $1.850 and $932,
respectively,

Movemant of allowanes for doubtful debls are as follows:

Year Ended December 31,

03 a2 2m
AL beginning of year § 113845 86775 § 41480
Addional allkwance, ned of recovenios 43750 26565 WA
Reclassiied (1o from long-erm recaivables, net (13.680) 1] 8414
Al end of yoat §  1433M 5 113284 § 5,175

The Group grants unsecured credil linas o gaming promaters based on pre-approved cradit imits. The Group
typically lssues markers 1o gaming promoters with a credit peried of 30 days. There are some gaming promolers for
whom credil is granted on a ravolving basis based on the Groups manthly credit sk assessmant of such gaming
promoters. Credit lines granted to all gaming promolers are subject to monthly review and setllemant proceduras.
For olher approved casing customers, he Group typically allows a credit paniad of 14 days 1o 28 days on issuancs of
markars fellowing investigations of ereditworthiness. An extended rapayment term of typically 90 days may be oifered
b cOsing cuslomars with Iange gaming lsses and ¢slabished erodi history, Th following is an analysis of soeounts
raceivable by age presented based on payment due dale, net of allowance:

Decsimber 31,

2003 2002
Currert $ 1813 s mIsM
1=30 doys 57,727 51,407
W1-50 days 11,607 9,842
£1-50 days 1878 1441
Ot 90 dirys 19,291 0,405

$ My 3 3B
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ASSETS HELD FOR SALE

On Nevember 20, 2013, one of the Group's subsidiaries entered into a promissory agreement with a third party for
planned dispasal of its propenies in Macau for a total considaration of HK$240,000.000 (equivalent 1o $30.848) and a
cash deposit of HE$10,000,000 (equivakent to $1,285) was received by the Group on the same date. The sale of the
proparties was complated on Fabmeary 18, 2014, further details ks disclosed in Mota 32(c). As of Decambar 31, 2013,
the total net canrying valee of the propatios held for sale amounted Lo $8.468,

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, NET

Docomber 31,
2013 2012
[
Buildings $ 260TH 5 2430
Furniure. Exures and equipment 440732 430941
Leasshold impeovements 265508 055
Plant and gaming mochinary 162,763 153,680
Alrcralt S5 L2 v
etor vehicios 10,055 ]
Construdion in progeess B85 8,812
Sub-total § 4505571 8§ 3ESTIm
Less: b (1.196.725) (973, 183)
Propery and equipment, ned $ 3308845 § 268400

As of December 31, 2013 and 2012, construclion in gregress in relaton 1o City of Dreams, Studie City and City of
Dreams Manila included interest paid or payable on loans from shareholders, the City of Dreams Project Facility,
ierest rale Swap agreements, RMB Bonds, 2011 Credit Facilities, Stedio City Notes and the land premium payabhe
for the land use right and capital lease obligations, amortizalion of deferred financing costs and other direct incidental
cosls capalized (reprosenting insurancd, solanes and wiges and corain othar professional charges incured) which
amounted to $102, 246 and $44.824, respectivaly.

During the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, additions e properly and equipmenl amounted Lo
$912.355, $283.998 and $236.555, respoctively and disposals of propany and Squipmant al carrying Amount Wi
$2,822, $1,310 and $655, respeciivaly.

Buildings and furniture, fixtures and equipment with nel book values amounted to $288.978 and $997. respectively.
ware hald under capital lsase as of Decamber 31, 2013, Mo buildings or furniture, fixtures and aquipment ware hatd
under capital lease as of Decamber 34, 201 2. Furdher informalion of the lease amangement is inclided in Nola 13,
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

{in ihusands of ULS, dollars. eucepl ahade and per shado dala)

GAMING SUBCONCESSION, NET

December 3,

2013 0m2
Deemed cost 5 900000 % 900,000
Less: amietizabon (414.96%) (357,752
Ganing Subconpesson, nel 3 485031 % Ear i)

The deemed cost was delermined based on the estimaled fair value of the gaming subconcession contribuled by
a shareholder of the Company in 2006. The gaming subconcession is amornized on a straighl-line basis over the
term of the gaming subconcassion agreement which expires in Jung 2022, The Group expects thal amortization of
the gaming subconcession will be approximately $57,237 eath year from 2014 through 2021, and approximately
827,135 in 2022,

GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS, NET

Goodwill relating 1o Mocha Clubs and olher imangible assels with indafinite usaful lnves, represanting tradamanks
of Mocha Clubs, are not amonized. Goodwill and inlangible assets argse from the acquisition of Mocha Slot Group
Limiled and its subsidiaries by the Group in 2008,

To assess polantial impairmant of goadwill, the Group performs. an assessment of the carrying value of the raporing
unils ot least on an annudl basis or whon evenls ooour of circumslances changd that would more likely than not
reduce the astimated fair value of these reporing units balow their canying value. if the carrying valua of a rapoding
unit exceeds its fair value, the Group would perform the second step in its assessment process and record an
impairment lass to aarnings 1o the extant the carrying amount of the reparting unil's goodwill exceads its impliad fair
value, The Group estimates the fair valve of those reporing units through intermal anatysis and external valuations,
which ulilize income and marke! valualion apgroaches through the application of capitalizad earmings, discounted
cash flow and market comparable methods, These valuation lechniques are based on a number of eslimates and
assumptions, including the projacted fulure operaling rasults of tha reporing undl, discount rates, long-lerm growih
rales and markel comparatde.

Trademarks of Mocha Clubs are tested for impairmant at least annually or when evenls oocur of cireumslances
changs thal would more kaly than nol reduce the astimated fair value of rademarks below its earying value using
the relief-fromeroyalty method, Under this mathod, the Group estimates the fair value of the trademarks through
inarnal and external valuations, mainly based on the incramental after-tax cash flow reprasenting the royallies that
the Group s religved from paying given i is the owner of the lrademarks. These valuation techniques are based on
a number of eslimates and assumplions, including the projected fulure revanues of the rademarks calculaled using
an appropriale royally rale, discount rale and long-lerm growth rates,

The Group has padormed annual lests for impairment of goodwill and rademarks in accordance with the accounting
standards regarding goodwill and siher intangible assels. No impairment 10ss has been recognized during the years
andod Decombar 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011,
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LONG-TERM PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER ASSETS

Long-term prepayments, deposits and other assets consisted of the following:

Decembss 31,

2013 2012
Entortainmant production costs 5 T2853 § 70,356
Less: sccumulated amonization (26416} {16,603}
Entertainmant production costs, el H 46437 % 53,753
Advanee payments for constnuction cosls A Ko -
Propaymant of daferred Bnanting totls TH.906 19450
Deposits aed olfver 5441 12655
Lenig-hiamm recaivables, nel 6250 2,383
Long-erm prepaymonts, doposits and other assts $ MO 3 £8.241

Entertainment production costs represent amounts incurred and caphalized for entertainment shows in City of
Dreams. The Group amedized the entertainment production cosls aver 10 years of the respeclive useful Ifa of the
entenainment show, whichever i3 sharer,

Advance paymants for construction costs are wilh U lon and fit-oul cost for Studio Gity and City
of Dreams Manila and are not axpected 1o be sallled to the Group within the naxt financial year.

Long-term receivables, nel, represent casing recelvables from casing customers where settlement is not expecled
within the next wear, Aging of such balances are all gver 30 days and include allvwance for deubiiul debls of 520,321
and 56,641 as of Dacember 31, 2013 and 2012, respeciively. During the year ended Decembar 31, 2013, long-term
recaivables of $868 and allowance for doubtful debls of $568 were reclossified to current; and current accounts
recaivable of $18,559 and allowance for doubtiul debls of $14, 548 were reclassified o non-cument. Reclassifications
to currenl accounts recaivable. nel, are made when condilions support thal il is probable for setiiemant of such
balances to cccur within one year.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

{in ihusands of ULS, dollars, sucepl ahare and per shado dala)

LAND USE RIGHTS, NET

December 31,

13 b1z
Altina Maats — Madszn-borm lease  Taipa Land") $  MGAM 5 143085
City of Dreaens — Madium-borm lease (‘Cotai Land’) 350,575 376,122
Studio Cty — hedum-darm ks ('Studio Cy Land) 653,554 £53564

$ 118957 § 1173671

Less: pocumutabed amnorization 1247.953) (183,687}
Land uss rights, net $ 951618 § 030084

Land wse righls are recorded al cost less accumulaled amorization. Amadization is provided over the eslimatled
Iase larm of the kind on & siraight-ing basis. The expiry dales of the leases of the land use rights of Altira Macau,
City of Dreams and Studio Cily are March 2031, August 2023 and Oclober 2026, respactively.

In January 2013, the Group recognized an addiional land premium of approximatety $2 449 for Taipa Land upon
Altira Developments Limited's ("Allira Developmants™), an indirect subsidiary of the Company, acceptance of
the initial tarms far the revision of the land concassion conlract issued by the Macau Gowvernmant furher lo an

dmenl request ied by Altira Developmants in 2042 for an increase of the total gress fleor ana, to reflect the
conslruction plans approved by the Macau Government and to enable the final regisiration of the Taipa Land. In Juna
2013, the Macau Governmant issued the final amendment proposal for the revision of the land concession conlract
for Taipa Land. On July 15, 2013, Altira Developments paid the additicnal land pramium of approximately 52,449 set
forth in the final ment and a e terms of such proposal on July 16, 2013. The land grant
améndment process was complated wilh the publitation in the Matauw official gazella of such révision on Decambear
1€, 2013, Furiher details en the revised land amendment fer Taipa Land is disclosed in Nete 22{c).

In March 2013, the Group recognized an additional land premium of approximately $23.344 for Cotal Land upen
Malco Crown (COD) Developments Limited's (*Malco Crown (COD) Davalopments”), an indiract subsidiary of the
Comgany and Meleo Crown Macau's acceplance of the land grant amendment proposal for the land concession
conlract of the Cofai Land, issued by the Macau Govemmeant in February 2013 further to an amendmeant request
applied by Meleo Crown (COD) Developments in 2011, Such amendment propesal contermplaling the dovelopment
of an add#tional five-slar hotel areas in replacemant of the four-star apariment hotel areas currenlly conlemplated in
such land grant, and the extansion of ihe devalopment pariod of the City of Dreams land grant uniil the date falling
four years aflar publication of the amendment in the Macau official gazatta. In October 2013, the Macau Gevernmant
issued the final amendmant proposal for the revisien of the land concession contract for Cotal Land. On Oclober
16, 2013, Melco Crown (COD) Developments paid a portion of the addilisnal land pramium of approximataly $8,736
sel forth in the final amendment propoesal, and on Gctober 17, 2013, Melco Crown (COD) Developmants and
Maleo Crown Macau accepted the terms of such propasal. The land grant amendman! process for Colai Land was
subsequently completed following the publication in the Macau official gazette of such revision on January 24, 2014,
Further details on the proposad land amandment for Colai Land is disclosed in Nole 22(c).
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11.

LAND USE RIGHTS, NET (CONTINUED)

The Studio City Land was acquired upon acquisilion of assets and labilities as disclosed in Note 25(b). The cost of
Studie City Land was recognized in accordance with propesed amendmant terms of the land concession contract
issued by the Macau Govemment and acoephed by Studie Cily Develeprments Limited (*Stedio City Developments™),
an indirect subsidiary of the Company, in Movember 2006. In Juna 2012, the Group recegnized an additienal
land gremivm upon Studio City Davelopments’ acceplance of the final amendnvent proposal issued by the Macau
Government, which was completed with the publication in the Macau official gazelte of such proposed amendment
on July 25, 2012, Such amendment refiected an increase in the gross Nloor area for constnection and (the oxtension
of the devalopment pericd 1o 72 months from tha date of publication of such amendmem contracl. Further details on
the final amendment for Studio City Land & disclosed in Note 22(c).

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
The fellowing iz an aged analysis of accounis payable presented based on paymant due date:

Decambed 31,

2013 202
Within 30 days $ 8429 § 10,785
3160 days £l 1,187
61-90 days 473 1,284
Qv 90 doys 517 513

$ 9825 § 13,745

ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

Decembed 31,

2013 2012
Construction costs payable 5 0057 § 61,350
Customir dopasils and lickol saks £0421 72141
Gaming tax accruats 38920 197,517
InOTes] XPONSES payItil 30,52 2004
Land uea rights payable 50,500 53,000
Opsirating axpensa and other actruals and labiites 166,504 119584
Other gaming retated actruals 29,157 4504
Crutstanding gamire chips and inkens PEIGES 278,167
Puayables for acquisiion of assets and lisbBbes (Note 25001 - 24244

$ 928751 §  8S044
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

{in ihusands of ULS, dollars, sucepl ahade and per shade dala)

12. LONG-TERM DEBT

Leng-term debl consisted of the following:

December 31,
2013 2012
2003 Senior Notes 5 1000000 5 -
Studio City Notes 825,000 825,000
201 Credi Facilibes 673833 1014728
Alrcraft Term Loan 5T 40,45
2010 Senier Notes™ - 500,967
RMB Bonds - 357 645
Dopest-Linkod Laon - 3808
2530480 3 3amdesd
Curtaeil padtion o8 ng-aim debt (262 565) (854940}

$ 208 3 23

City of Dreams Project Facility

On September 5, 2007, Meleo Crown Macau (the “Borrower™) entered into the City of Dreams Praject Facility, which
was subsaquently amendad from time to tima, with certain lendars in an aggregate amount of $1,750,000 to fund
the City of Dreams project. The City of Dreams Project Facility consisted of a $1.500,000 tarm an fagiity (the
*Term Loan Facility”) and a $250.000 revolving credit facility {ihe *Revolving Credit Facility™). The Term Loan Facility
would have malured on September 5, 2014 and was subject 1o quartedy ameonization paymanis thal commaenced on
Dacember 5, 2010, The Revolving Credt Facility would have malured on Seplamber 5, 2012 or, if earfier, the dale of
repayment, prepayment or cancellation in full ¢f the Term Loan Facility, and had no interim amortization payments,
In addition, the Barrower was also subject 1o quanarly mandalory prepayments in respect of various amounts
within ¢eriain affiliates and subsidiaries of the Bomower (together wilth the Berrower colleclively refemred lo as the
*‘Borfawing Group™) under the terms of the City of Draams Project Fasility.

Drawdowns on tha Term Loan Facilly ware subject 1o satisfaction of conditions precedant spacifiad in tha City of
Dreams Project Facility and the Revolving Credit Facility was to be made availatle on a fully revolving basis from the
date upon which the Term Loan Facility had been fully drawn, to the date that was gne month prior 1o the Revolving
Crodil Foaciity's final maturity date.
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12. LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED)

City of Dreams Project Facility (continued)

The indebledness under the City of Dreams Project Facility was guaranteed by the Borrowing Group and security
for the indebtedness included a first-priority mortgage, security and charges over certain assets and lems of the
Borrowing Group as well as other customary security in accordance with the terms of the City of Dreams Project
Fagility, The City of Dreams Project Facilly also containgd carain covenants customary for such financings and
required the Barrowing Group to comply with cartain financial covenants. In addition, there ware provisions that
Emited of prehibited payments of conain dividends and olher distibulions by the Borrowing Group to the Company
or persons who are not members of the Bomrowing Group (described in further delail in Mote 20).

Borrowings under the City of Dreams Projecd Facility bore intarast at tha London interbank Offerad Rate (‘LIBOR™) or
Hong Kong Interbank Cffered Rate ("HIBOR™) plus & margin of 2.75% per annum unlil substamial completion of the
City of Dreams project, at which time the interast rate was reduced to LIBOR or HIBOR plus a margin of 2.50% per
annurm, The City of Dreams Preject Facility also provided for further réductions in the margin if the Borrowing Group
satisfied certain prescribad levarage ratie tests upon completion of the City of Dreams project.

The Bomower was obligated lo pay a commiimen! fee quarterly in aears gn the undrawn amount of the City of
Draams Praject Facility throughout the availability panicd. The Borrewer recognized loan commitmant faes on the City
of Dreams Project Facility of 3461 during the year ended Decembar 31, 2011,

In conneclion with the signing of the City of Dreams Preject Facility, Meloo Crown Macay entered inte certain
fNoating-for-fixed interest rate swap agreements during the years 2008 and 2008 to limit its exposure to interest rate
risk, All these interest role swap agroements expired during the years 2011 and 2012, Under the interest rate swap
agreamants, Meloo Crown Matau paid a fiked intarest rate ranging from 1.96% to 4.74% par annum of the notional
ameunt, and received variable interest which was based on the applicable HIBOR for each of the paymeni dales.
Befora the amandment of the Cily of Dreams Projact Facility on June 30, 2011 as disclosad balow, these intéras! rale
swap agreements were expecled o remain highly efective in fixing the interes! rate and qualify for cash Now hedge
accounting. Therefore, thate was no impact on the consolidated stalemants of operations from changes in the fair
value of Ihe hedging insirumenis. Instead tha fair value of the instruments were recorded as assels or liabililies on
the consolidaled balance sheels, with an offselting adjustmént 16 the accumulated olhar comprahensive koss unlid
the hedged interes! expenses were recognized in the consolidated slatements of operations. Immediately after the
amandment of the Cily of Dreams Project Facility on June 30, 2011, the interes! rale swap agreamants no longer

lifiad for hedge ac ing. Accordingly, the Group reclassified the accumulated losses of $4.310 recognized
in accurnulated ather comprahensive losses prior 1o the discontinuance of hedge accounting to the conselidatled
stalements of oparations for the year ended December 31, 2011. The subsequent changes in fair value of the interest
[l SWOP DGrodMInls were recognized in the consolidaled statements of operations during the years 2011 ang
2012,

During the year ended December 31, 2011, the Bomower repaid $89,158 and prepaid $20.896 of the Term Loan
Facility, ascotding to the quarlery amortizalion payments and the quanarly mandatory prapaymens, respectively,
and the Borrower also made veluntary repayments of $7,022 before the amendment to the City of Dreams Project
Facility on June 30, 2011 as described below.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

{in ihousands of LLS, dollars. eucepl aharo and per shado dala)

12. LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED)

2011 Credit Facilities

Gn June 30, 2011, the City of Dreams Project Facility was amended pursuant to an amendmant agreement entared
inte by, among others, the Bormower and cedain lenders under the City of Dreams Project Facility on June 22, 2011,
The 2011 Credit Facilities, which was subsequently amendad frem time fo time, among ofhar things: (i} reduced the
Term Loan Facility o HK$E, 241,440,000 (equivalent to SB02,241) (the “2011 Term Loan Faciily™) and increasaed the
Revolving Credit Facility to HIK$3,120, 720,000 (equivalant to $401,121) (the *2011 Reveling Credit Facility™), both of
which any danominated in Hong Kong doltars: (i) introduced naw lenders and remove coain lenders onginally under
the City of Dreams Project Facility; (i) extended the repayment maturity date; {iv} reduced and removed carlain
restriclions imposoad by the covenants in the City of Dreams Project Facility; and (v) remeved MPEL (Delaware) LLG,
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Barrower which was subsaquently dissolved on May 31, 2012, from the Borrowing
Group (the “2011 Bomowing Group™).

The final matudty date of the 2011 Crodit Facilities is June 30, 2018, The 2011 Tarm Loan Facility & repayable in
quarterly instalmanls aceoarding to an amortization schedule which commenced on Seplember 30, 2013. Each loan
made under the 2011 Revolving Credit Facility is repayable in full on the last day of an agreed upon interast period
in respact of the loan, generally ranging from one to sik manths, or relling over subject to compliance with cerain
covenants and salisfaction of conditions precedent. The Borrawar may make velunlary prepayments in respect
of tha 2011 Credit Facilitias in a minimum amount of HKS180,000,000 (equivalent to 520_556}, plus the amount
of any applicable break cosis. The Borrower is alse subject 1o mandatory prepayment requirements in respect
of various amounts within the 2011 Borrowing Group, including bul not imited to: (i) the net proceads recakvad
by any membaer of the 2011 Borrowing Group in respect of the compulsory transfer, Seizure of acquisition by any
governmental authority of the assets of any mamber of the 2011 Borrowing Group (subject to carfain excaplions); (i)
the net proceeds of cenain assel sales, subject to reinvestment righls and cartain exceplions, which are In excess
of $15,000; (i) net termination, claim or selllamant procaeds paid under the Borrower's subtoncession or the 2011
Bomowing Group's land concessions, subject 1o cerlain exceplions: (iv) insurance preceeds nel of expenses lo oblain
such proceeds under the property insurancas relating o tha total loss of all or substantially all of the Altira Macau
gaming business; and (v) elher ingurance proceeds nel of expenses lo obtain such proceeds under any property
insurances, subject 1o reinvasiment rights and certain exceplions, which are in excess of $15.000.

Drawdowns on the 2011 Term Loan Facility wera subject 1o satisfaction of conditions precadent specified in the 2011
Cradil Faclios and the 2011 Revolving Credit Facility is to be made available on a fully revolving bosis to the date
that is one month prior to the 2011 Revolving Credit Facility’s final maturity data.

The indebfedness under the 2011 Credil Facilities is guaranieed by tha 2011 Bomowing Group. Security for the 2011
Credil Facilities incluged: & first prionity mongage over all land whedne Allira Macau and City of Dreams are located,
such morgages also cover all prasant and any future buildings on. and fidures to, the ralevant land; an assignmeant
of any Land use rghts under [and CONCOSSIoN AGREaMENTSs, IEa5es of GqUiVAlENLS) Chargns ovir the bank aocoums in
raspact of the 2011 Boamowing Group, subject lo ceflain exceptiens; assignment of the rights under certain insurance
policies; first priority security over the chattels, rectivables and olher assets of the 2011 Borrowing Group which ane
not subject to any security under any other security decumantation; firs! priority changes over the issued share capital
of thee 2011 Borrowing Group and equipment and tools used in th gaming business by the 2011 Bomowing Group:
as well as other customary securily.
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12. LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED)

2011 Credit Facilities (continued)

The 2011 Credil Faciliies also contain canain covenants customary for such financings including, butl not Bmiéled to:
limitations on (i) incurrdng additional liens; (i) incuring additional indebledness (including guarantees); (iil) making
carfain investments; (iv) paying dividends and other restricted paymenis; {v) craaling any subsidiaries; (vi) selling
as5els: and (vil) enteding into any contracts for the construction of financing of an additional hote! tewar in conneclion
with tha davelopmaent of City of Dreams excapl in accordance with plans appraved by the lenders in accordance with
the teres of thiy 2011 Credil Facilities, The 2011 Credil Faclilios removed the financial covenants under the City of
Draams Project Facility, and replaced them with, without limitation, a leverage ratio, tolal leverage ratic and intarast
caver ratio, The first test dale of the financial covenants was September 30, 2011,

Managerment believes that the 2011 Borrowing Group was in compliance with all financial covenants of the 2011
Cradil Faciities as of December 31, 2013,

There are proviskons that limél or prohibit certain paymants of dividends and other distributions by the 2011 Bomowing
Group 1o the Company of parsans who are nol members of the 2011 Borrowing Group (described in furthar detail
in Mote 20). As of Decamber 31, 2013 and 2012, the net assets of the 2011 Borrowing Group of approximately
£3,220,000 and $2,382,000, respeclively, wine restiicted from being distribulad under the terms of the 2011 Credit
Fadlities,

Borrowings under the 2011 Credit Faciities bear interest at HIBOR plus 0 margin ranging from 1.75% lo 2.75% per
annum a5 adjusted in accordance with the leverage ratio in respect of tha 2011 Bamowing Group. The Bommower may
seloct an interest pariod for Borrowings under the 2011 Credit Facilities of one, two, three or six menlhs or any olher
agread pefiod. The Borrower is obligalad 1o pay a commilmeant fes quartary in amears from June 30, 2011 on the
undrawn amount of ihe 2011 Rewelving Credit Facility througheut the availability peried, Loan commitment faes on
the 2011 Gredit Facililies amounting 16 §2.453, $1,324 and $950 wete retognized during the years ended Decambar
31,2013, 2012 and 2011, respeclively.

As of December 31, 2012, the 2011 Term Loan Facility has bean fully drown down and HKS$1.653,154,570
{equivalent 1o $212,488) under the 2011 Rewvolving Credit Facility has also been drawn down. During the year
anded Decomber 31, 2013, the Group repaid HES998,630, 400 (equivalent to $128,358) under the 2011 Term Loan
Facllily according to the quariarly amortization schedule which ed on Seplember 30, 2013 and repaid
HK$1,653,154,570 (equivalent lo $212488) under the 2011 Revelving Credil Facility. As of December 31, 2013,
the Group had total outstanding borrowings of HKSS 242 808 600 (equivalent to $673,883) under the 2011 Credit
Facilities, The enlire 2011 Revolving Credit Facility of HK$3,120,720,000 (equivalent to $401,121) remaing available
for fuluhe dravedown.

The Group accountad for the amendment of the City of Dreams Project Facdlity as an extinguishmant of debt because
the difference betwedn the applicable fulure cash flows undar the 2011 Creddl Facilities compared with the applicable
futura cash flows under the City of Dreams Project Facility as of the amendment date. June 30, 2011 was in excass
of 10% of such applicable future cash flows. The Groug wiole off the unamortized deferred financing costs of $25,193
upon the extinguishmant of tha City of Dreams Project Facility as loss on extinguishmant of dabl in the consalidated
stalemants of ogerations for the year ended Doecembaer 31, 2011 and the 2011 Credit Faciliies was recognized at fair
value upon the extinguishmani. In additien, the Group capilalized the third party fees and related issuance costs in
eelation 1o the 2011 Credd Facilties of $29.328 as deferred financing costs.
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{in ihusands of ULS, dollars. sucepl ahao and per shade dala)

12. LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED)

2010 Senior Notes

On May 17, 2010, MCE Finance Limited ("MCE Financa®, a wholly-cwned subsidiary of the Company] issued and
listed the 2010 Senlor Notes of $600.000 on the Official List of Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited
("5GX-5T7). The purchase price pakd by the initlal purchasers was 98.671% of the principal amount. Tha 2010
Senior Moles were general obligations of MCE Finance, secured by a first-priosity pledge of the inlercompany
nole (the *Infarcompany Mobe™) representing the on-lending of the gross proceeds from the issuance of the 2010
Seniaf Notes by MCE Finance to an indirect subsidiary of MCE Finance 1o reduce the indeblednass under the
City of Dreams Project Facility, ranked equally in right of payment to all exisling and fulure Senior indebledness of
MCE Finance and ranked senior in right of payment to any existing and fulure subardinated indebledness of MCE
Finance, The 2010 Senior MNoles weane effeclively subordinated to all of MCE Finance's existing and fulure sacurad
indabtadness o the extent of lhe value of the assels securing such debt. The Company and MPEL International
Limited (together, the “Senior Guarantors™), fully and unconditionally and jointly and severally guaranteed the
2010 Sanior Moles on a seniof secured basis. Cedain other indiract subsidiaries of MCE Finante (the “Subsidiary
Gioup Guaranters”), including Melco Crown Macau (together wilh thi Senior Guaranlors, the 2010 Senior Notes
Guarantors™), fully and unconditionally and joinily and severally guaranteed the 2010 Senior Noles on a senior
subordingled secured basis, The guaranieos provided by the Senior Guarantors were gendaral ebligations of the
Senior Guarantors, ranked equally in night of paymaent with all existing and fulure senior indebledness of the Senior
Guarantars and ranked senior in right of payment 1o any oxisting and future subordinatled indebledness of the
Senlor Guarantars. The guaraniges provided by the Subsidiary Group Guarantors are general abligations of the
Subsidiary Group Guarantors, ranked subordinated in right of paymen! to indebladness of such Subsidiary Group
Guaraniors’ ebligations under the designated senior indebledness described in the related offering memorandum
and ranked senlor in ight of payment to any existing and future subordinated indebtedness of such Subsidiary Group
Guaranlors. Upon entering of the 2011 Credit Facilities, the guarantees provided under the 2010 Senior Noles were
amended with he principal effect being thal claims of noteholders undar the 2010 Senlor Moles against subsidiaries
of MCE Finange that are obligars under the 2011 Credit Facilities would rank aqually in right of payment with claims
of landers under the 2011 Credit Facilities. The 2010 Senior Noles would have malured on May 15, 2018, Interast
on the 2010 Senior Noles was accrued at a rate of 10.25% per annum and was payable sermi-annually in arrears on
May 15 and November 15 of each year, commenced on MNovembar 15, 2010

The net proceads from the offering after deducting the original isswe discount of approximately $7,.974 and
undarwriting commissions and olher expenses of approximately $14 960 was approximately $577,086. The Group
used the net procaeds from the offering to reduce the indebladness under the City of Dreams Project Facility by
approximately $444,066 and deposited the remaining $133,000 in a bank account that was restricted for use to
pay fulure Gity of Dréams Projecl Facity's quanarly amortizalisn paymants commenced in Decambar 2010, The
restriction was released upon the amendment of the City of Dreams Project Facility on June 30, 2011 as described
above, The 2010 Senior Noles were reflected nel of discount under leng-term debt in the censolidated balance
sheets. The Group capitalized the underwriting fee and related issuance costs in relation 1o the 2010 Senior Notes of
$14,585 as defamed financing cosls,

MCE Finance had the oplion to redeem all or part of the 2010 Senior Motes at any lime prior (o May 15, 2014, at a
*make-whole™ redemplion price. Thereafler, MCE Finance had the option to redesm all or a portion of the 2010 Sanior
Motes al any time at fixed redemption prices that dedined ralably over lime.

Prict 1o May 15, 2013, MCE Finance had the oplion 1o redesm up 16 35% of the 2010 Senior Nobes with the net
cash procoads from ond of more certain equity offerings at a fixed redemption price. In addilion, under certain
circumstances ond subject o cerain excoptions 05 more fully described in the indenture, MCE Finance also hod the
aplion 1o redean in whola, but nolin part of the 2010 Senior Notes at fed redemplion prices,
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12. LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED)

2010 Senior Notes (continuad)

The indenture geverning the 2010 Senior Motes conlained certain covenants thal, subject to cantain excaplions
and conditions, limited the ability of MCE Finance and ils restricled subsidiaries to, amang othar things: (i) incur or
guaraniee additional indebtedness; (i) make specified resticled payments; (i) issue or sell capital stock; (iv) sell
assats: (v) croate lens: (vi) enter into agreaments thal reslrict the restricted subsidianes’ ability te pay dividends,
transfer assats or make intercompany loans; (vii} anter inlo transactions with shareholders or affiliates; and (viil) affect
o consolidalion oF marger,

Thera were provisions under the indenture of the 2010 Senior Noles thal limited or prohibited cerain paymants
of dividends and other distributions by MCE Finance and its respecive restricted subsifiaries o the Company or
persons who were not MCE Finance or members of MCE Finance respective restricted subsidiaries, subject to
cartain exceptions and condilions (described in further detall in Note 200, As of December 31, 2012, the nel assals
of MCE Finance and its respective restricted subsidiarios of approximately 52,500,000 ware restricted from being
distribulad under the terms of the 2010 Senior Motes.

MCE Finance had entered into a regisiration rights agreement wheraby MCE Finance registered the notes to be
aued in an exchange offer for the 2010 Senior Noles wilh the .S, Securities and Exchange Comemission in August
2010 and with further amendments filed in Cclober and November 2010 in connection with the exchange offer, which
ragisiration slalement was affective on November 12, 2010,

Om October 30, 2012, MCE Finance received unrevoked consents from the holders (the “Holders®) of the requisite
agaregate pincipal amount of the 2010 Senior Motes necessary (o approve certain proposed amaendments lo, omong
ather things, allewad MGE Finanes 16 (i) make an additional $400,000 of rasticted paymants 1o fund the Studis Gity
preject and (§) have the flexibility lo iransact with, and use any revenues or glher payments generated or derived
from, certain projects and 1o provide for cenain olher technical amandments (e *Proposed Amandmants™) 1o the
indenture goveming the 2010 Senior Noles and executed a supplemantal indenture lo give eflect io the Proposed
Amandments. This Group capitalized the payments 16 the agent and Holders who had validly delvered a cansant 1o
the Proposed Amandmanis iolaling 314,795 as deferrad financing costs and expensed the third party fee of §3.277
as & resull of the aforamantioned debl madification.

O January 28, 2013, MCE Finance made a cash tender offer lo rapurchase the 2010 Sanior Motes at a cash
consideration plus acerued interest and alse soliciled censents to amend the terms of the 2010 Senior Noles 1o
substantially ramove Lhe debl incurrence, restricted payment and other resirictive covanants (the “Tendar Offer).
Closing of the Tender Offer and consent solicilalion were conditioned upon MCE Finance receiving nel preceeds
frorm offering of the 2013 Seniar Mobtés (a5 dascrbad bakow) in an amount sufficient to repurchase the tendarad 2010
Senior Noles and relaled fees and expenses and other general conditions. The Tender Offer expired on February
26, 2013 and $599,135 aggragate prntipal amaoum of the 2010 Senior Noles warne tendered. On Fabruary 27, 2013,
MCE Finance elected lo redeem the remaining oulsianding 2010 Senier Noles in aggregale principal amount of
SBES on March 28, 2013, a1 a price equal te 100% of the principal amount outslanding plus applicable premium as
of, and accrved and unpald interest lo March 28, 2013, The accounling for the total redemplion costs of $102,497,
unamortized deferred financing costs of $23.793 and unamortized Issue discount of $5.962 in relation 1o the 2010
Senlor Moles as of the redemption date are disclosed as below under the 2013 Senlor Motes,
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12. LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED)

RMB Bonds

Gn May &, 2011, the Company issued and listed the RMB Bonds of RMB2,300,000.000 (aquivalent to $353.278
based on exchange rale on ransaclion date) on SGX-8T. The RME Bonds wene priced al par. Tha RMB Bonds
ware direct, genaral, unconditional, unsubordinated and unsecurad obligations of the Company, which at all times
ranked equally withoul any greference of priorily amang themselvas and at least equally with all of the Company's
other present and fulure unsecurad and unsubordinated obligations, save for such ebligations as may be preferred
by provisions of law that were both mandatory and of genoeral application, The RMB Bonds would have matured on
Kay 9, 2013 and the intarest on the RMB Bonds was accrued at a rate of 3.75% per annum and was payable semi-
annually in arrgars on May 9 and November 9 of each year, commanced on Movember 9, 2011,

The Company had the oplion o redeem in whole, bul not in part under cerlain circumslances as defined in the
indenture, the RME Bonds al any time prior 1o May 9, 2012 at an additional redemption price, Thereafter, the
Company had the oplion o redaem in whole, but nol in part, the RMB Bonds al any timo after May 9, 2012 at o fuced
redamption price.

The indenture geverning the RME Bonds contained cenlain negative pledge and financial covenants, providing that
tha Campany should Aot creale of pemit 1o Subsist any securly intarasl upon the whola or any part of the Company's
present or fulure undertaking, assels or revenues lo secure any relavant indebledness or guarantee of relevant
indebtedness without: (i) at the same ime o prior therato securing the RMB Bonds equally and rateably therewith o
the satisfaction of the trustee under the RMB Bonds; or (i) providing such other security for the RMB Bonds as the
truslee may in its absoluta discretion congider 1o ba not materially kess benaficial to the interasts of the holders of the
RME Bonds or as may be approved by an extracrdinary resalution of bendholders. In addition, the Company was alse
perquired to comply with canain inancial covenams, including mainlaining a $pecified Consolidaled 1angibke net worth
and a leverage ratio.

The Company capilalized the underwriting fee and related issuance costs in relation to the RME Bonds of 36610 as
deterred financing costs.

On March 11, 2013, the Company early redeamed the RMB Bonds in full in aggregate principal amount of
RMB2,300,000.000 (equivalent to $3G8.177) togelher wilth accrued interes!, which was partially funded from net
proceeds from offering of tha 2013 Sendor Motes (described below). The Group wrote off the unamortized deferred
financing costs of $586 immediately before redemplion of the RMB Bonds as loss on exlinguishment of debl in the
consolidated stalemants of operations for the year ended Decembaer 31, 2013,
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12. LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED)

Deposit-Linked Loan

On May 20, 2011, the Company entered into the Deposil-Linked Loan with a lender in an amount of
HK$2,748,500.000 (equivalent to $353.278 based on exchange rale on lransaclion date), which was securad by a
deposit in an amount of RMB2,300,000,000 (equivalent to $353.278 based on exchange rate on iransaction date)
from the proceeds of the RMB Bonds as described above. The Doposit-Linked Loon would have matured on May
20, 2013 or, if eadier, al any tima with 30 days’ prior notice given o the lendar, the Company may prepay the whole
of any part of not WSS than HKSS00.000.000 (equivalent to $64,267) of the Deposit-Linked Loan oulstanding. The
Daposit-Linkad Loan bore interast al a rate of 2.88% per annum and was payable sami-annually in arrears on May
8 and Movember 8 of each year, commanced on November §, 2011, On the saome date, the Company entered inle
two RMB forward exchange rate contracts in an aggregale amount of RMBS2,325,000 (approximately $8,000) for
safllemant of the RMB Bonds interes! payable a1 fixed exchange rales on Novemnbar 9, 2011 and May 9, 2012,
respactively, and during the year ended December 31, 2012, the Company entared inlo ancther RMB forward
exchange rate conlract of RMB25.845.867 (approximately $4.000) for setllemant of the RME Bonds interast payable
al fiied exchange rate on Movember 9, 2012, During the years endad December 31, 2012 and 2011, the Company
setlied the ovistanding forward exchangs rate contracls and the gain on the forward exchange rale conlracts of $138
and nil were reclassified from accumulated olher comprehansive losses 1o interest expanses, respaclivaly.

The Company capitalized the underwriting fee and ralated issuance costs in relation te the Deposit-Linked Loan of
SEO0 a5 defered fnancing costs, As of Decomber 31, 2012, the RMEB Bonds proceeds held as a sedurily deposi of
RMB2, 300,000,000 (aquivalant lo 536?,845:_ required to be set aside for the duration of this debt was recorded as
currgnt portion of restricted cash in the consolidated balance shoats,

On March 4, 2013, the Company prepaid in full the Deposil-Linked Loan in aggregale principal amount of
HKS2, 748,500,000 (equivalent to $353,278) with accrued interest and a deposit in an amount of RMB2,300.000,000
(equivalent 1o SIE8, 177) from the procedds of the RMB Bonds, for securily of the Deposit-Linked Loan, was rebedsed
an the same dale.

Aircraft Term Loan

On June 25, 2012, MCE Transponation Limited ("MCE Transpomation™), an indirect subsidiary of the Company,
entered into a $4.3.000 term loan facility agreement to partly finance the acquisiticn of an aircraft (the “Alrcraft Term
Lean™). Principal and interest repayments arg payable quartarly in arfears commencad on September 27, 2012 until
maturity on Juna 27, 2019, interast is calculated based on LIBOR ples a margin of 2.80% per annum and the loan
may be prepaid in whole of in part of not lpss than 51,000 and 10 days’ prior nolice given, The Adrcraft Term Loan
s guaraniead by the Company and security includes a first-priority morigage on the aircraft itself; pledge ovar the
MCE Transportation bank accounts; assignment of insurances (other than thind party liability insurance); and an
assignmant of aiframe and engine wamanties. The Aircraft Tarm Loan must be prepaid in full if any of the following
evenls occurs: (i) o change of control: (i) the sake of all or substantially all of the components of the aircrafl; (i)
the loss, damage or destruclion of the entire or subslantially the entire aircraft. Other covenanis include lender's
approval for any capital expandilure notincummed in Ihe ordinary course of busingss of any subsequent indeblednass
gxcaeding $1.000 by MCE Transporation. As of Decamber 31, 2013, the Aircraft Term Loan has been fully drawn
down and utilized wilh other funds of the Group, to fund the purchase of the aireraft, As of Decembar 31, 2013 and
2012, the carrying walue of aireraft was $45.437 and $51.800, respectively.
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12. LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED)

2013 Senior Notes

On Fabruary 7, 2013, MCE Finance issued and listed the 2013 Sanbor Notes of $1,000.000 and pricad at 100% al par
an the SGX-8T. The 2013 Senior Notes are general obligations of MCE Financa, rank equally in fight of payment o
all existing and fulure sanior indebledness of MCE Finance and rank sanior in right of payment to any existing and
future subordindled indebledness of MCE Finance and effectively subardinated to all of MCE Finance's existing and
futura securad indebledness to the extent of the value of the assets securing such debt. Cerlain subsidiaries of MCE
Financa (Ihe “2013 Senior Notes Guaraniors™) jeintly, severally and unconditionally guarantee the 2013 Sonier Noles
on a senior basis. The guaranteas are joint and sevaral ganeral obligations of the 2013 Senior Noles Guaraniors,
rank equally in righl of paymant with all existing and fulure senior indebiedness of the 2013 Senior Notes Guaraniors,
and rank senior in right of payment to any existing and fulure subordinated indebledness of the 2013 Senior Notes
Guaraniors. The 2013 Sonior Noles malure on Februgry 15, 2021, Interest on the 2013 Senior Notes is acorued
al a rale of 5% per annum and is payable semi-annually in arrears on Fabruary 15 and August 15 of sach year,
commanced on August 15, 2013,

The net proceeds from the offeding of the 2013 Senior Notes, after deducting the undenwiiling commissions and other
expenses of approximataly $14,500, was approximately $985.500. The Group used part of the ne preceeds from
the offering to (i) repurchase in full the 2010 Senior Notes of $600,000 and fund the related redemplion costs of the
2010 Sanior Motes of $102 497 and {ii} fer the partial repaymeant of the RMB Bonds on March 11, 2013. As a resull,
in accordance with the applicable accounting stondards, the Group recorded a $90.256 less on extinguishment of
dabd in the consolidated statements of eperations for the year ended Decambar 31, 2013 which comprised the portion
of the redemplion cosls of $38.949, write off of respective porion of unamartized deferred financing costs of $9.041
and unamortized issue discount of $2 266 related 1o the 2010 Senior Notes and recorded 510,538 cosls associated
with debt medification in the consolidaled statements of operations for the year ended December 31, 2013 which
rapresented the portion of the undenwiiting fee and other third party costs incurred in connection with the issuance
of the 2013 Senier Noles. The remaining porlion of the underwriling fee and other third party costs of $6.523 were
capilalized a3 deferrad financing costs.

MCE Financa has the option to redeam all or a portion of the 2013 Saenier Motes at any time prior to Febmeary 15,
2016 ol a “make-whole™ redemplion price. Thereatter, MCE Finance has the option 1o redeam all o a porion of the
2013 Senfor Notes al any lime at fixed redemption pricas that decline ratably over tima.

MCE Finance has the option to redeem up to 35% of the 2013 Senfor Notes with the nel cash proceads from one or
mane coftain squity aferings at o fced redemplion phice M any ime pror 1o February 15, 2016, In adgition, undar
carfain circumstances and subject te carlain exceptions as maore fully described in the indenture, MCE Finance also
has thi oplion o redeem in whole, bul not in part of the 2013 Senior Noles at fooed redemplion prices.

The indénturé goveming the 2013 Sanisr Noles conlaing camain covenants that, subject to cartain axcaptions and
conditions, mé the ability of MCE Finance and its restricted subsidiaries to, ameng other things: (i) incur o guaranies
additional indebtadness; (i} make specified restricted payments: (i) issus of sell capital slock: (iv) Sall A55a15:
(v} create lens; {vi) enler inle agreements that restrict the resiricted subsidiaries” ability to pay dividends, transfer
assels or make inlercompany loans; (vil) enter into ransaclions with shareholders ar affiliates; and (vii)) effect a
consclidation or merger. As of December 31, 2013, management belleves that MCE Finance was in compliance with
aach of the financial restriclions and requiremants,
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12. LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED)

2013 Senior Notes (continuad)

Thare are provisions under the indenture of the 2013 Senkor Motes that Emit or prohibit certain payments of dividends
and other distributions by MCE Finance and its respective restiicted subsidiaries to the Company of persons who ane
not MCE Finance or membears of MCE Finance raspective restricted subsidiaries, subject to certain excaplions and
condilions (deseribed in further detail in Mote 20). As of December 31, 2013, the net assels of MCE Finance and ity
respactive rastricted subsidiaries of approximately $3,288,000 weare resiricted from being distributed under the tarms
of the 2013 Senier Notes,

Studio City Notes

On Movember 26, 2012, Studie City Finance Limited (*Studio City Finance®, an indirect subsidiary which the
Company holds 80% interest) issued and listed the Studio City Motes of $825.000 priced at 100% at par on the
SGX-5T. The Sludlo City Motes are general obligations of Stedie City Finance, secured by a first-prigrity security
intérest in oertain specific bank accounts incidantal to the Studie Cily Notes and o pledge of any intercompany loans
from Studio City Finance to or on behalf of Studic City Invesimanis Limilad (*Studie City Invesiments®, a wholly-
owned direct subsidiary of Stedie City Finance and the immaediale holding company of Studie City Company Limited
{*Sludio City Company™ or tha *Studis City Borrower™, a wholly-owned indirect subsidiary of Studio City Financa)) or
its subsidiarios entered inle subsequent te the sue date of the Studio City Notes, rank equally in right of paymant te
all existing and fulure senior indebtedness of Studio City Finance and rank senior in right of payment to any existing
and fulure subsrdinated indeblednass of Studio City Finance, The Stedie City Notes are effectively subordinated 1o
all of Siudio City Financa's existing and future secured indebledness to the axtent of the valua of the property and
assals securing such ir . Al of the exisling direct and indirect subsidiaries of Studic City Finance and any
other fulure rastricted subsidiaries that provide guarantees of cerlain specified indebledness (including the Studio
City Project Facilily as described below) (the “Studie City Moles Guaranters™) joinily, severally and unconditionally
guarames the Studio Cily Notes on a senior basis (the "Guarantess’). The Guarantaes are genaral abligations of
the Studio Cily Motes Guaranters, rank equally in fight of payment with all existing and future senior indebledness
of the Sludio Gity Notes Guarantors and rank seniof in right of payment to any axisling and fuluré subordinaled
indebtedness of the Studie City Moles Guaraniors. The Guaraniees are effectively subordinated to the Studio City
Motes Guaramors’ obligations under the Studie Gily Project Faclily and any fulure Secured indabtednass thal is
secured by property and assels of the Studio City Neles Guarantors (o the extent of the value of such property and
assats. The Sludio City Motes malure on Decermbar 1, 2020 and the intarest on the Studio Gily Notes i actrued
al a rate of 8.50% per annum and is payable semi-annually in arrears on June 1 and December 1 of each year,
commanced on Juna 1, 2013,
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12. LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED)

Studio City Notes (continued)

The net proceeds from the offering, after deducting the underwriting commissions and other exp s of
approximataly $13,200, was approximately $811.800. Studio Cily Finance uses the net proceeds from the offering to
fund tha Studie City project and the related feas and expenses. The nel procaeds from the offering was deposited in
o bank account of Studio Cily Finance (the “Escrow Account™) and was restricted for use, which was subsequently
rebeasad upon signing of the Studio City Project Facility on January 28, 2013, Upon release from the Escrow Accoun!,
all the net pr ds wire d ited in o bank 1 of Studio City Finance (the *Nole Proceeds Ascount™) and are
available for payment of construction and development costs and other project costs of the Studio City project with
condilions and sequence for disbursemants in accordance with an agreement (the “Nole Disbursemaent and Account
Agreement”) as described balow, excep! for a poriion of net proceeds amounting to $239.594, which reprasents
the sum of interes! expected to accrue on the Studio Cily Noles through to the 41-month annivarsary of their issue
date, which was depositad in a bank account of Studio City Finance (the *Note Interest Reserve Account”), and is
rastricled for use to pay fulure interest payments until the opening date (as defined in the Studio City Project Facility,
the *Opaning Date”) of the Studio City prajedt. Concurrant with the subrmission of this firs! uliization request under
the Studie City Project Facility, an amount equal o the six-menth sum of interest due on the Studio Cily Noles of
$35.063 will be released from the Nole Ineres! Resarve Account and be depositad in a bank account (the “Note
Debl Service Reserve Account’) of Siudie City Company, the bomrower under the Studio City Project Facility, and the
rémaining amount in the Nota Inlerest Resenve AScount (less an amount equal to the pro-rated portion of inlarast dus
on the nexl interest payment date) will be released and be deposited in a bank account of Studio City Company (ihe
‘Ravanus Actount™). The security agent of the Studis Cily Project Facility has sacurity over the Note Debt Service
Reserve Account and the Revenue Account,

Ouring the year ended December 31, 2013, Studio City Finance repaid Studio City Noles interest expenses
amaunling 1o $71.099 with funds from the Mole Interest Reserve Accoun. As of Decamber 31, 2013, nel proceads
of Studie Cily Noles amounted to $572,206 and $168,495 were placed in the Note Proceeds Account and Note
Interast Resare Accoun!, raspetively. The Group dassified 12-month sum of inlerast due on the Studic Gity Motes
of $70,125 in the Note Intgrest Reserse Account and the enlire balance of $572.206 in the Mol Proceeds Account as
current portion of reslicled cash, while the remaining amount in the Note Inlerest Reserve Account of $98 370 was
classified as non-current portion of restricled cash on the consclidaled balance sheels.

The Group capilalized the undenwriting fee and relaled issuance costs in relation 1o the Studio City Noles of $21,669
as defarred financing cosls.

On November 26, 2012, Sludio City Finance and Siudie City Company entared into a Mote Disbursernent and
Account Agreament wilh cenain banks and other parties 1o, among othar things, establish the condilions and
saquence of funding of the Studio City project costs. Tha Studio City project costs are finansad in the following ordar:

»  |he funding from the Company and the ullimale nonconleglling shareholder of Studie City Finance in an
aggregate amount of $825 000 are used until it has been exhausted;

- theraafter, the proceads in the Note Proceads Aoccount are used until thay have been exhausted; and
G thereafler, the proceeds of the Studio City Project Facility. including any proceeds in any consiruction

disbursement accounts of other accounls eslablished under the Studio Cily Project Facilily, to the axtent
astablished for such purpose under the Studio City Project Faciity, are used until they have been exhausted,
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12. LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED)

Studio City Notes (continued)

The Studio City Notes are subject to a special mandatory redemption at a redemption price in the event that i) the
Sludio City Project Facilily is nol execuled on or before March 31, 2003; and i} the funds are nol released from
the Nole Proceeds Account prior to January 28, 2014, the date that is one year from the date of the execulion of
the Studio City Project Facdity du to the failure of the conddions precedent (subject to corlain exceplions) 1o first
ulilization of the Studia City Project Facility o ba salisfied or waived by such date. The first condition was. satisfied
with axecution of the Studio City Project Fadility on January 28, 2013 and the second conditions wene subsaquently
salisfied and the first disbursement funds on the Studio City Notes wera released from the Note Proceeds Account to
a bank aceount of Studio City Finance (the “Nole Disbursemaent Account”) for the Studio City project cost payments
on January 17, 2014.

Studie City Finance has the option to redeem all or a portion of the Studio City Notes at any lime prior to Decambar
1, 2045, at an additional redamplion price. Thereafter, Studie City Finance has the option to redoeem all or a podion
of the Studio City Motes at any time at fixed redemption prices thal decline ratably owver tima.

Siudio City Finance has lhe oplion o redeem up to 35% of the Studio City Notes with the nel cash proceeds of
cartain aquily offerings al a fixed redamplion price at any tima prior to Decembar 1, 2015, In addition, under canain
circurnslances and subject lo cerlain exceptions as more fully described in the indentura, Studio City Finance also
has the oplion 1o redeenn in whole, but not in part of the Stedio City Notes at fed redemption prices.

The indeniuré goveming the Studio City Nolas conlains cerain covenanis thal, subject to carlain exceptions and
condilions, limit the abilily of Studio City Finance and ils restricted subsidiaries o, ameng other (ngs: (1) incur or
guarantae additional indebtednass: (i) make specified rasticted payments; (il) issue of sall capital stock: (iv) sell
assels: (v) create liens; (vi) enter inlo agreements thal restrict the restricled subsidiaries’ ability te pay dhvidends,
transter assels of make intercompany loans: (vil) enter inlo ransaclions with shareholders or affiliates: and (viii)
effect a consolidation or merger. As of December 31, 2013, management believes thal Studio City Finance was in
compliance wilh éach of the financial restriclions and requinements.

There are provisions under the indentura of the Studio City Wotes that limit or prohibit certain payments of dividends
and other distabutions by Studie City Finance and its respective resticted subsidianies o the C ¥ OF pRrsens
who are nol Studio City Finance or members of Studio Cily Finance respactive restricted subsidiaries, subject to
cerfain exceplions and conditions (described in further detail in Note 20, As of December 31, 2013 and 2012, the
nel assets of Studio City Finance and its respeciiva restricted subsidianias of appraximately $171,000 and $252,000,
respeciively, were resiricted from being distribuled under the lerms of the Sludio City Notes,
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12. LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED)

Studio City Project Facility

Cn Januaty 28, 2013, the facility agreemant for the senlor secured credit facililies (the “Studio City Project Facality”) in
an aggregale amount of HKS10,855.880,000 (equivalent to $1,395,357) to fund the Studio City projed was executed.
The Studic City Projed! Facility conlained cerlain conforming and other minar changes o the terms and conditions sat
oul in @ commiment latter (the “Commitment Letter’) entered by the Company. New Cotai Invesimants, LLC "Mew
Cofal Invesimants™), the indiract holding company of New Colai, LLC, the noncontroling shareholder who owns a
A0% interest in Studie City International Holdings Limited (*Studio City Intarnational™), an indinee! subsidiany in which
the Company hobds a 60% interast and tha Studio City Borrower with cerlain lenders (tha “Studio City Lenders”) on
Qetobar 19, 2012, The Studio City Project Facilty is denominaled in Hong Kong dollars with an aggregale amount
of HK$10,855,880,000 {equivalent 1o $1,395,357) and consists of a HK$10.080.450,000 (equivalent to $1,205.689)
term loan facilily (he “Studie City Term Loan Faciliy™) and a HK$775.420,000 (equivalent to $99.668) revolving
cradil facility (the *Sludio City Revolving Credit Facility™). The Studio City Tarm Loan Facility maluras on January
28, 2018 and is subject lo quanery amerization payments commencing on the earkier of (i) Decombar 31, 2016, the
first fiscal quamer and date falling not (655 than 45 months aflar January 28, 2013; and (i) the end of the second full
fiscal quarter after the Qpening Date of the Studie City project, Amounts under the Studio City Term Loan Facility
may ba borrowad feorm and aflar the date thal canain condiliens pracadent are satisfied unlil July 28, 2014, the dale
faling 1& menths afler January 28, 2013, The Studie City Revelving Credit Facility malures on January 28, 2018 and
has no inberim amertization. The Studio City Revelving Gradil Facilily may be utilized prisr to the Opaning Date for
project costs by way of issue of letters of credit to & maximum of HKE3ET, 710,000 (equivalent to $49,834), and may
be bomowed in full 6n & revolving basis aftar the Opaning Date. Barowings undar the Studio City Prajest Faciity
bear interest at HIBOR plus a margin of 4,50% per annum until the last day of the second full fiscal quarter after the
Opening Date, at which tire the inerest rate shall baar inerest at HIBOR plus & margin ranging frem 3.75% to 4.50%
per annum as determined in accordance wilh the total leverage ratio in respect of Studio Cily Invesiments, Studio City
Campany and its idiaries (legother, the “Studie City Borrawing Group™).

Th indebledness undar the Studio Cily Project Fatility is quarantead by Studie Gily Investmants and its subsidiaries
{glher than the Studie City Bormower). Securily for the Studie Cily Project Facility included: a first prigrity morigage
ovar the Land where Studio Gily is localed, such morgage will also cover all present and any future buildings on,
and fixlures to, the relevant land; an assignmenl of any land use rights under land concession agreements, leases
of equivalenl; as well as olher customary securily. Certain accounts of Meleo Grown Macau relaling solely to the
eperation of the Studio City gaming area are pledged as security for the Studio City Project Facility,

The Studio City Project Facility contains certain covenants that, subject to certain exceptions and conditions, limit
the ability of Studio City Invesimants and its restricted subsidiaries to, among other things, (i} incur or guaraniee
additional indebtedness; ()} make specified resiricled payments; (i) issue or sell capital stock; (iv) sell assels: (v)
create liens; (vi) paying dividends and other restricted paymenls: and (vii) effect a consolidalion or marger. The
Studin City Project Facality akso conlaing certain financial covenants and the firs Lest date of thase financial covenants
is the earlier of June 30, 2016 and the end of the second full financial quarter after Opening Date.

The Studio City Borrowar is raquired to hedge not less than 50% of the outstanding indebtedness undar the Studie
City Term Loan Facility by way of interest rale swap agreemants, caps, collars of olher agreemants agreed with the
facility agent under the Studio City Project Faciity to limit the impact of increases in interest rates on its floating rate
debt, for a period of not less than three years from the date of the Studio City Project Facility. No hedge agreement
has baen antered as al Decembar 31, 2013 as the Studio City Bamowar has nol drawn dewn on the Sludio City
Project Facilly.

Maten Crown Erteriainment Lemfod  Anvual Repor 2013



12. LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED)

Studio City Project Facility (continued)

There are provisions thal Emit or prehibil cernain payments of dividends and other disiributions by the Sludio City
Borrowing Group to the Company of parsons who are not members of the Studic City Borowing Group (described
in further detail in Mele 20). As of December 31, 2013, the net assels of Studio City Investments and its respective
restricled subsidianies of approximately $217.000 were restricled from being distributed under tha terms of the Studie
City Project Facility.

The Studio City Borrowar is obligated 1o pay a commitment fea quarery in arrears on the undraswn amount of the
Studio City Praject Facility thioughoul the availability period which slarted from January 28, 2013, The Studio City
Borrowar recognized lean commitrment fees on the Studio City Project Facility of $23,190 during the year ended
Dacarmbar 31, 2013.

In connection with the Studio City Project Facility, Stedio City Infernational is required 1o procure a contingant equily
undertaking or similar (with a kability cap of $225.000) granted in favor of the security agent for the Studio City Projact
Facility to, amangst other (Rings, pay agreed project costs (i) associsted wilh construction of Studio City (i) for which
the facilily agent under the Studio City Projec! Facility has determined there is no clher available funding under the
tarms of the Studio City Project Facilty. In support of such contingant equity undertaking, Studio City International
has deposited and maintained a bank balance of $225 000 in an account secured in favar of the security agent for
the Studio City Preject Facility ("Cash Collateral™) as of Decamber 31, 2013, The Cash Collateral is required 10 be
maintained until the construction complation date of the Studio City has occurred, certain debt service resarve and
acerual accounts have been funded 1o the required balance and the financial covenants have bean complied with, As
of December 31, 2013, the Cash Collateral is classified as non-current partion of rastricted cash in the consolidated
balange NS,

The Studia City Bofrower had not drawn down on the Studic Gily Term Lean Facility and the Studic City Revalving
Credit Facllily during the year ended December 31, 2013, As of December 31, 2013, the Sludie Clly Term
Loan Facility of HK$10.080, 460,000 (equivalent 1o $1,295,689) and the Studio Gily Revelving Cradit Facilily of
HKEFT5,420.000 (equivalent to $89,668) remains available for future draw down, subject to salisfaction of cerain
condilions pracadent,

Philippine Notes

On December 19, 2013, MCE Lelsure (Philippines) Corporation ("MCE Letsure®), an indirect subsidiary of the
Company and MCP, priced its PHP1S bilion (quivalant 16 $340,000 at data of pricing) 5.00% senior notes_ due 2019
(the “Philippine Notes™) at par of 100% of the principal amount and offered lo cerlain primary inskitulional lenders as
neteholdadss via & private placamant in the Philippines. The issusncs of the Philippine Neles, subject 16 customary
closing conditions, was subsequently compleled on January 24, 2014,

The Philippine Noles are general obligations of MCE Leisure, secured on a firsl-ranking basis by pledge of shares
of all present and future direct and indirect subsidiarias of MCP, rank equally in right of payment with all existing and
future senior indeblednoss of MCE Leisure ($ave and excep for any statulery proference o pricrity) and rank senior
in right of payment to any existing and future subordinated indebledness of MGE Laisure.
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12. LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED)

Philipping Notes (continued)

The Philippine Notes are guaranteed by MCE, MCP and all present and fulure direct and indirect subsidiaries of
MCP (subject to cerain limited excaplions) (collectively the *Philippine Guarantors™), jointly and severally with MCE
Lelsure om & senier basis. The guaranieas are ganeral obligations of the Philippine Guarantors, rank aqually in right
of payrment wilh all existing and future sonior indebledness of the Guarantons (excepl for any slatutory preferencs or
priority) and rank sanicr in right of payment to any existing and future subordinated indebtedness of the Philippine
Guaranions,

The Philipping Moles malure on January 24, 2019, Inlares! en the Philppine Noles is accruad al a rate of 5.00% per
annurm and is payable semé-annually in arrears on January 24 and July 24 of each year, commencing on July 24,
2014. In addition, the Philippine Noles includes a lax gross up provision requiring MCE Leisure to pay without any
deduction or withholding for or on account of tax,

The nel proceeds from the offering of the Philippine Motes, after deducling the underwriting commissions and glher
axpanses of PHP230,769,231 (equivalent 16 $5,182), was PHP14,769,230,769 (equivalent to $331,643). MCE
Leisure will use the nal proceeds from the offering to fund the City of Dreams Manila project, refinancing of debt and
genaral corporale puiposes.

MCE Laisura has the oplion to redeem all or a portion of the Philippine Noles at any time prior lo January 24, 2015
o additicnal redemplion price as defined in the notes facility and security agreamant (Ihe “Notes Facity and Soecurily
Agreament”) goveming tha Philipping Motes. Thereafler, MCE Leisura has tha aplion to redeam all or a portion of the
Philippine Notes al any ime at ficed redemption prices that decline ratably ever lime.

The Noles Facilty and Secunly Agreemant containg cenain covenants thal, subject 1o certain exceplions and
condilians, fimit the ability of MCP and its subsidiaries, including MCE Leisure to, ameng other things: (i} incur or
guarames adddional indeblednass: (i) sell assels: (i) create liens: and (iv) effect a consolidation and merger.

The Philippine Motes are exempled from registration with Philippine Securilies and Exchange Commission (the
“Philippine SEC") under the Philippine Securities Reguiation Code Rule (“SRC Rule”) 9.2.2(B) promulgated by
Philipping SEC as the Philippine Noles weare offared via private placement 1o not mare than ninelaen primary
institutional lendars. Accordingly, the Philipping Nolas are subject to the conditions of SRC Rule 9.2.2(B). which imils
the assignment and transfer of the Philipping Notes 1o primary institutional lenders only and requires the Philippine
Motes o ba held by net more than ninelean primary instilulional lenders at any time before thair maturity.
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12. LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED)

Total interest on long-lem debl congisted of the following:

Year Endad Decombed 31,

2013 2012 2011

Intorest for Studso City Notos™ 5 71,069 5 5844 8 -
Interes! for 2013 Serior Nobss™ 44,998 = =
Inforest for 2011 Croct Faciitios” 16841 2848 13,731
Interes! for 2010 Serior Notes 6,028 61,500 61,500
AmOization of desounl in CORnOCton with Hsuance of 2010 Senior Notes 7 801 123
Interest for RAIB Bonds 2610 13,685 8647
Intorest for Deposa Linked Loan 1,728 10,064 6300
Inerest for Alrcraft Term Loan™ 1,181 05 =
Intoreest foe City of Draas Progeet Fatiity = - 13389
§ 44555 M4BT

Intorest caplalied {25.250) (1.900) [3.157)

§ 119307 § 10653 F 1013

* Laong-tarm dobd repayabla within freo yoan

= Long-larm dobd repayabla aflar freg yoars

During the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, the Group's average borrowing rales were
approximately 5.36%, 5.06% and 5.50% per annum, respectivaly.

Scheduled maturities of the leng-term debt as of Decembar 31. 2013 are as follows:

Year ending December 31,

i § W25
w15 202749
i 165687
btk 6415
Hig 6615
Over 2018 1528448

§ 2533480
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12. LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED)

The lang- debl are rapayable as follows:

December 34,
2013 2012
Wikhin one year §  MEESEE 3 BSAMO
Moo thah S0e ear, Bt ndd atbding had yiars 22T4 22559
Mose than two years, but nol exceeding five years 170,887 848,330
hiore than e years™ 1828445 14508
5 25480 5 M
Lers: Arncants dud wilhin one year chassibiod a5 duirent Babdities (262 565) (54,540

5 20834 5 2300

Mo

i1} Mot of unamoriizod maus disoount for the 3500 Sonkr Mobes of apparodenatedy 36,033 ns of Docember 31, 7013,

13. CAPITAL LEASE OBLIGATIONS

On March 13, 2013, a lease agreement (the *MCP Lease Agreermant™) which was enterad on Celober 25, 2012
betwean MCE Leisure and Belle Corporation ("Balle”, one of the Philipping Parties as disclosed in Nole 21(a)) for
lease of the land and cartain of the building structures for City of Dreams Manila which expecled lo be expited on
July 11, 2033, became elfective upon comphition of coging arrangament conddtions and with minor changs from the
griginal terms. The building struclures under capilal lease were capitalized al the lower of the fair value or the present
value of the futura minimum lease paymants al lease incaption.

Apart from the MCP Lease Agreement, during the year ended December 31, 2013, MCE Leisure signed a service
agreament with a third party for salting up carlain informatien technolegy infrastructure (the *IT Equipmant”) and
providing maintenance and support senvice for City of Dreams Manila which expire in Novembear 2018. The Group
made an assessment at inceplion of the service agreeman! and recorded the porlion ralated to the IT Equipment

under capital lease.

Fulurg minimum lease paymonts uader capital lease obligations for the Group os of Decomber 31, 2013 are a3
follows:

Year ending Docember 31, 2014 $ 20,570
‘Year ending Docember 31, 2015 »m
Year ending Docember 31, 2016 b2
‘Year ending Docember 31, 2017 o]
Year ending December 31, 2018 41,762
Qe 2018 811,950
Tobal eanasum bbb paymonts 98,304
Leess: amounts e intirest {708,040
Prisand vakso of minsmue lpasi paymants 0
Current podtion (27,285
Non-curtenk portion § IE0E
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14. OTHER LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

15

Dacember 31,

2013 2012
Construction retention payabies $ 2067 § 1608
Dofarred rent Rabites 158 5,581
Other depasits recenved 187 213

3 2845 % 7412

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

Authoritative terature provides a fair valug higrarchy, which prieritizes the inputs to valuation techniques used 1o
measure fair value inlo three broad levels. The level in the hierarchy within which the fair value measurament in its
anlirety falis is based upon the lowest level of input that is significant to the falr value measurament as follows:

G Level 1 = inputs are based upen unadjusted queled prices for identical instruments traded in active markats,

. Level 2 = inputs are based upon quoted prices for similar instruments in active markets, quoted prices for
identical or similar instruments in markets that are not aclive and model-based valuation techniques for which
allsgnil'pmm assumplions ank obsarvable in the markel or can be corroborated by observable markal data for
substantially the full term of the assats or liabilities.

. Laval 3 - inpuls are ganarally uncbgervable and typically reflect mar ‘s asli of assumplicns
that market participants would use in pricing the assel or liabisty. The foir values are therefore determined
using model-based techniguas thal include option pricing modals, discounted cash flow medels and similar
techniques.

The carying values of cash and cash equivalenls, bank deposils with original maturity over thiee months and
restricted cash approximated fair value and represented a level 1 measuremant, The carrying values of leng-
term deposils and long-term recaivables approximated fair value and represented a level 2 maasurernent. The
astimated fair value of long-tarm debt as of Decembar 31, 2013 and 2012, which includad the 2013 Senior Nolas,
the Studio City Motes, the 2011 Cradil Facilities, the Aircralt Term Loan, the 2010 Sanior Nofes, the RME Bonds
and the Deposit-Linked Loan, were approximatety $2 585 768 and $2,230,590, respeclively, as compared 1o its
cafrying value of $2,533,460 and $3,194.884, respectively. Fair value was estimated using quoted markel prices
and represented a level 1 measuramant for the 2013 Senlor Motes, the Studio City Notes, the 2010 Senior Notes
and the RMB Bonds. Fair value for the 2011 Cradil Facilitias, the Aircrafl Term Loan and the Deposit-Linked Loan
approximated the carying values as the instruments carded either variable interest rates or the fixed interest rate
approximated the market rate and rep terd a bovel 2 ment, Additienally, the carrying values of land use
rights payable and payables for acquisition of assets and liabilties approximated fair value as the inslruments carried
the fixed interes! rale approximated the markel rale and represented a level 2 maasurament.

As of December 31, 2013, the Group did not have any non-financial assets or labilities thal are recognized or
disclosed at fair value in the consolidated financial stalements, The Group's financial assets and liabilities recorded
al fair value have been categorized based wpon the fair value in accordante wilth the accounting slandards,
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16. CAPITAL STRUCTURE

Ordinary and Treasury Shares

Pursuant 15 the Company’s extracrdinary general meaeling held en October &, 2011, an inerease in the authorized
share capital from 2,500,000.000 ordinary shares of a nominal or par value of USS0.04 each to 7,300,000.000
ordinary shares of a nominal or par value of US$0.01 each was approved.

On November 18, 2011, Melco and Crown agreed to convert thelr respective shareholder loans into equily. Melco
and Crown antered ino a sefies of agreements, pursuant to which, Melco and Crown agieed 1o convert aulstanding
Izan balancas amountad to HKS398 577,752 (equivalent to $51,231) and HKSS501,157.031 (equivalent 1o 564.416).
raspectively, owed by the Company to them into erdinary shares on November 29, 2011, Tha Company issued a total
of 40,211,930 ordinary shares to Melco and Crown in connection with the shareholder loan conversion, based on a
convarsion price of $2.87 per share.

The Company’s treasury shares represant i) new shares issued by the Company and held by the deposilory bank
to facilitale the administration and operations of the Company's share incenfive plans. and are to be delvered
1o the Diraclors, eligible employess and consultants on the vesting of resiicled shares and upon the exercise of
share oplions; and i} the shares purchasad under a trust arrangement for the benefil of carlain baneficlaries who
ane awardeas under the 2011 Share Incantive Plan and hald by a trustas to facillats the fulure vasling of restricled
shares in selecled Directors, employees and consullants under the 2011 Share Incantive Plan as described in Note
18,

MNaw Shames lszued by the Company

During the years ended Decamber 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, the Company issued 8,574,153, 4.958.293 and
6,920,386 ordinary shares 16 its dapasitery bank for fulure vasting of restricled shares and exarcise of share oplions,
respectively. The Company issuwed 1,207,902, 1.276 634 and 941,648 of these ordinary shares upon vasting of
restriched shares; and 3,064,302, 2,966,955 and 3,835,596 of these ordinary shares upon exercise of share oplions
during the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, respeciively. As of December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011,
the Comgany had a balance of 15,478,987, 11,267,038 and 10,552, 328 newly issued ordinany shares which conlinue
to be held by the Company for future issuance upen vesting of restricled shares and exercise of share oplions,

In conneclion with (he Company’s resiricled shares granted as disclesed in Nele 18, nil, ndl and 310.575 ordinary
shares wera vested and issued during the years ended Decembar 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

Shares Purchased under A Trust Arrangemeant

On May 15, 2013, the Board of Directors of the Company authorized a trusiee to purchase the Company's ADS
on NASDAQ for the purpose of satisfying its obligation lo defiver ADS under its 2041 Share Incaniive Plan (*Share
Purchase Program’), Under the Share Purchase Program, the rustee can purchase ADS on the open markel at
the price range to ba detarmined by the Company’s managament from lime fo time. This Share Purchase Program
may be terminated by the Company al any ime. The purchased ADSs are to be delivered to the Directors, eligible
employees and consullants upon vesting of the restrictad sharas.
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17.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE (CONTINUED)

Ordinary and Treasury Shares (continuad)
Sharag Purchaged under A Trust Arrangemant (eontinuad)

During the yaar anded Decembar 31, 2013, 373,846 ADSs, oquivalent to 1,121,838 ordinary shares ware purchased
under a tius! anangement from NASDAQ a1 an average markel price of $23.42 per ADS or $7.81 per share, and
378,579 eedinary shares purchased under a lrust amrangement were delivered lo Direclors and eligitle employees to
salisty the vesting of restriclad shares. As of December 31, 2013, the shares purchased under trust arrangamant has
o balance of 743,259 ordinary shares for fulure issuance upon vesting of resticted sharos,

As of December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, the Company had 1,666,633 448, 1,658,059,295 and 1.653.101,002,
and 16,222,246, 11,267,038 and 10,552,328 issued ordinary shares and treasury shares, respectively, with
1.650,411,202, 1,846,792, 257 and 1,842,548 674 issuad ordinary shares oulslanding.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CREDIT)

The Company and certain subsidiaries are exempt from tax in the Cayman Islands or British Virgin Islands (*BVT).
where they are incorporatad, however, the Company is subject to Hong Kang Profits Tax on prefits frem its activities
canducied in Hong Kong. Certain subsidiaries incorporated or conducting businesses in Hong Kong, Macau, the
United States of America, the Philippines and olher jurisdictions are subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax, Macau
Complemantary Tax, income tax in the United Statas of America, in the Philippings and in other jurisdictions,
respeciively, during the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011,

Pursuant to the approval nolices issued by Macau Government daled June 7, 2007, Melco Crown Macau has been
exempted from Macau Complementary Tax on incoma generated from gaming operations for five years commencing
frorn 2007 1o 2011 and will continue 1o benafit from this exemplion fer another five years from 2012 to 2016 pursuant
to the approval notices issued by Macau Governmem in April 2011,

The Macau Governmant has granted Lo Altira Hotel Limited {*Altira HoteT™), in 2007, and Melco Crown (COD) Hotels
Lim#ad {"Melco Crown (COD) Hotels™), in 2011 and 2013, the declaration of utility purpose benefil in respect of Allira
Macau, Hard Rock Hotel, Crown Towaers hotel and Grand Hyalt Macau heled, pursuant fo which they are entilled
to a properly tax holiday, for a period of 12 years, on any immovable property that they own or have bean granted.
Under such tax holiday, they will alse be allowed (o double the maximum rates applicable regarding depreciotion
and raintegration for the purposes of agsessing the Macau Complamentary Tax. The Macau Goveinmanl has alse
granted to Altra Hotel and Melce Crown (COD) Hotels a declaration of utility purposes benefit on specific vehicles
purchased, pursuant 1o which they were enlilied 1o a vehicle tax holiday, provided that there is no change in use of
disposal of those vehicles within 5 vears from the date of purchasa, The grant of further vehicle tax haliday is subject
to the satisfaclion by the Group of certain eriteria delermined by the Macau Government,
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17. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CREDIT) (CONTINUED)

The provigion for income lax consisted of:

Yeor Ended Decombed 31,
2013 2012 2011

vzt Raux prenision bor currond year:

Macau Complamentary Tax 3 41 % 208§ bl

Lunp sum in Beu of Macou Ceenplomantary Tax on dividend 5,550 - -

Hong Kong Profts Tax 654 513 822

Preiéts Lo in othr jurisdicions % P 161
Sub-lotal § B34 5 054 3 1,206
{{Ower) under prosdsion of incom tax in prior years:

Macau Complamentary Tax 3 in s (171) % 3

Hang Kong Profts Tax @ ki 142

Profits lax in ether jurisdicions 8 1 (21}
Sub-total $ [ (138 % 124
Defarmed tax (oredd) change:

Macau Complementary Tax $ 3543 § (3676) § (2779

Hang Kong Profits Tax 12 (1) {1&85)

Prodits L in other jurisdicions (L] @ @
Sub-fotal § (3530 5 (3.750) § {2.566)
Total ncoem lax exponss (credi) $ 241 3 (2843 (1.636)

A recanciliption of the incom tax axponse (eredit) to income before income Lax per the consolidated statemants of
operations s as follows:

Year Ended Decomber 31,
2013 012 201
Incadme bedora income tax § 580454 § 05T 3 ML
Macau Comphmantany Tax rabe 2% 12% 2%
Incadme bax expensa at Macau Complementary Tax rate 69,654 47,487 A58
Lump $iam in beu of Macau Complsemintary Tax on dividend 5,500 - -
Effect of difernt txx rafes of subsidiaries oporating in oher jurisdictions 3542 (556) 42
(Owver) under prowision in por years (411) (138) 124
Effect of incoma for which no income tax expense is payatis (395) 714 {575)
Effect of expence Ror which no income Lax benefit is receivable 2557 17317 129
Effect of tax hodday granted by Macau Gevernment (125,708 (88.491) (BO.6TT)
Change in vakeation allevance TN 22152 21,54
§ 2441 § 2043 § {1536

Macau Complementary Tax and Hong Kong Profils Tax have been provided at 12% and 16.5% on the estimaled
laxable income earned in or derived from Macau and Hong Kong, respectively, during the years ended December
31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, if applicable. Profils tax in olher juisdictions for the years ended Decamber 31, 2013, 2012
and 2011 ware provided mainly for the profits of the representative officas and branches set up by a subskdiary in the
ragion whera they operate. No provision for income tax in the United States of Amweiica and in the Philippines for the
years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 were provided as the subsidiaries incurred tax losses.
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17. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CREDIT) (CONTINUED)

Meleo Crown Macaw was granted a tax holiday from Macau Complementary Tax for 5 years on gaming profits by the
Macau Government in 2007, In April 2011, this tax holiday for Melco Crown Macau was extended for an additional
5 years through 2016, During the years ended Decamber 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, Meloo Crown Macau repofed
net income and had the Group bean required Lo pay such taxes, the Group's consolidated net income attributable
to Mabeo Crown Enterainment Limited for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2042 and 2011 would have been
decraased by $125,702, $88.491 and $69,677, and basic and diluled net income atiribulable lo Melco Crown
Enterainment Limiled per shang would hove reporied reduced incame of $0.076 and $0.076 per share for the year
ended December 31, 2013, $0.054 and $0.053 per share for the year ended December 31, 2012 and $0.043 and
0,043 par share for the year ended Decembaer 31, 2011, respectively. Moleo Crown Macau's non-gaming profils
remain subject to the Macau Complamentary Tax and its gaming revenues remain subject to the Macau special
gaming 1ax and other levies in ascordante with 15 gaming subcencession agreemant,

During the year ended Decembar 31, 2013, Maleo Crown Matau made an application to the Macau Govarnmeant far
alax ¢ t ment for its shareholders. Pursuani to the proposed larms issued by the Macau Govarnmeant
in December 2003 which was accepled by Melco Crown Macau in January 2014, an annual lumg sum amdunt of
MOFP22 400,000 (equivalent to $2.795) is payable by Meloo Crown Macau fo the Macau Govemment, affective
eetroaciivedy for each of the years from 2012 thesuegh 2016 coinciding wilh the S-year extension of th lax exemplion
as mantioned in the preceding paragraph, as payments in liew of Macau Complemaniary Tax olherwise dua by
the shareholders of Meleo Crown Macou on dividend distribulions from gaming profits, Such annual lumg sum lax
paymenis are required regardless of whathar dividends are aclually distributed or whether Melco Crown Macau has
distributable profits in the relevant year. The incoma tax provision for the year 2013 included the annual lump sum
dividend withholding tax paymenis acerued for the yaars 2012 and 2013,

The effective lax rates for the years ended Decamber 31, 2013, 2012 and 2041 were 0.4% and negative rates of
0.7% and 0.6%, respectivily. Such rates differ from the statutory Matau Comglementary Tax rate of 12% prhmarily
due (o the affect of ch in valuation alk and axp for which no income tax banefit is recebrable for the
years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 and the affect of 102 holiday granted by the Macau Govammen as
described in the praceding paragraphs during the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011.
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17. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CREDIT) (CONTINUED)

The deferred lax assets and liabilities as of Decermber 31, 2013 and 2012 consisted of the following:

Decombss 31,
2013 2012
Defarmed b assats
Nel operating ks cammied lowards $ 6674 § B3,022
Depreciation and amartization 11,100 105
Deferred daductibis expenses 3,861 3080
Dedorred rants 5,001 -
Cihers 1,997 =
Sub-total $ 88703 5 £6.216
Valuation allowancn
Current $  (mag s (21,054
Long-tem (69.195) 145.05T)
Sub-total $  (B8BI0) S (s6A11)
Total niel deforrod tax assets $ 9§ 105
Defamed tax Eabithes
Land s rights $  (60090) % (s449T)
Intangible assets {505 505
Unregized caplal alowants (2.211) (1,348
Terkad disforred tax kabitses 5 (52.806) 5 (56350

As of December 31, 2013 and 2012, valuation alliowance of $88.610 and 366,111 ware provided, respeciively, as
managemant balieves thal it i more likely than not that these deferred tax assels will not be realized. As of Decembrer
31, 2013, adjusted operaling lax loss carry forwards, amounting to $161.753, $156,249 and $181,201 will axpire in
2014, 2015 and 2016, respoctively. Adjusted operating tax loss cared forwards of $171,557 has expired during the
year ended December 31, 2013,

Daforred lx, wherd applicoble, is provided under (e Habilty mathod ab the endclod SIny incomd tax rate of the
respeciive lax jurisdictions, applicable lo the respective financial years, on the difference between the consolidated
financial slalamants carmying ameounts and ineoms L Base of assels and liabilities,

Aggregate undistribuled eamings of the Company’s foraign subsidiaries are avaitable for distribulion to the Cempany
of approximately $8,.567 and $1,150,000 as at December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively, are considerad to be
indafinitely reinvested and thix amount as of Decomber 31, 2013 excludo the undistribuled eamings of Melco Crown
Macav. Accordingly, no provision has been made for the dividend wilhholding laxes thal would be payable upon
the distribution of these amounts to the Company. IT those carnings were o ba distribuled of Ihey ward datermined
fo be no longer permanenily reinvested, the Company would have fo record a deferred income lax liability in
respect of thoso undistributed eamings of approximataly 51,284 and $138,000 os an Doecembor 31, 2013 and 2012,
respeciively.
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17. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CREDIT) (CONTINUED)

18

An evaluation of the Lax positions for recognition was conducted by the Group by delermining if the weight of avaitable
evidencs indicates it is more ikely tham nol that the positions will be sustained on audit, incleding resoiution of related
appeals o itigation processes, if any. Uncertain Lax banefits associaled wilh the lax positions were measuned based
solaly on tha technical merits of baing sustained on examinaticns. The Group concluded that thare was no significant
unceiain 1ax posilion requinng recognition in the consolidated financial statements for the years ended Decimber
31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 and there ks ne material unrecognized tax banafit which would favourably affect the effective
income tax rate in fTulure periods. As of December 31, 2013 and 2012, there ware no interest and penallies rotaled
to uncertain tax positions recognized in the consolidated financial statements. The Group does nat anticipate any
Shnificant Increases of decradsos 10 fs hability for unrecognized tax banef wilhin the next twabae manths.

The income 1ax returns of the Company and ils subsidianies remain opan and subject lo examination by the tax
authodities of Hong Kong, Macau, the United States of America, the Philippines and other jurisdictions until the statute
of imitations expire in each comesponding jurisdiction. The statule of imitations in Hong Kong, Macau, the Uniled
Siates of America and the Philippines are 6 years, § years, 3 years and 3 yaars, respactivaly.

SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION
2006 Share Incentive Plan

The Group adopted a share incentive plan in 2006 ("2006 Share Incentive Plan”) o atiract and retain the best
available personnal for positions of substantial responsibiity, to provide addilional incenives to employees, Directors
and censultants and 19 promote the success of s business, Under the 2006 Share Incentive Plan, the Group may
grant aithar oplions to purchase the Company's ordinary shares or resticted shares (Nole: The restricled shares,
as named in respeciive grant documents, are accountad for as nonvested shares). The plan administrator would
delemning the oxercise price of an option and st forth the price in the award agreement. The axarcise pricd may
be afixed or variable price related to the fair market value of the Company's ordinary shares. if the Group granis an
incenive share option o an employee who, al the time of that grant, owns shares representing more than 10% of
tha voting powar of all classes of the Company's share capilal, the axercise price cannol be less than 110% of the
fair market value of the Company’s ordinary shares on the date of that grant, The term of an award shall not excaed
10 yaars from the date of tha grant. The maximum aggregate number of ordinary shares which may be issuad
pursuant 1o all awards under the 2006 Share Incentive Plan (including shares issuable upon exdrcise of options) is
100,000,000 cver 10 years. The new shara incentive plan (“2011 Share Incenive Plan) as described below was
effeciive immediately after the listing of the Company’s ordinary shares on the Main Bpard of the Hang Kong Stock
Exchanga on December 7, 2011 and no further awards may be granted undar tha 2006 Share Incentive Plan on or
after such date as all subsequent awards will be issued under the 2011 Share Incentive Plan, Accerdingly, no share
oplion and raslricted share ware granted undes the 2006 Share Incentive Plan during the years ended Decamber 31,
2013 and 2012,
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18. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION (CONTINUED)

2006 Share Incentive Plan (continued)

Share Options

The Group granted share oplions 1o ctitain personnel under the 2006 Share Incentive Plan during the year ended
Dacarmbar 31, 2011 with the exercise price delermined al the closing price of the date of grant. The share oplions
became exercisable over vesting paried of three years. The share options granted expire 10 years after the date of
grant, excapl for options granted in & ono-lime share option axchange program in 2000 which have exercise peried
ranging from 7.7 to 8.3 years.

The Group uses he Black-Scholes valualion model 1o determine the estimated fair value for each option granted,
with highly subjective assumgtions, changes in which could materially affect the estimated fair value. Expected
volalility Is based on the histofcal velatiity of a peer group of publicly iraded companies, Expecled term is based
upon the vesting Lemn or the historical of expectad lemm of publicty raded companies. The risk-frea intarest rate used
for each perind presented is based on the United States of America Treasury yield curve at the time of grant for the
period equal to 1he expacted term,

The fair value per oplion under the 2006 Share Incontive Plan wos eslimated at the date of grant using (he following
waighted average assumplions during the year ended Decamber 31, 2011:

Expected dividend yield -
Expicted stock price volaliity AT
Risk fren intarest rate 207%
Expected average Ba of options (years) 5.1

A summary of share oplions aclivity under the 2006 Share Incenlive Plan as of December 31, 2013, and changes
during the years ended December 31, 2043, 2002 and 2011 are presented below:

Weighed
Wieighted Averagy
Avetags Remaining
Numbser of Exgrcise  Contractual Aggregate
Shaee Optiens_ Price per Share Temr  Inrinsic Value
Outstanding &% al January 1, 2011 20453493 & 12
Granled 5,150,846 252
Exercised (3,835, 505) 103
Foredted (T83.423) 152
Expired (68.555) 440
Oulistanding a3 ot Decomber 31, 2011 20816462 § 155
Exercised [2.556,955) 12
Forteded (1.110:843) 183
Expired (6:.510) 10
Outstanding o al Dosomber 31, 2012 1683214 § 161
Exorcisd (2587.372) 150
Forleited (82.330) 207
Expired (4.969) 1.01
CrAstanding as ol Docombar 31, 2013 13777413 § 163 560 5 151718
Exgecizable 25 ot Decamnber 31, 3013 126802 § 152 53 § 140502

Maden Crown Erteriainment Lmfod  Aneual Repord 2013



18. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION (CONTINUED)
2006 Share Incentive Plan (continued)

Share Options feonlinuad)
A summary of share oplions vested and expectad to vost undar the 2006 Share Incentive Plan at Dacamber 31, 2013
ane prasented below:
Veshed
Weighted
Weighted Aoveiags
Avetags Remaining
Rurber of Exsicise  Contractual Aggregate
Shaee Oplions Price ped Share Term  Inrinsic Valse
Ranga of ensrcisa prices per share (51.01 - $5.08) (Note) 12162312 § 152 531§ 140802

Moter 3 AN600 than opton wesled and 4060 sharg epticns: eapliod during the year onded Datombar 31, 2013,

Expected b Vast
Weighted
Wigighted Avetogy
Kyetags FRomaining
Number of Exgecs G | A
Shase Oplions  Pricg ped Share Term  bnbingic Valos
Range of exsiciss prices per share (3133 - 5253 1515101 § 241 T8 % 17216

The weighted average fair value of share oplions granted under the 2006 Share Incentive Plan during the year
ended Dacamber 31, 2011 was $1.67. Share oplions of 2967372, 2,966,955 and 3.835,596 were exercised and
proceeds amounted to $4.4G3, $3.632 and $3,950 ware recognized during the years ended December 31, 2013,
2012 and 2011, respaclively. The tolal intrinsic values of share oplions exercised for the years ended Decembar 31,
2013, 2012 and 2011 were $34,330, $13.022 and $8.348, respectively. As of Decamber 31, 2013, there was $579
unrecognized compensalion costs relaled lo unvested share oplions undar the 2006 Share Incenlive Plan and the
cosls wera expeciad to be recognized over a welghted average perod of 0.25 years.

Rastricted Shares

The Group has alse granted restricled shares to cortain persennel under the 2006 Share Incenlive Plan during the
year anded December 31, 2011, The restricted shares have a vesting period of threa years. The grant date fair value
is determined wilth refarence to the markel closing price of the Company's erdinary share at the date of grant,
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18. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION (CONTINUED)

2006 Share Incentive Plan (continued)
Rastrictad Shores fcontinusd)

A summary of tha status of the 2006 Share Incentive Plan's restrictad shares as of Docomber 31, 2013, and changes
during the years anded Dacembar 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 ane presenled below:

Shares Fair Valsa

Unnvested 28 at January 1, 2011 7649059 § 13
Granted 2003383 252
Vestsd (1252229 LT
Forfedted {302, 716) 187

Unvested 25 ot December 31, 2011 1002503 § 222
Vested (1276534) 249
Foreted {486.984) 165

Unvestod a5 ot Docorbar 31, 2012 223 § 218
Vested (1297.902) 204
Fordetod (38.313) 212

Unvesied &s ot December 31, 2013 02670 § 242

The total fair values at date of grant of the restricted shares under the 2006 Share Incenlive Plan vested during the
years ended Decembaer 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 were $2.643, 33,181 and §1.339, rospectively. As of Docomber
31, 2013, there was 3492 of unrecognized compeansation cosls related to restricled shares under the 2006 Share
Incentive Plan and the costs are expected lo be recognized over a weighted average period of 0.25 years.

2011 Share Incentive Plan

The Group adopled the 2011 Share Incantive Plan lo promale the success and enhance the value of the Company
by linking personal infterests of the members of the Board, employess and consullants to those of the shareholders
and by providing such individuals with incentive for outslanding performance to generale superier relums to the
shareholders which became effective on December 7, 2011, Under the 2011 Share Incentive Pipn, the Group may
grant various share-based awards, including but not limited to, options 1o purchase the Company’s ordinary sharas,
share apprecialion rights, restricled shares and other types of awoards, The term of such awards shall nol exceed
A0 yaars from the date of tha grant. The maximum aggregate number of ordinary shares which may be issuad
pursvant to all awards under the 2011 Share Incentive Plan is 100,000,000 over 10 years, which could be raised
up o 10% of the issuad shara capilal upon shareholders” approval. Thare was no share option or restricted share
gronted during the year ended Decombar 31, 2011. As of Decombeor 31, 2013 and 2012, 94,688,953 and 96,804,814
ardinary shares remain available for the grant of various share based awards under the 2011 Share Incentive Flan,
respectively.
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18. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION (CONTINUED)

2011 Share Incentive Plan (continued)
Share Options

Tha Group grantad shara oplions to cofain personnal under the 2011 Share Incantive Plan during the years endad
Dacarmbar 31, 2013 and 2012, with the exercise prics for share oplions granted in 2013 delemmingd al the highar
of the closing price on the date of granl and the average closing price for the five trading dates preceding the dale
of grant of the Company’s ordinary shares teading on the Hong Kong Slock Exchange, while the exercise price for
share oplions granted in 2012 delermined at the closing price on the date of grant, Thase share options became
exarcisable over vaslting periods of three 1o four yaars. The share oplions granted axpira 10 years after the date of
grant,

The Groug uses the Black-Scholes valuation model 1o daterming the estimated fair value for each eplion granted,
with highly subjeclive assumptions, changes in which could materially affect the estimated fair value. Expecled
voldlility is based on the historical volatifty of the Company's ADS Irading on the NASDAQ Global Select Markel.
Expactad term is based upon the vesting term or the historical of expected term of publicly traded companies. The
risk-free interes! rate used for each poriod presented is based on the United States of America Treasury yield cunve
al the time of grant for the period equal to the expacted term.

The fair value per optien undar the 2011 Share Incantive Plan was estimated at the date of grant using the following
waighled average assumplions for oplicns granted during the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012

December 31,

2013 2m2
Expeected dividend yiekd - -
Expecied stock price volalilty BE50% BTE2%
Risk frist intorost rate 0.82% 101%
Expected average e of options {years) 51 51

A summary of shara oplions aclivity under the 2011 Share Incenlive Plan as of Decamber 31, 2013, and changes
during the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012 are presented below:

Weighted
Weighted Averngs
Ketage FRomaining
Numbsr of Exaicise Contractual Aggregate
‘Shade Oplions  Price pér Share Term  nlringic Valos
Outstanding 2 ot Januaey 1, 2012 - § -
Granled 1,504 50 470
Forbeted [33.438) 4.0
Crutstanding & ot December 31, 2012 1.901,136 § 470
Granled 13887193 842
Enercised (96,530) 470
Forbeded (120,534 600
Enpired (1.830) 470
Outstanding 36 at Decambar 31, 2013 3070335 § £33 874§ 21,560
Exgecisable as at Decemnber 31, 3013 S2am 5 4.70 825 % 4380
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18. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION (CONTINUED)

2011 Share Incentive Plan (continued)
Share Opions (eontinued)

A summary of share oplions vested and expectad to vost under the 2011 Share Incentive Flan at Decambaer 31, 2013
afe prasented below:

Veshed
Waighted
Weighted Aoveiags
Avetage Remaining
Rurber of Exsicise  Contractual Aggregate
Shaee Oplions_Price per Share Tems  indrinsic Valse
Exgerise price per share [$4.70) (Mote) S2A 5 4.70 825 § 4380

Maber 621660 shan options vesled and 1830 share epticns axplrod dusing tho yeas onded Dacombar 31, 2013,

Expected bo Vest
Weightad
Weighted Averogs
hyefage  Remaining
Numbser of Exaicise Contrattual Aggregate
Shaso Oplicons Prico péd Share Torm  bntingic Voo
Rangs of guerciss prices per share (54.70 - $5.43) 2ETAN 5 BE5 BE4 5 17,180

The weighted average fair value of share oplions granted under the 2011 Share Incentive Plan during the years
ended Dacamber 31, 2013 and 2012 were $4.50 and $2.44, respectively. Share oplisns of 98.930 was exercised
and proceeds amounts to $455 was recognized during he year ended December 31, 2013, The tolal intringic value
of share oplions exercised for the year ended Decamber 31, 2013 was $812. No share oplion was exarcised for the
year gnded Dacember 31, 2012, As of December 31, 2013, there was 56,563 unrecognized compensation costs
ralalad 1o unvasted share oplions under the 2011 Share Incentive Plan and the costs wera expeclad 1o ba recognized
over a welghted average period of 2.06 years.

Rastricted Shares

The Group has alse granted restricled shares to certain persennel under the 2011 Share Incenive Plan during the
years éndad Decembar 31, 2013 and 2012. These restricled sharas have vesling periods of threa 1o four years. The
grant date fair value is determined with reference to the markel closing prico of the Company's ADS trading on the
MASDAQ Global Select Markel at the date of grant.
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18. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION (CONTINUED)

2011 Share Incentive Plan (continued)
Rastrictad Shares fcontinued)

A summary of the status of the 2011 Share Incentiva Plan's restricled shares as of December 31, 2013, and changes
during the years ended Docember 31, 2013 and 2012 are presented balow:

Urnvestnd o January 1, 2012 — % -
Granted 1470612 443
Forteted {16.722) 443

Urwested o December 31, 2012 1153890 § 443
Granled 817,063 827
Vesled (378.573) 443
Fosteited {E0.420) 577

Urnvosiod ol Docomber 31, 2013 153196 5 643

The total fair value o1 date of grant of the restricted shares under the 2011 Share Incentive Plan vesled during the
years ended Decamber 31, 2013 and 2012 were 51,676 and nll, respactively. As of December 31, 2013, there was
37,170 of unrecognized compansation costs retaled to rastricted shares under the 2011 Share Incentve Plan and the
cosls were expeciad to be recognized over a weighted average period of 2.05 years.

MCP Share Incentive Plan

MCP operales a share incentive plan {the *MCP Share Incenlive Plan”) lo promole the success and anhance
the value of MCP, by linking personal interests of members of the Board, employees and consultants of MCP,
its subsidiaries, holding companies and affiliated companias by previding such individuals with an incentive for
oulstanding performance lo genarate superior relurns to the stockholders. The MCP Share Incentive Plan, wilh
amendmants, was approved by MCP shareholders al the annual steckholdars meeting hald, and became affective,
on Juna 21, 2013, The MCP Share Incentive Plan was alse approved by the Company's shateholders at its
autraordinary goneral mesling on June 21, 2013, The Philippine SEC opproved such amandmaonts on June 24,
2013. Under the MCP Share Incentive Plan, MCP may grant various share-based awards, including but not Brrsted
by, GplSns 16 purchase the MCP commen shares, restricled shares, sharg appredation rights and other lypos of
awards. The lerm of such awards shall nol excead 10 years from the date of grant, The maximum aggregate number
of comman shares which may be kssued pursuanl to all awards undar the MCP Share Incantive Plan ks 442,630,330
shares and with up to 5% of the issued capital stock of MCP from lime to time over 10 yaars. As of Decamber 31,
2013, 47,098,936 MCP common shares remain available for the grant of various share-based awards under the MCP
Sharg Incantive Plan,

Share Options

MCP grantad share oplions lo cerlain personnal under the MCP Share Incantlive Plan during the year ended
Dacambar 31, 2013 wilh the exercise price dalermined at the higher of the closing price of MCP comman shares
on the date of grant and the average closing price for the five trading days preceding the date of grant. These share
oplions became exercisable over a vosting pericd of three years, wilh the first yaar vesting on 30 days after the
apening of City of Dreams Manita, The $hare options granted sxpira 10 yaars after the date of grant.
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18. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION (CONTINUED)

MCP Share Incentive Plan (continued)
Share Options {continued)

MCP uses the Black-Scholes valuation medeal to delermine the estimated fair value for each oplion granted, with
highly subjective assumglions, changes in which could moterially affect the estimaled fair volue. Expected volatity
is based on the historical volatility of a peer group of publicly traded companies, Expoected lerm is based upon The
vasling lerm of the histerical of expecied term of publicly raded companies. The risk-free intorest rale used for cach
pariod presonted is based on the Philippine Governmant bond vield al the time of grant for the period equal lo the
axpacted lorm,

Tha fair value per oplien undar the MCP Share Incentive Plan was estimated at the date of grant using the following
walkghted avarage assumplions for options granted during tha year ended Decembar 31, 201 3:

dividand yield —
Expacted siock prics volaliity 45.00%
Riskofree interest rate 373%
Expected avarags e of options (years) 50

A sumanary of share oplions aclivity under the MCP Share Incantive Pian as of Decombor 31, 2013, and changes
during the year anded Decembar 31, 2013 are presented bolow:

) Weighted
Weighted Avieoge
Awerage Romaining
Numbser of Exsrcise  Conlractual Aggregate
Shase Oplions  Price péd Share Terr  bnlrinsic Vo
Oulistanding as ot Janwary 1, 213 - -
Granied 120,626,335 0.18
Fevieited (4.652.183) 0.19
Outstanding &5 at December 31, 2013 116,144,153 § 018 95 5 1403

As of Decamber 31, 2013, no share options granted under the MCP Share Incentive Plan ware vestad and
enxercisable.

A summary of share oplions expecied to vesl under the MCP Share Incentive Plan as of December 31, 2013 are
presented below:

Expiclod bo Vst
Wiighled
Weighted Averags
Avioge Remaining
Numbsr of Exercite  Contractual Aggregate
Shaee Oplions_Price per Share Ter  Intrinsic Valse
Exgetits picer per share (50.19) 116,144,153 § 0.19 950 § 14031

The weighled average fair value of share oplicns granted under the MCP Share Incentive Plan during the year anded
Docomber 31, 2013 was $0.09. As of Decombar 31, 2013, thore was §7.857 unrecognized compensalion cosls
ralpled to urvesied share oplions under the MCP Share Incentive Plan and the cosls were expecled (o be recognized
ovir 3 wesghted average period of 2,33 years,
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18. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION (CONTINUED)

MCP Share Incentive Plan (continued)
Resticiad Shares

MCP has alse granted rostricted shares to cartain personnal under the MCP Sharg Incentivie Flan during the year
anded Decembar 31, 2013, Thesa resticlad shares have a vesting period of three years, wilh the firsl year vesting
on 30 days after the epening of City Of Dreams Manilta, The grant date fair value is determingd with reference to the
markal clasing price of the MGP's common share al the date of grant.

A summary of the status of the MCP Share Incentive Plan's restricled shares as of Decamber 31, 2013, and changes
during tha year andad Decembar 31, 2013 are prasented below:

Weaghted

Numbe ¢f Rottage
Resticled  Grant Date
Shares  Fair Voo

Unvested a5 at January 1, 2003 - % —_
Gaanted B0413,167 0.19
Forteited [2341.091) 0.19

Urnested ax at December 31, 2013 SBOTZOM § 0.19

Mo restriciad shares under tha MCP Share Incentive Plan wera vasted during the year ended Dacember 31, 2013,
Az of December 31, 2013, there was 58,870 unrecognized compensation costs related to restncled shares undar the
MCP Share Incentive Plan and the cosls ware expected to be recognized over a weighted average period of 2.33
years.

The impadt of share options and restricled shares for the Group for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 ang
2011 recognized in the consolidated financial statements is as follows:

Year Ended Decamnber 31,
2013 2012 2011
2006 Share Incantiva Flan
$haee options. 5 324§ 4033 % 5570
Restictod sharss 2,188 A 3054
Sub-tedal ) 542 % G497 § B624
2011 Share Incenthve Fian
Shace options $ 4175 § 117 % -
Restricled shares 3052 1287 -
Sub-lolal 5 5821 5 2475 8 —
MCP Shane Incantive Plan
Shaee options. 5 175 § -3 -
Restrictod shares 1982 - -
Sub-tolal 5 378 5 -3 -
Tolal share-basad compensation eipanses recognized in
ganoral and adminisirativg Gxpensos $ 14987 § 8973 § gh24
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19. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

The Group provides defined contribution plans for its employess and execulive officers in Macau, Hong Kong, the
Philippines and cartain other jurisdictions,

Employees
Macau

Employeas employed by the Group in Macau are members of govemment-managed Social Security Fund Scheme
(the “S5F Schame”) operated by the Macau Government and the Group is required to pay a monthly ficed
cantribution to the S3F Scheme to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group wilh respect to the S5F
Scheme operaled by the Macau Govarmment is 1o make the requined conltributions under the schama,

During the year ended December 31, 2013, the Group provided option for its qualifying employees in Macau o
anroll in a voluntary defingd contribution scheme (e “Macou VG Schamd™) operaled by the Group. With effect
from July 1, 2013, the monthly voluntany contributions of the Group and the enfolled employees to the Macau VG
Scheme o fund the benefits are set at differant range of percentage of the relevant manthly income salecled by
the enralied employees. The Group's voluntary contribulions to the Macau VC Sch are graded vasting 1o the
anrolled employeas according to a vesling scale with full vesting in 10 years from date of employmant. The Macau
VG Schama was established under trusl with the assets of the funds held separately from those of the Group by an
independent trustes in Macau,

Hang Kong

Employess employed by the Group in Hong Kong are members of Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) operated by the Group. With effect from Juna 1, 2012, the maximum manthly contribution (the “Mandatory
Confritrulions™) by both employee and amplayer was increased from HKS1,000 to HKS1,250. With this increase, the
Group's and the employees’ Mandalory Contributions to the MPF Scheme are each sal &l 5% of the employess’
retevant income up to a maximum of HK$1,250 per employae per month, The Groups Mandatory Conliibutions to
the MPF Scheme are fully and immediately vested o the employees once they are paid,

During the year ended Docombar 31, 2013, the Group provided eplion for its qualifying emgloyees in Hong Kong to
anroll in a voluntary defined conlibution schame (the "Hong Kong WC Schame”) oparated by the Group. With affect
from July 1, 2013, the manthly veluntary conlibulions of the Group and the enrolled omployees to the Hong Kang VG
Schene 1o fund the benelis are sel a1 différant range of parcemage of the monthly eamed base salaries selected by
the enrolled employees, after deducting the hiy Mandatery Conlribulions made by the Group and the employees
respecively. The Group's voluntary conlibutions 1o the Hong Kong VC Scheme are graded vesling 1o the enrolled
amployeas according to a vesting scale with full vesting in 10 years from date of employment.

The Group MPF Scheme and the Hong Koeng VO Scheme was eslablished under rust wilh the assals of the funds
held saparately from those of the Group by an indepandent trustea in Hong Kong.

Tha Phiippinas

Employees employed by MCP Group in the Philppines are membaers of governmant-managed Social Security
System Scheme (the *S55 Scheme”) oparalad by the Philippines Governmant and MCP Group is required to pay at
2 cemain percentage of the employees’ relevant income and mal the minimum mandatery requirements to fund the
benefils. The only obligation of MCP Group with respect to the 555 Scheme operated by the Philippines Government
i 1o make the required contributions undar the schamd,
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19. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS (CONTINUED)

20

Employees (continued)
Othar Jursdictions

The Group's subsidiarios in certain olher jurisdiction operale a number of defined contribulion schomas,
Conlribulians o the defined conltribution schemes applicable Lo each year are made al a certain parcaniage of the
employees’ payroll and mel the minimum mandatary requirements,

Executive Officers

For axecutive officers amployed by the Group, the execulive officers’ contributions to the MPF Scheme in Hong
Kong are set al 5% of the execulive officers’ rlevant incomé up to a maximum of HKS1,250 per execulive officer
per month. The Group's contribution to the MPF Scheme is set at 10% of the execulive officars’ base salaries. The
excess of contributions over the Group’s mandalery porion, which is 5% of the exoculive officers” relevant income
up to a maximum of HK$1,250 per executive officar par month, are treated as the Group's voluntary contribution and
are vested to execulive officers at 10'% per year wilh full vasting in 10 years, The MPF Scheme for execulive officers
was aslablished undar trust with the assats of tha funds hald saparately from thase of the Group by an indepandent
trustee in Hong Keng.

During the years ended Dacember 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, the Group's conlibutions inlo the defined conlribulion
plans wars §8,522, $5.303 and §5.414, respectively.

DISTRIBUTION OF PROFITS

All subsidiaries incorporalad in Macau are required to sl aside a minimum of 10% 1o 25% of the enlily's profil after
taxation to the legal reserva until the balance of the legal reserve reaches a level equivalent 1o 25% to 50% of the
anlity’s shane capital in accordance with the provisions of the Macau Commercial Code. The legal reserve sels aside
an amaunt frem the subsidiaries’ s of ions and ks not avatlable for distribution o the shargholders of
the subsidiaries. The appropriation of legal reserve is recorded in the subsidiaries’ financial statemants in the year in
which it is approved by the Beard of Direclors of the relevant subsidiaries. As of December 31, 2013 and 2012, the
balance of the reserve ameunted to $31.201 and $31.201, respectivety.

The City of Dreams Project Facility conlained restrictions on payment of dividends by the Borrowing Group which
applied until the City of Dreams Project Faclity was amanded on Juna 30, 2011, There was a resincion on paying
dividends during the construction phase of the City of Dreams project. Upon complation of the construction of the City
of Dreams, the relevant subsidiaries would then be able to pay dividends if they satisfied cartain financial tests and
condilions.

The 2011 Credit Facilities conlain restrictions which apply on and from June 30, 2011 on paying dividends to
the Company or persons who are nol members of the 2011 Borrowing Group, unless corlain finoncial lests and
condilions are salisfied. Dividends may be paid from (i} excess cash flow as defined in the 2011 Credit Facilities
generdled by the 2011 Borrowing Group subject lo compliance wilh the financial covenants undar the 2011 Credit
Facilities; or (i) cash held by the 2011 Borrowing Group in an amoun not exceading the aggregate cash and cash
equivalents investments of the 2011 Bemrowing Group as at June 30, 2011 subject o a certain amount of cash and
cash aquivalents being relained for operaling purposes and, in aither case, thare being no event of defaull continuing
of likaly lo coccur under the 2011 Credil Facilities as a result of making such payment,
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20. DISTRIBUTION OF PROFITS (CONTINUED)

21.

The indanture govarming the 2013 Senier Noles and the 2010 Senior Noles conlain carfain covenants that, subject
to certain exceptions and conditions, restict the payment of dividends for MCE Finance and its respactive restricled
subsidiarias.

Tha indenturs gavaning the Studic City Nolas also contain certain covenants that, subject 1o canain sxcaplions and
condilkons, restrict the payment of dividends for Studio City Finance and iis respective restricted subsidiaries.

The Studia City Project Facility containg certain covenants that, subject to cetain exceplions and condilions, reslrict
the payment of dividends for Studio City Investimants and its respeclive restiicted subsidiaries.

During the years ended Cecambar 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, the Company did ngt declare or pay any cash dividends
on the ordinary shares.

On Fabruary 25, 2014, the Company's Board of Directors announced a proposal of declaration and paymeant of &
special dividend and adoplion of a new dividend policy, further details are disclosed in Nole 32(d).

On Fobreary 28, 2014, Meleo Crown Macau's Beard of Dirgctors proposed the final dividend and was subject to
the approval from Melco Crown Macau's shareholders, which was subsequantly approvad al Melco Grown Macau's
annual general meeting held on March 21, 2014, further details are disclosed in Mobe 32({e).

PROVISIONAL LICENSE, COOPERATION AGREEMENT, OPERATING
AGREEMENT AND MCP LEASE AGREEMENT FOR CITY OF DREAMS MANILA

(a) Provisional License

On December 12, 2008, PAGCOR issued the Provisional License for the development of Cily of Dreams
Marnila to cortain Philippine paries including SM Investmants Corporation, SM Land, In¢., SM Hotels and
Conventions Corporation (formeriy SM Holels Corporation), SM Commercial Properties, Ing. and SM
Development Corporation (collectvely the *SM Group™) and PramiumLeisure and Amusement, Inc. (“PLAI).
On November 23, 2011, PAGCOR approved the inclusion of Belle as a licensee under the Provisional Livense.
SM Group. Balle and PLAI ane collectively refarred 1o as the *Philippine Parties™. On Octobar 25, 2012, further
to the Cooparation Agreement as mentianad in ilem (b) below, PAGCOR acknowledged tha inclusion of,
amoengst others, MCE Leisure 05 a co-licensee. as well 2% the “special purpose onlily”, to loke effect as of the
affective date of the Cooperation Agreameant, allowing MCE Leisure to be the operalor to operala the casing
business and a8 representative for Rsel and on behall of the olhar co-licensees under the Provisional License
in their dealings wilh PAGCOR. The Coaperation Agreement bacame effeclive on March 13, 2013, the date
on which clesing under the Closing Arrangemant Agreemant as mentioned in flam (b) below cccurred. As a
result, MCE Holdings (Philippines) Corporation, a direct subsidiary of MCP and its subsidiaries including MCE
Leisure (collectively the “MCE Heldings Group™) and the Philippine Parties together became co-licansees
{the “Licansess™) under the Provisional License granted by PAGCOR for the establishment and oparalion of
Cily of Draams Manila. The Provisional Licensae, as well a5 any regular licanse to be issued lo replace it upon
salisfaction of certain condilions, is concurrem with section 13 of Prasidential Decrea No. 1869, will expire an
July 11, 2033, Further details of the terms and commilmanis undar the Provisional License are included in Note
22(c).
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21. PROVISIONAL LICENSE, COOPERATION AGREEMENT, OPERATING
AGREEMENT AND MCP LEASE AGREEMENT FOR CITY OF DREAMS MANILA
(CONTINUED)

(b} Cooperation Agreement

]

(d

On March 13, 2013, a closing arrangement agreement (the “Closing Asrangement Agreement’) which was
entered on Oclober 25, 2012 between MCE Holdings Group and cerain MCE's subsidiaries and the Philippine
Parties for City of Dreams Manila became effective (e, the date on which the conditions to clesing under the
Closing Arrangemant Agreement were fullilled or walved). Further to the closing of the Closing Arrangement
Agreement, a cooperation agreemant (the “Cooperation Agreement”) and other related arrangements which
wera enterad on Ogtober 25, 2012 batween MCE Holdings Group and the Philippine Parties bacama effective
on the same dale, with mingr changes to the original laems {excapl for cerlain provisions which were effective
on signing),

The Cooparation Agresmant govans tha ralationship and the rights and sbligations of the Licensass. Undar the
Cooparation Agreament, MCE Leisure has been designated as the aperator o operate City of Dreams Manila
and appeinted as the sole and exclusive rapresentative of the Licensees in connection with the Provisional
Licenss and the speration and managemant of City of Drearms Manila unlil the expiry of the Provisional License
{eurrently expacted to be on July 11, 2033 or unless larminaled earlier in accordanse with its terms), Fuither
datails of the commitment under the Cooperation Agresment are included in Note 22(c).

Qperating Agreement

On March 13, 2013, the Licensess enterad into an operating agreemant (the “Operating Agraamant”) which
govamns lhe aperation and management of City of Draams Manila by MCE Leisura. The Oparating Agreemant
was effective as of March 13, 2013 and ends on the date of expiry of the Provisional License (as that License
is extended, rastored or renewed), unless lerminated earlier in accordancs wilh the terms of the Operaling
Agreement. The Provisional Licanse is cumrently schadulad to expire on July 11, 2033, Under the Oparaling
Agreement, MCE Leisure is appointed as the sole and exclusive operator and manager of City of Dreams
Manita, and is responsible for, and has sele discration (sulbject to cerfain exceplions) and conlrol over, all
matlers relating to the managamant and operation of City of Dreams Manila (including the casing and gaming
operations, hotel and retail components and all olher activities necessary, desirable or incidential for the
managemani and operation of City of Dreams Manila). The Operaling Agreement also included terms of certain
payments lo be payable lo PLAI upan commencement of operations of City of Dreams Manila, in particular,
PLAI has the right to receive menthly payments from MCE Leisure, based on the pedormance of gaming
opaations of Cily of Dreams Manita, and MCE Leisure has the right to relain all revenues from non-gaming
oparations of City of Dreams Manila,

MCP Lease Agreement

On March 13, 2013, the MCP Leasa Agreement which was entered on October 25, 2012 batween MCE Leisure
and Belle became effective upon completion of clpsing arangement conditions and wilth mingr changes from
thia orkginal larms under a closing side letler (the “Closing Side Letler) signed by MCE Holdings Group and
certain MCE's subsidiaries and the Philippine Parties on March 13, 2013, Under the MCP Lease Agreemen,
Belle agreed lo lease to MCE Leisure he land and carlain of the building siruclures to be used in City of Dreams
Manlia. The laasa cenlinuas until termination of the Operaling Agreement {(currentiy expected to be on July
11, 2033 or unless terminated earliar in accordance with its tarms). The leased propery will ba used by MCE
Laisure and any of its affiliates exclusively as a hofel, casinge and resorl comglex with relail, entertainment,
convention, exhibition, foed and beverages services as wall as other activities ancillary, ralatad or incidental te
the aparation of any of the preceding uses.
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21. PROVISIONAL LICENSE, COOPERATION AGREEMENT, OPERATING
AGREEMENT AND MCP LEASE AGREEMENT FOR CITY OF DREAMS MANILA
(CONTINUED)

(d) MCP Lease Agresment (continued)

Under the Closing Side Lotter in relation to the MCP Lease Agreemant, MCE Leisure agreed to make monthly
paymenis under the MCP Lease Agreemant beginning from March 1, 2013, On July 31, 2013, MCE Leisure and
Balle signed an addendum to the MCP Lease Agreement lo reduce the monhly rantal payments with effective
from July 1, 2013 wilh total discount for each twelve month rolling period with a cap of the Philippine peso
equivalent to 51,000, with the first twelve manth pericd beginning from March 1, 2013 and subsequen minor
changas to the lerms of the MCP Lease Agreemant ware made during the year endad December 31, 2013
Furthor information in relation 1o the MCP Lease Agreement was disclesed in Notes 13 ond 22(c).

22. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

(a) Capital Commitments
As of Decembar 31, 2013, the Group had capital commitments contracted for bul not provided mainly for the
construction and acquisition of property and equipment for City of Dreams, Studio City and Cily of Dreams
Manila telating $1,231.735,

(b} Lease Commitments and Other Arrangements
Oparaling Leages — As a Logsoe

The Group leases the pontion of land to be used fer City of Dreams Manila, Mocha Clubs siles, office space.
warehouses and staff quarters under non-cancellable operaling lease agreemants thal expire at various dales
through July 2033, Those lease agreements provide for pariodic rental increases based on both contractual
agreed incramaental rales and on the general inflation rale once agreed by the Group and it lessor and in
S0Me cases contingen! rantal expanses stated as a percentage of wmever, During the years endad December
31, 2043, 2012 and 2011, the Group incured renlal expenses amounting to 521,815, $18,573 and $16,944,
respectively which consisted of minimum remtal expenses of $17.586, $15.003 and $16,944 and conlingent
remlal expenses of $4.229, $3.570 and nil, respectively.

A of December 31, 2003, minimum lease payments under ol non-cancellable leases were as (ollows:

Yoo onding Dovombor 1.

04 $ 16.,13%
2015 12963
06 9172
2017 86T
s a.7er
Ower 2018 77,086

§ 1R
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22. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (CONTINUED)
(b) Lease Commitments and Other Arrangements (continued)

()

Az Grantor of Oparating and Right To Use Arangamanl

The Group entared into nen-cancallable oparating and rght fo use agraamants maindy for mall spacos in the
City of Dreams site with various retailers thal expire ol various dales through February 2022, Cartain of the
opgraling and right le use agreements include minimuym bage fee and operaling fee with esca’aled conlingent
fea clausas. During Lhe yeaars anded Decamber 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, the Group receivad contingent fees
amoeunting to 327,287, $22.906 and $18.053. respoctively,

As of Decamber 31, 2043, minimum future fees to be received under all non-cancallable operating and right to
usa agreamants were as follows:

Yea anding December 31,

200 TN
2015 7,108
206 3478
017 207
2018 18

The total minimum future fees do nat include the escalated contingent fea clauses.

Other Commitments

Gaming Subeoncession

On Saptember 8, 2008, the Macau Gevernmant granted a gaming subconcession to Melco Crown Macau

to oparale the ganting busingss in Macau, Pursuant 1o the gaming subconcossion agreement, Malco Crown
Macau has commilted to the following:

i} To paythe Macau Governmem a fixed annual premium of 53,744 (MOP30.000,000).

i} Topaythe Macau Governmenl a variable premium depending on the number and type of gaming lables
and gaming machings that the Group operates. The variabla pramium is calculated a5 fallows:

- $37 (MOP300,000) par year for each gaming table (subject to a minimum of 100 tables) resernved
exclushealy Tor cartain kind of games of 1o cartain players:

«  $19 (MOP150,000) per year for each gaming lable (subject to a minimum of 100 tables) not
rasenved exclusively for cartaln kind of games of to cartain playars; and

O 50.1 (MOP1,000) per vear for each elecirical or mechanical gaming machine, including the slot
maching.
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22. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (CONTINUED)
(€} Other Commitments (continugd)

I — fnm & T—1
o I '

i) To pay tho Macau Govirnmant a sum of 1.6% of the gross ravenuas of the gaming busingss oparations
on a monthly basis. thal will be made availabla 1o a public foundation fof the promolion, devaloprment
and sludy of social, cullural, economic, educational, sclenlific, academic and charity aclivilies, lo be
detaminad by the Macau Government.

) To payihe Macau Gevernment a sum of 2.4% of the gross revenues of the gaming business operalions
on a monthly basis, which will be used for urban development, lourist promalion and the social sacurity of
Magau,

v} To pay special gaming 1ax 1o the Macau Gevemmaent of an amount aqual 1o 35% of the gross revenues
of the gaming business operations on a monthly basis,

vi) Malco Crown Macau must mainlain two bank guarantees issuad by a specific bank with the Macau
Governmant as lve beneficary in a maximum amount of $62,395 (MOPS00,000,000) frem September B,
2006 to Seplamber 8, 2011 and & maximum amaunt of $37 437 (MOP300,000.000) from Seplamber 8,
2011 wntil the 180th day after the termination date of the gaming subconcession,

As a resull of the bank guarantees given by the bank o the Macau Government as disclosed in Note 22(e)(vi)
above, a sum of 1.75% of the guaraniee amount will be payable by Meloo Crown Macau quarterty 1o such bank

Land Concassion Contracls

The Company's subsidiades have antered inlo concession contracts for the land on which our Allira Macau,
Caty of Dreams and Studip City preperties and development projects are locatad. The title 1o the land lease right
is oblained once the related land concession contradt is published in the Macau official gazelle. The conlracts
have & term of 25 years, which is renewable for funther consecutive periods of 10 years, subject 1o paymen! of
2 special contribulion to be defined by the Macau Governmant, and impose special development conditions.
The Company'’s tand hobding subsidiaries are required 1o i) pay an upfront land pramium, which is recognized
as land use right in the consolidated balance sheats and a nominal annual govarnmant land use fee, which
is recognized as general and administralive expensa and may be adjusted every five years; and ii) place a
gquarantes deposit upon acceptance of the land lease terms, which is subject to adjustmaents Trom time 1o time
in line with the amounts. paid as annual land usa fee. During the land concession term, amendments have baen
sought which have or will resull in revisions to the develepment conditions, land pramium and govemement land
use feas.

Altiva Macau

On December 18, 2013, the Macau Governmant published in the Macaw official g the final TNt
for rewvision of the land concession contract for Taipa Land on which Altira Macau is located. Tha amendment
required an additional land premium of approximalely $2.449 which was fully paid by Allira Developmants
in July 2013 (sae Nole 9). According to the revised land amendment, the government land use feas was
revised from opproximately $171 per annum to $186 per annum. As of December 31, 2013, the Group's telal
commitmeant for governmeant land usa feas for the Altira Macau site 1o be paid during the remaining term of the
land concession contract which expires in March 2031 was $3.189.
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22. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (CONTINUED)
(€} Other Commitments (continued)
Land Co o (contimuad)
City of Droams

On Octlober 17, 2013, Melco Crown (COD) Developmeants and Melco Crown Macau accepled the final
amendmant proposal issued by the Macau Govemment for revision of the land concession comract for Cotai
Land on which City of Dréams is located (see Moba 9). The amendmant required an additional land preamivm of
approximataly 523,344, with $8,738 paid in October 2013 upon acceptance of the final amendment proposal
and the remaining amount of approximately $14.608 will be due in Tour biannual instalmenls, accruing with
5% interest per annum, with the first instalmant lo be pald six months from the date the amended coniract
was subsequenily published in the Macau official gazelte on Jonuary 29, 2014, As of Decamber 31, 2013 and
2012, the telal culstanding balance of the land premium was included in accrued expanses and olher cumrent
liabakties in an amount of $3.518 and S8.281, and in land use hghts payable in an amount of $11,090 and
nil, respectivaly. According to the final amandment proposal, the govarmnment land use faes will be revisad
from approximately 1,185 per annum lo 51,235 per annum. As of Decembar 31, 2013, the Group's 1olal
commitment for governmaent land use fees for the City of Dreams site 1o be paid during the remaining term of
the land concession confract which expires in August 2033 was $23,885.

Studio City

On July 25, 2012, the Macau Governmant published in the Macau official gazelle the final amendment lor
ravision of the land concession contract for Studio City Land on which Studio Cily is located (see Nole 9). The
amendmant revisad the land pramium to approximately $174 954, with $23 561 paid in 2006 and $35.316 paid
in June 2012 upon accaplanscs of the Aindl amendment propasal and (he remaining amount ¢f approsimately
$116.077 will be due in five blannual instalmants, accruing with 5% interest par annum, with the first instalment
o be pald six months from July 25, 2012, the dale the amended conlract published in the Macau official gazelie.
As of December 31, 2013 and 2012, the telal outslanding balance of the land premium was included in accrued
expenses and other current Rabilities in an amount of $46.882 and $44,718, and in land use right payable in an
amount of $24,376 and $71,358, respectively. According to the revised land drrenl, the gov land
use feas wera revised from approximately $328 per annum to $490 par annum during the developmant pericd
of Studio Gity: ond from approximately $527 por annum o $1.131 par annum after the dovelopmant pariad. As
of Decamber 31, 2013, the Group's tolal commitment for govammant land usa fees far tha Sludia City site to be
paid during the remaining term of the kand concossion contract which expires in October 2026 was $11,545,

Provigiongl Licanse

Under the terms of the Provisional License, PAGCOR requires, amongst other things, the Licensees to make
a total investment of $1.000,000 far City of Dreams Mandla {the “lavestment Commitment”) wilh a minimum
invesiment of $650,000 to be made prior to the opening of Cily of Dreams Manila. Under the terms of the
Coop ion Ag 1, the Lis " Investrment Commitment of $14,000,000 will be satisfied as follows:

. For ine omount of $3650,000: (o) in the case of the Philipping Paies. the land and bulding struclures
having an aggregate value as delermined by PAGCOR of not less than $325,000, and (b} in the case
of MCE Leisure, the fit-oul and furniture, gaming equipment, additional improvements, inventory and
supplias as well as intangible propady and antenainment facilities inside or cutlside of the building
struclures, having an aggregate value as detarmined by PAGCOR of mot less than $325,000.

. For the ramaining $350,000, the Philipping Parties and MCE Leisure shall make aqual contribulions
of $175,000 to City of Dreams Manila. The Licensees agres 1o conlribule such amounts and for such
purposes a6 notified by MCE Leisure (or in cartain circumstances the Philippine Padies) to PAGCOR
(subject lo any recommendations PAGCOR may make).
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22, COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (CONTINUED)

(¢} Other Commitments (continued)
Provigional Licanse (eontinued)
Other commitments required by PAGCOR under the Provisional License ane as follows:

. Within 30 days from gelling approval by PAGCOR of the project implemantation plan, te submil o bank
guarantee, letter of credit or surety boand in the amount of PHP100 millien (equivalent to $2.246) to
guarantes the Licensoes' complation of Gity of Dreams Manila and is subject to forfailire in coso of dlay
in construction which delay excaeds 50% of the schadule, of which SM Group had submilted a suraty
pond of PHP 10D milion (equivalent to $2,246) to PAGCOR on Fobruary 17, 2012,

. Seven days prior 1o commencamant of operation of the casing, to secure a surely bond in favar of
PAGCOR in the amount of PHP100 millien (equivalent to $2.245) 1o ensure prompl and punciual
ramitancaipaymant of all lesnsa faas,

. The Licensees are required e maintain an escrow accsunt into which all funds for devalopment of City of
Dreams Manila must be deposited and all funds withdrawn from this account must be used only for such
developmant and lo deposil $100.000 in the escrow account and maintain o balance of $50,000 until the
complation of City of Dreams Manila, of which MCE Leisure had selup the escrow account in March 2013.

J License fees must be remitted on a monthly basis, in Beu of all taxes wilh reference to the income
companent of the gross gaming revenuas: (a) 15% high roller lables: (b) 25% nonshigh roller tables: ()
25% sbol machines and el nic gaming hines; and (d) 15% junket operation.

. In addition to the abova license fees, the Licansees are required to ramit 2% of casine revenues
gendrated from non-junkel speration Lables to o foundation doveled o the restoration of Philipping
cullural heritage, as selacted by Licensees and approved by PAGCOR, of which the foundation was
subsequently setup by MCE Leisure on February 19, 2014,

. PAGCOR may collecl a 5% fee of non-gaming revenue raceived from food and beverage, retail and
entertainment outlets. All revenues of hotel oparations should not be subject o the 5% except rental
ineome rocaived from o1l Concassionaings,

Grounds for revecalion of the loense, amoeng olhars, are 03 foliows: () fallure 1o comply with matenial provisien
of this license; (b) failure to remit license fees within 30 days from receipt of notice of default; (c) has become
bankrupd, insolvent; (d) delay in consiruction of more than 50%. of the schedule: and (o) if debl-to-equity ratio
is mare than 70:30. As of Dacembar 31, 2013, MCE Holdings Group as one of the parlies as Licensees has
complied with the requined deblto-quity ratio under definition 2% agreed with PAGCOR.

Cooparalion Agroomant

Undar the terms of the Cooperation Agreemant, the Licansees are joinlly and severally liable to PAGCOR
undor the Pravisional Lisanse and aach Lisenses (indemailying Licensea) mustindamady the sihir Liensees
for any loss suffered or incurrad by that Licensea arising out of, or in connaction with, any breach by the
indemnifying Licensae of the Provisional License. Each Licenses, however, has the rights to charge the olher
Licensees for their non-contribution portion of the Invesiment Commilmant plus relevant interest under the
terms of the Cooperation Agreament. Also, each of the Philippine Parties and MCE Leisure agree to indemnify
he non-beaaching pady for any koss suffered or incurred as a result of a breach of any warranty,
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22, COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (CONTINUED)

(c)

d)

()

Other Commitments (continued)

MCP Lease Agreamant

Linder the terms of the MCP Leass Agreemant, MCE Leisure shall indemnify and koep Belle fully indemnified
agains! all claims, aclions, demands, aclions and procesdings made agains! Balle by any person arising as a
result of or in conneclion with any loss, damage or injury from MCE Lelsure’s use and operation of busingss on
the kased propety.

Guarantees

Except as disclosed in Mole 12 to the consolidated financial stal ts. the Group has made he following
significant guarantees as of December 34, 2013:

. Maleo Crown Macau has issued a promissory note {*Livranga™) of $68,635 (MOPS50,000,000) to a bank
in reapect of bank guarantaes issued to the Macou Governmaent as disclosad in Note 22{e){vi) to the
consolidated financial statements.

. The Company has enterad into two deeds of guarantee with third parfies amounted to $35.000 to
guarames certain paymant obligations of the City of Dreams” operations.

. Pursuant 1o the Commitmént Letter for the Sledio Cily Preject Facility antered inte on Oclobar 18, 2012
as disclosed in Mole 12, the Sludio City Borrower, among others provided an indemnity on customary
terms 1o the Studie City Lenders and their affiliates. including in connection wilh any breach of such
Commitment Leller and related decuments (*Studio City Mandate Documenis®), such as a breach
of warranty in respect of factual information and financial projeclions provided by or on behall of the
Company and the Studio Cily Borrowar to the Studio City Lenders and their affiliates. On the same dafe,
under the tarms of an agreement betwaen, among others, the Company and New Colal Invesiments to
regulate how indemaity claims under the Commamant LEter are deall with and funded, the Company
has indemnified Mew Cotal Invesiments and the Studio City Borrower in respact of any adl or omission of
the Company of it5 affiliates (other than Studio City International and its subsidiaries) resulting fronn such
person's gross negligence, willful misconduct or bad faith.

g Under the Cooperation Agreemant, Belle has irrevecably and unconditionally guaranieed 1o MCE
Haoldings Group the dus and punctual ebservance, parfarmance and discharge of all obligations of
PFLAI and each SM Group's company, and indemnified MCE Holdings Group agains! any and all loss
incurred in conneclion with any default by the Philippine Paries under the Cooperalion Agreement. MCE
Leisure has likewise irrevocably and uncondilionally guarantead to each of the Philippine Parties the dus
and punctual observance, perfformance and discharge of all obligations of MCE Holdings Group, and
indemnified tha Philippine Parias against any and all loss incurrad in conneclion wilh any default by MCE
Holdings Group under the Cooperation Agreement,

- In Oclobar 2013, Studio Cily Developments entered inte a trade credil faciity of HK$200,000,000
{equivalent 1o $25,707) ("Trade Credit Facilify™) with a bank to meel the constrection payment obligations
of the Studio City project. The Trade Credit Facility is guaranieed by Studio Cily Company. As of
Dacembar 31, 2043, the Trade Credit Facility of approximately $11.658 was ulilized.

Litigation

As of December 31, 2013, the Group is currently a party lo cerlain legal proceedings which relale (o matters
arising oul of the erdinary course of its business. Managemant does not believe that the cutcome of such
proceadings will have a material effact on the Group's financial position. resulls of operations or cash flows.
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23. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the years endad Decambear 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, the Group enterad into the follawing significant related

party lransactions:
Yo Endid Dicimbed 31,
Redated s IMature of transactions. 2013 0z 2
Tranzactions with afiikaled o hal d d 1
undor Chapior 144 of the Listing Rukes
Chin Sen, Limitea ™ Purchase of propéty and
equipment L4 - % — 5 1,756
Crown's subsidiary ‘Consullancy fee expense kil 423 461
Purchase of propesty and
wquipmont i k)l wur
Software brense fee eapense a2 2 -
Lisboa Hodfings Limitad ™ Cifice rental enpense 845 1,157 1453
Medco's subsidiaries and R dsted companses Consull fee gap 643 453 ]
Clfice rentl ponse 308 585 533
Purchase of propedy and
equipment 547 147 188
Servics foa expanse™ 802 B45 502
Cther sendca fee incoma 510 M5 ar
Rrooms and hood and Birrags
income 48 161 2
Miedco Coown Enbertainmant Charity Association™  Danation expenc - - 120
Shun Tak Holdings Limited and s subsidianes
{relemed 1 as “Shun Tak Geoup)™ Offece rental eopanse i 1% 124
Traeeling axpernss®™ 2962 2978 2794
Rooms and food and biverage
incoeng % m 445
Sky Shuttle Helioppters Limited (Sky Shuile 7 Traveling expense 1,808 1. 200
Secidode de Jogos do Macau S.A (R Traveling expense™ 510 nr 482
Sockdada de Turisma & Diversdes de Macau,
SA and its subsideaces (Ihe “STOM Group )™ Advirtising and promeotional
ENpanses 48 & 116
Olfice rentl exponse 1405 1404 W
Servics lea expansa 2 216 113
Traweling expenss® 13 Kt 115
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23. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

Year Ended December 31,
Retated L Natun of bassations 2013 2012 21
Tranzactions with £ha fransactions
MMIH&‘WLSWM
Crown Consullancy fee capitalized
In deferred Enancing costs 5 - § Frri] -

Melco Development costs -_ 3000 —

Interest expense — — 174
Mot

i}

2]

o]

o]

(a)

Compands inwhich & mbilia'rolathos of M. Lisvroncd Yau Lung Ho, he Company's Chisl Exsoutive Officas, hakhine baneficial inforests.

Ao dnssociation of which ceraln sebakdiaries of th Company ano direcions.

Thee smounts maindy regrosant tha Compamy’s B hbaicos mwﬂmhliﬂmﬂmhmhmﬂuﬁm
mwwmmwmwwwﬁ«wmnwmm&m

Teaeelng 2 g BTy el hected o SAPRE Willn Hong Kong o s,

The irwieg wert bt I ropoting, anncuncomont and snnual nrview, bul angengl
Hrom nd Fand shanehodden’ approval el -ﬂn&uﬂwlﬂﬂdhlh&uh‘n

Amounts Due From Affiliated Companies

The oulstanding balances ariging from operating income er prepayment of operaling expenses as of Decomber
31, 2013 and 2012 are as follows:

December 31,
2013 2012
Mekco's subsidiary and i associated company 3 o] 1312
Shin Tak Geoup 3 10
H FriE ] 1,322

The maximum amounts oulstanding dus from Meleo's subsidiary during the years ended Dacember 31,
2013 and 2012 were $1,312 and $1,740, respeclively. The maximum amaunts outstanding due from Meleo's
assesiated company during the years onded Decembar 31, 2013 and 2012 wore $65 and $4. respoctivaly.

The maximum amounts cutstanding due from Shun Tak Group during the years ended December 31, 2013 and
2012 were 515 and $110. respectivaly.

The gutstanding balancas dee from affilinted companies as of Decamber 31, 2013 and 2012 as mentioned
above are unsecured, non-interes! bearing and repayable on demand.
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23. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

24,

(b) Amounts Due To Affiliated Companies

The sutstanding balances arising frem operaling expenses and expenses pald by affilated companies on
bahalf of the Group as of Decambaer 31, 2013 and 2012 are as follows:

December 31,
2003 2012
Crower's Subligkary $ 474 § 12
Mekoo's subsidiaries and its assodated company 1403 k1]
Shisy Tak Geoup =4 iz
S 445 H
Sky Shuttie 151 159
STOM Group 183 5
5 2900 § 949

The oulslanding batances due to affilated companies as of December 31, 2013 and 2012 as mentioned above
are unsecurad, non-interast bearing and repayable on demand.

(¢) Amount Due To A Shareholder

The amount of $79 due to Meleo a5 of Decembar 31, 2013, mainly ansing from expenses paid by Melco on
bahalf of the Group. The balance was unsecured, non-intarest bearing and repayable on demand.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group is principally engaged in the gaming and hospiality bugingss in Asia and ils principal operating and
developmental aclivities occur in two geographic areas: Macau and the Philippines. The chief operaling decision
maker monilors its operations and evaluates eamings by réviewing the assels and operations of Mocha Clubs, Allisa
Maeau and City of Dreams and the development activitias of Studio City and City of Dreams Manila. As of December
31, 2012, Mocha Clubs, Allita Macauy, City of Dreams and Studio City were the primary businesses of the Group.
Upon dosing of the varipus agreaments enterad babween MCP Group and the Philippine Partias for devalopment
and operalion of City of Dreams Manila and the completion of the placing and subscriplion transaction of MCP
during the year ended Dacamber 31, 2013, City of Dreams Manila has become enae of the operating segments of
the Group as of Decembor 31, 2013 and represented the comparatives for the year ended December 31, 2012 and
as of Decamber 31, 2012, Taipa Square Casing is included within Corporate and Others. During the years ended
Decembar 31, 2013 and 2012, all rovenues wore gonerated in Macau,
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24, SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTIMUED)

The Group's segmant infarmation for tolal assets and capilal expendilures is as follows:

Total Assots
Decaenber 31,
2013 12 2011
Matauc

Mocha Clubs § 1527 S 1T6EW § 174,404

Alits Macau 573814 G17.847 STT.145

Gy of Dreams 3,148,657 3dn 32 3103458

Studio Cy 2519461 1844705 T1383T
Subelotal 6401859 5786705 4,568,644
The Philippines:

City of Dreams Manda 531,377 30103 -
Corporale and Others 1,780,403 2030568 1,701 336
Total consobdatod asets §  BRINGI 3 TMIAG § 60030
Capital Exponditures

Year Ended December 31,
@3 2012 @1
Macauc

Mocha Clubs § 6515 3 595 § k]

Alies Macau 5464 1,105 6662

iy of Droams e A6 W

Studio Chy 440,825 115,385 T13.253
Sub-total 550,459 X1 BET TEIHT
The Philippines:

City of Dreams Mania 150,854 817 —
Corporate and Others 2042 pikr ) Pl
Total capital enpendiunes 5 12,355 5 IS 5 TESHH
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24. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

The Group's segmant information on ils results of aperations is as follews:

Year Ended December 31,
2013 2012 2011
NET REVENUES
Macau:
Mocha Clubs $ 14883 % 1430 % 131,834
Airg N 1033401 966,770 1,173,930
City of Dreams 3857048 2920812 2491383
Studio City 1088 160 _
Sub-total 5040626 403,102 3,097 H47
Thi Philippines:
City of Drsams Manda - - —
Coapiats and (thers 46,552 46001 33600
Total net revenues § S08Ta78 § 4074013 §  3EMAT
ADJUSTED FROPERTY EBITDA™
Macaw:
Mocha Clubs 3 4022 5 36085 % 40475
ARirg Wz 147,340 154697 246,300
City of Drsams. 1,183,211 805,719 584 440
Studio Ciy _{1,058) [(:10] (300}
Sub-total 1,379,714 HaseN 830015
The Phiippines:
of Dreams Manda ﬁm {478} -
Toku EBITOR 1379111 995,335 BE0.015
OPERATING COSTS AND EXPENSES
Pre-opaning costs (17.014) (5785 2650}
Develepimant cosls (25,297} {11,093) {1,110}
A of gaming sub s5ion fr] 157.237) (57237}
Ametization of land use rights (E4.271) {59911} (34,401}
Depreciation and amortization (281.258) (251,443) (250,224)
Shao-basod compinsation {14,957) (8.973) (8624}
Proparty chargas and othars 18884 (8854) (1,025}
Conpaats and (thers axpenses (81,200) (75,135} (71,454}
Totad costs and gm%'n | 435
I i 445,11
NON-OPERATING INCOME (EXPENSES)
Inbedast incoma THED 10,958 4,131
Intesest caponses, net of caplalized inferest (152:650) (109611} (113808}
Recassiication of losses of inlerest rale swap agreements.
from accumulsted other comprehansing kases. — - (4,30
Change in fair value of interes! rate swap agreemants - a3 347
Amedtization of deformod Bnanting costs {18,158) {13.272) (14,203)
Loan commiment foes (25,843) (1.324) {1411}
Foreagn exchange (kss) gain, nel {10,756) 45685 (1,771}
Cthat income, nel 1,681 "5 364
BIpENEs —_ - (8:960)
Loss on extinguishment of (50.935) - (25,183)
‘Cirsts associated with debl modiication 0, —
_Tobal non-opataling expanses, nd ; {111,383} (157902}
INCOUME BEFORE INCOME TAX 5a0.45 39572 Fr]
INCOME TAX [EXPENSE) CREDIT (2441) 2043 1636
NET INCOME 578013 38672 FEEr T
NET LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO NONCONTRCLLING INTERESTS 58450 18.531 s412
NET INCOME A D MELCO ENTERTANMENTLIITED _§  Gor853 § 417203 §  2046%
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24, SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTIMUED)

25,

L]

(1} “Adpussed po EHTOW i omminge bafore intrest, taxos, deprecintion, amartization, pra-opening costs, dovelipment coms, thare-

mmewwdnwm m"mmwmmmwwmmeTh

ehﬂmmmmnmwwE&ﬂmb the of Mipoha Cluba, Mura Macaw, City of
Dresms, Studio City a6vd Gty f Denares Manits ond o comeans tho 6parsting ekmanca of RS propars with s of s cempatios.,

The Greup's geographic information for long-lived assels is as follows:

Long-lived Assots

Decambaer 31,
2013 2012 2011
Mt § EEG8R 3 448§ amEaIR
The Philipgines 4,827 817 -
Hong Kong and othid feeoign opunirios 1,389 0 785
Tobal long-Ived assets § 4840058 5 430248 § 420N

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

(a)  Acquisition of MCP

On December 7, 2012, the Company, through its indirect subsidiaries, MCE (Philippines) Invesimanis Limiled
{"MCE Invesiments”) and MCE (Philippines) Investments Mo, 2 Corporation {*MCE Invesimenls No.2%), enlered
into an acquisition agresrment (the *Acquisilion Agreamant™) with two independent thind parties, Interphanma
Heldings & Management Corporation and Pharma Indusiries Holdings Limited {collectively referred to as the
“Saling Shareholdars™), subject Lo certain condilions precedent, 1o acquire from the Selling Shareholders an
aggregate of 93.06% of the issued share capital of MCP (ihe “Proposed Acquisitien™), Prior to completion of the
Proposed Acquisition on December 19, 2012, MCP sold its two operaling subsidianies, Inlerphil Laboratorias,
Inc. and Lancashire Realty Holding Corporation. 1o the Seling Shareholders {or their affiliates) under the
deeds of assignment dated December 7, 2012 batwean the Saling Shareholders (or their affiliates) and MCP
(the “Subsidiary Sale Agreemants™), in accordance with the lerms of the Acquisition Agreement. The total
consideration under the Acquisition Agreement was PHP1,259,000,000 (equivalent to $30,682) which included
i} PHP200,000.000 {equivalent to $4,874) to the Selling Sharaholders, and i) PHP1,059,000,000 {equivalent
1o $25.808) on direction of the Salling Shareholders, 1o MCP in settlement of the labiliies of the Selling
Shareholdars {or thair affiliales) under the Subsidiary Sale Agreements. On Decambar 19, 2012, MCP relained
PHP1,059,000.000 (equivalent to $25,808), which represented the subsidianos’ sale amount upon complelion
of the Proposed Acquisition.

On Decombaer 19, 2012, the Group completed the acquisition of 93.06% of the issued share capital of MCP.
MCP did not have any operation and revanue immediately before the acquisition by the Group and the
oxcess payment of $5.747 for acquisition of assels and liabililies of MCP does not have any measureable
fulure economic benefits to the Group to qualify the recognition requirements of an assel, and was themafore
axpensed in the consolidated statements of operations and included in developrment costs.
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25. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

(@)

(o)

Acquisition of MCP (continued)
The net assets acquired in the transaction are as follows:
Aoyt
recognized
o the dabe
of acquisition
el assels acquired:
Cash and eash equivalants - b2
Prepald expenses and other cument assets 13
Actiutd exponsas and othat current kabdtios. (1054}
Moncontrodling inferests {1,850}
Mot assets H 24835
Excess paymend on acquisiion of asselts and Eabilies (including direct cos! incurred)
charged 1o consoldalod Salamonts of oparations and inthodod in dirrlopmont oosts 5,747
H 682
Total considerabion satsBed by:
Cash paid H 0632
Acquisition of Studio City Group

On June 16. 2011, the Company éntered inte a share purchase agreamant and through its indireet subsidiany.
MCE Colai Investments Limted ("MCE Cotai™), to acquire from an affiliate of eSun Holdings Limited (“eSun
Holdings™). an indepandant third party. a 60% aquity interest in Studio City International (logethar with its direct
andindirect subsidiaries, the “Studio City Group™), which is the developer of Sludio City. The tolal consideration
under the share purchase agreeméent and related transaction documents is $360.000 which inclede §) a
payment 1o an affiliale of eSun Holdings for its entire B0% interest in, and a shareholder's loan exlended fo,
the Stedio City Group at $200,000 and 360,000, respectively; where $65.000 and $195.000 were paid by the
Group in June 2011 and July 2011, respectively, and i) a payment of $100,000 in cash in threa instalments
of $50.000, $25.000 and $25.000 over bwo years commancing upon the clesing of the transaction on July 27,
2011 to Mew Colai Holdings, LLC (the direct sharaholder of Mew Colal. LLC), far transferring o the Sludio City
Group the shares of other entilies Inal gwn nights to develop the gaming areas of Studio Cily. The firsl, second
and last instalments of $50.000, 525,000 and $25.000 wera sottled by the Group in August 2011, July 2012 and
July 2013, respectively,

On duly 27, 2011, the Group complated Ihe acquisition of 60% oquity interest in the Studio Gity Groug. Th
Studio City Group did noi have any eperalion and r immediately before the acquisition. The Group
principally acquired a parcel of land and reldled construclion in progness through the aequisiion of the Studie
City Group and this transaction was accounted for as acquisition of assels and liabilities.
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25. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

(b) Acquisition of Studio City Group (continued)
The nel assels acquired in the tansaction are as follows:

Areount

recognized

A the dabe

of pequisition

el assels acquired:
Cash ang cash equivalonts ¥ 5818
Prepaid expenses and other cument assets T2
Dopests 432
Land usa right, net 540.0M
Construction in progress 139,201
Acorued expensets and other curent Rabities {10,939
Laindd use rght paryable (47 020}
Diderred b Kabiities 54,985}
Noncontreding interests (37.309)
Mot assets EH 340
Todol considaralion satisSed by

Cash paid § 310000
Payables for aoquisition of assots and kabiiis 45584
355,864

Dirwct costs incamed for acquisiion of assets and Eabiities 18,365
5 374,149

26. CHANGE IN SHAREHOLDING OF THE PHILIPPINES SUBSIDIARIES

O April 8, 2013, the Company through its indirect Subsidiary, MCE Investments, subscribed for 2,848 595,000
commen shares of MCP al tolal consideration of PHP2 846,505,000 {equivalent lo $69.592), which increased MCE's
shareholding in MCP and the Group recognized an increase of $401 in the Company’s additional paid-in ¢apital
which reflacts the adjusiment o the camying amaunt of the noncentrolling intarest of MCP.

On April 24, 2013, MCP and MCE Invesimenls compleled a placing and subscriplion transaction (the “Placing
and Subssriplion Transaclion™). undar which MCE Investmaents offarad and sold in a privale placemant to vanious
institutional investors of 981,183,700 common shares of MCP at the offar price of PHP14 per share (equivalent
to $0.34 par shara) (the *Offar). In connection with the Offer, MCE Investmaents granted an cver-allatmant oplisn
({the "Over-aliotmant Oplien™) of up to 117.075,000 common shares of MCP al the offer price of PHP14 per share
(equivalant to §0.34 per share) to a slabilizing agent (the “Stabilizing Agent™). MCE Invastmants than used thi
preceeds from the Offer to subscribe lo an equivalent number of commen shares in MCP at the subscription price
of PHP14 par share (equivalent to $0.34 par share). On May 23, 2013, the Stabilizing Agenl exercised the Over-
allotment Oplion and subscribed for 36,024,600 commen sharas of MCP at the offer price of PHP14 per share
(rquivalent to $0.34 por share). The aforesabd iransactions decreased MCEs shareholding in MCP and the Group
recegnized an increase of $227,134 in the Company’s additional paid-in capital which reflects the adjustment to the
carying amaunt of the noncanteglling interast of MCP,
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26.

27.

28.

CHANGE IN SHAREHOLDING OF THE PHILIPPINES SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

During the year ended December 31, 2013, the tetal transfers from nancontrolling interests amounted lo $227 535 in
relation to ransactions as described above. The Group retains its controliing financial interast in the MCP before and
after the abowe transactions.

The schadule bilow disclosos the affects of changes in the Company's ewnership inarost in MCP on the Company’s
Gquity:

Nﬂthmn:mmmmﬁmimﬂa'mlm 0 B4R
Transdurs froem g
Incroase in Meloo Crown Entedainment Limited additional paid-in capdtal resulting from subscription of 2,846,595,000
commen sharos of MCP 401
Increase in helco Crown Entertainment Limiled additional paid-in capital resulting from the Piacing and Subscription
AL and the Over-ak Option fed by the $tabiizing Ageni for o shares
ol MCP 2TAH
“Charvges Trom net neome alnbuiabie to Meko Crown Engrinment Lenied shareholgers and ransiers from
nancontroling interests 5 854058

OPERATING INCOME
Operating income is arrived al after charging:

Year Endad Decomber 31,

2013 2012 2011
FaadRor s reamunerabon 3 W5 Wi s EE]]
Lot on detposal of propédy and equipment $ 2483 § 837 § 476

DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS

Datails of the emoluments paid or payable to the Directors during the years ended Decomber 31, 2013, 2012 and
2011 wore as follows:

Salaresand  Pedormance  BenefiScheme  Sharedused
Doechory’ Fees  Offwr Beralits Borigses™  Coolribuliors  Compensalon 2003 Toksl

Comcharman, donkoute (neciy
Larmmenice Yau Lung Hy® 5 -5 2206 § 9000 § 2% 6§ it
Comshairman, nonsexecylive Direcior
Hemes Dougias Packer - - - 502 502
Nom-execufi Direchors
John Peter BanWang - - - - 112 112
Clarenca Yk Wan Chung - 200 - - Ll T
Wiliam Tioadd Meshed — 00 — — ar ar
Rowen Bruce Craigie = = =, = ] %
Independant non-ieute Direciors
Jamas Andnew Crarkes MaeKenzs 14 18 - - 175 484
Thaomas Jeflerson Wy 113 - - - 11 ol
Aise Yoy Wia Toui 11 L - - 175 476
Raberi Waspn Macfer 8 - - - 112 wr
H (Lo TEL Y FXCE i SEIL S EE=D
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28. DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS {CONTINUED)

Saanesand  Perormance  BeneftScheme Shanebised
Direchors’ Feas.  Ofar Banalils Borusses” Conlribufiors.  Compansation 2082 Tokal

Comchadrmaa, doboutng Dingsior
Lirwrance Yau Lung Bo® 5 =% 187 § 2250 § r i ] 2g8d % 6,523
Co-chairman, non-mescyfive Diecior

Non-execufie Direchors
Johh Pater Ban Wang
Clazenca Yuk Man Chung
WElam Tosd Bt
Riwen Broca Craige
Indigendant non-nieuie Direcins
James Andrew Charies Mackeangis
Thamas Jeflerson Wy e
Aac Yiu Wa Teui 108
Ribert YWason Ma: fer B

wr wr
15 ]

8
|
|
|

in bl
07 M
w7 215
107 181
5 1565 3 T1.622

|
1
rall 11

Salaresand  Pecdormarce  BenefilScheme  Sharedbused
Dioeclors’ Fees e Banells Borwses™  Conbribubors  © 1 2011 Total

Co-chiarman, executive Direcir
Larmrinid Yau Lung Ha® § -3 1050 § 1575 § 2§ 2102 § 4T
Co-chairman, non-axscufv Direcior
Jamis Dougias Patker - - - -
Non-execufve Direclors:
e Paler Ban'Warg - - - -
Clattnes Yuk Man Chung = - = =
WElsam Todd Mistet - - - -
et Brata Craige - - - -

11232

Jarmad Andnew Charkes MacKenze 115 - - -
Thomas Jeflerson Wy e - = =
A Yy Wa Teul 10 = — =
Raber Waton Mac e BE —

5 413 § 1.050 § 1515 § FiE]

180
ur
]
181
5.700

H-ﬁd-ﬁ
EEZEFEe 1123
A |

MHeotas

11} Petformancs borases sie delammined with referonda 1o the indnidaals’ poerd nnd wrntionl nned finareciad el o of e
Comgany,

@ M Lawrence Yau Lung Ho i sl the Chiol Exocutive Officed of ibe Ceenpasy and his omoluments disclosed sbove inchadn thosa ler senicos
randaned by Birm ad. U Chisl Exoostig 0o,

Dwring the years ended Decamber 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, no emoluments have been paid to the Direclors as an
inducement to join or wpon joining the Company, or as compensalion for loss of office. Except for Mr. William Todd
Nisbel wivo wanved emolunints of $120 related to senvices provided in 2010 during the year ended Decambaer 31,
2011, no Directer wahed any emoluments during the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011.
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29. EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS
(a) Emoluments of Five Highest Paid Individuals

For each of the three years ended Dacember 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, the five highest paid individuals
indluded one Director of the Company. The emcluments of the remaining four highest paid individuals, including
a former sanbor executiva in 2012, for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 are as follows:

Year Ended Decombed 31,
2013 2012 2011
Bask sataries, alowances and benefits in kind § 2848 § 2418 § 238
Porformanciy bonuses™ 4983 1597 1909
Retiement benefit scheme contributions 8 184 149
Teamination benoht - 1573 -
Shace-based compensalion ) 1,731 1063
§ 11,52 § 7483 § [
L0
i Paremanig bamubod am with iy e et 3 el Ll el Bafuiencia] gt of
thes Coamguaireg.

Druring the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, no emolumants have been paid to the five highest
paid individuals as an inducemaent lo join of upan joining the Coempany, of as compansalion fof loas of offica,
axcepl a tarmination benefit 1o a former senior execulive in 2012, No five highest paid individuals walved any
amolurmnants during the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011,

Their emalurmants ware within the following bands:

Humbar of Employeos
Year Ended Decambar 31,

2013 a2 a
HKS9,000,001 (appredmataly $1,157) to HK§,500,000 {appeowimatedy §1.221) =
HIS10,500.001 {approimatioly $1,350) o HIH11.000,000 (agpeoximately $1.414) -
HK513,000.000 {apprecimatily $1.671) b HE513.500,000 (appeouimately $1,735)
HES13,500,000 {appoccdmatoly $1.735 by HIS 14,000,000 (apgecudonatedy $1,799)
HIC§14,000,008 {approcdmately $1.750} o 14,500,000 (appeorimately $1,854)
HES14,500,000 {appoceimnatoly 1,554 by HES15.000,000 (apgeonimately $1,.928)
HI$15,000.001 {approvimately $2 314} bo HES18.500,000 (approvimately $2.378)
HK$19,500,001 (approimatedy $2.506] o HKS20.000.000 (appeasimalely $2,571)
HI§36,500,001 {approsimately $4.592) fo HKS37.000,000 (appeaimately $4,756)

I e |

= I =

=l =
-
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29. EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)
(b) Emoluments of Senior Management

Other than the amolumants of Directors and five highest paid individuals disclosed in Motes 28 and 20({a), the
amclurnants of the sanior managemant fell within the following bands:

HIC§2,500,001 (approodimalety $321) to HK$3,000,000 {approximalaly $386) =
HS4 000,001 (approodmaloty $514) o HiS4.500.000 {appeonimatuly $578) 1
HICS5/000.001 (approodimalaty $643) to HK$S,500,000 {appeoximataly $TOT) -
HKSS 000,001 (approodmaloty $TT1) o HE$5.500.000 (appeoximatuly $535) 1
HIKS7 000,001 (approodmatety $900) to MKST 500,000 {apprarimataly $064) =
HESE SO0001 fappredmatoty $1.053) o HSR.000.000 (appeorimately $1,157) -
HKS3,000,001 (apprcodmatety $1,157) 1o MK§9,500,000 {appeonimatety §1.221) =
HHS2 500,001 fappredmalely $1.221) b HES10.000.000 fappenimately $1.285) =
HK$13,000,001 {approadimately $1,671) o HK513.500,000 (appeonimately $1,735) 1

3

=l = =1

30. DIFFERENCES BETWEEN U.S. GAAP AND IFRS

The consolidated financial slalements are prepared in accordance with U.S. GAAP, which differ in certain respects
from International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS"). The significant differences, that have a molerial impact
an the Company’s shareholders” equily and nel inceme attdbutable 1o Meleo Crown Entertainment Limitad, relate
principally to the accounting for the following:

(a)

(b)

Capitalization of Amortization of Land Use Rights as Property and Equipment

Under U.5. GAAP, the amorlization of land use righls is recognized in the consolidated slatements of
operations over the estimated lease term of the land on a straight-line Basis and is net capitalized to the
consiruction in progress during the property construction pered.

Undar IFRS, the amariization of land use rights is ganerally recognized in the consolidated statements of
CPETAloNG over the astimaled lease term of the [and on a straight-ing basis. I the amonization of land use
rights Is expenditure directy attributable to bringing @ propery to working condition for is inended use, the
related amortization is capitalized to construction in progress, unlil such time as the construclion works are
cormpleted.

Borrowing Cosls

Under U5, GAAP, the amount of interest cost to be capitalized is delermined by applying the capitalization rate
to the average amount of accurmulated expendituras for the assel during the construction period. If the average
accumulaled expendilures exceed the lofal ameunt of thal bomgwing, the capilalization rale ie be applied lo
such excass shall be a weighled average of the rales applicalle 1o other borrewings of the enfity. Incame
eamed on lemporary invesiment of aclual borrowings is not genarally deducted from the amount of borrgwing
costs to be copilolized.,

Mateo Crown Entertainmont Lesitod  Anrual Report 2013

7]



w2

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

{in ihusands of ULS, dollars. sucepl ahao and per shade dala)

30. DIFFERENCES BETWEEN U.S. GAAP AND IFRS (CONTINUED)

(b}

c)

L]

Borrowing Costs (continued)

Under IFRS, to the extent that funds are borrowad specifically for the purpose of ebtaining a qualifying assel.
thé enfity shall deterrmine the amount of bormowing costs eligible for capilalization as the actual bormowing costs
incurred on that bomewing during the period less any imvesiment incoma on the temporary invesiment of those
borrowings, If an ently borrows funds generally and uses them for (he purpese of oblaining a qualifying dssel.
the antity shall determina the amount of borrowing costs aligitde for capitalization by applying a capilalization
rate 1o the expendilures on thal assot. The capitalization rate shall be the weighted average of the borrowing
costs applicable to the bommowings of the entity thal are outslanding during the period, other than borowings
made specifically for the purgose of eblaining a qualifying asset,

Deferred Income Taxes

Undar U.S. GAAP, deferred income lax is recognized for the lemporary differences arising from an asset
purchase that is nol a business combination. The lax effect of assel purchases thal are nol busingss
combinations in which the amount paid ditfers from the tax basis of the assel shall not rasult in immediate
statements of operations recognition. The diferencos are considered 1o be a lemporary delference and a
deferred tax asset or liability should be recognized. The simultanesus-aquations method shall be used to
caleulate ther assigned valug of the assel and the related defered tax assels or defarred 1ax labilties,

Under IFRS, defarred income lax is not recognized for lemporary differences resulting from the initial
recognition of an assal or liability in a transaction thal is not a business combination and do not affact
accounling or laxable profil as of the transaction date. Therefore, the canying value of the asset and Rability is
nol adjusted.

The value of land use rights acquired for Altira Macau, City of Dreams and Studio City are different under U5,
GAAP and IFRS. Acsordingly, the amount of amortization of land use rights over the eslimatled uselul lives and
the defemred income laxes are different,

Share-based Compensation

Under U.S. GAAP, for awards that have graded vesting fealures and service condition enly, an anfity has to
choose os an accounling policy eiher 1o (1) recognize a charge on an acceleraled basis (o reflect the vesling
as il accurs (which is similar to the mathod under IFRS) or (2) amolize the entire grant on a siraight-line basis
over the longest vesling peried,

IFRS statos that sharg-baged coOmgensalion oxgense is recognized on an acciierated melhod wherd an enlity
recognizes compensalion cost over the requisite service period for each separataly vasling partion of the award
a5 if the award was, in-$ubstonce, multiple awards, Each portien is reated as a separate grant, as each porion
has a differant westing pericd.

The Group has adopled the straight-Ene methed in the preparation of its consolidated financial stalements,
Comgensalion axpense recognized will be different under UL.S. GAAP and IFRS.
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30. DIFFERENCES BETWEEN U.S. GAAP AND IFRS (CONTINUED)

(&) Deferred Financing Costs
Under U.5. GAAP, fees paid 19 lenders and other third-panty costs incumed in relation 1o a debt refinancing
are distinguished and accounted for differently depending on the classification of such debl as modified or
axlinguished in accordance with LS. GAAP. If the debt is extinguished, fees paid to lenders are includad in
gain of 1055 on extinguishmant of detd and other third-pary ¢osts are capitalized as dofered financing costs
and amortized as an adjusimant of interast expense ovar the term of the amended debl instrumant.

Under IFRS, if an exchange of dabt instruments or modification of tarms Is acoounted for as an axdinguishmeant,
all fees and cosls incurred are recognized as part of the gain or loss on the extinguishment, there is no
ditference in the treatment for fees paid to lenders and other third-party costs,

In additien, deferred financing costs are d in the consoli balance sheels as eilher assels or o
raduction of the dabl balance under U.5. GAAP whilst they can only be presanted in the consolidated balance
sheels as a reduclion of deb! balance under IFRS,

f)  Point-loyalty Programs
Under U.S. GAMAP, an entily can choose balwean two approaches developed in praclice lo account for the
peint-loyally pregrams: (1} the mulliple-element approach (similar 1o the approach under IFRS), in which
a porlion of the revenue from the initial iransaction(s) is generally deferred until redemption and (2) the
incrementalkcost approach, in which the ostimoled cost of the loyally grogram poinls is recorded as o Kabilify,

Under IFRS, loyally program points granted to cuslomdrs as parl of a sales transaction that cuslomarns can
redeem for free or discounted goods or sarvices shall be accounted for as a separate identifiable component of
the sales arrangemant (i.0, multiphe-alemaent approach) and the fair value of the consideration received should
ba allacated betwaen the loyalty program points and the ofher components in the arrangemant, and recorded
a3 deferred revenue until redenplion,

The Group has adopted the incremental-cost approach in the preparation of its consolidaled financial
staternents and accrued for loyally pregram points expected lo be redeemed for cash and free play as
a reduction to gaming revenus and accrues for loyally program points expected to be redeamed for frae
goods and services as casing expense, Accordingly. the labllity of point-loyalty programs racognized and
the classification of casing revenue and casino expense will be different under U.S. GAAP and IFRS. Such
differences de nod have a malerial impaet on the Company's shareholders’ aquity or net income atiributable te
Malco Crown Enteftainmant Limated in prior years. Therefore, no comesponding adjusiment for priar years is
made in the reconcilialions below.
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30. DIFFERENCES BETWEEN U.S. GAAP AND IFRS (CONTINUED)

There are clher differances betwean LS. GAAP and IFRS relevant to the accounling policies of the Group. Such
differences do not have a material impact on the Company's sharaholders’ equity as atl Decamber 31, 2013 and 2012
and ned income atiribulable to Meleo Crown Entartainment Limited during the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012
and 2011 but may affect future pariods and the relevan! datails ara sel ocut below:

Impairment of Assels

Under LS. GAAP, enlilies ane requined to use a hwo-slap approach 1o measure impairment. In step 1, enlities perform
a recoverability tesl by comparing the expected undiscountad futura cash fiows to be derived from the asset with its
carrying amount. If the asset fails the recoverability test, step 2 is required, and the entity must record an impairment
5 caleulated as the excess of the assels camrying amount aver is fair value, Fair value sheuld be calculated as
“the price hat would be receivad lo sell an assal or paid to transfer a labdily in an ordedy ransaclion babween market
participanls at the measurament date”,

Under IFRS, the impairment less ks calculated as the excess of the assel's camying amount over its recoverable
amaunt. Tha recoverable amount is the higher of an assel’s (1) faif value less cosls to sell and (2) value in use. “Fair
value less costs to sell” ks defined as “the amount obtainable from the sale of an assel or cash-generating wnit in an
am's langth ransaclion batwean knowladgeable, willing parias, less the cosls of disposal™. When enlities caleulale
value in usa. they discount the expected future cash flows to be generaled by the asset lo their net present value.

Under U.S. GAAP, if the recoverability test in step 1 is passed, impairmant is nod recorded oven i the fair value of the
aszel is less than its camying amaunt. Accordingly, an impaimmeant loss may be racorded under IFRS bul may not be
recorded undaer U5, GAAP under Lhe same sl of circumstances. When an impairment loss is recorded under bolh
U.5. GAAP and IFRS, the amount of the impairment 1058 may nol be the same undar LS. GAAP and IFRS because
the fair value (under U.5. GAAP) and recoverable amounl (under IFR'S) may differ,

DOuring the years ended Decamber 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, the management of the Group considered that there s
no matarial differance batwean the ameunt of impairment loss recorded undar LS. GAAP and IFRS.

Thera are alse differences batween US. GAAP and IFRS in the presentation and ciassification of items in tha
consolidated statements of operations, balance sheels and statements of cash flows. In addition, there are
differances on financial statement disclosure required between U.S, GAAP and IFRS. Such diffarentas do nol have
impact on the Company's shargholders' equity as ot December 31, 2013 and 2002 or net income allributable 1o
Malzco Crown Entertainment Limited during the years ended Dacember 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011.
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30. DIFFERENCES BETWEEN U.S. GAAP AND IFRS (CONTINUED)

The matedial adjustments necessary to restale nel income altribulable to Meloo Crowm Entedainment Limited and the
Comgany's shareholders’ equity in accordance with IFRS are surmmarized as follows:

Year Endad Duosrrter 31,

M3 ik il
Natinoome atiibulatée 1o Meioo Crown Erteriainment Limised se reporiedunder US.GARP §  BOT463 § 411200 § 20465
IERS adpsimins:

Capitalization of amérfiza fon of ind use rights 5 property and equipment 40843 354 13,45
Adasenl capraRzaten of BIMOwing co8ts 38 peodarty and equipmint 17052 i ar
Reaversal of datlered L in refalion 1o lend wse fighs {8407) 4,085} (2647
Datrosss o amarczaton of land usd ights 55 3 resullof changs in a3signed valuk of
Land wsa righls 4 585 45685 2505
Adatonal dapretiation of propity and aquismnt in i e ko oMatence in cagetaization of
armorizabion of ind use rights and bamowing oot (202} {200 (2,028)
Adssonal share-based Sompensa ke retognized (1,680 463) {1639}
Reduction in amorhizafon of defmad finanting cosls T480. 1.152 3,388
Finanting costs recagnizad &5 par of less on extaguishment of debl (6523 - 129,328
Addmbna! dedarmed ravenus on pointioyaty projians (5581} - -
R inned ks e g inferests” (22.50T) {n5.248) 15.220)
Nt income attributibis b Meico Crown Enbertainment Limiled &5 reporied undar IFRS § B4l § EH3 § 3.2
Natinonme atfributable o Meico Crown Enticiainmint Limided pir shace undar IFRS:
Basic H 0403 § 0§ 0130
Dilted H 050 § 033 § 0.168

Teaghled awrags shanes uead in nalincoms atfbutabie o Meico Crown Endaainment Limited
e shacw cabculation unde IFRS:

Basic TEHOETRED BB IE00R  1EM4.210.304
Divded T TROSM  1ESRASSHD 1RG0
Decarmbar 31,
Fiik] ik
Ther Company’s shacehaide’ equily &3 reporied under L5, GAAP § 4MEETD § 3385903
IFRS pdpestmants:
CapitaiizaBion of amoeizaton of Eind use rights 5 property and squigmant 138490 aTEaT
Adssonal capiaizabion of bomowing cosis 33 poperty and equipment 2,122 4070
Raduction in amorfizaban of dafemad fnancing costs 1508 10,538
Raversal of datemed b in redalion 1o land use fights {19517) {15210}
Docresssin amortzation of kand vsa rights &8  resultof changs in assigned valus of land use rights 16757 12,042
Adisona! depesiation ol propedty and equipment i relation ko dllarence in capiialzation of amarization
ofitand use fights and bormowing tosts {9655} 7626}
Finanting costs recagrizad &5 parl of loss on exdnguishment of debt (35:851) 129,33
Addforal dedirred revens on portingalty programs 5581) =
Readuction in ned koss atiributable o noncontroling inlerests {82875) 120,368}
Nonegebeling inkrests’ shane on shaebossd eecagized in paidén capral (614) -
The Compary’s shaceholders’ aquity as reporied under IFRS 5 ANNRM 5 1AM

Mateo Crown Entertainmont Lesitod  Anrual Report 2013



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

{in ihusands of ULS, dollars, el ahare and per shade dala)

30. DIFFERENCES BETWEEN U.S. GAAP AND IFRS (CONTINUED)

A recontiliation of the significant consolidated balance sheats accounts from amounts as reported undar LS. GAAP

to amounts as reponed under IFRS is as follows:!

Détisimbed 31,
2013 2z

Property and equipment, nel:

As reporiod 5 3308R4E 5 260N
IFRS adjustments:
Caplalizabon of amestizaten of kind use fights as ploparty and equepmant 130,558 48635
Additional capitalizabion of borowing costs a5 propedty and equipment 11z 4070
Addienal wthen of pleprty and oqui i relation lo dMaroncd in caplalzaton of
amortization of land use rights and bormgwing costs (9,555) (7 528)
Caphalizabon of $1an-up cosls A% propoity and Bquip 910 W10
Under IFRS. $ 3480751 § 2TEDALY
Defomed Bnancing costs:
As reporied § 114431 8 85,930
IFRS adpssimonts ™
In amacatization of defamed Bnanting costs 18,012 10,538
Financing costs racognized o pan of kots on extinguishment of debt (35.851) (28,328
Usdat IFRS. 5 96508 % 47,140
Land usa rights, net:
s reporied $ 051513 3 0s00ed
IFRS adpstmonts:
Diecrease in amortization of land e rights s a resull of change in assignad valus of Land wse rights 18,737 12,042
Feonvorsal of detorrod b kabddas recogeezsd upon dcdquisition of Land uso righls {79,707} (79,707}
Reduction in land use ights recognized upon acquiition of assets and Eablities as a resull of
capiaization of amodtization of lond U rights 3nd slad-up costs &5 propédy and equipmont (1.545) (1.948)
Undar IFR3 $ 4800 3 020N
Accrued expenses and other cument Eabdities:
As reportod 5 028781 5 eshad
IFRS adjustment:
Atditiznnl Sabortod 1pvniss oh poant byalty peostims 5581 —_
Under IFRS. 5 MR 3 850,841
Dt Exx kabaes:
As reporied 5 62506 § 65,350
IFRS adpusimonts:
Revarsal of deferrad tax in relation ko land use rights 19617 15210
Riversal of deferod lax abitios recogrized upon acquisition of land use rights {79.707) (78,707}
Under IFRS. 5 2716 % 1,853
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30. DIFFERENCES BETWEEN U.S. GAAP AND IFRS (CONTINUED)

December 31,
2013 M2
Addional paid-n caplat
A twporied $ 3470393 § 3235835
IFRS aduslenants:
Addtional share-based compensation recognized 8,155 5453
Nonsonieling inbirests’ shase on addtional shaco-based componsation
recognized in additional paid-in capital (618) -
Undt IFRS. §  JABBOTT §  3M23E
Accumulated slher comprehensive losses:
As eporied $ 15552 § 1057
IFRS adjustment.
Foreigh currency dj 0 additional shane-based 6o fecogribed 10 -
Under IFRS $ 15602 3 1057
Retained earnings:
As reporied 5 TT2.15 % 134693
IFRS adjusimants:
Caplalizabon of amedtization of Band use rights as proparty and equipment 138490 a7 647
Addiicnal capitalzation of borrowing costs 25 propedy and equipment 21,12 4070
Resversal of deferred tax in retation 1o land use rights {19617) (15,210}
Decrease in amodizabon of Bind wse fghts a5 a result of change in assignad vahu of Land use fights 16,737 12042
Asditional depreciation of property and equipment in rekation to dference in capitalization of
amertizabon of land e nghts and bomowing costs (9655) (7 526)
Addtional share-based compensation recognized (8.182) (5433)
Rodustion in ametization of dofamed Enancing onsls 18018 10,538
Financing costs recognized as part of loss on extinguishment of debt {25.851) (29,328)
Additional deberrod revinue on point-loyalty prograens (5.581) =
in net bass to ] (42.875) {20.368)
Under IFRS. $  B44TE2 S 170,065
Nonsontroling inberests:
As reporied $ 678312 § T
IFRS adpustmants:
Moncontioling intedests’ shase oh capitalzation of amortization of Land usé rights 35 proparty and
aquipmant 15,851 19,040
Moncontioling inbedests’ shass oh decreats in amadization of ind Usa fights 36 2 neeull of
change in assigned valus of land use rights 36H0 218
Moncontioling inbedests’ shass oh additional caplaization of bofiwing costs 38 plopedy nd
equigement 1512 3
Moncontioling inbedests’ shase on riversal of detidrad L in roktion B0 land use rights (3.504) (2,054}
Undar IFRS 5 7280 % 375,185
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{in ihusands of ULS, dollars. sucepl ahare and per shado dala)

30. DIFFERENCES BETWEEN U.S. GAAP AND IFRS (CONTINUED)

A reconciliation of the significant consolidaled statemants of operalions accounts from amounts as repofad under
U.S. GAAP 1o amounts as reponed undar IFRS is as follows:

Year Ended Decambes 31,
2013 012 2011
Casing renvenise:
As reporiod $  4D14ET § 3076 § 36704
IFRS adjustment™,

Addienal deberrod revenus on poanl-boyalty peod 15,581 - -
Under IFR3 § 4535006 3 JOMTE1 3 3ET04AH
As reporied 5  MSTE0 S 26080 § Frier ]

IFRS sdjusstmont:
Addtional share-based compensation recognized 1,689 463 163
Undat IFRS. 5 257460 § 144 % T21 853
Amirtization of land use rights:
As reporied -3 B4IT1 5 0911 § 401
IFRS afustmants:
CapRalizabon of amertization of Band wse rights as ploparty and equipment (40,843) {36,504 (13.345)
Decreass in amortization of Land use rights a3 3 result of change in
igned value of Lind use rights 14,895) (4,635) (2,505}
Undr IFRS. § 18738 5 18712 % 18,550
Depreciation and amodization:
As reporiod § 185 M40 % 0
IFRS adjustment:
Addienal it of plepirty and oqul i relation lo dfaroncs
in lization of amodization of kand use rights and bomowing costs 208 202 202
Usidat IFRS. $ MBI S MiAm g 261,753
Interes! axpansés, nel of capitaizad interest
As reporied $ 152880 % WABN S 113808
IFRS adpustment:
Additional copitakzation of bedrowing costs 05 propdty dnd equipment {17.052) [2.384) 217}
Undat IFRS. § 135608 % 107247 § 113,589
Amtitization of defarmed financing costs:
As reporied 5 18,15 § 13372 % 14303
IFRS adjsimant
Figduction in ization of defarmed nancing cosls {7.480) (7.152) (3.336)
Undat IFRS. 5 10679 5 6120 § 10,817
Leess e atinguishenand of dobl
As reported $ 50835 % -5 25,193
IFRS adpusimont

Financing costs racognized o parl of ks on axdinguishment of debl 6523 = ek

Usidit IFRS § 57458 5 — 5 54521
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30. DIFFERENCES BETWEEN U.S. GAAP AND IFRS (CONTINUED)

Year Endad Decamber 31,
W03 2012 2011
Irvciome b (gapensa) credit
s reporiod § 24 % 2043 % 1563
IFRS adjusiment
Fovorsal of deforrad tax in relation ko land use rights 4.40M 14.055) (24
Undar IFRS 5 16848 § (1113 § 11.006)
et loss atributable o noncontnoling infenests:
As reporied 5 50450 5 1853 § 5812
IFRS adpsstmants:
Noncontroling intevests’ shase on copitalzation of amortization of
land wse ights a5 propedy and equipment (15.911) (14,802) (3.538)
Monceneling ineasts’ shas on dbareasa in amatization of B s ights
a5 a tesult of change in assigned value of land use dghts {1,508 (1,502 (525
Noncontioling intevests’ share on additonal capltalization of bomwing costs:
a5 property and equipment (7,158) (354) =
Moncontcding interests’ shase on reversal of defered tax in relstion to
land wse igHts 1450 1310 T4
Nonzontroling intevests’ shase on adgitonal shasa-based compensaticn
recognized in additional paid-in capital 614 — —
Undot IFRS. $ 3643 § 3383 § A
Medes

1}

2]

Thee areourk sopresants ihe effect siinbutabls to noncontneling indoests ns & resull of the déleronces bebwoon ULS GAAF and IFRS.

Thee FRS nfjustmant doos ot inchedbs the reclyssficntion of the defamed Mg coats is & reduction of the Setd balance ns s has ro affect
o The Camgary's shareheddan oquity of ol incoms stribulald bo Moles Ceiam Endardainendnt Limitod.

Tha FRS aditmant dost nod inchuds tha roclisaification of tha caiins cupono 65 & rodudtion of the La4nG fovenis a3 this has no offed on
tha Gompany's sharehcddars” oquity of nol incoms sifnbautsbls to Meloo Ceown Endortainamend Limitod.
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Pariculars of subsidiaries are as follows:

31. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Adtizutabla Propoion
Placyof amingd Valse of of Nomimal Visue of
Incomorafiond  Esgued and Issued Shase Capial
Estatimhment/  Fuly Paed Share Cuo Capital
Name of Subsidiary Operation CapiziCurts Captal I:d:rm&uﬁ? Principal Atvites
1
Aira Derveliopments [ Ordnary shaces = 10 100%™ Casing and notel development
MOP3000,000
At Holel Macay Cuota capital — 100% 100%™ Holelretated businesses
MOPES000
COD Theatrs Limised Macay Quota capitsl — 100%™ 100%™ Parformance Beatne show
NGOPZS 000 Spdraton
Geiden Fututs {Managemant Senvices) Meatas Qutta capial — 0% 100%™ Managament senices providat
Limited MOPZS, 000
MCE Cotaé Cayiran Bnds  Ordnary shay = 100%™ 0™ lesiment holdng
usiom
MCE (IP) Holfings Limited ] Ordinary shoee — 0% WA Trademarc loensing
Uss
MCE Transgortaten BV Ordinacy shac — s 100%™ Arctal ownng and eakng
Usst
MCE Transgortation T Limited ] Qringey shace = 0% N Airegh owning and leasing
usst
MCE Firgnos Cayman lands  Ordingry shates — 100" 100%*  Firancing
ussine
MGCE Holdings Limited Capranlsiands  Ordinary share — 0% 100%°  fwestment hoiding
U3
MCE Hoidings Thise Limited Capran siands  Ordinary shates — 100%™ 100%™ Iwestmant hoiding
Clarss A shares
USS04
Class B shares
USS16
MCE Holdings Twg Limiled ] Ordingry shace — 1% 100%*  fewesiment hoideg
ussi
MCE Heidings (Prilgpines) Corporation The Phiigpines  Common shares — TE %" 100%™ Inwestmant holding
PHPET 2500
MGE Haadings Mo, 2 (Prlippanes) The Philippines  Common shanes — TE R 100%™ Invesimant halding
Compeoraton PHPET 4500
MCE Inbermafional Linaed Hong Hong Ortinary shast — 100%: 100%*  Markefng sendoss piovider
Hs1
MCE Maragement Limid FHeng Kong Ordinacy shacy — s 100%  lactve
o]
NCR The Prlppines  Commonshans™—  Tol%™  B896%™  Iwestmonl heidng
IPHIPE 426,303,300
MCE invesimants ) Ortingey shace = 0% 005" Iwestment holding
Usst
MCE invesiments Nou2 The Phiippines  Comman shangg— 0% 100%™ Iwesiment hoiding
PHPG0 D00
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31. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)

Acritutable Propadion
Piaca of Mamingl Viskse of of Nomiral Vaive of
Incomotaion] sued and Ixsued Shace Caplal
Estsbishment/  Fully Pasd Share Cunts Capetal
Namg of Subsdiasy Qoerabon CaplavQusta Captpd o by e Grous Pringipal Actvibs
k] 2
WCE Lesure TheFiigpnes  Commonstares—  Teaa%™ 100%™ Ilgramd casnoand
PHFBT.2M.500 ERrNMEn NSO
daveiopment
Moo Crown [Cale) Limited Macay Cuots caplal = 0% 100%™ Calering operations and
MOPES. 000 G SEIVIORS povidar
Weicg Crown COD (CT) Hatel Limited Macay Ouota capital — 0% 100%™ lracive
MOPES.000
Mo Crown (COD] Deveiopments Macsu Quota capial — 00%*  100%"  Inegrated enderiinment resort
QP 1000000 deveiopment
Meskco Crown COD (GH) Holel Limied Macas Ouots capital — 0% 100%™ Holsl neiated businesses
MOPEE000
Wigdee Crown (COD) Hotls M Cuots captal — L0 100%™ Hodal reiaied butnesses
MOPZE000
Mekoo Crown COD (HR) Hadl Limited == 1] Quita capial — Lo R backve
NP5 000
Moo Crown (COD] Ratsd Senices Limied  Macaw Quots capital — % 100" Raba and shops coatatons
MOPZE 00
Medzg Crown [COD] Vieniuees Limited Mazay Oz captal — 0% fLei S =T
MOPIE 000
Moo Grown Macau Maca Ordinary shaves — 100%™ 100%™ Casino operalions and
Class A sharps ™ inmsiment holding
MIOFER0,000,000
Cias B shares®
MOPT 20,000,000
Moo Grown Hosgtadty and Senviess Mg Qua capial — 0% 100%™ Management senvices provider
Lifrited MOPIS 000
Mekoo Crown [Matau Peninsuia) Macas Outta capial = e 100%™ Management senvices provider
Darvelopmants Limied MOPIS 000
Mg Crown (Macau Peninsula) Hoel Wacsy Qs capial — 0% 1W00%"  lnacive
Limited MOPES000
Neskco Grown Security Services Limitad Mt Quota capdal — 100%™ 100%™ Management senvices providar
NQPYIN0 000
Macha Cate Limited Macas Cuots capial — 0% 100%™ lnacke
MOPES00
Matcha 540 Growp Limited BV Dedingy shaces — W% 100%™ lskimant hoidig
Us500
Mocha Sk Manapemand Limiled L= =] Quota capial — Lo %" ke
NP5 000
WPEL Cotal Developments Limited Maca Cuets capdal — 1015 100%™ factve
MOPIE 000
MPEL Intermatonal Limited Caymanisiards  Ordingry shaces = 0% 100%™ Iwesiment hoideg
[
MPEL Invesiments Limited Cayran bignds  Qrifingey shaces — 0% IR Ewesiment hilding
Ussao
MPEL Nomine One Limitad Capransiands  Drdingry shave — 100%* 1008 Iwestment hoiding
Usih
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

31. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)

Asritutabla Proparion
Piaca of Mavingl Vaks of o Warmimal Value of
Incoporabond  Essuad and Issued Share Capital
Eatsbishment!  Fuly Pad Shato Quola Cagital
Nami of Subsidary Operabon CopbiCuctaCaptl  Heldbyhelrow  Principal Acivises
2013 W2
MPEL Nomina Three Limisd Capran sands _ Orinary shat — WI%" 100" iwestman hodrg
Usshm
MPEL Maseriiwer T Livritiad Cayran bands  Ordinasy shase — 100%™ 100%™ Inaesimant hoidg
Ussam
MPEL Projects Limid B Qrdingey $hacy = % 0% Evastmant holdng
uss
MPEL Propesies (Macaw] Limiied Maw Quota capedal — s 100%"  Prageriy hoding
MOPZ5.00
MPEL Senies Limited Heng Kong Ordinary shace — 0% 100%*  Managemend senvices provider
L]
MPEL Senvces (US) L. United Statesof  Comman siock — MK 100%™ Inactve and dissohved
Wil US5100:000 o June 21, 2013
MPEL Wentures Limied B DOrdinary shae — 100%* 100%"  Inwesimant holding
[
Studo City Deverlopements Macay Cuota capital — % B0%"  Integrated entertsinmant resort
MOPE 000,000 devispmen
Studio City Hospitalty and ServicasLimited  Macau Cuota capital — B% BU%"  Managemert sendices provider
MOP2EH00
Shudo City Hoteds Limited [T Quota copial — ErR" BN Hollrolied busingsses
MOPZE000
Shosa Gy Retad Servions Limted L= =] Qutta capial = BIR™ NA Rt and $hops coaeatons
MOPZE00
Siwdio City Sarvives Limiied L5 Cota captal — BR EBUN™ Iwesimand holdng
MOPIS000
SCIP Haidings Limited B Ordinary shace — B NA Heiding of inledectusl proparty
usst rights
S0P Holdings Limited B Ordinary shace = BR BU%" Inwesimant holding
S8t
SCP One Limited B Qrdinary shace — B BR" Iwesiment holding
UEs
SCP T Limitad BWl Ordinary shats — B E0R"  Iwesimant helding
U1
Stuio City Ensartainment Lirtad LT Quota capisl — ErR" BUR"™  Managhmsnl sefvices provider
NOP100.000
Stwiio City Cormgany B Orthnary hash — [ BO%™  Firanong
[1:43]
Shudo Gty Frrance -4l Qrdingey shaey — i %" Firansing
Usst
Studio City [HiK) Limited Heng Kong Ordinary shacy — B BU%™  Management senvices provider
L]
Studo City Hoidings Limited B Ordinary shace = ER BN Inwestmant holding
S8t
Shudho City Hoidings Two Limitad ] Qrdinary shacg — BR BR" Inwesimant holding
[
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31. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)

Acritutabla Propadion
Piatar of Naming] Vaks of of Nominal Value of
Incoporabiond  Esued and bssued Share Capital/
Esishishment!  Fuly Pad Sharg Quots Copital
Nam of Subsidiaey Operation Capita¥Oucta Capital e by e Grous Pringipal At
013 Wiz
Studio City Hoidings Thoes Limitsd ] Ordinasy shasn — " BI%"  Inwesimant holding
Uss1
Stuio Gity Hoidings Four Liried B Ordingsy shate — EI%" B0%™  Inesimant hoiding
55
Stuso Gy Hoidings Fove Limided BYI Qrdinaey $hach = BR™ WA Iwesimant hoidng
st
Studio City Inteenatonal B¥I Qrdinary shaces — BIR™ BUN™  Inwesimant holding
US510,000
Shodo Gty Invesiments B¥I Ordinary shace — BR™ R Inwesiment holding
U5
Teus Power Venlues Limitad B Ordinary shate — 100%" 100%"  Iwestmant holding
Usst
L Doty dravrad By ihey Compary
- Indtorily tvwned by the Gorgany
Hoten

11} As ofiDocammbedr 3, 2012, MGP had tad classos of shadod of wheth | clisa A shared and ¢iasa B alosos haed oqual weting snd dvisond

(1] The class B sharos of Meboo Crover Mson u inthe regaasont the entis nghts bo recens dividends snd of

hose o i bhcaris Brom, meed
Crea®) Masau, afbse poryment of the Amww!}mnwmhwﬂmnmtu

o, Kl
of thiy ¢lass B thaos, i progortion b thair b ontithod B0 rocobig

ry . tapasl, by
mﬂp:xmwﬂwmwmﬂw b pnd b0 o rescaivesd Rep ther hesidors of the class A shares, axcegd the Class A

CLats A Capetal Detrdsiteon

Cortaim Machy laws faquite companies Bmiled by dhared (3
w ahanehadden. o i anal b

and all sefiaind 1o b d by & Matsu

i NECaU 13 have & minamum of hes
rotidant, tha .

dhm.m“ﬁm1ﬂdjwﬁmm ﬂnhmwwwwl.hﬁmﬁmﬂ I.ud‘lh‘m'l‘:u Larns,
b A of coniobiited Bl

Linws, Mok Mhmwww“ aduary of tha Compary bor purposes of the

Ratsmanti of tha i e dioname: of B 1S o Eha i R durgscior 8 lenilad B0, i it
Qm recahe Wm‘md

i A thawatwiddars, 1 ok L i up-or Bquikiation of eboo e an

Mone of the subsidiaries had any debl securities outstanding al the end of the year or al any time during the yaar
except for the 2013 Senior Motes and the 2010 Senier Motes issued by MCE Finance and the Studio Cily Noles

iszued by Sludio City Finance as disclased in Mote 12, which the Group had no interest.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

{in ihusands of ULS, dollars, ool ahare and per shade dala)

32. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

(a)

(b}

(&}

(d)

(e}

On January 24, 2014, the Philippine Notes of PHP15 bilion (equivalent to 5336 825) was completed and issued
and MCE Lefsure racaived nat proceeds, after deducting the undemwiiting commissions, from the offering of
PHP14,789,230, 769 (equivalent to $331,843), furlher details of the Philippine Notes is disclosed in Note 12,

On January 29, 2014, the land grant amendmant process for Cotai Land was complated with the publication in
the Macau official gazette of such proposed amandment.

On Fobruary 18, 2014, one of the Group's subsidiories completed the iransaction for the sale of ils properties
as disclosed in Mote 4 and received the remaining amount of HES 230,000,000 {equivalent to S?Q,SBI!J_

On February 25, 2014, the Company’s Board of Directors anncunced a proposal of declaration and payment of
a special dividend of $0.1147 per thare based on the Company's 1,666,633 448 ordinary shares in issue on the
samea data oul of its share premium account, with tetal amount approximataly $191,163 {the “Spacial Dividand™)
and adoplion of a new dividend policy (the “New Dividend Policy”). The declaration and payment of Special
Dividend is conditienal upon the satisfaction of certain conditions, ineluding i) the Company's shareholdars®
approval, which has been oblained ol the extracrdinary general meating held on March 26, 2014 ("EGM); and
i) the Company’s Board of Directors being satisfiad that the Company will be able lo pay its dabls as thay fall
dug in the ordinary course of busingss immaediataly after payment of the Special Dividend. Following tha grant
of the Company's shareholders’ approval at the EGM, the Special Dividend is expected to ba paid in cash on
or about April 16, 2014 1o these shareholders whose names appear on the Company's register of mambaers
at close of business on April 4, 2014, being the record date for delarmination of entith 15 to the Special
Dividend, The Special Dividond will be reflected as approprigtion of reserve in the year 2014,

The Mew Dividend Policy became effective upon the approval by the Company's Board of Directors
on February 25, 2014, Under the Mew Dividend Policy, subject to the Company's capacily to pay frem
accumulated and fulure earnings and the cash balance and fulure commitments 3 the time of declaration of
dividand, the Cormpany intends lo provide its shareholders with quarterly dividends in an aggregate amdunt
par year of approximately 30% of the Company's annual consolidated nel income allribulable 1o Malco Crown
Entertainmeant Limilad, commanging from the first quartar of 2014, The Mew Dividand Policy also allows the
Company to declare special dividends fram time to time in addition to the quarterly dividends.

On Fabruary 28, 2014, Malco Grown Macau's Board of Directors proposed the final dividend of
MOP3.365,628,000 (equivalent to $420.000), with MOP1 to be distribuled to the holders of the class A shares
of Melco Grown Macau as a group and with the remaining amount of MOP3, 365,627,999 (equivalent to
£420.000), representing approximately MOP4G7 45 per class B share of Meleo Crown Macau, 1o be distributed
1o the helder of the class B shares. The proposed final dividend of Melco Crown Macau is subject Lo the
approval of Meleo Crown Macau's shareholders, which was subsaquaently approvad a1 Mealzo Crown Macau's
annual general meeting held on March 21, 2014,
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Additional Information — Financial Statement Schedule 1
Financial Information of Parent Company

(i thonsaderedy o LS. dolans, sxoopt share and por sharg data)

BALANCE SHEETS
Docember 31,
2013 212

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and sash oquivloms 5 3414 3 2887
Restricled cash - 367 645
Aanoianits dut from afiabid companios - 1,113
Amounits due from subsiiares 7453 man
o e rocaivabiy - s
Prepald enpenses and other cument assets 3.7 24438
Total urrand asses 52061 451,830
INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES™ 5402041 4123087
DEFERRED FIMANCING COST — 1427
TOTAL ASSETS 5 5575002 § 45763
LIABILITIES AMD SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accrued expenses and olher curent Babiiies. 5 23% § BAES
N0 L paryabi 12 -
Amounits due o atfated companias 1783 ]
Amnounts dub 1o subsidanies 181813 181,371
Amounits due o shareholders &7 —
Curnent poron of long.berm detd = TH 823
Tetal currant Eabalties 185,133 p Rk
ADVANCE FROM A SUBSIDIARY 1,142,159 81,567
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Credinary shaces a1 US$0.01 par value per share

(Autherized — 7,300,000 000 shares a5 of Dectenber 31, 2013 and 2012 30d Baued

— 1,666,633 448 and 1,658.050.205 shares a5 of December 31, 2013 and 2012, respeciively) 16,657 16581
Treasusy shasos, ot eosd

(16,222,246 and 11,267,038 shares as of December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively) (5.960) (113}
Additional paid-in capetal 347059 3ZISHIS
Accumulated other compratvenshos ksses {15.552) {1,067}
Relangd earings 7721 134693
Tofal sharehokders' equity 4246670 3,335,030
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY $ 5575002 § 4576324
MNET CURRENT LIABILITIES 5 (0TS (456.588)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES $ 5358880 § 3657508

Mo

(1) Amounts includod ireosimants in unfatod subakdrion of SR0EDADS (2012 52 AZIAT6), ivostmant in o intod sebaidisny of $303150 (2002 §24.770)
el edrances o subskiarses of 37 0T0 38T (2002 §4 474 880
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Additional Information — Financial Statement Schedule 1
Financial Information of Parent Company

(tnvihtusands o U5, Salar, sxcedd share and por ahare datn)

STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Meomied  {Aoommuand
Otwt Linas) Toed

Cndoary Sares Trery Shawi Mahrad  Compriesiie Rtared  Sandide’

Sure art S Jront PadinCapti Lonsss Faminy Fady
BALANCE AT SNRAY 1001 TESESEIND 5 WSS RAOLEE § [ T T - ]
Nl or ot yer = = = = = s 103
Fepmgn ey Pirsladen sl
Changt i ok vl of rlrd e s dprinnt.
[l i s vt of erward eschange i cvibich
Rsctiboton & mrGuipen S uanch ol g Jrar g
Shar S oo (s
Shares uond wpanorsticid shonss sl ELL 3
it bl o s s o redFeied shares il
mc o shirk (T L3
bmaeioe of shares b prsiicied shoms wiied =
Exseina o shre gl =
bmaeice of shares b comwrian o sharebebiry loars SN0
BALMNCE AT DECELEER . 11 4 L0
Ntinweene ke o -
Fonignamency Frsidon sdainerd -
Churge i vakot o krward eschange rite coribich -
Reckis cadon B samnips ipen e emert
o breied nchane e vy -
Shir-bint oo parndicn -
Shires ond e e veslng of resicied shares aned
mircas o shirk cpicrs 6L
s of hares o sticied shares il =
Carcnbaborol visdid sratickd e -
Ervzseaf vurvoplors. -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULE 1
1. Basis of Presentation

The condensed financial information has been prepared using the same accounting policles as sel out In the
Company's consolidated financial statemants except that the parent company has used equity methed 1o account for
s investments in subskdiaries.
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Financial Summary

Year Ervieed Dacambie 31,
a3 il 2011 210 208
(i Shousands of USS, wxcesd shave and pat shane daks 3] oparating data)
Consolidated Stabersints of Operations Dula
Nl raetuss § S0ETATE § AOTE0N3 5 JAMMMT § 28014 § 1iuam
Tolall cperating costs and expanses § HATIS) 3 (SMOSNM) 5 QBTN § RMEME) 5 (1A0MIRY
Cperating income (oas} 5  BEEM S e s a0 § 5§ ETiMn
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Definitions and Glossary

DEFINITIONS

. “2008 Share Incentive Plan™ refers to a share
incenive plan as adoptad and revised by the Board
an MNovember 28, 2008 and March 17, 2008 and
as approved by the Shareholders on December
1, 2006 and May 19, 2009, respectively, which
aims lo provide incentives In the form of awards to
consullants, employeas and members of the Board
with the view of premoling further success of our

Company:

L] “2010 Senior Notes™ refers (o the initial noles (ie.
the USSE00 million aggregate principal amount
of 10.25% senior noles due 2018 issued by MCE
Financa on May 17, 2010 and fully redaemad on
March 28, 2013) and the exchange notes (i.e.
approdimataly §9.96% of the initial noles which were,
on Decembar 27, 2010, exchanged for 10.25% senior
notes due 2018, registered under the LS. Securities
Act of 1933), collectivaly, which wers fully redoomad

an March 28, 2013;

. “2011 Credit Facilities” refers to the credit facililies
anlared inle pursuant 1o an amandment agreamant
dated June 22, 2011, as amended frem time to
time belwaen, among olhers, Meleo Crown Macau,
Deutsche Bank AG, Hong Kong Branch as agent
and DB Trustees (Hong Kong) Limited a5 securily
agent, comprising a larm loan facility and a revobving
crodit faciity, for a total amount of HK$9.36 bilion
{equivalant o approximataly US%1.2 billion), and
which reduce and remove certain restrictions in the

City of Dreams Praject Facility;

. “2011 Share Incentive Plan® refers to a share
incenlive plan as adopted by our Company pursuan
o a resolution passed by our Shareholder at an
axtraordinary general meating on October 6, 2011
and became effaclive on the listing date, which
aims 1o provide incentives in the form of awards o
consultants, employees and members of the Board,
wilh the view of promoling further sutcess of our

Company:

*2013 Senior Motes™ refars 1o the USS$1.0 billion
aggregate principal amount of 5.00% senior noles
due 2021 issued by MCE Finance on February 7,
2013

“Adjusted EBITDA” refers to earnings belore interast,
tlaxes, depraciation, amartizalion, pre-opening cosls,
develgpment costs, properly charges and others,
share-based compensation, and other non-operaling
income and expenses;

“Adjusted property EBITDA” refers to eamings bofore
intarest, taxes, depreciation, amaortization, pra-
opaning cosls, development costs, propery charges
and othars, shore-based compensation, Corporate
and Others expenses and other non-oparating
income and expenses;

“ADSs" refars to our American deposilary shares,
@ach of which represents three Sharas;

*Alrcraft Tarm Loan™ refers fo the US$43.0 million
term loan cradil facility entered inlo by MCE
Transporiation in June 2012 for the purposa of
Tunding lhe acquisilion of an airerafl;

“Altira Developmants™ relers 1o our subsidiary, Allita
Developments Limited, a Macau company through
which wi hold the larnd and buitding for Altira Macau:

“Allira Hotel™ refars to our subsidiary, Altita Holel
Limitad, a Macau company through which we
currently oparate the hotel and olher non-gaming
businasses at Allira Macau;

“Altira Macau® refers to an integrated casing and
hotel development that catars to Asian ralling chip
customers, which opaned in May 2007 and owned by
Altira Daveksprments;

“Amended and Restated Articles of Association™
reters 1o our articles of associnlion adopted on May
23, 2012;

“Board” and “Board of Directors™ rafer to the beard of
Directors or a duly consliuted committes thereol,
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Definitions and Glossary

+  “China™ and *PRC” refar to the Peapla's Republic of
China, excluding Hong Keng, Macau and Taiwan

from & gecgraphical point of view;

. *City of Dreams™ rafers to an integrated resod lecated
on two adiacent pieces of land in Colal. Macaw, which
opened in June 2009, and currantly fealures a casing
argas and three luxury hotels, including a collection
of relail brands, a wel stage parformanca theatar and
olher entertainmant venues, and owned by Melco

Grawn (COD) Davalapmants:

. *City of Dreams Manila® refers 1o a casing, hotel,
retail and entertainment integrated resort located
within Enterlainmem City, Manila baing developed by
MCE Leisure Philippines and the Philippine Parlies
and which, when complated, will be solely operated

and managed by MCE Laksure Philippines;

« Gty of Dreams Project Facility” refers 1o the project
facility dated September 5, 2007 entered into
balwaen, amongsl olhers, Melco Crown Macau
as borrower and cernain other subsidiaries as
guaranors, for a tolal sum of US$1.75 billion for the
purpeses of financing, among other things, certain
project costs of Cily of Dreams, as amended and

supplemented from time to lima;

. “‘Companies Ordinance® refers to the Companies
Ordinante (Chaplar 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong),
as amended. supplemanied or olherwise modified

from lime 1o tirme,

+ "Colar refers 1o an area of reclaimed land located
between the islands ¢f Taipa and Coloane in Macau;

. “Crown” refers to Crown Resods Limited (formarly
known as Crown Limited). an Australian-listed
conporation, which cormploted its acquisition of the
gaming businesses and investments of PBL, now
known 8% Consolidated Media Holdings Lirsled, on

Dacambar 12, 2007;
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*Crown Asia Invesimenls™ refers lo Crown Asia
Invesiments Ply, Lid., formerly known as PBL Asia
Inveastmants Limibed, which is 100% indiractly owned
by Crown, and was incorporated in the Cayman
Islands bul is now a registened Auslralian company;

*Crown Entertainment Group Holdings™ refers to
Crown Entartainment Group Holdings Ply, Lid., a
company incorporaled on June 19, 2007 under the
laws of Ausiralia and a subsidiary of Crowm;

“DepositLinked Loan” refers 10 a deposit linked
Tacility for HK$2.7 billion (equivalent 1o approximataly
US5353.3 million based on exchange rate on
transaclion data) entered inle on May 20, 2011,
which is secured by a deposit of RMB2.3 billion
(equivalent to approximately US$353.3 million based
on exchange rate on transaction date) from the
proceeds of the RMB Bonds and fully rapaid in March
203

*DICJ" refers 1o the Direcgdo de Inspecglo e
Ceordenagdo de Jogos (the Gaming Inspection and
Coordination Bureau), a departmant of the Public
Administeation of Macau;

“Direclors™ refers to the directen(s) of our Company;

“Greater China® refers to maintand China, Hong Kong
and Macau, collactively;

“Group” refers to our Cempany and our subsidiaries
and, in respect of the pariod before our Company
bacama the holding company of such subsidiarias,
the entities which carried on the business of the
prasant Group at the relevant time;

“HKS" and "H K. dollars” refer to (he legal cumency of
Hang Kong:

*HIBOR" refers to Hong Kong Interbank Offerad
Rate;

*Hong Kong™ refers to the Hong Kong Special
Adminisirative Region of the PRC;



“IFRS" refars to International Financisl Reporling
Slandards;

“Licensoes™ refers Lo holders of the Provisional
Licance, which include MCE Leisure Philippines,
MCE Holdings Philippines, MCE Holdings Mo. 2 and
the Philippine Parties:

“Listing Rules”™ refers lo the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securilies on the Slock Exchange, as
amendad, supplamented or otharwise modified from
Hirvw 10 timne;

“Macau” and *Macau SAR” refar 10 the Macau
Spedal Adminisiralive Reglon of the PRC;

“MCE Finance™ refers lo our subsidiary, MCE
Finance Limited, a Cayman Islands eaxempted
company with limited liability;

*MCE Heoldings No. 27 refers to our subsidiary,
MCE Heldings No. 2 (Philippines) Corporation, a
corporation incorporated in the Philippines and ona of
tha Licanzass holding tho Provisional Licansa;

“MCE Holdings Philippines® refers to our subskdiary,
MCE Holdings (Philippines) Corperation, a
corporalion incerporated in the Philippines and one of
the Licensees holding the Provisional Licanss,

*MCE Leisura Philippines™ rafars to our subsidiary,
MCE Leisure (Philippines) Corporation, 2 comparation
incorporated im the Philippines and one of the
Licensees holding the Provisional License;

“MCE Transportation™ refers 1o our subsidiary,
MCE Transportation Limiled (formerly known as
MCE Dosigns and Brands Limited), a company
incorporated under the laws of the British Virgin
Islands:

*MCP™ refers to our subsidiary, Melco Crown
{Philippines) Reserts Corporafion (formarly known
as Manchester International Holdings Unlimited
Caorporation). the sharas of which are listed on tha
Philipping Slock Exchange:

*MCP Share(s)” raters 16 the common sharnes of MCP
of par value PHP1.00 per share;

“MCF Share Incentive Plan™ refers to the share
incentive plan of MCP, with amendmaents, approved
by MCP shareholders on June 21, 2013

“Mualco™ refers to Malco Inlernational Developmant
Limited, a Hong Kong fisted company;

“Melcg Crown (COD) Developmenis” refers Lo our
subsidiary, Meleo Crown (COD) Developments
Limiled, a Macau company through which we hold
thi land and buildings far Cily of Dreams;

*Melco Crown Macau® refars to our subsidiary, Melco
Crown (Macaw) Limited (formarly known as “Mdlco
Crown Gaming {Macau) Limited® or “Melco PBL
Gaming (Macau) Limiled’), 2 Macou company and
the holder of our gaming subconcession;

*Mealco Leisure” refers 1o Melco Leisure and
Entertainment Group Limiled, a company
incorporated undar the laws of the British Viegin
Islands and a wholly-owned subsidiany of Mabkeo:

“Maocha Clubs™ collectivaly refars 1o clubs wilh
gaming machines, the first of which opened in
Saplember 2003, and are now the Lrgest non-casing
based operations of elecironic gaming machines in
Macau, and operated by Meleo Crown Macau;

*Modal Coda™ refers to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Direclors of Listed Issuers as sel out
in Appandic 10 to the Listing Rulas;

*MASDAG" refers to the National Association of
Securities Dealers Aulomated Qustation Systeny;

“Mew Colai Holdings™ rafars to New Colai Holdings,
LLC. a company incorporated in Delaware, the
United States on March 24, 2008 under the laws of
Delawara, primarily ewned by U5, irvestmant funds
managed by Siver Point Capital, LP. and Oaktree
Capital Managamant, L.P.;
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Definitions and Glossary

“out Subsoncassion™ and “our garming subeonsassion”
refer to the Macau gaming subconcession held by
Melco Grewn Matau;

‘PAGCOR" refers to Philippines Amusement and
Gaming Corporalion, the Philippines regulatory
body with jurisdiction over all gaming activities in
the Philippines except for loltery, sweapslakes,
cocklighling, horse racing and gaming inside the
Cagayan Export Zone;

“Patacas” and “MOP" refor 1o the legal currency of
Maecaw;

*FBL" rafers (o Publishing and Breadcasting Limited,
oan Austraianlistod corparation IhK is naw Known a5
Consolidated Media Holdings Limited;

“Philippine Notes” refers to the PHP15 billion
aggregale principal amount of 5.00% senier noles
due 2019 issued by MCE Leisure Philippines on
January 24, 2014;

“Philippine Parties™ refers to SM Investments
Corporation, Balle Corporation and Premiumbaisure
and Amusamant, Ing.;

“Philippine Pesc® or "PHP" refers to the legal
currency of the Philippines;

*Philippine Steck Exchange™ rafars to The Philippine
Siock Exchange, Inc.;

“Provisional License™ refers to the provisional
licanse issued by PAGCOR on December 12,
2008 tor the developmant of an integrated tourism
resort and to establish and operate a casing within

Maden Crown Erteriainment LmBod  Anvual Repor 2013

Entaftainment Cily in Manila, the Philippinas; MCE
Leisura Philippines, MCE Holdings Philippines,
MCE Holdings Mo. 2 and the Philippine Parties
ware named as colicensees under the Amended
Cedificala of Affiliation and Provisional License dated
January 28, 2013; references to the Provisional
Licenss include, wheta 1he contexl requires, any
regular license issued to replace the provisional
licanse 05 descnibed in “The Provisional License.”:

*Renmminbi™ and "RMB” rafar lo the lagal currancy of
China;

“RME Bonds™ refers to the RMBZ.3 bilion (equivalent
1o approximately US$353.3 million based on
exchange rate on transaclion date) aggregale
principal ameunt of 3.75% bonds due 2013 issued by
our Company on May 9, 2011 and fully redeemed on
March 11, 2013,

*SCI° refars to Studie City International Holdings
Limited (formarly known as Cyber One Agents
Limited), a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands with limited lability that is 80% owned by one
of our subsidiaries and 40% owned by New Colai
Holdings through its wholly owned subsidiary Now
Colal, LLC;

*SEC" refers to the U5, Securilies and Exchange
Commession;

*SFO" refars (o the Securilies and Fulures Ordinance
{Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong), as
amendad, supplemented of olherwise madified from
lime to time;

“SGX-8T raters 1o Singapore Exchange Securitios
Trading Limited;



“Share(s) refar 1o aur ordinary shara(s). par value of
US50.01 each;

“Shareholder(s)” refers to holder(s) of our Shara(s)
from time ta time:;

*Slock Exchange™ refars to The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited;

*Studio GCity™ refers to a cinematically-themed
integrated entertainmant, retail and gaming reserl in
Colai, Macau;

“Studio City Davelopments” refers to our subsidiary,
Studie Gity Developments Limited (formerly known
as MSC Dessnvolvimanios, Limitada and East Asia
Satellite Television Limiled). a Macau comgany in
which we own 60% of the aquity interest;

“Stedio Cily Finance™ refers 1o Studie City Finance
Limited, which is a company incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands with limited labliity, is alse a
wholly-owned indirect subsidiary of SCI and the
Essuar of tha Studio City Natas;

“Studic CiHy Motes™ refers to the USS825.0 millon
aggregate principal amount of 8.50% senior
netes due 2020 issued by Studie Cily Finance on
Mowamber 28, 2012,

*Studio City Project Facility” refers lo the senior
secured project facility, daled January 28, 2013,
enterad inlo between, among othars, Studio
City Company Limiled as borrower and certain
subsidiaries as guarantors for a tolal sum of
HK$10,855,880.000 and censisting of a delayed
draw tarmm lean faciity and a revalving cradi facikty,

“TWD" and “New Taiwan dollars™ refer to the legal
currency of Tabwan;

SUSE and “ULS. dollars” refer 1o the gal curmency of
the United States:

*U.5." and “United States™ rafer to the United States
of America, its territonios, its possessions and all
araas subject 1o its jurisdiction;

“U.5, GAAP® refers 1o the accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States:

"W, "us”, “our”, “our Company”, “the Company™,
“MCE™ and *Meleo Crown Entedainment” refer to
Mealco Crown Entartainmeant Limited and, as the
context requires. its predecessor entities and its
consolidated subsidiarias; and

“Wynn Macau® refers lo Wynn Resons (Macau) SA,

Maleo Crown Entortanment Lesiied  Anrual Repord 2013

25



Definitions and Glossary

GLOSSARY

“average daily rate”™
or “ADR"

“dealer”

“drop"

“drop box™

“electronic lable
games™

“gaming machina®

calculated by dividing tofal room
ravenues (less service charges, if
any} by tolal rooms occupied, e,
average price of occupied rooms
par day

A sacuid room within a casing with
a facilily that allows patrons lo
exehange cash for chips required o
participate in gaming activities, or 1o
exchange chips for cash

round token thal is used on casing
gaming tables in llew of cash

a governmenl grant for the
operalion of games of fortlune and
chance in casinos in Macau under
an administrative conlract pursuant
to which a concessionaire, or lhe
entity holding the concession, is
authorized lo operate games of
fortune and chance in casinos in
Macau

a casine employee who lakes
and pays oul wagers o olherwise
ovarseas a gaming lable

the amount of cash to purchase
gaming chips and promotional
vouchers thal are deposited in
a gaming table's drop box, plus
gaming chips purchased al the
<03inG coge

& DOX of conlaingr thal $erves
as a repository for cash, chips,
chip purchase vouchers, credit
markers and forms used 1o record
movements in the chip invenlory on
each table game

elactronic mulliple-player gaming
maching seats

slot machine andler elecironic table
gamas
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‘gaming maching
handie”

‘gaming maching

win rale”

“gaming promoter”

“intagrated reson”

“Junkel player

“marker

“mass market
patron™

*mass market
segmeant”

“rmass market bk
gomes deep”

the total amount wagened in gaming
machines

gaming maching win axprossed as
o percentage of gaming machine
handig

an individual or corporale enlity
wha, for (he purpose of promoting
rolling ¢hip and other gaming
activilies, arranges customer
transportation and accommadation,
provides credit in its sobe discrelion
il autharized by a gaming operator,
and arranges food and beverage
sarvices and anterlainmaent in
exchange for commissions or
olher compansation from a gaming
oparator

a resort which provides cuslomers
with a combinalion of holel
agcommodalions, casinos
or gaming areas, retail and
dining facilities, MICE space,
entedpnment venues and spas

2 player sourced by gaming
promelars Lo play in the VIP goming
OOMS OF areas

evidence of indebtedness by a
player to the casing or gaming
operator

a custemer who plays in the mass
markel segment

cansists of both table games and
gaming machines played on public
mass gaming fleors by mass markat
palrons for cash stakes thal are
typically lower than those in the
felling chip segrmint

the amount of tablé games drap
in the mass markel lable gamaes
sogmen



“miss market
lable gamas hold
pHCEMage”

“mass market
table games
segment”™

“MICE™

*non-negatiabla chip™

*non-rolling chip™

*occupancy rate”

“pramium direct

“progressive jackpot”

“revanue per
avallabla room”
of “REVPAR"

“rolling chip”

mass marke! bl gamas win as a
porcentage of mass market table
gamas drop

the moass markel segment
consisting of mass markel patrons
who play lable games

Mestings, Incentives, Conventions
and Exhibitions. an acronym
commenly used o refer to tourism
involving large groups brought
together for an evenl or spacilic
purpose

pramolional easing chip that is nat
1o ba exchanged for cash

ehip that can be exchanged for
cash, used by mass market palrons
to make wagers

the average percentage of available
hotel reoms eccupied during a
period

o relling chip player who is a direct
customer of Ihe CONCosSOndires of
subcor lanaires and is d
te the casing through direct
markating afforts and relationships
wilh the gaming operatoer

a jackpot for a gaming machine or
table game where the value of the
jackpol increases as wagers ara
made; mulliple gaming machines or
table games may be linked togethar
to establish one progressive jackpot

calculaled by dividing total room
revenues (less sarvice chargas,
if any) by tolal rooms availabla,
thereby rapresenting a combination
of holel average daily room rales
and eccupancy

non-negotiable chip primarily used
by rolling ¢hip patrons lo make
WiGers

“rodling chip patron”

“relling chig segmant”

“rolling chip volume®

*rolling chip win rata™

“slot machine™

“subconcassion”

“table games win®

“VIP gaming room”™

“wetl stage
performance
thealer

o player who is primarily a VIP
player and typically recaeives
various forms of complimentary
garvices from the gaming
promolers or concessionaings or
subconcessionairas

congists of lable games ployed in
private VIP gaming rooms or areas
by rolling chip patrons who are
either pramium direct playars or
junket players

the amount of nen-negetiable chips
wagerad and last by the rolling chip
kel Segrmint

rolling chip lable games win
{calculated before discounis and
commissions) as a percantage of
relling chip volume

traditional slot or eleclrenic gaming
maching oparated by a single
player

an agraament for the operation
of games of fortune and
chance in ¢asinos betwean the
enfily helding the concession,
or the concessionaire, a
subconcassionaire and the Macau
governmant, pursuant to which the
subconcessienaire is aulhorized
lo operale games of fortune and
chante in casings in Macau

the amount of wagers won nel of
wagers lost on gaming lables that
i rotained and racorded as cosing
oVEnugs

gaming rooms or areas thal have
rastricled access to rolling chip
patrons and typically offer more
personalized service than the
genaral mass markal gaming areas

the approximately 2,000-seat
theater specifically designed to
stage “The House of Dancing
WWatar show
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Appendix | — 2006 Share Incentive Plan and

2011 Share Incentive Plan

2006 SHARE INCENTIVE PLAN

We adopled the 2006 Share Incentive Plan to aftract
and retain the best available parsonnal for positions of
substantial responsibility, provide additienal incentives lo
employees, directors and consullants and to promote the
success of our busingss, The 2006 Share Incentive Plan
has been succaaded by our 2011 Share Incentve Plan.
No further awards may be granted under the 2006 Share
Inzantive Plan. All subsequent awards will be issued undar
the 2011 Share Incentive Plan, Awards praviously granted
under the 2006 Share Incentive Plan shall remain subject
1o the terms and conditions of the 2006 Share Incenlive
Plan.

The follewing paragraphs describe the principal terms
included in the 2006 Share Incenlive Plan,

Typos of Awards. The awards permitted lo be granted
under gur 2006 Share Incentive Plan included options lo
purchase our Shares and restricled Shares.

Eligibility. We ware parmitted to grant awards to
employees, directors and consultants of our Company
or any of our relaled entities, including Melco, Crown,
other joint venlure entities of Meleo or Crown, our own
subsidiaries or any antities in which we hold a substantial
gwnership interest, However, we could granl options thal
are intended to quality as incentive share oplions only 1o
our employees.

Maximum Number of Shares. Under the 2008 Share
Incantive Plan, the maximum aggregate number of
Ehares which could be issued pursuant te all awards
{including Sharas issuable upon exercise of options) was
100,000,000 over 10 years.
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Plan A Our comp ion committes would
admiénister the 2006 Share Incentive Plan and determine
the provisions and terms and conditions of aach award
grant,

Award Agreement. Awards granted were lo be evidenced
by an award agreament thal sels forth the lerms, conditions
and Eimitations for each award,

Exercise Price and Term of Awards, In goneral, the plan
administrator would determing the axercise price of an
oplion and el forth the price in the award agreemant. The
exercisa price could ba a ficed or variable price related
to the fair aearket value of our Shares. If we granted an
Incentive share oplion 1o an employee who, at the lime
of thal grant, owned Shares representing mare than 10%
of the vating power of all classes of our share capilal,
the exsrcise price could not be less than 110% of the
fair marke! value of our Shares on the date of that grani.
The term of each award would be slated in the award
agreament, and would not excead 10 years from the date
of Ihe grant,

WVesting Schodule. In general, the plan administrator
determined, or the award agreemeant would spacify. the
viing schedule,

As of Decambar 31, 2013 the unvastad share oplions
granted under the 2006 Share Incantive Plan represenied
approximataly 0.097% of our issuad share capital, If an
the unvested share cplions were (o be exercised and
vasled during the year ended Dacamber 31, 2013 on an
unaudited pro-forma basis, there would be a dilulion effect
on the shareholdings of our Shareholders of approximataly
0.097% and basic earnings per Share of US$0.0004.



2011 SHARE INCENTIVE PLAN

We adopted the 2011 Share Incentive Plan to provide
our employees, directers and consultants with incentives
1o increase sharaholder valua, and to attract and redain
the services of those upon whom we depend for the
suctess of our business. The 2011 Share Incentve Plan
was conditionally approvad by our Shareholders af the
exiragrdinary general mealing held on Oclober 6, 2011
and became effective upon commencement of dealings in
our Shares on the Steck Exchange on December 7, 2011,
The 2011 Shara [ncentive Plan succeads the 2006 Shara
Incantive Plan,

The tollowing paragraphs summarize the principal larms of
the 2011 Share Incentive Plan.

Typos of Awards, The awards thal may be grarted under
the plan includa aplions, incentive share options, restictad
Shares, share appreciation righls. dividend equivalents,
share payments, deferred shares and restrictad share
units,

Eligibility, We may grant awards (o employess, direclons
and consultants of our Company, any parent or subsidiary
of gur Company, or any of our related entities that gur
Board designales as a related anlily for the purposes
of the 2011 Share Incenlive Plan, Our compensalien
commilles may from lime Lo time salact from among
eligible Ingividuals these lo whem awards shall be granted,
However, anly employeas of our Gompany of of a parent of
subsidiary of our Company are ¢ligitde to recehve incenlive
share option awards.

Maximum Number of Shares. The maximum aggregale
number of Shares which may be issued pursuant to
all awards undar the 2011 Share Incenlive Plan is
100,000,000 Shares. which reprosents approximalely
6.2% of the issued share capital of the Company as at
the dote of approval of the 2011 Share Incentive Plan by
our Shareholders at the exiraordinary genaral mealing
on Qctober 6, 2011, This limil may be increased from
lima to time, bul by no more than 10% of the Sharas then
in issue as al the date of the Shareholders’ maeling o
approve such incréase. The Shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all gulstanding awards granted and yel

lo be exercised undar the plan shall nol axcead 30% of
the Shares in issue from tlime to lime, as prescribed under
ratevant Listing Rules.

Maximum Entitlernant of Option Holders. The maximum
aggregale number ¢f Shares undarlying an opltion grant
shall not, in any 12-month period up to the date of grant,
exceed 1% of the number of Shargs in issue on the
date of grant, unless Shareholdars’ approval is oblained
in accordance with the Listing Rules. The maximum
aggregale number of Shares to be issued upon exercise
of gplions granted to a subsiantial Shareholder or an
indepandant non-exetulive direclor of our Company, o
any of (heir respeclive associales, shall nol exceed 0.1% of
the Sharas in issua on the offar date of have an aggregate
wvalua, based on the official closing price of the Shares
as queted by the Stock Exchango on the offer date, in
excess of HKSS million, unless Shareholders’ approval is
oblained in accordancd with the Listing Rules. Such imis
may be amended from time 1o time by the Slock Exchange.
Cur compansalion commitles may nal grant oplisns to &
director, chief executive or substantial Shareholder of our
Company, of any of thair respoctive associates, without
approval by independent non-execulive Directors on the
compensalion committes ot the time of such determination.

Option Pariods and Payments. Our compensation
commillee may In its discretion delermine, subject to the
plan expiration pariod: the pariod within which Shares must
be taken up under an oplion; the minimum peried, il any,
for which an option must ba held before it can be exercised:
the amount, i any, payable on application or acceplance of
the eplion: and the period within which payments of calls
must or may ba made or leans for such purposes must be
repaid.

Plan Administration. Our compensalion commilles
will administer the 2011 Share Incenlive Plan and has
the power Lo, amang other aclions, dasignate eligible
paricipants, delermine the number and lypes of awards lo
be granted, and sal the lerms and conditions of each award
grant,

Award Agreoment. Awards granted will be evidenced by

an award agreemant thal sals forth the terms, condilions
and Eimitations for each award.
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Appendix | — 2006 Share Incentive Plan and

2011 Share Incentive Plan

Exarcise Price. In general, the compansalion commillee
may eslablish the exercise prica or purchase price, if any,
of any award. The exercise price of an oplion may be a
fixed or variable price ratated to the fair market value of our
Shares, but in any avanl shall nol be lass than the highast
of: the official clesing price quoted on the Steck Exchange
on the date sueh oplion is olfored in wiiling 1o & participant,

replacemeant of awards with other rights or proparty.
Upon the consummalion of a merger or consolidalion in
which our Company is nol the surviving anlity, a sale of
substantially all of gur assets, lhe complete Hguidation or
dissolulion of our Company of a raverse takeover, each
award will terminate, unless the award is assumed by
tha o anlity. If IRG SUSCOSSOr antily Assumes (he

or the offer date; the average of the officlal closing prices
05 quated on the Stock Exchange for the fve Dusingss
days immediately preceding the offer date; and the nominal
value of a Share. If we grant an incentive share oplion
award to an emgloyes who, at the time of thal granl. owns
Shares representing mone than 10% of the voling power
of all elasses of our Shares, the exarcise price may nof ba
less than 110% of the fair market value of our Shares on
the date of thal grant.

Torm of Awards. The term of each award shall be stated in
the award agreement, and may not exceed 10 yoars from
the dale of the grant. if the parlicipant ceases lo be eligible
for any reasen, the validity of the award shall depend on
the terms and condilions of the award agreemeni. For a
participant granted an incenlive share option, upon (e
monihs of termination of employment as an employee,
the right 1o exercise the incentive share gption shall be
revvoked.

Transferability. Rights in awards are persenal lo
participants and, except as otherwise provided by our
compensation commiltes, no award shall be assigned,
Iransfarred, of otherwise disposed of by a paricipant other
than by will er the laws of descent and distribution,

Adjustmonts. In the avent of any share split, combination
or exchange of shares, spin-off, recapitalization,
regrganization, merger, consolidation or any other change
affecting our share capilal, cur compensalicn committes
shall make proporlionate and equitable adjusiments lo
raflact such change wilth respect lo: (i) the aggregate
numbar and types of shares thal may be issued under
the plan;: (i) the larms and conditions of any cutstanding
awards; and (iii} the granl price or exercise price per share
for any oulslanding awards.

Change in Contrel Transactions. In the event of a
change in the control of gur Company, our compensation
commillea may in its sole discrelion provide for
termination, purchase or realization of awards, or
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award or replaces il with a comparable award, or replaces
the award with a £ash incentive program and provides
for subsequent payout, the replacement award or cash
incemie progeam will automatically becoms fully vested,
exarcisable and payable. as applicable, upan termination
of the paricipant’s employment withoul cause within 12
maonths of such corporate transaction. If the award is
neither assumed nor replaced, il shall become Tully vested
and exercisable and released from any repurchase or
forfeiture rights immediately prior to the effective date of
such corporate lransaction, provided thal the participant
remains gligible on the effective date of the corporate
transaction.

Amandment and Termination. Subject to applicable laws,
our compansalion commilles may lerminale, amond of
madify the 2011 Share Incentive Plan upon oblaining the
approval of our Board and the approval of ine Shareholders
for the amended plan. However, no amandmenl,
madification or lermination shall adversaly affect in any
matarial way any award previously granted under 2011
Share Incantive Plan or any previous plans, without the
prior written consent of the participant.

Expiration. The 2011 Share Inceniive Plan will expire 10
years afar the date il became affeclive. No awards may
be granted pursuant to the 2011 Share Incentive Plan after
that tirma.

Vesting Schodule. In general, the plan administrator
determined, or ihe award agreement would specily, the
vesling schedule.

As of Decamber 31, 2013 the unvested share oplions
granted under the 2011 Share Incentive Plan represened
approdimataly 0.153% of our issued share capital. If all
the unvested share oplions were to be exercised and
vested during the year ended Decamber 31, 2013 on an
unaudited pro-forma basis, there would be a dilution effect
on the shareholdings of our Shareholders of approximataly
0.153% and basic eamings per shara of US$0.0006.



Appendix || — MCP Share Incentive Plan

MCP adopted the MCP Shate Incémlive Plan to promole
Ihe success and enhance the value of MCP, by linking the
parsonal intérests of mambars of the board of direclors,
employees and consultants of MCP, iis subsidiaries,
halding companies and afiliated companies. Tha MCP
Share Incentive Plan, wilh amendments, was approved
by MCP sharghollers al the annual stockholders meating
held. and became effective, on June 21, 2013. The
MCP Share Incentive Plan was alse approved by our
Shareholders at the extracrdinary genaral mealing on
Jung 21, 2013, The Phippine Secunties and Exchange
Commission approved such amendments on June 24,
2013,

The tollawing paragraphs summarniss the principal lerms of
the MCP Share Incentive Plan.

Typos of Awards, The awards thal may be granted under
the MCP Share Incentive Plan include oplions, restricted
shares, share appreciation rights, dividend equivalents,
share parments, deferred shares and raslricted share
units,

Eligibility. The compansation commiftes of the board of
direciors of MCP may grant awards to employeas, diractors
and consultants of MCP, its subsidiary, holding companios
and affiliated companies for the purposes of the MCP
Share Incentive Plan. The compensation commitles of the
MCP Board may. from time to time, salact from amang
all eligible individuals, those to whom awards shall be
grantad.

Plan Limit. The maximum aggregale number of MCP
Shargs which may be iss5ued pursuant 1o all awards
under the MCF Share Incentive Plan is 442,630,330, In
any event, (he 1olal number of MCP Shares which may
be issued pursuant to all awards under the MCP Shara
Incantive Plan shall not exceed 10% of the issucd capital
slock of MCP at the date of our Shareholdars approval
of the MCP Share Incentive Plan. The overall limit on
the number of MCP Shares which may be issued upon
oxercise of all outstanding awards granted and yet 1o be
exercisad under the MCP Share Incenlive Plan and any
other share incentive plans of MCP mus! not exceed 5% of
the MCP Shares in issue from time Lo tima.

Maximum Entitlemant of Oplion Halders. The maximurm
aggregate number of MCP Shares underlying oplion granls
t6 each partitipant shall net, in any 12-manth period up
to the date of grant. exceed 1% of the number of MCP
Shares in issue, unless the approval of our Shareholders
Is oblained in accordance wilh the Listing Rules. If the
aggregate rumber of MCP Shares 1o bo issued upon
exarcise of cplions granied lo a subslantial shareholder or
an indapendent non-eeaculive dirgetor of the Company,
or any of their respective assodates, exceeds 0.1% of
the MCP Shares in issue on tho offer date, and have an
aggregale value, based on the official dosing price of the
MCP Shares a5 slated in (he daily quotdlion sheels of the
Philippine Stock Exchange on the offer date, in excess
of an amount in Paso which is equivalent to HKSS millien
or such ofher sum as may be from time to time provided
under the Listing Rules, the approval of our Sharaholders
shall be ebtained in accordance wilh the Listing Rules. Any
grant of oplion to a director, chiel executive or substantial
sharaholder of MGP or the Company, or any of their
respective associales, shall be subject lo the approval by
indepandent non-executive directors of our compensalion
committes at the time of such determination (and in the
evant that the compansation commillae of the board of
directars of MCP offers to grant options 1o an indepandant
nen-axecutive direclor of the compensation commilies of
the Company at the time of determination, the vola of such
independent non-executive director shall nol be counled
for the purposes of approving such grant).

Option Poriods and Payments, The compensation
committea of the board of directors of MCP may in its
discration determine, subject to the expiration date of the
MCP Share Incentive Plan, the period within which shares
granted must be taken up under an option; the ménimuemm
paried, if any, for which an option must be held before it can
be exercised; the amounl. i any, payable on applicalion or
acceptance of the aplion: and the form of paymant.

Administration. The compensation commillea of the
poard of directors of MCP will administer the MCP Share
Incentive Plan and has the power to. amang other actions,
designate elgible participants, determing the numbaes and
types of awards Lo be granted, and daterming the terms
and conditions of each award grant.
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Appendix || — MCP Share Incentive Plan

Award Agraemant. Awards granted will be evidenced
by an award agreemenl thal sets forth the terms and
conditions for each award.

Exarcise Price. The compansation commitlee of the board
of diragtors of MCP determines \he exeitise price per
shane subject 1o an oplion, in compliancd wilh the Listing
Rules and the Securities Law from time 1o time. Thera is
no requiremant under the Philipping law for determining
the exercise price of the oplions, excepl the exercise
price shall nol be bolow the par value of the shares. The
compensation committea of the board of directors of MCP
has the absalvle discration in detarmining (he oxorcise
price of thix 6ptisns but in any event shall be in compliance
with the Listing Rules and the Securities Regulation
Code of the Philippines (as amended and the rulas and
regulations promulgated thereunder). If MCP granis an
incentive share oplion award 1o an individual who, at the
time of that grant, owns sharas representing more than
10% of the voling power of all classes of MCP Shares, the
exarcise price may not be less than 110% of the fair market
value of the MCP Shares on the date of that grant.

Torm of Awards. The term of gach award shall be staled in
the award agreement, and may not excead ten years from
Ihe date of the grant. If (ho paricipant coa30s 16 bo ahgible
for any reason, the validity of the award shall depend on
the terms and conditions of the award agreameant. Option
may ol Do exicised, among olhers, three monihs after
termination of employment as an amployee,

Transforability. Rights in awards are personal (o
participants. No award shall ba assigned, Wransferrad, or
olharwise disposed of by a participant other than by will or
he Laws of descent and distribulion,

Adjustmenlts. In the event of a capitalisation issue, rights
issue, sub-division or consolidation of MCP Shares or
raduction of capital or any other ehango affecting the
entitlement or beneafits of the MCP Shares or the share
price of & MCP Share, the compansation committes of
the MCP Board shall make proporlionate and equitable
adjustmaents 1o reflect such change with respoct 1o (i)
the aggregate number and types of sharas thal may be
issued under the MCP Share Incentive Plan; (i) the terms
and conditions of any outstanding awards; and (iii) the
grant price or exarcise prica par share for any cutstanding
awards, in order to prasene, bul not increase, the benafits
or potential benefils intanded lo be made availabde under
the MCP Share Incentive Plan,

Maden Crown Erteriainment Lmfod  Aneual Repord 2013

Change in Control Transaclions. In the avent of a
change in the control of MCP, the compensation commitiee
of the board of directors of MCP may in 5 soba discrelion
provide for termination, purchasze or realization of awards,
or replacemant of awards with other rights or praperty.
Upon the consurnmation of an amakgamation, arrangement
of consoligation in which MCP is not the surviving entity,
a sale of substantially all MCP assets, the complate
liguidation of disselution of MCP &f 0 raverse lakeover,
each award will lerminate unless the award is assumed by
the SUCCEsS0r anlity. If 1he SUCCOSSOT enlity DSSUMDS thi
award or replaces il with a comparable award, or replaces
the award with a cash incentive program and provides
for subsequant payout, the raplacemeant award or cash
incenie progeam will automatically becoms fully vested,
exarcisable and payable, as applicable, immediately
upon lermination of the paricipant’s employment without
cause within bwatve months of such corporate transaction.
if the award is ngither assumed nor replaced. it shall
automatically become fully vested and exercisable
and released from any repurchase or forfeiture rights
immediately prior 1o the effactive date of such corporate
transaction, provided that the participant remains an
employea, consultant or director of MGP, its subsidiaries
or the parent on the effective date of the corporate
transaction,

A and T on. Subject to applicable law
or regulation, with the approval of the board of directors of
MCP Board, the compansation committes of the board of
dirgctors of MOP may terminate, amend o modity the MCP
Shara Incenthve Plan. If required by any applicable law or
regulations, the approval of the shareholders of MCP and
the Company for the amendad plan shall be oblained. Mo
amendment, madificalion or termination shall adversely
atfact in any material way any award préviously granied
under MCP Share Incenlive Plan withoul the peor writlen
consent of the: paricipant.

Expiration. The MCP Share Incentive Plan will expire ten
yoars after the date it became effective. No awards may
be granted pursuant to the MCP Share Incentive Plan after
that tirm,

Vasting Schodule, In genaral, the compansalion
committea of the board of direciors of MCP dalermines,
and the award agreement would specify, the vesting
schedule.
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